Improving the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and different carbon reduction policies

Ali Roozbeh Nia

A Thesis

In the Department of

Concordia Institute for Information Systems Engineering (CIISE)

Presented in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements For the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy (Information and Systems Engineering) at Concordia University Montreal, Quebec, Canada

April 2023

© Ali Roozbeh Nia, 2023

CONCORDIA UNIVERSITY

SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES

This is to certify that the thesis prepared

By: Ali Roozbeh Nia

Entitled: Improving the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and different carbon reduction policies

and submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Doctor Of Philosophy (Information and Systems Engineering)

complies with the regulations of the University and meets the accepted standards with respect to originality and quality.

Signed by the final examining committee:

	Chair
Dr. Christian Moreau	
Dr. Vincent J. Thomson	External Examiner
	Examiner
Dr. Farnoosh Naderkhani	
Dr. Arash Mohammadi	Examiner
	Examiner
	-
Dr. Anjali Awasthi	Thesis Co-Supervisor
	Thesis Co-Supervisor
Dr. Nadia Bhuiyan	

Approved by

Dr. Zachary Patterson, Graduate Program Director

6/2/2023

Dr. Mourad Debbabi, Dean Gina Cody School of Engineering and Computer Science

Abstract

Improving the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and different carbon reduction policies

Ali Roozbeh Nia, Ph.D.

Concordia University, 2023

In the age of Industry 4.0 and global warming, it is inevitable for decision-makers to change the way they view the coal supply chain (SC). In nature, energy is the currency, and nature is the source of energy for humankind. Coal is one of the most important sources of energy which provides much-needed electricity, as well as steel and cement production. This manuscript-based PhD thesis examines the coal SC network as well as the four carbon reduction strategies and plans to develop a comprehensive model for sustainable design. Thus, the Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) method is incorporated into a coal SC under economic order quantity (EOQ) and economic production quantity (EPOs) in an uncertain environment. Using a real case study in coal SC in Iran, four carbon reduction policies such as carbon tax (Chapter 5), carbon trade (Chapter 6), carbon cap (Chapter 7), and carbon offset (Chapter 8) are examined. Additionally, all carbon policies are compared for sustainable performance of coal SCs in some developed and developing countries (the USA, China, India, Germany, Canada, Australia, etc.) with the world's most significant coal consumption. The objective function of the four optimization models under each carbon policy is to minimize the total exergy (in Joules as opposed to Dollars/Euros) of the coal SC in each country. The models have been solved using three recent metaheuristic algorithms, including Ant lion optimizer (ALO), Lion optimization algorithm (LOA), and Whale optimization algorithm (WOA), as well as three popular ones, such as Genetic algorithm (GA), Ant colony optimization (ACO), and Simulated annealing (SA), are suggested to determine a near-optimal solution to an exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming (EFNIP). Moreover, the proposed metaheuristic algorithms are validated by using an exact method (by GAMS software) in smallsize test problems. Finally, through a sensitivity analysis, this dissertation compares the effects of applying different percentages of exergy parameters (capital, labor, and environmental remediation) to coal SC models in each country. Using this approach, we can determine the best carbon reduction policy and exergy percentage that leads to the most sustainable performance (the lowest total exergy per Joule). The findings of this study may enhance the related research of sustainability assessment of SC as well as assist coal enterprises in making logical and measurable decisions.

"To my father, in loving memory"

Acknowledgement:

- "Reproduced with permission from Springer Nature".
- "Reproduced with permission from Elsevier".

Contribution of Authors

Ali Roozbeh Nia: Conceptualization, Methodology, Software, Writing- Original draft preparation, Validation, Writing-Reviewing and Editing

Anjali Awasthi: Supervision, Writing-Reviewing and Editing.

Nadia Bhuiyan: Supervision, Writing-Reviewing and Editing.

List of Acronymsxi	
List of Tablesxii	
List of Figures	
CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION	
1.1. Energy market	
1.2. Coal SC	
1.3. Energy and environmental issues	
1.4. Sustainable SC and Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) method	
1.5. Research Gaps7	
1.6. Research Questions	
1.7. Research contributions	
CHAPTER 2. LITERATURE REVIEW 10	
2.1 Method of reviewing 10	
2.2. Literature review	
CHAPTER 3. PAPER ONE - MANAGEMENT OF SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN AND INDUSTRY 4.0: A LITERATURE REVIEW	
3.1. Introduction	
3.2. Review of Literature on SSC and Industry 4.0	
3.2.1. Method of Reviewing	
3.2.2. Academic Literature on SSC and Industry 4.0	
3.2.3. Published Books on Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.2.4. Published Book Chapter on Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.2.5. Analysis of Industry 4.0 and SSC Literature	
3.3. Enabling Technologies and Key Elements of Industry 4.0 for SSC	
3.4. Challenges, Success Factors, and Research Gaps in Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.4.1. Challenges and Concerns About Executing Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.4.2. Success Aspects for Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.4.3. Research Gaps in Industry 4.0 and SSC	
3.5. Developing Industry 4.0 and SSC: A Dynamic Framework	
3.6. Conclusions, Limitations, and Further Research Trends	
3.6.1. Limitations	
3.6.2. Future Research Topics	
CHAPTER 4. PAPER TWO - INDUSTRY 4.0 AND DEMAND FORECASTING OF THE ENERGY SUPPLY CHAIN: A LITERATURE REVIEW	

Table of Contents

4.1. Introduction	45
4.2. Literature Review	49
4.2.1. Method of reviewing	49
4.2.2. Summary of statistical analysis	50
4.2.3. Classification of energy demand forecasting	54
4.3. Traditional methods	56
4.3.1. Fuzzy Logic and fuzzy sets	56
4.3.2. Grey model (GM)	57
4.3.3. Metaheuristic algorithms	60
4.3.4. Regression models	63
4.3.5. Simulation model	65
4.3.6. Time series model	67
4.4. Intelligent methods: demand forecasting in the era of Industry 4.0	70
4.4.1. Machine learning	71
4.4.2. Neural network (NN)	74
4.5. Conclusion and policy implications	79
CHAPTER 5. PAPER THREE - INTEGRATE EXERGY COSTS AND CARBON REDUCTION POLICY IN ORDER TO OPTIMIZE THE SUSTAINABILITY	
DEVELOD (EVELOD CONTRACTOR OF A DISTRICT OF	~ ~
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 86
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review	86 86 89
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis	86 86 89 89
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method	86 86 89 89 90
 DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 86 89 89 90 95
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description	86 86 89 89 90 95 95
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description 5.3.2. Assumptions	86 86 89 89 90 95 95 95
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description 5.3.2. Assumptions 5.3.3. Notations	86 86 89 90 95 95 95 96
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description 5.3.2. Assumptions 5.3.3. Notations 5.3.3. Notations 5.3.3.1. Parameters	86 86 89 90 95 95 95 96 96
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3.2. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description 5.3.2. Assumptions 5.3.3. Notations 5.3.3.1. Parameters 5.3.3.2. Decision variables	86 86 89 90 95 95 95 96 97
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS 5.1. Introduction 5.2. Literature review 5.2.1. Exergy analysis 5.2.2. EEA method 5.3.2. Problem explanation and model formulation 5.3.1. Problem description 5.3.2. Assumptions 5.3.3. Notations 5.3.3.1. Parameters 5.3.3.2. Decision variables 5.3.4. A non-exergy Modeling of coal supply chain with carbon tax policy	86 86 89 90 95 95 95 96 97 97
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 89 89 90 95 95 95 96 97 97 97
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 86 89 90 95 95 95 95 95 97 97 97 97
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 89 89 90 95 95 95 95 96 97 97 97 97 99 100
DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS	86 89 89 90 95 95 95 95 96 97 97 97 97 100 101

5.4.1. Extended exergy accounting (EEA)	102
5.4.2. Applying EEA to fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal supply chain under VMI	103
5.5. Solution method	105
5.5.1. Genetic algorithm (GA)	105
5.5.2. The "ant colony optimization (ACO)" algorithm	105
5.5.3. The whale optimization algorithm (WOA)	106
5.5.4. The solution processes	106
5.6. Numerical examples	107
5.6.1 Case study in Iran	107
5.6.2 Solving phases and related results	109
5.6.2.4.1 Analysis of each country	115
5.6.2.4.2 Analysis of each exergy set	116
5.7. Conclusions and future research works	119
CHAPTER 6. PAPER FOUR - ASSESSMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAIN UNDER CARBO TRADE POLICY BY EXTENDED EXERGY ACCOUNTING METHOD	DN 128
6.1. Introduction	128
6.2. Literature review	132
6.2.1. Exergy analysis concepts	132
6.2.2. Extended exergy accounting method	133
6.2.3. Research gaps and our contributions	136
6.3. Problem description and model formulation	136
6.3.1. Problem description	136
6.3.2. Assumptions	137
6.3.3. Notations	138
6.3.4. A non-exergy modeling of coal SC under carbon trade policy	139
6.3.4.1. Objective function	139
6.3.4.2. The constraints	140
6.3.5. The inventory model in fuzzy environment	143
6.3.5.1. Graded Mean Integration representation technique	144
6.4. Exergy modeling of fuzzy optimization of multi-buyer coal SC	144
6.4.1. Extended exergy accounting	145
6.4.2. Applying extended exergy accounting to fuzzy optimization of multi-buyer coal SC	146
6.4.3. A fuzzy exergy modeling of coal SC with carbon trade policy	147
6.5. A solution algorithm	148
6.5.1. The Ant Lion Optimization algorithm (ALO)	149

6.5.2. The lion optimization algorithm (LOA)	150
6.5.3. The whale optimization algorithm (WOA)	150
6.6. Numerical examples	152
6.6.1 Case study in Iran	152
6.6.2 Solving phases and related results	153
6.6.2.1 Step one - Metaheuristic algorithms	153
6.6.2.2 Step two - Exact method	157
6.6.2.3 Step three- Sensitivity analysis	158
6.6.2.3.1 Analysis of each country	160
6.6.2.3.2 Analysis of each exergy set	161
6.7. Conclusions and future work	162
CHAPTER 7. ADDITIONAL RESULTS FOR CHAPTER 5	176
7.1. A non-exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon cap policy	176
7.1.1. Objective function	176
7.1.2. The limitations	177
7.2. The inventory model in fuzzy environment	180
7.3. Exergy Modeling of fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal SC under VMI	180
7.3.1 A fuzzy exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon cap policy	180
7.4. Solution method	181
7.5. Numerical examples	181
7.5.1 Solving phases and related results	181
7.6 Comparing the carbon cap and tax policies	183
7.6.1 Analysis of each country-carbon cap and tax policies	183
7.6.2 Analysis of each exergy set-carbon cap and tax policies	187
CHAPTER 8. ADDITIONAL RESULTS FOR CHAPTER 6	191
8.1. A non-exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon offset policy	191
8.1.1. Objective function	191
8.1.2. The constraints	193
8.2. The inventory model in fuzzy environment	196
8.3. Exergy modeling of fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal SC under VMI	196
8.3.1 A fuzzy exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon offset policy	196
8.4. Solution method	197
8.5. Numerical examples	197
8.5.1 Solving phases and related results (carbon offset)	197

8.6 Comparing the carbon trade and offset policies	. 197
8.6.1 Analysis of each country-carbon trade and offset policies	. 200
8.6.2 Analysis of each exergy set-carbon trade and offset policies	. 207
CHAPTER 9. CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE WORK	211
9.1 Research contributions	211
9.2 Management implications and future research	. 214
References	. 216
APPENDIX	. 260
Appendix 1. The results of carbon cap policy for the model (in chapter 7)	. 260
Appendix 2. The results of carbon offset policy for the model (in chapter 8)	. 270
Appendix 3. The exergy parameters for all countries (Chapter 9)	. 280

List of Acronyms

CH4: Methane CO2: Carbon dioxide EEA: Extended Exergy Accounting EOQ: Economic order quantity EPQ: Economic production quantity EMQ: Economic manufacturing quantity EFNIP: Exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming FST: Fuzzy set theory N2O: nitrous oxide O3: Ozone SC: Supply chain SVMB: Single-vendor multi-buyer VMI: Vendor managed inventory

List of Tables

Table 2.1. keywords search for exergy publications	. 10
Table 2.2. keywords search for carbon policies publications	11
Table 3.1. Top 10 Research papers with the highest number of citations in SSC and Industry 4	.0.
	. 18
Table 3.2. Top 3 Conference papers with the highest number of Citations in SSC and Industry	
4.0	. 19
Table 3.3. Literature Review of SSC and Industry 4.0 (Books).	. 21
Table 3.4. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Book chapters)	. 21
Table 3.5. Top 5 areas of application in the literature of SSC and Industry 4.0.	. 26
Table 3.6. Challenges and issues of implementing Industry 4.0 and SSC	. 28
Table 3.7. Success factors for Industry 4.0 and SSC	. 29
Table 3.8. Decomposed framework for SSC 4.0	. 33
Table 3.9. Decomposed sustainability for SSC 4.0.	. 33
Table 3.10. The areas of application and Nomenclature	. 36
Table 3.11. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Research papers)	. 37
Table 3.12. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Conference papers)	. 42
Table 4.1. A complete list of recognized articles which used Fuzzy Logic in their forecasting	
methods	. 55
Table 4.2. A complete list of recognized articles which used Grey model (GM) in their	
forecasting methods	. 58
Table 4.3. A complete list of recognized articles which used Metaheuristic algorithm in their	
forecasting methods	. 61
Table 4.4. A complete list of recognized articles which used Regression models in their	
forecasting methods	. 64
Table 4.5. A complete list of recognized articles which used Simulation model in their	
forecasting methods	. 66
Table 4.6. A complete list of recognized articles which used Time series model in their	
forecasting methods	. 68
Table 4.7. A complete list of recognized articles which used Machine Learning in their	
forecasting methods	. 73
Table 4.8. A complete list of recognized articles which used Neural Network (NN) in their	
forecasting methods	. 75
Table 4.9. Summary of the most used forecast methods of energy demand (Zhao et al. 2019,	
Wang et al. 2018a; Yuana et al. 2017)	. 77
Table 4.A-1. List of different methods of energy demand forecasting which employed by authority	ors
in last two decades	. 82
Table 5.1. A review of research works in exergy analysis of supply chain	. 93
Table 5.2: Fuzzy parameters of all buyers for all items in the real case study (example with for	Jr
items)	108
Table 5.3: Initial data of the real case study based on capital, labor, and environment values	
(example with four items)	108
Table 5.4: Initial data of the real case study (example with four items)	109

Table 5.5: The exergy parameters used in the inventory analysis of each country
Table 5.6: Equivalent exergy parameters of Iran's real case study (example with four items) 109
Table 5.7: The fuzzy total exergy found by the algorithms (Eq. 5.35) in Iran
Table 5.8: The CPU times of solving test problems by the algorithms (Eq. 5.35) in Iran112
Table 5.9: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs in five countries
(example with four items)
Table 5.A.1. Fuzzy demands of all buyers for all items (a vendor and five buyers)
Table 5.A.2. Initial data of all test problems (monetary value) and their equivalent exergy values
(MJ) for Iran
Table 5.A.3. Resource data of all test problems (monetary value) and their equivalent exergy
values (MJ)
Table 5.A.4. The exergy values of inventory parameters (values in MJ) for 1st item (i=1) 126
Table 6.1. A short review of studies on carbon policies in heavy industries 131
Table 6.2. A brief review of research works in exergy analysis of supply chain
Table 6.3. Notations
Table 6.4: Inventory costs and their equivalent exergy based on capital (30%), labor (60%), and
environment (10%) values (Test with four products)
Table 6.5: The exergy parameters of selected countries (sensitivity analysis) 153
Table 6.6: The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) observed by the algorithms under carbon trade policy in
Iran (Eq. 6.38)
Table 6.7: The CPU times (Sec.) of solving numerical examples by the algorithms under carbon
trade policy in Iran (Eq. 6.38)155
Table 6.8: Comparing the results of the exact method (GAMS) with the best algorithm (ALO)
Table 6.9: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy elements (example with four
products) 159
Table 6.A.1. Fuzzy demands of 15 buyers (<i>j</i>) and 10 products (<i>i</i>) (values: *1000)166
Table 6.A.2. Fuzzy parameters for 15 buyers (<i>j</i>) and 10 products (<i>i</i>) (values: *10)
Table 6.A.3. Initial data (monetary value) of test problem with ten products and their equivalent
of exergy values (MJ) 167
Table 6.A.4. Initial data of the actual case study in Iran with four products (without exergy) 167
Table 6.A.5. Equivalent exergy parameters of the actual case study in Iran with four products 168
Table 6.A.6. Warehouse space (Wj) of each buyer in all examples (10-2560 products)
Table 6.A.7. Available budget (Xj) of each buyer (exergy values) in all examples (10-2560
products) 168
Table 6.A.8. Permitted carbon emission (<i>Ej</i>) of each buyer in all examples (10-2560 products)
Table 6.A.9. Initial data of the resources of all examples (4-2560 products) 170
Table 6.A.10. The exergy values of inventory parameters (values in MJ) for 1st product (i=1)
Table 7.1. Sensitivity analysis of exergy components under carbon cap and tax policies (Fuzzy
total exergy in MJ)

Table 8.1. Sensitivity analysis of exergy components under carbon trade and offset policies
(Fuzzy total exergy in MJ)
Table A.7.1: The fuzzy total exergy cost found by the algorithms (Eq. 7.17) in Iran-Carbon cap
Table A.7.2: The CPU times of solving test problems by the algorithms (Eq. 7.17) in Iran-Carbon
cap
Table A.7.3: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs (example with four
items)-Carbon cap
Table A.8.1: The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) observed by the algorithms under carbon offset policy
in Iran (Eq. 8.18)
Table A.8.2: The CPU times (Sec.) of solving numerical examples by the algorithms under
carbon offset policy in Iran (Eq. 8.18)
Table A.8.3: Comparing the results of the exact method (GAMS) with the best algorithm (ALO)
Table A.8.4: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy elements (example with four
products) -Carbon offset
Table A.9.1: The exergy parameters used in the inventory analysis of each country

List of Figures

Fig.1.1. Coal consumption by region in 2021	3
Fig. 1.2 Coal mines in Iran (Zadehkabir, 1992)	4
Fig. 3.1. An illustration of a traditional supply chain (Roozbeh Nia et al. 2014)	14
Fig. 3.2. Types of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0.	23
Fig. 3.3. The number of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0 per year.	23
Fig. 3.4. The percentage of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0 per year	24
Fig. 3.5. The type of access for publications in SSC and Industry 4.0.	24
Fig. 3.6. The areas of application for SSC and Industry 4.0.	25
Fig. 3.7. A dynamic framework for the development of Sustainable supply chain 4.0	32
Fig. 4.1 The sub-sectors in Energy SC division	46
Fig. 4.2 The energy SC, demand and forecasting	47
Fig. 4.3 Classifications of energy demand sectors	48
Fig. 4.4 The number of publications from 1979 to 2020	51
Fig. 4.5 Research areas and their publication's number from 1979 to 2020	52
Fig. 4.6 Document types of publications from 1979 to 2020	52
Fig. 4.7 Countries of publications from 1979 to 2020	53
Fig. 4.8 Energy types of publications from 2000 to 2020	53
Fig. 4.9 Application areas of publications from 2000 to 2020	54
Fig. 4.10 The number of publications related to each method from 2000 to 2020	54
Fig. 4.11 The trends of forecasting methods from 2000 to 2020	71
Fig. 4.12 The using of forecasting methods for different energy types	80
Fig. 4.13 The number of application areas for both Intelligent and Traditional forecasting	
methods	81
Fig.5.1. An example of Iranian coal SC with 4-item and five buyers (with distance and ava	ilable
budgets)	88
Fig.5.2. Representation of a triangular fuzzy number (TFN)	102
Fig.5.3. The demonstration of the chromosomes for the test with four items and five buyer	s 107
Fig.5.4. The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) comparisons of algorithms for numerical examples (F	Phase
2)	110
Fig.5.5. The CPU time (second) comparisons of algorithms for numerical examples (Phase	e 2)110
Fig.5.6. The improvement (%) of CPU time between top two algorithms (Phase 2)	111
Fig.5.7. Comparison of the fuzzy total exergy between exact method and the best metaheu	ristic
algorithm (Phase 3)	113
Fig.5.8. Comparison of CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorit	thm
(Phase 3)	114
Fig.5.9. The diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms (Phases 2 & 3)	114
Fig.5.10. Sensitivity analysis - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy of each country (Pha	ase 4)
	115
Fig. 5.11. Sensitivity analysis - Min. and Max. of each exergy set (Phase 4)	117/
Fig. 5.A.1. Coal consumption by region in 2021	126
Fig.6.1. Flow chart of the proposed solving procedure	151

Fig.6.2. An example of the chromosomes for the numerical example with four products and ten
buyers
Fig.6.3. The total fuzzy exergy comparisons of algorithms in large size test problems (step 1) 156
Fig.6.4. The CPU time comparisons of all algorithms (step 1)
Fig.6.5. The convergence diagram of the total fuzzy exergy by the proposed algorithms (step 1)
Fig.6.6. Comparison of the total fuzzy exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic
algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2)
Fig.6.7. Sensitivity analysis for each country – Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)162
Fig. 6.8. Sensitivity analysis for each set - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)
Figure 6 A 1 Pseudo-code of the ALO algorithm (Mirialili 2015)
Figure 6 A 2 Pseudo-code of the LOA algorithm (Yazdani and Jolai 2016) 172
Figure 6 A 3 Pseudo-code of the WOA algorithm (Mirialili and Lewis 2016) 173
Figure 6. A 4. Performance improvement $\binom{6}{2}$ between ton two algorithms in the total fuzzy
every (step 1) 173
Excigute 6 A 5 Derformance improvement $(%)$ of CDU time between ten two algorithms (step 1)
174
Eigen 6 A 6 Comparison of CDU time between event method and ALO elevithm for test
Figure 0.A.0. Comparison of CPO time between exact method and ALO algorithm for test
Figure (A.7. Seven evenes ests (conital labor & environment) for coal SC
Figure 6.A./. Seven exergy sets (capital, labor & environment) for coal SC
Fig. 7.1. Sustainability of coal SC in Afgnanistan under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.2. Sustainability of coal SC in Canada under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.3. Sustainability of coal SC in Germany under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.4. Sustainability of coal SC in Iran under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.5. Sustainability of coal SC in Turkey under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.6. The best exergy set for each country under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.7. The worst exergy set for each country under the carbon cap and tax policies
Fig. 7.8. The exergy Set A in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax
policies
Fig. 7.9. The exergy Set B in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax
policies
Fig. 7.10. The exergy Set C in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax
policies
Fig. 7.11. The exergy Set D in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax
policies
Fig. 7.12. The exergy Set E in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax
policies
Fig. 8.1. Sustainability of coal SC in Australia under the carbon trade and offset policies 200
Fig. 8.2. Sustainability of coal SC in China under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.3. Sustainability of coal SC in India under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.4. Sustainability of coal SC in Iran under the trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.5. Sustainability of coal SC in Japan under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.6. Sustainability of coal SC in Poland under the carbon trade and offset policies

Fig. 8.7. Sustainability of coal SC in the USA under the carbon trade and offset policies 203 Fig. 8.8. Sustainability of coal SC in Zimbabwe under the carbon trade and offset policies 204 Fig. 8.9. The best exergy set for each country under the carbon trade and offset policies 205 Fig. 8.10. The worst exergy set for each country under the carbon trade and offset policies 206 Fig. 8.11. The exergy Set A in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.12. The exergy Set B in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and
Fig. 8.12. The every Set C in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and
offset policies
Fig. 8.14. The exergy Set D in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.
Fig. 8.15. The exergy Set E in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.16. The exergy Set F in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig. 8.17. The exergy Set G in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies
Fig.A.7.1. The fuzzy total exergy comparisons of all algorithms - carbon cap (Phase 2)
metabeuristic algorithm (Phase 3) 264
Fig.A.7.6. Compare CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm (Phase 3) 264
Fig.A.7.7. The diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms (Phases 2 & 3) 265 Fig.7.8. Sensitivity analysis - Min. and Max. of countries (Phase 4) -Carbon cap
Fig.A.8.2. Performance improvement of top two algorithms for fuzzy total exergy (step 1) 272 Fig.A.8.3. The CPU time comparisons of all algorithms (step 1)
rig.A.8.5. Comparison of the total fuzzy exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2)
Fig.A.8.6. Comparison of the CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic
Fig.A.8.7. Sensitivity analysis for each country – Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)
Fig.A.8.8. Sensitivity analysis for each set - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3) 279 Fig. A.9.1. The exergy of Capital (ee_Cap) in developed and developing countries

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Energy market

The energy market is a type of commodity market handling process specifically with the trade and provision of energy, which may refer to electricity, heat, and fuel products. Major commodities being natural gas and electricity while other commodities traded in the energy market are oil, coal, carbon emissions (greenhouse gases), nuclear power, solar energy, and wind energy. Energy markets are known as a fast-growing and complicated sector considering their significant role in the global economies, the necessity of this sector in power and gas supply, and financial concerns of energy (Mousavi et al. 2021).

It is true that the energy market today tends to be maturing and unbalanced, characterized by increasing demand and fluctuating supply (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). There are tangible signs to verify that demand and price are not predetermined and can influence a broad collection of market influences and customer behaviors. For example, due to the difficulty in storing and transporting energy, current and future prices in energy are rarely linked. This is because energy purchased at current prices is difficult to store and sell later. While some scholars have focused on the direct issues, there are also unforeseen issues such as the economic environment, business events, and global politics (Su et al., 2021). In the last two decades, the global economy and energy market has witnessed several uncertainty-inducing events. Examples of such events include: the 2007–2009 Global Financial Crisis, also known as the Great Recession; the escalating global trade disputes, especially the trade tensions between the United States and China that degenerated in 2018 and 2019; the BREXIT vote and the subsequent negotiations between the United Kingdom and the European Union; the March 2020 oil price war between Russia and Saudi Arabia; the European sovereign debt crisis; the COVID-19 pandemic that crippled economic activities globally; and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine war that has led to the imposition of sanctions on Russia by many countries, especially European countries (Ogbuabor et al. 2023). As a result, many countries have re-evaluated their energy sources. The fact is that uncertainties in demand and energy consumption significantly affect the total supply chain (SC) cost as the penalty cost of unsatisfied demand increases (Privan et al. 2022). In response to this issue, Zadeh (1965) proposed "fuzzy set theory (FST)," which translates "ill-defined" data into mathematical terms.

The energy division is segregated into various sections, each with their own SC problems and challenges. The common five sub-sectors in the energy SC division are Oil & gas upstream, Oil & gas downstream, Chemicals & petrochemicals, Mining and Power & utilities. (Roozbeh Nia et al. 2021). Management of energy is critical for economic success and environmental security since energy is connected to many sectors such as industrial manufacture, agricultural production, access to water, education, health, population, life quality, etc., (Suganthi and Samuel, 2012). For an efficient management of energy, industry and governments must concurrently follow these three issues (S'anchez-Dur'an, Luque, and Barbancho, 2019):

Energy security (consistency of energy infrastructure, and capability of energy suppliers to fulfill present and upcoming demand),

- Energy equity (availability and affordability of energy supply for the population),
- Environmental sustainability (energy productivity and the improvement of energy provided by renewable and other low-carbon sources).

It is estimated that industrial sectors account for over 50% of global energy consumption (Safarian, 2023). Moreover, it is reported that the annual consumption of energy in the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) countries have risen by 0.5%. In comparison, this amount for non-OECD countries has expanded by about 1%. Moreover, from 2006 to 2030, energy utilization in the industrial section (non-OECD and OECD countries) grew by about 1.4% per annum (U.S. Energy Information, 2020).

On the one hand, fossil fuel sources including coal, oil, and natural gas have been the main energy sources in energy production for a long time. While the share of natural gas has been increasing, the share of coal and oil has been gradually decreasing (British Petroleum-BP, 2022; Energy Information Administration-EIA, 2022). It is observed that fossil fuels provide more than 80% of the total energy supply, while renewables account for only 20% (Zakari et al. 2021). On the other hand, renewable energy sources have been used in energy production since 1965. In this group, geothermal, biomass, and hydro are the leading sources whereas other renewable sources are wind and solar (Depren et al. 2022).

Renewable energy, while undoubtedly a preferred source of energy, can replace fossil fuels but not in the short term. A full transition from fossil fuels to renewable, clean energy will not happen overnight. It is not an easy task for policymakers to restructure the existing energy production structure from fossil fuel sources to renewable sources because of environmental concerns. (BP, 2022; Oliveira and Moutinho, 2021). Fossil fuels are extraordinarily energy dense, and it is easy to generate energy from fossil fuels and — more importantly — to capture the energy produced during fossil fuel combustion. Fossil fuels are a stable and non-toxic energy source relative to most other proven energy sources. Additionally, fossil fuels are stable and non-toxic that is safe to use in public highways and thoroughfares as well as cargo ships to transport fossil fuels. Additionally, concerning providing renewable energy, for instance, each wind turbine needs 260 tonnes of steel created from 170 tonnes of coking coal. Similarly, while no emissions come directly from an electric car, they cannot operate without power generated using fossil fuels like coal and natural gas that generate emissions. Therefore, the world still needs fossil fuels for utilization of renewable energy.



Fig.1.1. Coal consumption by region in 2021

1.2. Coal SC

Among fossil fuels, coal is a key fundamental energy source, and has a critical position in stabilizing national economies (Kang et al., 2014). Almost all coal is composed of dead plant material. As a result of accumulated plant material being buried under anoxic conditions for millions of years and being exposed to high temperatures and pressures over that time, coal was formed (Australian Government, 2022). Coal is the world's greatest sole source of electrical energy (37%) and will continue the most significant supplier (22%) until 2040. Moreover, coal aids non-energies manufacturing such as cement, steel (70%), and aluminium production (60%). rare earth element extraction, coal-to-chemicals, carbon fibre manufacture, and industrial electrodes (World coal association). Typically, about 630kg of coal are demanded to produce one metric ton of steel (Corsa). To produce one ton of cement, approximately 200-450kg of coal is required and about 20% of hydrogen production occurs by coal-to-gas processes (World coal association). In Fig. 1.1, global coal consumption by region in 2021 is presented (Statistical Review of World Energy, 2021). About 75% of coal is found in only five countries (USA, Russia, Australia, China, and India), while the biggest coal consumers are China (54%), India (18%), USA (6%), Japan (3%), and South Africa (2.3%) (Phengsaart et al., 2023). According to Notes from Poland (2022), Poland ranks 9th in the world in coal consumption to generate 70% of electricity, by far the highest figure in Europe. In terms of production, China tops the list supplying about 50% of global coal demand. Other key players in the global coal trade include India (9.9%), Indonesia (7.5%), USA (6.4%), Australia (5.9%), Russia (5.3%) and Poland (1.3%) (Phengsaart et al., 2023).

Iran (Persia), in Southwest Asia with an area of 1.64 million square kilometres (0.63 million square miles), is the 17th-largest country in the world. Iran has an estimated population of 86.8 million, making it the 17th-most populous country in the world, and the second largest in the Middle East. Iran is the fifth richest country in the world in terms of natural resources such as oil, gas, coal, wood, gold, silver, copper, uranium, crude iron, and phosphate. With one percent of the world's population, it has more than 7 percent of the world's mineral resources. In terms of energy,

Iran was the fifth-largest crude oil producer in OPEC in 2021 and the third-largest natural gas producer in the world in 2020. Iran is also the fourth richest country in the world in terms of fossil fuel reserves. It holds some of the world's largest deposits of proved oil and natural gas reserves, ranking as the world's third-largest oil and second-largest natural gas reserve holder in 2021. At the end of 2021, Iran accounted for 24% of oil reserves in the Middle East and 12% in the world (EIA, 2022). With these huge amounts of fossil fuel reserves, Iran is considered an "energy superpower".



Fig. 1.2 Coal mines in Iran (Zadehkabir, 1992)

With about 1.15 billion tons of reserves (ranking 29th in the world), Iranian coal mines can deliver up to three million tons of coal concentrate yearly (IEA, clean coal centre, 2020). The coalbearing deposits of Iran are spread throughout the central, northern and northwestern regions of the country, and occupy a vast area of some 100 thousand sq.km (Zadehkabir, 1992). Due to the presence of high oil and natural gas reserves in Iran, thermal coal mines are not considered properly. In contrast, steel manufacturers in Iran (and worldwide) have a considerable demand for coking coals because it is one of the essential unique inputs for steel production employing blast furnaces (Mohanty et al., 2019). Coking coal, also named metallurgical coal, is a type of non-renewable resource, and it is mainly intended for making coke, a coal-based fuel. For instance, in 2019, the coal utilisation in the steel sector was around 900 million tons of coal equivalent (Mtce) (26.2 exajoules [EJ]) or about 15% of the initial international coal demand (Iron and Steel Technology Roadmap). The Tabas Parvadeh Coal Company (TPCCO), located in Tabas city, is the biggest coal producer in Iran. Consistent with the statistics published by the Iranian Mines and Mining Industries Development and Renovation Organization (IMIDRO), TPCCO extracted 1.232 million tons of coal from March 21, 2019, to January 20, 2020). Almost the majority of these amounts were bought by steel companies in Iran.

1.3. Energy and environmental issues

On the one hand, energy is essential for economic growth; however, energy consumption also negatively influences long-term economic progress by adversely affecting environmental quality and human welfare in the developing world. Developing countries strive to become more advanced, which increases their energy consumption (Chen et al. 2023). On the other hand, reducing energy utilization is crucial for environmental protection and developing sustainable resources (Jawad et al., 2018).

An issue that could impact heavy industry SCs, such as steel, cement, and coal power plants, is that these industries form a massive percentage of carbon dioxide (CO₂) emissions (Sun and Yang, 2021). Coal's primary gas emissions, such as CO₂, SO₂, NO_X, and smoke dust, can contribute to global warming, damaging the ozone layer and creating acid rain (Manisalidis et al., 2020). Iron and steel manufacturing, for instance, emitted about 2,600 million tons of carbon in 2019. This number is expected to rise to 2,700 million tons by 2050 if no sustainable development scenario is applied (U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), 2022). As society becomes more aware of the value of the environment, waste disposal (imperfect quality items) and carbon dioxide emissions must become leading indicators of coal SC assessment (Mehmood et al., 2015). According to the European Union's Joint Research Centre, China is the largest emitter of CO2 in the world, with 11680 Mt (11.680 GT) of carbon dioxide emissions in 2020. This is just over 32% of the world's total 2020 emissions. The United States and India released the second- and thirdhighest amount of carbon emissions at 4.535 and 2.411 GT (or roughly 12.6% and 6% of total global emissions). Moreover, Japan and Iran are the 5th and 6th CO2-emitting countries in the world. It should be mentioned that China, the USA, and India are also three of the most populous countries on Earth. In general, developed countries and major emerging markets lead in total carbon dioxide emissions.

Various countries worldwide set impressive emission reduction goals for the future to tackle climate change and for sustainable development (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020; Sun and Yang, 2021). In this effort, environmental administrations around the globe agree that pricing carbon emissions are the inexpensive and most successful means to achieve their emission reduction goals (Environment and Climate Change Canada, 2018). The primary carbon pricing strategies are carbon tax, carbon cap, carbon offset, and carbon trade (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020), whereas each carbon strategy has different costs and carbon reductions. The benefits of applying each carbon emission policy are not equal for companies involved in coal SC. While some carbon policies are more environmentally friendly, others are more economically beneficial.

1.4. Sustainable SC and Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) method

SCs are the operational sequence of interconnected procedures that manage, plan, and control goods and services between buyers and vendors (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2020). Besides the monetary costs of a coal SC, for instance, miners, washing factories, shippers, and power plants/steel producers, there are other charges known as "hidden costs" associated with environmental influences and emissions. Both costs should be considered in the entire operational costs of the coal SC (Phillips, 2008). Any manufacturing process that reduces "hidden costs," for instance, environmental effects, is recognized as a sustainable procedure. Sustainable SC is the administration of material, information, and assets streams in addition to teamwork among corporations alongside the SC whereas choosing objectives from entirely three elements of sustainable progress, namely, environmental, economic and social, which are come from customer and shareholder necessities (Asadi and Sadjadi, 2017; Bui et al., 2020; Mangla et al., 2017). A sustainable SC is designated by a company's ability to decrease the consumption of energy, materials, or water and to discover solutions that are further eco-efficient by enhancing the administration of their SCs. Sustainable SC management is the improved level of management through the integration of environmental and social issues in parallel to the economic issues (Jawad et al. 2018). More precisely, sustainable SC management must be expressed to fulfill the necessities of the existing generation of businesses without failing the capability of forthcoming generations (for example, Industry 4.0) to accomplish their needs (Jabbour et al., 2020).

Moreover, emerging Industry 4.0 technologies and concerns about global warming show that decision-makers need to change their point of view in assessing the SC's performance (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2020). Shifting from traditional assessment methods to novel and more sustainable methods is one of the critical aspects of the fourth industrial revolution. Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) is an innovative method that can help SCs become more sustainable (Aghbashlo et al., 2018). This method integrates the effect of non-energetic manufacturing features into the complete loss assessment (Jawad et al., 2018; Sciubba, 2011). EEA is the quantity of initial exergy (in Joules; J) aggregate consumed in the manufacture, operation, and discarding procedure of certain goods or services. In this thesis, exergy is considered as the maximum useful work that can be obtained when a system is brought into stability with its surroundings by means of a reversible process (Jawad et al. 2015). It means, Exergy is that portion of Energy available to do work (Robinett et al., 2006). The EEA delivers more information than an entirely financial method, which cannot support any suggestion about utilizing global resources (Jawad et al., 2016). The initial aggregate exergy includes material (M), and energy (E), corresponding exergy of labor (L), money (Cap.), and ecological (Env.) remediation costs, of which the last three components are counted as the cost correspondence of economic externality and ecological externality (Song et al., 2019).

The primary benefit of employing the EEA method in the production system is that this method states all outcomes in Joules (instead of dollars); therefore, acceptable assessments among different products can be achieved (Naderi et al., 2021b; Jawad et al., 2018). Moreover, energy (in terms of Joules) is essential to operate all manufacturing and SC processes (Jawad et al., 2015). The EEA has been widely accepted as a comprehensive metric that accounts for both physical and monetary costs associated with the consumption of primary resource. The EEA over traditional exergy analysis has the advantage of connecting the technical production process of specific produces as well as production processes with their surrounded system, such as social system and surrounding Environment (Song et al., 2019). As a result, the EEA refers to a broad "value

measure" for "environmental cost formation" in terms of investments and loses of the complex system of society-economy-environment comprising Material and Energy resources, Labor force (L), and Capital (Cap), in addition to Environmental remediation costs (Env.). The EEA gives more information than an entirely monetary method, which is unable to support any indication about the consumption of global resources (Jawad et al. 2016). Consequently, the companies can match the amount of the manufactured product with the needed resources to reach the preferred level of sustainability. Therefore, EEA can facilitate an understanding of the environmental costs from a comprehensive and multidimensional perspective, which bridges the gap about the 'production of value' and distinguishes most economics and biophysical based methods (Dai et al. 2012).

Based on Sciubba (2011), the EEA method determines the exergy corresponding to Labour, Money, and Ecological remediation in goods or services by elements of " α " and " β " and some financial factors like GDP. These aspects are highly inspired by population, labor statistics, regular and international income, and normal workload. The stated aspects and exergy counterparts were examined and analyzed by Sciubba (2011) for some developed and developing countries.

1.5. Research Gaps

In earlier studies, as we will see in the literature review section, the meaning of SC costs was workflow-associated, as opposed to exergy costs. Although other studies have considered exergy costs, few have considered all aspects (labour, capital, and environmental remediation) simultaneously (like the EEA method) on a scale of SC. Additionally, no research has examined the EEA method and carbon reduction policies in SC. Carbon policy and sustainable SC have now recognized fields of research that consider many distinct aspects, such as resource consumption, source destinations, and waste-related hidden costs.

Despite this, there are still several research gaps, including the following:

G1. There is a lack of research that assesses a SC under any carbon reduction policy within an uncertain environment, for example, carbon price or customer demand.

G2. It is rare to find studies that assess a SC in terms of Joules instead of dollars (as a traditional performance measures) and simultaneously evaluate all sustainability aspects, such as economic, labour, and environmental.

G3. There is a lack of studies that employ the EEA method to assess a SC under any carbon reduction policy. As a matter of fact, no exergy analysis method in the literature takes into consideration a carbon emission policy.

G4. There is a scarcity of studies that compare the sustainability of coal SCs between developed and developing countries under carbon policy with the EEA method.

G5. There is a deficiency of investigation to find the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental aspects) in the EEA method for a SC.

G6. In addition, some real-world issues are ignored, such as considering the inventory turnover ratio for SC models, defective quality products discarded into the environment, shipping charges on the whole of SC, vendor managed inventory (VMI) policy for coordinating SC, and the costs of loan/investment due to budget limitation.

1.6. Research Questions

The functioning of the entire coal SC is one of the critical interests to concerned stakeholders (Mehmood et al., 2015). As society increasingly recognizes the value of the environment, waste disposal and carbon emission must become two of the leading indicators of coal SC assessment. Additionally, employing different carbon pricing strategies results in various costs and carbon reductions in SC. Moreover, as we will see in the literature review section, the number of publications employing the EEA method is insufficient. Additionally, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no study considers carbon reduction policies with the EEA method (or exergy analysis) at the same time in a coal SC. Therefore, we can present four main research questions as follows:

Q1. Does incorporating a carbon reduction strategy with the EEA method in coal SC trigger financial benefits and sustainability advantages?

Q2. The coal SC in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary objectives, does this assumption remain accurate?

Q3. Which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules?

Q4. What is the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) to achieve the most significant saving wherever coal SCs are working?

1.7. Research contributions

This study aims to extend Jawad et al. (2016) and Naderi et al. (2021a) into a multi-product, multi-limitation EOQ/EPQ model with backorder for a coal SC in Iran under an uncertain environment. A VMI contract is used between a single supplier and multiple buyers to coordinate a coal SC. By utilizing the EEA method and Joules as a unit of inventory cost, we can estimate the total exergy of coal SC. Four famous carbon reduction policies (carbon cap, tax, trade, and offset) are employed to compare the model's performance as a sustainability measure and restrict the produced carbon emissions of SC enterprises. To minimize the fuzzy total exergy of coal SC, some recent metaheuristic algorithms are applied to obtain a near-optimal solution to the exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer programming (EFNIP). In addition, some numerical examples, including an actual case study in a coal SC in Iran, were used to demonstrate the usefulness of the proposed models. Additionally, the results of the metaheuristic algorithms are compared with the results of the exact method (GAMS). In order to gain a deeper insight into the sustainability of coal SC in various developed and developing countries, a sensitivity analysis with changing the percentages of various exergy parameters (capital, labour, and environmental remediation) under each carbon policy for each country has been performed. We are looking for the optimal balance point (financial and sustainable) in terms of total exergy for each country's coal facilities. This study contributes the following to the literature:

Improving the sustainability of coal SCs in terms of Joules (total exergy rather than traditional monetary objectives) in developed and developing countries under different carbon policies and the uncertain environment by employing the EEA method.

- Comparing the sustainability of coal SC in different countries to determine which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules.
- Finding the best value of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) for coal SC in both developed and developing countries which creates the highest sustainability.

The remainder of this manuscript-based thesis is structured as follows. The method of reviewing research works of the past two decades is described in Chapter 2. Moreover, in Chapters 3 and 4 (two published papers), a comprehensive literature review of past two decades in "Management of Sustainable Supply Chain and Industry 4.0" and "Industry 4.0 and demand forecasting of the energy supply chain" are presented. After that, improving the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and carbon tax policy (in Chapter 5-Third published paper) and carbon trade policy (in Chapter 6-Fourth published paper) are stated. Additional results for carbon cap policy and carbon offset policy are presented in Chapters 7 and 8, respectively. Finally, conclusions and potential studies are offered in Chapter 9.

CHAPTER 2. LITERATURE REVIEW

In this chapter, the research works of the past two decades is reviewed based on the arrangement. Moreover, a comprehensive literature review will be presented in Chapters 3 and 4 by two journal publications.

2.1 Method of reviewing

A comprehensive online exploration of related research works in coal SC is presented here. This exploration aims to gather, classify, and synthesize current exergy analysis and carbon reduction policies in SC. Thomson Reuter's Web of Science is used to review the literature for 2000-2022. We attempted to sort publications by reviewing their titles, abstracts, and texts in the absence of precise keywords. Following is an overview of the general review methodology:

Step 1- Finding the sources (online databases)

Step 2- Searching key words

Step 3- Developing a taxonomy and analysis based on journal papers, conference papers, books, and theses.

Step 4- Identifying research with implications and issues related to exergy, sustainability, supply chain, coal, and carbon policies.

Step 5- Presenting survey outcomes.

Our initial search strategy was to use keywords such as "Exergy" in Thomson Reuter's Web of Science's "TOPIC" search field. More than 20111 articles were found to be unrelated to our objectives after investigation. Our search was refined to include the keywords of "Exergy" and "Supply chain" in the "TOPIC" field, and we obtained 125 articles. There were nine publications by adding "Coal" to the previous keywords while adding "Carbon" resulted in only two publications. In order to refine the search more precisely, we substituted "Extended Exergy Accounting" with "Exergy," along with "Supply chain," and we found only seven publications. Furthermore, entering "Carbon policy" or "Coal" as keywords does not yield results. Table 2.1 displays all search results.

Number

Keywords (2000-2022)	
Exergy (Topic)	

Table 2.1. keywords search for exergy publications

Exergy (Topic)	20111
Exergy (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic)	125
Exergy (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Coal (Topic)	9
Exergy (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Carbon (Topic)	2
Exergy (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Carbon (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	2

Exergy (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Carbon policy (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)		
Extended Exergy Accounting (Topic)	138	
Extended Exergy Accounting (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic)	7	
Extended Exergy Accounting (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Coal (Topic)	0	
Extended Exergy Accounting (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND Carbon (Topic)	2	
Extended Exergy Accounting (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic) AND carbon policy (Topic)	0	

We divided the keywords into two sections since no publication considers all keywords. Thus, we conducted a second search with "Carbon policy," "Supply chain," and "Coal," resulting in 78 publications, whereas adding "Sustainability" or "Sustainable" to them will decrease the numbers to 30. We further refined our search using specific carbon policy keywords such as "carbon tax," "carbon trade," "carbon cap," and "carbon offset." Table 2.2 shows all the results in detail.

Table 2.2. keywords search for carbon policies publications

Keywords (2000-2022)	Number
Carbon (Topic) AND supply chain (Topic)	5412
Carbon (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	240
Carbon (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	73
Carbon policy (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	78
Carbon policy (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	30
Carbon cap (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	8
Carbon cap (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	5
Carbon tax (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	10
Carbon tax (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	4
Carbon trade (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	59
Carbon trade (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	11
Carbon offset (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic)	12
Carbon offset (Topic) AND Coal (Topic) AND Supply chain (Topic) AND sustainable OR sustainability (Topic)	4

2.2. Literature review

A complete literature review of management of sustainable SC is done in Chapter 3. Moreover, Chapter 4 presents a comprehensive and up-to date review of publications related to forecasting approaches of energy demand in the last two decades between 2000 and 2020 related to the energy SC (coal, oil, etc.). Furthermore, Chapters 5 and 6 (subsection 5.2 and 6.2) present a complete review of research works related to exergy analysis and carbon reduction policies.

Chapter 1 Management of Sustainable Supply Chain and Industry 4.0: A Literature Review



1

Ali Roozbeh Nia, Anjali Awasthi, and Nadia Bhuiyan

Abstract This review aims to investigate the advanced collected works on sustainability and Industry 4.0 in the supply chain (SC) management from both academic and industrial standpoints. Hence, a review of the literature from 2010 to 2018 has been presented, knowledge gaps and all areas of application in the assumed investigation topic are highlighted, and the key features of the former study are associated. Furthermore, a dynamic framework for this topic is proposed consistent with the benefits, drawbacks, and boundaries of current research works, and the term "Sustainable Supply Chain 4.0" (SSC 4.0) is proposed. The suggested dynamic framework aims to distinguish the characteristics, elements and technology enablers, achievement aspects and challenges for evolving an SSC 4.0. Therefore, the current study and dynamic framework can provide awareness to academics and industrial specialists in their application of SSC 4.0.

Keywords Supply chain (SC) \cdot Sustainable supply chain 4.0 (SSC 4.0) \cdot Literature review \cdot Industry 4.0 \cdot Sustainability

1 Introduction

Traditional supply chains (SCs) comprise tangible facilities distributed with respect to geography support, create, and sustain shipping connections among them. SCs are explained in the functional chain of interrelated actions that include the direction, scheduling, and checking of services and goods among clients and providers (see Fig. 1). These managerial configurations are no more independent as a result of industrial progress (Büyüközkan and Göçer 2018). There are some factors which influence SC management such as performance, technology, environmental policy,

CIISE, Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

N. Bhuiyan

© Springer Nature Switzerland AG 2020

A. Roozbeh Nia (⊠) · A. Awasthi

e-mail: ali.roozbehnia@mail.concordia.ca; ali.roozbehnia@gmail.com

Department of Mechanical, Industrial and Aerospace Engineering (MIAE), Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

U. Ramanathan and R. Ramanathan (eds.), *Sustainable Supply Chains: Strategies, Issues, and Models*, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-48876-5_1

CHAPTER 3. PAPER ONE - MANAGEMENT OF SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN AND INDUSTRY 4.0: A LITERATURE REVIEW

Forewords

After reconsidering the method of literature review in Chapter 2, in this Chapter and Chapter 4 (two published papers), a comprehensive literature review of past two decades in "Management of Sustainable Supply Chain and Industry 4.0" and "Industry 4.0 and demand forecasting of the energy supply chain" are presented. Moreover, in subsection 5.2 and 6.2 (Chapters 5 and 6) a complete review of research works related to exergy analysis and carbon reduction policies are presented.

Abstract

This review aims to investigate the advanced collected works on sustainability and Industry 4.0 in the supply chain (SC)management from both academic and industrial standpoints. Hence, a review of the literature from 2010 to 2018 has been presented, knowledge gaps and all areas of application in the assumed investigation topic are highlighted, and the key features of the former study are associated. Furthermore, a dynamic framework for this topic is proposed consistent with the benefits, drawbacks, and boundaries of current research works, and the term "Sustainable Supply Chain 4.0" (SSC 4.0) is proposed. The suggested dynamic framework aims to distinguish the characteristics, elements and technology enablers, achievement aspects and challenges for evolving an SSC 4.0. Therefore, the current study and dynamic framework can provide awareness to academics and industrial specialists in their application of SSC 4.0.

Keywords Supply chain (SC); Sustainable supply chain 4.0 (SSC 4.0); Literature review; Industry 4.0; Sustainability

3.1. Introduction

Traditional supply chains (SCs) comprise tangible facilities distributed with respect to geography support, create, and sustain shipping connections among them. SCs are explained in the functional chain of interrelated actions that include the direction, scheduling, and checking of services and goods among clients and providers (see Fig. 3.1). These managerial configurations are no more independent as a result of industrial progress (Büyüközkan and Göçer 2018). There are some factors which influence SC management such as performance, technology, environmental policy, economics, SC collaboration, competition, strategy, customer engagement, real-time information, procurement, and zero errors (Manavalan and Jayakrishna 2019).

On one hand, several companies take on uncertainty because of an increasing marketplace demand for different goods and services at the end of the twentieth century. On the other hand, economically beneficial types of manufacture cause durable influences on the environment and civilization (Rajeev et al. 2017). Therefore, the combination of economic with social and environmental concerns, or sustainability, must be a shared interest among researchers and

practitioners (Brandenburg et al. 2014; Seuring and Müller 2008). Progressively, environmental problems were used as a basis for strategic transformation (Aragón-Correa et al. 2008). Recently, environmental aspects attract many researchers in the literature (Roome, and Hinnels 1993; Noci and Verganti 1999; Schiederig et al. 2012). In addition, eco-innovation methods such as life cycle valuations, cleaner manufacture, and eco-design are employed in many companies (Huber 2008; Van Hemel and Cramer 2012).



Fig. 3.1. An illustration of a traditional supply chain (Roozbeh Nia et al. 2014)

The management of sustainable supply chains (SSC) is described by Seuring and Müller (2008) as "the administration of substance, information and assets streams in addition to teamwork among corporations alongside the SC whereas choosing objectives from entirely three elements of sustainable progress, namely, environmental, economic and social, which are come from client and shareholder necessities". For about 20 years, the issue of SSC has been given significant attention by researchers and specialists (Craig and Easton 2011; Beske et al. 2014; Brandenburg et al. 2014; Ghadimi et al. 2016, 2019; Seuring and Müller 2008; Seuring 2013). SSC management is fundamentally a part of green supply chain management (GSC), that is, the combination of ecological philosophy in the management of SC (Srivastava 2007) which encompasses environmental, economic, and social interests (Yan et al. 2016). An SSC is designated by a company's ability to decrease the consumption of energy, substances, or water and to discover solutions that are further eco-efficient by enhancing the administration of their SCs (Lopes de Sousa Jabbour et al. 2015).

Nowadays, most initiatives are undergoing digitization Industry 4.0. The emphasis of the digital revolution is placed mostly on manufacture; consequently, the names for instance "Smart Factory" or "Factory of the Future" are employed and compared with this idea (Kayikci 2018). In 2011, the German association "Industrie 4.0" invented the term Industry 4.0. The association is made of managers, academics, and legislators, who suggested a fourth industrial revolution is created on the digitization of organization procedures (Kagermann et al. 2011). In fact, the key impression motivating Industry 4.0 is to guide companies by implementing digital technologies that know how to assist in generating links among their process, provide systems, manufacturing capabilities, finished goods, and clients with the purpose of collection, and distribute real-time functioning and marketplace information with stakeholders (Ardito et al. 2019). The digitization in SCs is established based on six features: connectivity, cooperation, integration, adoption, cognitive improvement, and autonomous control (Kayikci 2018). Furthermore, for Industry 4.0, the empowering technologies include additive manufacturing, advanced manufacturing, augmented reality, cloud computing, simulation, industrial IOT, big data analytics, cybersecurity, and customer profiling (Ardito et al. 2019).

Industry 4.0 has been demonstrated to be successful in offering several business advantages containing operational optimization and value chain optimization (Strange and Zucchella 2017). Accordingly, Industry 4.0 is widely adopted by German companies, for instance, Volkswagen, Daimler, and BMW. In addition, the Government of China has likewise presented the "Made in China 2025" strategy which focuses on enhancing manufacturing through speeding up digitalization in China. Similar plans have also been started by the USA, French, UK, Japanese, and Singaporean governments (Bag et al. 2018). More precisely, the objective of Industry 4.0 is to improve the digitization and, therefore, the combination of business procedures mutually horizontally (that is through functional parts) and vertically (i.e., through the whole value chain, from goods procuring to production, delivery, and customer service). Along these lines, entire data-concerning processes, inbound/outbound logistics, marketplace requirements, and product–customer relations will be accessible in real time. Consequently, digital initiatives will operate jointly with clients and providers in an industrial digital ecosystem that permits them to superior handle the line among SC management and promotion purposes (Schrauf and Berttram 2016; Ranganathan et al. 2011).

There exist several explanations for taking into consideration the digitalization influences in SCs and the significance of SC in Industry 4.0. The main potentials of this idea allow real-time definite from providers to clients, small orders quantity, various goods changes, linked decentralized procedures, and autonomous administration. These advantages cannot be attained just by manufacture besides the whole of SC, though. Furthermore, SCs must achieve a bigger foresight to accomplish the necessities of Industry 4.0 as sustainable and as probable in expressions of using suitable technologies and improving horizontal and vertical combination with the SC associates (Kayikci 2018). SC with Industry 4.0 is transformed into a value-driven, smart, effective procedure to produce novel outlines of income and commercial value for administrations and to influence innovative methods with novel technological and systematic procedures as well. SC within the Industry 4.0 is not about if products and facilities are physical or digital, it is about the manner in what way SC procedures are administered by an extensive diversity of innovative technologies, such as "Big Data" (BD), "Augmented Reality" (AR), "Cloud Computing" (CC), "Sensor Technology" (ST), "Robotics" (R), "Omni Channel" (OC), "Internet of Things" (IOT), "Unmanned Aerial Vehicle" (UAV), "Self-Driving Vehicles" (SDV), "Nanotechnology" (N), and "3D Printing" (3DP), but a few to mention (Büyüközkan and Göcer 2018).

This survey is prepared in this way: the next section reviews and classifies associated publications, in addition to clarifying the methodology assumed in this study. Reviewing the idea of SSC and Industry 4.0, its aspects and elements to shape a dynamic conceptual framework that is resulting from the current literature are represented in Sect. 3.3. In Sect. 3.4, the benefits and challenges of Industry 4.0 for SCs are described. A dynamic framework for SSC and Industry 4.0 is proposed in Sect. 3.5. Finally, the article's concluding remarks, the limitations, as well as possible directions for SSC and Industry 4.0, are presented in Sect. 3.6.

3.2. Review of Literature on SSC and Industry 4.0

This review of earlier research works is built on arrangement procedure which offers in what way the literature is considered to be a foundation for the abstract framework. Primarily, the arrangement used in this study is described and afterward, the procedure of the literature review is presented.

3.2.1. Method of Reviewing

Related research works are detected with the help of a comprehensive online exploration, besides the aim to gather, classify, and synthesize current SSC and Industry 4.0 knowledge. Recognized articles span some sorts of connected fields comprising management, marketing, operations management, industrial engineering, management science, and SC management. Owing to the deficiency of exact keywords describing the issue, we put a considerable attempt to sort papers by studying their titles, abstracts, and texts. Typically, this stage can be accomplished through aiming noticeable journals, books, and conferences. It is not true for SSC and Industry 4.0 because this new topic has appeared only a couple of years ago and associated publication networks are not dispersed yet. The literature is reviewed for the period 2010–2018 by exploring the main databases of scientific and common search engines such as Thomson Reuter's Web of Science, Taylor & Francis online, Elsevier's Scopus, IEEE Explore, Emerald Insight, ProQuest (ABI/INFORM), and Science Direct (Elsevier). We examine and organize the related research works to meet a vision of SSC and Industry 4.0. The overall review methodology for SSC and Industry 4.0 papers is as follows:

Phase1: Identifying the sources (online databases)

Phase2: Search keywords

Phase3: Taxonomy, and analysis based on journal papers, conference papers,

books, theses, and so on.

Phase4: Implications and issues include SC, sustainability, Industry 4.0, features,

component and technologies, challenges and successes factors.

Phase5: Survey outcomes: a framework for the development and identification of

future work.

3.2.2. Academic Literature on SSC and Industry 4.0

Industry 4.0 has commenced obtaining considerable concern from companies throughout the world as it makes greater advantages to many businesses. Our review on Industry 4.0 and SSC literature signifies a gap between the theory and practice in SCs. At present, there exist a restricted number of surveys on Industry 4.0 and SSC. There is also SC focused articles which discuss Industry 4.0 and SSC in expressions of their functions. Based on literature review, 55 areas of application for SSC and Industry 4.0 and their Nomenclature are determined in Appendix Table 3.10. The existing research papers and conference papers related to Industry 4.0 and SSC along with their application areas, method, and objective are classified in detail in Appendix Tables 3.11 and 3.12, respectively. In addition, with the consideration of the highest number of citations, topten research-papers and top-three conference papers in SSC and Industry 4.0 are presented in Tables 3.1 and 3.2, respectively.

Recently, Lopes de Sousa Jabbour et al. (2018) recommended a master plan to improve the function of the circular economy (CE) notions in businesses by Industry 4.0 methodologies. They contributed to the literature through presentation on what way diverse Industry 4.0 tools could support CE approaches, and to organizations by directing those tools as a foundation for the

policymaking of sustainable operations' management. The key outcomes of their research were as follows: (a) an argument on the equally advantageous connection between Industry 4.0 and the CE; (b) a detailed recognition of the possible influences of smart manufacture equipment to the ReSOLVE model of CE business models; (c) an investigation outline for research on the grouping of CE principles and Industry 4.0 based on the best-related administration principles.

Citations	Year	Authors	Objective	Area of application	Publisher
203	2012	Davis et al.	Introducing Smart manufacturing, manufacturing intelligence, and demand- dynamic performance	Networked information-based technologies	Elsevier
170	2014	Gebler et al.	This study represents the first comprehensive assessment of 3DP from a global sustainability perspective	3D technologies	Elsevier
56	2014	Holmström and Partanen	The purpose of this paper is to explore the forms that combinations of digital manufacturing, logistics, and equipment use are likely to take and how these novel combinations may affect the relationship among logistics service providers (LSPs), users and manufacturers of equipment.	Manufacturing and logistics	Emerald
53	2013	Baumers et al.	This article investigated whether the adoption of additive manufacturing (AM) technology can be used to reach transparency in terms of energy and financial inputs to manufacturing operations.	Manufacturing and logistics	Yale University
46	2015	Yue et al.	This paper described the development and character of ICPS. Then, it presented a service-oriented ICPS model.	Information communication technology (ICT)	Elsevier
31	2016	Lom et al.	This paper proposed the conjunction of the Smart City Initiative and the concept of Industry 4.0.	Smart City	IEEE
24	2015	Prause	The paper addressed the research question of how new and sustainable business models and structures for Industry 4.0 might look like and in which direction existing traditional business concepts have to be developed to deploy a strong business impact of Industry 4.0.	E-Residency	Elsevier
24	2017	Prause and Atari	The paper investigated the relationship between networking, organizational development, structural frame conditions and sustainability in the context of Industry 4.0.	Manufacturing and logistics	VsI Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Center
24	2014	Brofman Epelbaum and Martinez	This paper presented a theoretical framework grounded on the Resource- Based View (RBV) of the firm to determine the strategic impacts of the technological evolution of food traceability systems.	Food industry	Elsevier
19	2018	Lopes de Sousa Jabbour et al.	The paper extended the state-of-the-art literature by proposing a pioneering roadmap to enhance the application of CE principles in organizations by means of Industry 4.0 approaches.	Circular economy (CE)	Springer

Table 3.1. Top 10 Research papers with the highest number of citations in SSC and Industry 4.0.

Citations	Year	Authors	Objective	Area of application	Publisher
8	2016	Ginige et al.	Developing a notion of context-specific actionable information which enables the user to act with the least amount of further processing.	Agriculture sector	IEEE
4	2017	Tan et al.	Discussing how organizations can investigate and implement techniques for their modern enterprise with a focus on how advanced big data tools can be applied to Quality Analytics for monitoring and improving quality in the electronics industry.	Electronic industry	IEEE
2	2010	Price et al.	Presenting a project structure which has been designed to address these issues using at its core, a digital framework for the creation and management of performance parameters related to the lifecycle performance of thermoplastic composite structures.	Thermoplastic composite structures	Mark A Price

Table 3.2. Top 3 Conference papers with the highest number of Citations in SSC and Industry 4.0.
Ginige et al. (2016) established a concept of environmental-precise feasible information which allows the customer to perform with the smallest quantity and more administration. User-centered agriculture ontology was established to change distributed quasi-static information to feasible information. They used "empowerment theory" to make empowermentoriented farming ways to encourage agriculturalists to act on this information and collected the transaction data to create situational information. This method helps agriculturalists for producing various kinds of yields to meet sustainable agriculture production by means of harvest change.

3.2.3. Published Books on Industry 4.0 and SSC

To the finest of our information, there exist six books that focused on Industry 4.0 and SSC (see Table 3.3). Recently, Abdi et al. (2018) developed manufacturing ideas and further functions than tangible manufacture for a broader industrial value chain integrating external shareholders that include providers of raw matters and pieces, clients, manufacturing service suppliers, cooperating manufacturing companies, and environmental organizations. They highlighted the two advanced concepts of reconfigurable manufacturing systems (RMS) and Industry 4.0 together with their joint progress. They presented disputes of mass-customization and active variations in the SC background by concentrating on advancing novel methods connected to integrity, scalability, and re-configurability at the system level and engineering readiness in names of the practical, and commercial feasibility of RMS. The authors applied decision support systems (DSS) for the collection of families' product and optimizing product-process configuration. Their suggested models were explained across real case studies in applicable manufacturing firms.

3.2.4. Published Book Chapter on Industry 4.0 and SSC

Authors recognized seven book chapters on the issue of Industry 4.0 and SSC which are presented in Table 3.4. Recently, Jirsak (2018) examined the influence of Industry 4.0 revolutions on SC management. The writer offered the results achieved in the investigation of recent essential variations and presented a contrast with a preceding conversion of the paradigm. This chapter suggested a revolution that the business SC system has to go over to re-establish its competitive situation in an era of Industry 4.0. In addition, the chapter offered case study of 3PL (demand planning, production planning, and supply planning) insight about Industry 4.0 founded on detailed meetings performed among the major global 3PLs operating in the Czech Republic.

Year	Authors	Objective	Method	Area of application
2012	Goodship and Stevels	Drawing lessons for policy and practice from all over the world	Review	waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE)
2014	Xu	Describing the setup of digital enterprises and how to manage them, focusing primarily on the important knowledge and essential understanding of digital enterprise management required by managers and decision makers in organizations.	Modeling	Digital enterprises
2015	Fiorini and Lin	Providing an overview of current topics in intelligent and green transportation on the land, sea and in flight, with contributions from an international team of leading experts.	Review	Intelligent Transport Systems (ITS)
2016	Kiritsis	This book not only explains in detail what LEAP is and how to use it but also provides LEAP case studies from sectors such as auto manufacturing and offshore engineering.	Case study	Manufacturing and logistics
2017	Handfield and Linton	Addressing the changes that have occurred and are still unfolding at various organizations that are involved in building real-time SCs.	Review	Global economy
2018	Abdi et al.	Developing manufacturing concepts and applications beyond physical production and towards a wider manufacturing value chain incorporating external stakeholders that include suppliers of raw materials and parts, customers, collaborating manufacturing companies, manufacturing service providers, and environmental organizations.	Modeling	Reconfigurable Manufacturing Systems (RMS)

Table 3.3. Literature Review of SSC and Industry 4.0 (Books).

Table 3.4. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Book chapters).

Year	Authors	Objective	Method	Area of application
2010	Ndou and Sadguy	Suggesting that digital marketplaces could provide a viable model for SME networking;	Modeling	SME networking
2013	Montreuil et al.	however, the successful path toward networking requires harmonization of the digital marketplace business model with SC characteristics. Providing insights on the foundations of the Physical Internet that has been introduced as a	Modeling	Physical Internet
		solution to the Global Logistics Sustainability Grand Challenge of improving by an order of magnitude the economic, environmental and social efficiency and sustainability of the way physical objects are moved, stored, realized, supplied and used across the world.		
2013	Kückelhaus et al.	Addressing how visibility solutions based on Digital Product Memories (DPMs) developed in the SemProM project can be demonstrated in the logistics domain to guarantee the carbon offset of transport and integrity control within SCs	Modeling	SemProM project
2015	Kagermann	Discussing the impact, challenges, and opportunities of digitization and concludes with examples of recommended policy action.	Modeling	Digitization
2015	Kamarulzaman and Eglese	Providing relevant e-procurement solutions with respect to the MPOI and will provide comprehensive purchasing activities of different types of products along the SC through e-procurement technologies.	Case study	E-procurement technologies

2017	Meera et al.	Proposing a framework for rice extension strategies that integrate knowledge, technology, and markets which helped to provide better, faster, and cheaper solutions to reach out to rice	Modeling	Agriculture sector
		farmers and integrate knowledge, technologies, and markets.		
2017	Kasemsap	Introducing the roles of Lean Supply Chain Management (SCM) strategies and green SCM	Modeling	Global economy
		strategies in the global business environments		
2018	Jirsak	Presenting an impact of Industry 4.0 transformation on logistics and SC management.	Case study	Global 3PLs operating



Fig. 3.2. Types of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0.



Fig. 3.3. The number of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0 per year.



Fig. 3.4. The percentage of publications for SSC and Industry 4.0 per year.



Fig. 3.5. The type of access for publications in SSC and Industry 4.0.



Fig. 3.6. The areas of application for SSC and Industry 4.0.

3.2.5. Analysis of Industry 4.0 and SSC Literature

It is vital to emphasize that the recognition of 83 research works motivated the outcomes of this review, which are informed in Sects. 3.2.2, 3.2.3 and 3.2.4. (Also see the appendix for detailed information.) The keywords were not prearranged ahead of the search; however, they have progressively appeared through the wide-ranging reading procedure that happens during the preparation of this paper. The last list of keywords is as follows: Sustain, Sustainable, Sustainability, Green, Industry 4.0, Smart factory, Digital, Supply chain, and Logistic. In a few conditions, the research under review will still be used to explain the outcomes and meet an improved comprehension of the subject. Figure 3.2 demonstrates the important results by offering a complete sum up in phrases of types of SSC and Industry 4.0 publications. The highest amount of publication was in the form of "research article" with about 45 papers, and the second highest level belongs to "conference paper" with 15 papers. "Book chapter" and "Books" were at the lowest level with 7 and 6 papers, respectively. In addition, the trend for a number of related publications per year from 2010 to 2018 is presented in Fig. 3.3 and the percentage of publications per year is demonstrated in a pie chart in Fig. 3.4. With regard to these figures, the number of publications has a small fluctuation between 2010 and 2016 (about 2–7 papers or 2–9%), while the trend increased dramatically in 2017 to hit the highest point in 2018 with 26 papers (or 31%) out of 83. Moreover, in total, about 17 papers out of 83 were open access and 66 papers have access as an abstract only (see Fig. 3.5). It has been mentioned that we find out about 55 areas of application in SSC and Industry 4.0 literature (see Appendix Table 3.10). Furthermore, we recognized top-five areas of application in the literature (see Table 3.5 and Fig. 3.6) that include manufacturing and logistics, food industry, circular economy, agriculture sector, and clothing industry with 8, 6, 5, 4, and 3 papers, respectively.

We agreed to create Tables 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 with the author's names and publication year. Listed in the rows, the objective explains the aim of the research works, the method indicates the approach, which is used in the research, the application identifies the area of papers concentrations; citations demonstrated the number of citations related to the paper while

the publisher indicated the name of the institute which publishes the paper. These features have been designated based on authors' proficiency in the subject and the applicable investigation. When the relevant works on Industry 4.0 and SSC are combined and studied completely, they show reliable benefits to the readers. These employed benefits explain the master plan for creating the Industry 4.0 and SSC framework in the succeeding sections created on the summary of the content, scope, and outcomes of designated literature. Based on the research in this paper classification, next sections use and recognize the main restrictions and projections in Industry 4.0 and SSC, encapsulate the previous investigation to detect knowledge gaps through offering benefits, drawbacks, and boundaries of specific approaches and present a development dynamic framework as a master plan for upcoming study.

Number of papers	Area of application	Source
8	Manufacturing and logistics	Baumers et al. (2013); Blümel (2013); Holmström and Partanen (2014); Kiritsis (2016); Prause and Atari (2017); De Carolis et al. (2017); Luthra and Mangla (2018); Forkel et al. (2018)
6	Food industry	Brofman Epelbaum and Martinez (2014); Clear et al. (2013); Pilinkienė et al. (2017); Zhong et al. (2017); Todorovic et al. (2018); Gružauskas et al. (2018)
5	Circular economy (CE)	Jensen and Remmen (2017); Lopes de Sousa Jabbour et al. (2018); Garcia- Muiña et al. (2018); Tseng et al. (2018); Bressanelli et al. (2018)
4	Agriculture sector	Ginige et al. (2016); Kalogianni et al. (2017); Meera et al. (2017); Bucci et al. (2018)
3	Clothing industry	Papahristou and Bilalis (2016); Pal and Sandberg (2017); Papahristou and Bilalis (2017)

Table 3.5. Top 5 areas of application in the literature of SSC and Industry 4.0.

3.3. Enabling Technologies and Key Elements of Industry 4.0 for SSC

Several characteristics are not presented in traditional SC while they are required in today's and tomorrow's commercial environment. The conventional SC has a chain of disconnected stages, mostly. Converting a conventional SC into Industry 4.0 and SSC breaks down these walls with the purpose of the chain converts into an integrated system that operates perfectly. Therefore, Industry 4.0 and sustainability allow the succeeding invention of SCs evolve and present mutually productivity and flexibility (Ardito et al. 2019; Büyüközkan and Göcer 2018). Bag et al. (2018) demonstrated the Industry 4.0 enablers of SSC management, which are governmental support; support of research institutes and universities; law and policy about employment; improved IT security and standards; management commitment; focus on change management; horizontal integration; human capital: vertical integration; standardization and reference architecture; and corporate governance and third-party audits. Since Industry 4.0 and sustainability solutions are interrupting conventional SC, there exist several noticeable elements that are practically related to every Industry 4.0 and SSC. These distinct advantages are gathered into some key elements that Industry 4.0 and SSC would like to make. The key elements include speed, flexibility, global connectivity, real-time inventory, intelligent, transparency, cost-effective, scalability, innovative, proactive, and eco-friendly (Büyüközkan and Göçer 2018).

3.4. Challenges, Success Factors, and Research Gaps in Industry 4.0 and SSC

Without considering the companies' size, they need to investigate advancing several kinds of Industry 4.0 and sustainability association competencies since businesses will contest on SCs at worldwide level eventually.

3.4.1. Challenges and Concerns About Executing Industry 4.0 and SSC

Many problems can happen along the SC. Xu (2014) described the chief challenges of building Industry 4.0 and SSC on collecting totally needed data from various suppliers, certifying the correctness of that information, and building up a software design and policy that can use the information to administer and perform the SC. Because the dimension of chain includes inside and outside associates, it will be time consuming and tend to mistake. Furthermore, the current great quantities of stock cannot be capable of fulfilling the demand, and SCs substructure can be inadequate, and the characteristic of products can be difficult to check (Büyüközkan and Göçer 2018). In Table 3.6 we presented 24 recognized challenges for Industry 4.0 and SSC and described each of them briefly.

3.4.2. Success Aspects for Industry 4.0 and SSC

The execution measurement in Industry 4.0 and SSC are especially significant. This measure could be studied by the capability of satisfying requests tills due date, distribution schedule, provider consistency, the budget of chain or postponements, among several others. As stated by a current investigation, over 33% of 2000 respondents have launched employing Industry 4.0 in their SCs, and entirely 72% supposed to have completed so in five years (Schrauf and Berttram 2016). Some motives why Industry 4.0 and SSC implementation has been slowed being the absence of consciousness between the staff and shareholders about digital instruments, and the absence of essential abilities among workers and shareholders (Büyüközkan and Göçer 2018). Consequently, the widespread adoption of Industry 4.0 and SSC will depend on the recognizable aspects of these significant successes so listed in Table 3.7.

Challenges	Description
Lack of vision and strategy	Industry 4.0 describes an innovative approach to the digital transformation, which requires a clear digital operations vision and mission (Erol et al. 2016).
Lack of planning	Deficiency of proper demand plan and guidelines and tools (Xu 2014; Schrauf and Berttram 2016).
Financial constraints	In Industry 4.0, financial constraints are considered to be a very important challenge in terms of advanced equipment and machines, facilities and sustainable process innovations (Dawson 2014; Theorin et al. 2017; Nicoletti 2018).
Lack of competency in	As it is not necessary that all the new insights of Industry 4.0 will be workable and only some events are interesting out
adopting/applying new business	of million events, so revealing these insights are a challenge for data scientists to write suitable algorithms in
models	adopting/applying new business models (Khan et al. 2017; Saucedo-Martínez et al. 2017).
Lack of collaboration and	Deficient collaboration with external associates and deficient input from internal functions (Penthin and Dillman 2015;
coordination	Xu 2014; EY 2016; Lee et al. 2014; Duarte and Cruz-Machado 2017; Pfohl et al. 2017)
Poor existing data quality	Data quality is one of foremost requirement in making decisions in successful Industry 4.0 adoption and so Inaccurate over-optimistic forecasts for demand, inventory, production, and other data are key challenges (Xu 2014; Carter et al. 2009; Richey et al. 2016; Santos et al. 2017).
Security issues	Security is the prime requirement to transform a factory into a smarter factor and an SC into smarter value chains (Sommer 2015; Wang et al. 2016; Pereira et al. 2017).
Lack of global standards and data	The industries are deficient in standards and protocols, data transfers, adopting sustainability oriented modern
sharing protocols	information interface technologies and in business networks (Branke et al. 2016).
Lack of information sharing	Companies' reluctance on information sharing (Xu 2014; Nowak et al. 2016).
Lack of infrastructure and internet	High infrastructure, information technology-based facilities, and technologies are crucial in the effective adoption of
based networks	Industry 4.0 concepts (Leitão et al. 2016; Bedekar 2017; Pfohl et al. 2017).
Low management support and	In order to develop an effective Industry 4.0 concept, management support and dedication to accept the changes are
dedication	very crucial (Gökalp et al. 2017; Savtschenko et al. 2017; Shamim et al. 2017).
Silver bullet chase:	The belief that everything will be fine (Xu 2014; Hines 2004).
Poor research & development (R&D)	lack of focused research on addressing the various aspects of Industry 4.0 adoption (Schmidt et al. 2015; Hermann et
on Industry 4.0 adoption	al. 2016).
Lack of knowledge:	Deficiency of SC management training and skills (Xu 2014; Hines 2004).
Lack of digital culture	Industry 4.0 generally of interdisciplinary in nature which requires digitization to connect different elements of a
	network (Ras et al. 2017; Schuh et al. 2017).
Low understanding of Industry 4.0	There is a very low understanding of Industry 4.0 implications among both the researchers and practitioners (Almada-
implications	Lobo 2016; Hofmann and Rüsch 2017).
Agility and Flexibility	Lack of required flexible and agile SC management (Penthin and Dillman 2015; Xu 2014; Hines 2004; Richey et al.
	2016; Nabben 2016).
High volatility	Lack of knowledge and skills in dealing with volatility in SC management (Xu 2014; EY 2016; Hines 2004).
Overconfidence in suppliers	Relying on certain suppliers in certain parts of the globe (Xu 2014; Hines 2004).
Profiling and complexity issues	The lack of roadmaps and guides supporting its implementation, as well as its high complexity makes "Industry 4.0"
	too uncertain for achieving sustainability in SCs (Erol et al. 2016; Ras et al. 2017).

Table 3.6. Challenges and issues of implementing Industry 4.0 and SSC

Deficient view on the integration of digital and non-digital SC management The integration of technology is very
essential in effective communication and higher productivity (Zhou et al. 2015; Penthin and Dillman 2015; Xu 2014;
EY 2016; Hines 2004).
The lack of clearly defined return on investment could be seen as one of the major challenges to Industry 4.0 initiatives
for accomplishing sustainability in the SC (Kiel et al. 2017; Marques et al. 2017).
policy analysts and government bodies have not revealed the roadmap for transforming the traditional business
functions into smarter and sustainable processes (BRICS Business Council 2017).
Data privacy and security issues need to be considered in developing data-driven sustainable business models of
Industry 4.0 (Schröder 2018; Muller et al. 2017a).

	Table 3.7. S	Success	factors	for	Industry	4.0	and S	SS(
--	--------------	---------	---------	-----	----------	-----	-------	------------

Success factor	Description
Continuous collaboration:	Capabilities are harmonized within and beyond physical boundaries to increase collaboration between
	involved actors of the SC (CapGemini 2016; Hines 2004; Accenture 2014).
Real-Time Visibility:	Dynamic, secure and interactive visibility across the entire SC will improve the management of Industry
-	4.0 and sustainable SC (Cecere 2014; Guarraia 2015; CapGemini 2016; Hines 2004; Accenture 2014).
Integration:	Building the integration of digital and non-digital SCs so that a unified and whole view of inventory
	across the firm can be achieved (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015).
Alignment of suppliers:	Aligning the interest of all the firms in the SC with your own to create incentives for better performance
	and developing trust (alignment) (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015;CapGemini
	2016).
Highly evolved operating models:	Product and service functions can be altered easily to meet customers' changing demands (Raj and
	Sharma 2014; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).
Shared information:	Industry 4.0 and sustainable SC allows easier information sharing on sales forecast and production data
	(Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014;Cecere 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015; CapGemini 2016; Hines 2004).
Automated execution:	Seamless human-machine interactions increase operational efficiency (Raab and Griffin-Cryan 2011;Raj
	and Sharma 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015; Rakowski 2015;CapGemini 2016; GTnexus 2016; Accenture
	2014).
Adopting advanced analytics and analytics tools:	Advanced data analysis improves decision making. Gaining better understanding and forecasting of the
	demand and solve previously unsolvable and even unknown problems along the SC. (e.g., BD and Data
	Analytics, etc.) (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).
Maximum efficiency:	Seamless integration of people, processes, and technology (Raj and Sharma 2014; Rakowski 2015).
Enhanced and accelerated innovation:	Digital SCs inspire and abet innovations in designs, operations and customer relationships (Xu 2014; Raj
	and Sharma 2014;Cecere 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015; Accenture 2014).
Personalized experiences, Customer-centric:	Channel-centric supply networks support customized products and services (Penthin and Dillman
	2015;Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Schmidt et al. 2015; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).

Organizational flexibility:	Digital plug-and-play capabilities make it easier to configure and re-configure (Raab and Griffin-Cryan			
	2011;Raj and Sharma 2014;Cecere 2014).			
Proactive prevention:	Decision support systems driven by predictive analytics can strengthen adaptability and reliability (Xu			
	2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).			
Enhanced responsiveness:	Better information and sophisticated analytics can help accelerate responses to competitors' moves,			
	technology shifts, and changing demand and supply signals (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Cecere			
	2014; Schmidt et al. 2015; CapGemini 2016; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).			
Last mile postponement:	Swiftly repurposing organizational assets assists in ensuring the supplies are aligned with evolving			
	demands (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Hanifan et al. 2014; Accenture 2014).			
	demands (Xu 2014; Raj and Sharma 2014; Hanifan et al. 2014;Accenture 2014).			

3.4.3. Research Gaps in Industry 4.0 and SSC

One of the key goals of our investigations is to present a review of the literature of Industry 4.0 and SSC. The literature reviews also presented that few papers were really directed on Industry 4.0 and SSC simultaneously (see Tables 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 and Appendix); however, most of them were directed on empowering of its concentration on SCs. Our study displayed that since there exists a steady growth of research issued on the subject as 2010 for example, from five articles printed in 2010 to 26 articles in 2018, the strong mainstream of papers is still "research papers" (see Fig. 3.2). Hence, more investigation on Industry 4.0 and SSC is required to be done by industries and organizations.

More extensively, research should emphasis on the development frameworks to convert, employ, and accept Industry 4.0 and sustainability in the context of SCs. In spite of the current attention in the Industry 4.0 and SSC subject because of its vast possibilities, the studies that report this topic advantages and contests are in their initial phases. There exist some study gaps in the present sources about Industry 4.0 and SSC that can be condensed as follows:

- Lack of research on implementing Industry 4.0 and sustainability in different industries. As mentioned before, we recognized 55 areas of application, but the number of papers related to each of them is only one. It means there is a vast context for researchers to investigate Industry 4.0 and sustainability in different sectors.
- Deficiency of development frameworks that offer advice for Industry 4.0 and SSC implementation in a perspective with roadmaps and obvious plans. This issue may help in directing executives about what phases and which place in SCs leaders can use Industry 4.0 and SSC, assumed that SCs may be at various stages of the Industry 4.0 and SSC employment. Moreover, development frameworks may offer support in shifting the administration preparations in the SCs.
- Deficiency of technologies and instruments that deal with SCs challenges in the context of Industry 4.0 and sustainability because this context is dissimilar from that of a usual SC. Decisions in an Industry 4.0 and SSC circumstances need novel technologies and tools. Industry 4.0 and SSC will change many processes such as maintenance, quality control, inventory control, planning for manufacture, and purchasing.
- There are many obstacles for the execution of Industry 4.0 and SSC from mutually managerial and technological outlooks. There's rather a substantial transformation occurring in the world. Businesses are at the edge of a contest to change their SCs to Industry 4.0 and sustainable context (CapGemini et al. 2016). Consequently, Industry 4.0 and SSC problems and concerns presented in Subdivision 4.1 require to be answered through the support of Industry 4.0 and SSC success elements resulting from existing literature. There exist not considerable research papers on in what way to deal successfully with these.

In the next section, we will employ all the understanding and information collected from the investigated literature to set up an advanced different framework.



Fig. 3.7. A dynamic framework for the development of Sustainable supply chain 4.0.

3.5. Developing Industry 4.0 and SSC: A Dynamic Framework

Effective SCs work with a well-defined foresight, benefiting frameworks and master plan that describe the path advancing. The present collected works are condensed into four main phases and their sub-objectives. Figure 3.7 displays the dynamic framework in a graphical arrangement created on analysis of the related research works.

The dynamic of this framework is related to Deming's PDCA (plan-do-check-act) process which is a cyclic four-step model for continuous improvement (CI) in commercial procedure management. It means that the PDCA's cycle should be applied in all four main stages as well as their sub-goals and interaction among them.

Therefore, this framework evolves and improves over time via performing corrective actions for eliminating causes of non-conformities. With regard to this dynamic framework, the term "Sustainable Supply Chain 4.0 (SSC 4.0)" is proposed to show the integration of four separated domains in a real-world environment. Actually, SSC 4.0 gradually permits SCs to turn into an integral section of decision-making and tactical developing. Organizations can influence and develop SSC 4.0 to harmonize various aspects of their policies and more successfully direct their definite requirements. The fact is that the vision on the SSC 4.0 literature and projected framework for the development of SSC 4.0 brings the problem of how it can be appropriately applied and proved in regular SC. It should be mentioned that every SC will have a slightly dissimilar set of SSC 4.0 development objectives with diverse main concern. Along with

reconsidering and reforming whole SCs, the crucial required assessment objectives for SCs regularly map the fields of Industry 4.0, technology implementation, sustainability, and SC management, which are key phases for administrative arrangement.

By applying this dynamic framework, most of the SC executives will be acquainted with the basic SSC 4.0 methodologies, evaluating the SCs' existing Industry 4.0 and sustainability state, founding a foresight for technology implementation, and expanding a revolution plan for SC management in the novel atmosphere. Explanation of these subjects, their decomposition, and creation of their arrangement along with the PDCA cycle in all stages and interactions are the core of SSC 4.0 employments in usual SC. The disintegrated framework for progressing SSC 4.0 is presented in Tables 3.8 and 3.9.

Sustainability	Supply chain	Technology implementation	Industry 4.0
Economic (Pisching	Process (Counsil 2004;	Technology enablers (Ibem	Virtualization (MacDougall
et al., 2015a, 2015b)	Turhan et al. 2011)	and Laryea 2014)	2014)
Environmental	Integration (Sahin and	Formation of technology	Interoperability (Saldivar et
(Badurdeen et al.	Robinson 2002, 2005;	infrastructure (Najmi et al.	al. 2015)
2009)	Bagchi et al. 2005;	2016; Klievink 2015)	Decentralization (Gilchrist
Social (Wittstruck	Alfalla-Luque et al. 2013;	Human and technology	2016)
and Teuteberg 2011)	Lee 2000)	relationship (Oyekan et al.	Real-time Capability
	Responsive (Banchuen et	2017)	(Vogel-Heuser and Hess
	al. 2017)	Project management (Yee and	2016)
	Automation (Barratt	Oh 2013)	Service orientation (Sanders
	2016; Viswanadham		et al. 2017)
	2002)		Modularity (Peres et al.
	Reconfiguration		2017)
	(Buyukozkan and Gocer		
	2018)		
	Transpiration and		
	logistics (Speranza 2018)		
	Analytics (Schmidt et al.		
	2015b; Sahay and Ranjan		
	2008)		
	Information systems		
	(Agus and Ahmad 2017)		
	Collaboration (Cao and		
	Zhang 2011)		

Table 3.8. Decompose	ed framework for SSC	4.0
----------------------	----------------------	-----

Table 3.9. I	Decomposed	sustainability	for	SSC	4.0
C	- 1. *1*4				

Dimensions	Sustainability Criteria
Economic	Logistics cost; Delivery time; Transport delay; Inventory reduction; Loss/damage;
	Frequency of service; Forecast accuracy; Reliability; Flexibility; Transport volumes;
	Applications (Anderson 2007; Fahimnia et al. 2017; Genovese et al. 2017; Sauer and
	Seuring 2017; Zeng et al. 2017; Monnet and Le Net 2011; Dougados et al. 2013; Gebler et
	al. 2014; Schrauf and Berttram 2016)
Environmental	Resource efficiency; Process energy; Process emissions; Waste; Pollutions; Land use
	impact (Nowak 2016; Coyle et al. 2015; Dam and Petkova 2014; Zhu et al. 2011; Gebler et
	al. 2014; Monnet and Le Net 2011)

Social	Development benefits; Impacts; Health; Safety; Labor patterns; Acceptance (Krause, et al.
	2009; Mani, et al. 2016; Kogg and Mont 2012; Gebler et al. 2014; Monnet and Le Net
	2011; Schrauf and Berttram 2016)

3.6. Conclusions, Limitations, and Further Research Trends

This review investigates the transformation of SCs to a sustainable supply chain 4.0 (SSC 4.0), an issue of vast interest mutually for specialists and academics. It is absorbing and prepared in a reliable arrangement, so that to show the key suggestions, and created on a method for the progress of an SSC 4.0. To the best of author's knowledge, there is only one paper that considered a literature review for Industry 4.0 and supply chain sustainability. In short, the highlights of the differences of this book chapter with the literature review by Bag et al. (2018) are as follows:

- Adynamic framework is proposed for sustainability and Industry 4.0 in the supply chain (SC) management.
- ➤ The term "Sustainable Supply Chain 4.0" (SSC 4.0) is proposed.
- A summary of the documents such as research articles, conference papers, books, and book chapters from 2010 to 2018 is investigated.
- ▶ Use different major online databases to get a vast insight into the issues.
- All areas of application in the literature for sustainability and Industry 4.0 in the supply chain (SC) management is recognized.
- > Challenges, success factors, and research gaps are determined.

The outcomes of this survey target to response the inquiries for example, what the recent position of SSC 4.0 is in the theoretical, and engineering investigations, along with what the SSC 4.0 future developments seem, and how the present importance of Industry 4.0 and sustainability can be integrated into SC or logistics, and so on. With the intention of illustrating the advancement of inside the SSC 4.0 issues, a review of the research works is offered, learning mismatches in the specified investigation issue are recognized and the features of the previous study are established. Together with this broad analysis of upcoming developments on SSC 4.0, a dynamic framework for SSC 4.0 is settled consistently with the benefits, drawbacks, and restrictions of current SSC 4.0 literature. It is determined to meet the mismatches of former investigations concerning the creation of a comprehensive abstract or academic framework. The recommended dynamic framework goals are at recognizing the characteristics, factors, and technology enablers, success aspects, and disputes for advancing an SSC 4.0. Therefore, the current study and dynamic framework can make available visions to mutually academicians and practitioners in their function of SSC 4.0.

3.6.1. Limitations

With regard to the above-mentioned issues, this review has some restrictions. The following topics summarize these possible restrictions:

- Classified papers in this review of literature are grounded mostly on results from academic journals (consider Fig. 3.2). Adding more industrial reports in the forthcoming can improve this analysis's outcomes.
- The study results are constructed on the exploration of the point out databases by running the entered keywords. As exploration is vastly responsive to these keywords, reviews which take a little diverse enters may be neglected.

- The fact is that in this study a systematic literature review procedure has been employed in which every database is independently explored, and the gathered papers are picked just prior to the examination phases. Another method can be used for organizing these papers obtained in the database.
- We considered a period of previous eight years (2010–2018). We believe these associated research works are friendly on approaches for SSC 4.0. Although the results are not full, we think that they are wide-ranging as they embrace several extremely graded scholarly journals.
- The demonstrated SSC 4.0 dynamic framework aims at employing the integration of Industry 4.0, along with sustainability, technology implementation, and SC management which evolve over time. We have not involved in the extra disintegration of the SSC 4.0 model because it is away from our study.

3.6.2. Future Research Topics

With regards to the above-mentioned restrictions, the succeeding upcoming investigation fashions on SSC 4.0 are constructed on a detailed review of literature along with the previous operational proficiency of writers. Additional examination of these recommendations can produce new awareness and strong concepts in the subject. Hence, the succeeding topics are presented:

- This review proposes a supplementary investigation into manufacturing real-case purposes for the offered SSC 4.0 dynamic framework, demonstrated in Fig. 3.7.
- Businesses from various engineering circumstances are affected by their particular approaches for SSC 4.0, subject to their particular reason of utilizing new Industry 4.0 technologies. Consequently, significant fashions for upcomingSSC4.0 require a clear plan for each to enhance the revolution of its SSC 4.0 tasks. The given category can, consequently, be supplementarily improved to enlighten mutually theoretically with experts' knowledge by creation of sub-frameworks for every business.
- Industry 4.0 and sustainability will change the approach of SCs. For the purpose of appropriate application and confirmation of the development framework, the offered steps should be understood and evaluated in typical SC.
- Although the benefits and restrictions of SSC 4.0 have been examined at a theoretical level, more developments are needed yet in some parts of SSC 4.0 so that a strong, consistent, and flexible solution is obtained for useful execution of SSC4.0 into engineering real-case functions.
- Additionally, the advantages and disputes of SSC 4.0 can be investigated for the superior recognition of the possibility and success of the recommended dynamic framework.
- To summarize, the equipment and elements of SSC 4.0 can be joined to further the current SC-associated investigations in equally scholar journals and engineering reports. SSC 4.0 is vastly far from implementing its greatest ability, and as stated in this study, there exist many fields (55 topics are recognized by this study) that need urgent consideration.

Paper Appendix-Chapter 3

See Tables 3.10, 3.11 and 3.12.

The areas of application	Nomenclature
3D technologies	3DT
Agriculture sector	AG
Automotive	AUTO
Biologicalisation	BIOL
Blockchain technology	BLOC
Business model	BM
Circular economy (CE)	CE
Clothing industry	CLI
Construction industry	Con
Digital assorting system (DAS)	DAS
Digital business landscape	DBL
Digital China Company's SC integration system	DCSC
Digital enterprises	Den
Digital mine	Dmi
Digital-training method	DTr
Digitization	DIGI
Direct digital manufacturing (DDM)	DDM
Distributed manufacturing	DisMa
E-CRM strategy	ECER
Electronic industry	EleI
E-procurement technologies	Eproc
E-Residency	Eres
FoFdation Smart Machine Controller (SMC)	SMC
Food industry	FoI
Forest-based supply chains	ForSC
Global 3PLs operating	3PLs
Global economy	GloEco
Green supply chain	GSC
Information communication technology (ICT)	ICT
Innovation Union	InnU
Intelligent Autonomous Vehicles (IAVs)	IAVs
Intelligent Transport Systems (ITS)	ITS
Manufacturing and logistics	ManLog
Networked information-based technologies	NetInfoTech
Newspaper Industry	NewsIn

Table 3.10. The areas of application and Nomenclature

Paper manufacturing	PapMan
Pharmaceutical supply chain (PSC)	PSC
Physical Internet	PhyInt
Policy-making	PoliMak
Rail-road intermodal transport network	RailROAD
Reconfigurable Manufacturing Systems (RMS)	RMS
Record labels and retail outlets	RecLab
Reverse logistics	RevLog
SemProM project	SemProM
Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction (SFDRR)	SFDRR
Simulation optimization	SimOpt
Small-scale Intelligent Manufacturing System (SIMS)	SIMS
Smart City	SmaCit
SME networking	SME
Supply chain sustainability	SSC
Thermoplastic composite structures	TherPlaCOM
Trade promotion	TradPro
Transport and logistics	TransLog
Virtual digital retail ecosystem	VDREco
Waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE)	WEEE
	-

Table 3.11. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Research papers).

Year	Authors	Objective	Method	Area of application
2010	Dzopalic et al.	Introducing E-CRM strategy	Case study	E-CRM strategy
2011	Norris	Introducing a new program called the Newspaper Industry Environmental Vision which is gathering a critical mass of newspaper publishers and printers calling for increased efforts in industry best practices and sustainability.	Modelling	Newspaper Industry
2011	Hajdul and Cudzilo	Presenting how the Common Framework supports interoperability between commercial actors and communication to authorities and transportation network responsible.	Case study	Transport and logistics
2012	Agarwal et al.	Studying the consumer return behaviour of end of life goods at different incentive levels and make an attempt to incorporate the latest research practices.	Modelling	Waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE)
2012	Lin et al.	Creating digital mine and key technologies in China.	Modelling	Digital mine
2012	Davis et al.	Introducing Smart manufacturing, manufacturing intelligence and demand-dynamic performance.	Modelling	Networked information- based technologies

2013	Hentza et al.	Describing the on-going work with a specific focus on the definition and implementation of the FoFdation Smart Machine Controller (SMC) in an adaptable architecture that satisfies both commercial and open source CNC controllers.	Modelling	FoFdation Smart Machine Controller (SMC)
2013	Zhu et al.	Investigation of BIM digital technology in the construction industry.	Review	Construction industry
2013	Blümel	Studies means by which digital engineering and virtual and augmented reality technologies can support the creation of sustainable smart manufacturing and smart logistics processes as well as on-the-job training and qualification and knowledge transfer.	Modelling	Manufacturing and logistics
2013	Clear et al.	Brings together participants from a diverse range of disciplines to develop an understanding of existing food consumption practices, and how this domain can profit from novel Ubicomp technology and interaction designs.	Modelling	Food industry
2013	Baumers et al.	Studying whether the adoption of additive manufacturing (AM) technology can be used to reach transparency in terms of energy and financial inputs to manufacturing operations.	Modelling	Manufacturing and logistics
2014	Gebler et al.	Representing the first comprehensive assessment of 3DP from a global sustainability perspective.	Modelling	3D technologies
2014	Holmström and Partanen	Exploring the forms that combinations of digital manufacturing, logistics and equipment use are likely to take and how these novel combinations may affect the relationship among logistics service providers (LSPs), users and manufacturers of equipment.	Modelling	Manufacturing and logistics
2014	Brofman Epelbaum and Martinez	Offering a theoretical framework grounded on the Resource-Based View (RBV) of the firm to determine the strategic impacts of the technological evolution of food traceability systems.	Case study	Food industry
2015	Yue et al.	Defining the development and character of ICPS and offering a service-oriented ICPS model.	Modelling	Information communication technology (ICT)
2015b	Chen, RY.	Simulating complex system by connected physical and digital objects with relationships while enhancing decision-making performance efficiency for green inventory management.	Modelling	Green supply chain
2015	Prause	Responding to the research question of how new and sustainable business models and structures for Industry 4.0 might appear and in which direction existing traditional business concepts have to be developed to deploy a strong business impact of Industry 4.0.	Modelling	E-Residency
2016	Papahristou and Bilalis	Analyzing the challenges, the threats and the opportunities across the SC partners emerging to reduce the environmental footprint.	Modelling	Clothing industry
2016	Ranzo et al.	Studying new mobility and manufacturing concepts, carried out in the framework of a research project funded by the Regional	report	Automotive supply chain

		Government of Campania for innovative		
2016	I om et al	development of the automotive SC.	Modelling	Smart City
2010	Lom et al.	Initiative and the concept of Industry 4.0.	Modelling	Smart City
2017	Lin et al.	Using a descriptive analysis with descriptive	Case study	Policy-making
		statistics under the innovation policy framework		
		proposed by Rothwell and Zegveld. Moreover		
		informing a comparative policy analysis across		
2017		China and Taiwan.	NG 1 111	
2017	De Carolis et al.	Illustrating a "tool" for building a maturity	Modelling	Manufacturing
		assessment method to measure the digital		and logistics
2017	Man and	Considering notential sustainable business	Modelling	Business model
2017	Strandhagen	scenarios and proposes an agenda for research	Widdening	Dusiness model
	Struitanagen	into how Industry 4.0 can be used to create		
		sustainable business models.		
2017	Palm	Studying recent trends of vinyl traffic and	Review	Record labels
		critique a prominent feature of contemporary		and retail outlets
		vinyl culture: Record Store Day.		
2017	Rauch et al.	Considering the actual state of the art in	Review	Distributed
• • • •		distributed manufacturing.		manufacturing
2017	Jensen and	Investigating how different 'product stewardship'	Modelling	Circular
	Remmen	and end-of-life strategies can support the		economy (CE)
		benefits are from an original equipment		
		manufacturer perspective		
2017	Lee et al.	Explaining to what extent the business sectors	Modelling	Sendai
		involved in and how to safeguard the cross-	0	Framework for
		border trade and investments with safer and		Disaster Risk
		smarter regional strategies in the digital age with		Reduction
		large-scale disasters.		(SFDRR)
2017	Zhong et al.	Studying food SC management (FSCM) in terms	Modelling	Food industry
2017	Davil and Thay	of systems and implementations.	Casa study	Domon
2017	Paul and Zhou	manufacturing company in central lava	Case study	Paper
		Indonesia in their way of building their		manufacturing
		maintainable innovation capability in their SC by		
		applying a combination of various existing		
		models.		
2017	Strandhagen et al.	Studying the challenges of Industry 4.0, current	Review	Business model
		trends, and offering a model to understand and		
		relate the different elements of business		
2017	Durana and Adam	operations.	Constantin	Manufa atomina
2017	Prause and Atari	exploring the relationship between networking,	Case study	and logistics
		conditions and sustainability in the context of		and logistics
		Industry 4.0.		
2017	Papahristou and	Considering the relationship between Corporate	Modelling	Clothing
	Bilalis	Social Responsibility (CSR) and Collective	U	industry
		Actions on Sustainability and the environmental		
		impact of the new model of fast and accelerating		
0010		tashion.	р :	D
2018	Tombido et al.	Reviewing the literature on the entry and use of	Keview	Reverse logistics
		of providing researchers with future research		
		directions for this fast-emerging tonic		
		anovnous for ans fast-onlorging topic.		

2018	Byrne et al.	Studying the meaning and implications of "Biologicalisation" from the perspective of the design, function and operation of products, manufacturing processes, manufacturing systems, SCs and organizations.	Modelling	Biologicalisation
2018	Saberi et al.	Studying Blockchain technology and smart contracts with potential application to SC management	Modelling	Blockchain technology
2018	Scholz et al.	Considering digital technologies in forest-based SCs and summarizing the state-of-the-art digital technologies for the real-time data collection on forests, product flows, and forest operations, along with planning systems and other decision support systems in use by SC actors.	Review	Forest-based supply chains
2018	Banks et al.	Explaining enhancing high-rise residential construction through design for manufacture and assembly.	Case study	Construction industry
2018	Luthra and Mangla	Recognizing key challenges to Industry 4.0 initiatives and key challenges for SC sustainability in emerging economies by taking	Review	Manufacturing and logistics
2018	Nascimento et al.	Indian manufacturing industry perspective. Studying how rising technologies from Industry 4.0 can be integrated with a circular economy (CE) practice to establish a business model that reuses and recycles wasted material such as scrap metal or e-waste.	Modelling	Circular economy (CE)
2018	Bag et al.	Recognizing the Industry 4.0 enablers of SC sustainability and further attempt to propose a research framework to bridge the theoretical	Review	Supply chain sustainability
2018	Lopes de Sousa Jabbour et al.	Offering a pioneering roadmap to improve the application of CE principles in organizations by means of Industry 4.0 approaches.	Case study	Circular economy (CE)
2018	Bechtsis et al.	Providing a framework that obtains the main software architecture elements for developing highly customized simulation tools that support the effective integration of Intelligent Autonomous Vehicles (IAVs) in sustainable supply networks, as an emerging field in the operations management agenda.	Modelling	Intelligent Autonomous Vehicles (IAVs)
2018	Sendlhofer and Lernborg	Studying how workers are trained on their labour rights with a digital-training method.	Case study	Digital-training method
2018	Gružauskas et al.	Examining the limited possibilities to reach cost- effective performance and sustainability.	Review	Food industry
2018	Sun et al.	Offering an agent-based simulation that models the micro-level protocols of mobile recourse units and their interaction with the physical infrastructure in a rail-road intermodal transport network.	Modelling	Rail-road intermodal transport network
2018	Ding	Recognizing the potential sustainability barriers of PSC and examining how Industry 4.0 can be applied in the sustainable PSC paradigms.	Review	Pharmaceutical supply chain (PSC)
2018	Bucci et al.	Presenting an overview of worldwide development and status of precision agriculture, starting from 2000 until to date.	Review	Agriculture sector

2018	Forkel et al.	Investigating Smart Interoperable Logistics and Additive Manufacturing - Modern Technologies for Digital Transformation and Industry 4.0	Modelling	Manufacturing and logistics
2018	Todorovic et al.	studying how the SFSC could be designed from the aspects of innovative logistics modes and contemporary information and communication technologies, with the final aim to outline and evaluate different food distribution scenarios towards greater sustainability.	Modelling	Food industry
2018	Holmström et al.	Investigating how current and future Direct digital manufacturing (DDM)-based operational practices can be used to advance products and processes.	Modelling	Direct digital manufacturing (DDM)
2018	Wu et al.	Studying how to provide trade promotions in a sustainable manner when consumer demand is disrupted.	Modelling	Trade promotion
2018	Garcia-Muiña et al.	Exploring the phases of the transition from a linear to a circular economy and suggesting a procedure for the principles of sustainability (environmental, economic and social) in a manufacturing environment, through the design of a new Circular Business Model (CBM)	Modelling	Circular economy (CE)
2018	Bressanelli et al.	Recognizing the main challenges that companies have to face when they want to redesign their SC according to CE principles, i.e. to implement a circular SC.	Review	Circular economy (CE)
2018	Delina et al.	Suggesting a framework for innovation-driven SC ecosystem based on interoperability between commercial and public innovation procurement organization and research environment. Moreover developing single digital infrastructure for supporting critical issues in requirements analysis, sourcing, negotiation, contract execution and post-contractual phase to build sustainable, motivational and trusted innovation-driven environment.	Modelling	Innovation Union
2018	Dallasega and Sarkis	Examining the nexus of Industry 4.0 and greening SCs with using proximity analysis.	Modelling	Supply chain sustainability

Year	Authors	Objective	Method	Area of
2010	Pöltner and Grechenig	Offering a concept for the establishment of a future virtual digital retail ecosystem	Modelling	Virtual digital retail ecosystem
2010	Price et al.	Proposing a digital framework for the creation and management of performance parameters related to the lifecycle performance of thermoplastic composite structures.	Modelling	Thermoplastic composite structures
2010	Kang and Diao	Analyzes the route choice of information technology(IT) which enterprises can obtain long- term competitive advantages.	Modelling	Digital China Company's Supply Chain integration system
2012	Ji and Niu	Studying variety and high-frequency necessities of modern cold chain logistics, and application of digital assorting system (DAS) in cold chain logistics warehousing system To meet the JIT.	Modelling	Digital assorting system (DAS)
2013	Bjorn et al.	Explaining how a general operating model of re-use of electrical and electronic equipment (EEE), and specifically for PCs in developing countries, deal with the challenges and opportunities of increasing e-waste awareness.	Case study	Electronic industry
2015	Tzoulis et al.	Combining data on timber trade in Greece and also studying how the economic crisis has affected the forest, its products and how it has affected trade (imports and exports).	Case study	Forest-based supply chains
2016	Ginige et al.	Studying a notion of context-specific actionable information which allows the user to act with the least amount of further processing.	Case study	Agriculture sector
2017	Kalogianni et al.	Studying an efficient Monitoring and Control software Tool (MCT) for assessing the operation data of an olive oil production facility.	Modelling	Agriculture sector
2017	Yu and Solvang	Presenting a new concept: Small-scale Intelligent Manufacturing System (SIMS), and the comparison with previous concepts and the benefits of SIMS are discussed in this paper.	Modelling	Small-scale Intelligent Manufacturing System (SIMS)
2017	Pilinkienė et al.	Investigating a case study of the European Union food industry by modelling different logistic network scenarios, and implemented a competitiveness strategy based on the Industry 4.0 concept and lean philosophy.	Case study	Food industry
2017	Tan et al.	Considering how organizations can investigate and implement techniques for their modern enterprise with a focus on how advanced big data tools can be applied to Quality Analytics for monitoring and improving quality in the electronic industry.	Modelling	Electronic industry
2017	Crowley et al.	Literature reviewing and discussing core learnings in relation to impacts on sourcing and supplier management in a digital business landscape.	Review	Digital business landscape
2017	Pal and Sandberg	Studying the inter-organizational value creation, in apparel SC context, through circularity and	Modelling	Clothing industry

Table 3.12. Literature Review of sustainable SC and Industry 4.0 (Conference papers).

		digitalization for sustainability, by gathering evidence from vivid research experiences.		
2018	Alrabghi	Investigating the key elements of simulation optimization frameworks that will facilitate the	Review	Simulation optimization
		transformation to industry 4.		

Computers & Industrial Engineering 154 (2021) 107128

Contents lists available at ScienceDirect



Computers & Industrial Engineering



journal homepage: www.elsevier.com/locate/caie

Industry 4.0 and demand forecasting of the energy supply chain: A literature review



Ali Roozbeh Nia^{a,*}, Anjali Awasthi^a, Nadia Bhuiyan^b

^a Concordia Institute for Information Systems Engineering (CIISE), Concordia University, Montreal, Canada ^b Department of Mechanical, Industrial and Aerospace Engineering (MIAE), Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

ARTICLE INFO	A B S T R A C T
Keywords: Demand forecasting Demand of energy Supply Chain (SC) Intelligent methods Industry 4.0	The number of publications in demand forecasting of the energy supply chain augmented meaningfully due to the 2008 global financial crisis and its consequence on the global economy, mainly in energy supply chains. In spite of the fact that Industry 4.0 energed during this period, its solutions and their impacts on energy demand forecasting are not covered by current reviews in the literature. This paper presents a comprehensive and up-to-date review of publications related to forecasting approaches of energy demand in the last two decades between 2000 and 2020 with an emphasis on Industry 4.0 influences and the state-of-the-art progress on this topic. A total of 267 publications are chosen and about 73 distinctive approaches of energy demand forecasting are discovered. Accordingly, among these approaches, there are eight methods with the most citations which include 56% of the total articles. Additionally, the forecasting methods are classified into traditional and intelligent methods and the most cited publications related to both are reviewed in detail. Furthermore, the advantages and disadvantages of both traditional and intelligent forecasting methods are well as research limitations and future researches are determined. The results from the literature review indicated that by employing intelligent forecasting methods, the errors and costs were reduced while these methods increase profitability.

1. Introduction

Nowadays, most enterprises are going through digitization, which is known as Industry 4.0 (Roozbeh Nia, Awasthi, & Bhuiyan, 2020). The digital revolution focuses generally on manufacturing, therefore, names such as "Smart Factory" or "Factory of the Future" are used and matched with this concept (Kayikci, 2018). Under such conditions as globalization, rapidly-evolving technology, and progressively demanding customers, corporations in the same supply chain (SC) must collaborate to fulfill customer requirements superior to their competitors (Marchi & Zanoni, 2017). Furthermore, the main influence motivating Industry 4.0 is to guide businesses by applying digital technologies that recognize methods that can assist organizations in creating connections among their operations, systems, manufacturing capabilities, finished goods, and clients. The intention of these technologies is collecting and distributing real-time functioning and marketplace information with stakeholders (Ardito, Petruzzelli, Panniello, & Garavelli, 2019).

The digitization in SCs is based on six features: connectivity, cooperation, integration, adaptiveness, cognitive improvement, and autonomous control (Kayikci, 2018). With the purpose of boosting opportunities, decreasing costs, and gaining competitive advantage, energy corporations are increasingly reconsidering their SCs. The energy division is segregated into various sections, each with their own SC problems and challenges. The common five sub-sectors in the energy SC division are presented in Fig. 1. The energy market today is mutually maturing and unbalanced, distinguished through growing demand and variable supply. However, the greatest challenges come from the scheduling of demand and forecasting precision and with that the configuration of materials and supply with energy demand (DHL 2015).

Supply chain collaborations can potentially enhance energy efficiency, yet most businesses still pay secondary consideration to whether their partners employ energy management systems, including energy forecasting in their commercial process (see Fig. 2). Cooperation between SC partners will improve value to each partner and the SC in the function of a system, while costs can be avoided, risks can be divided, and lead and response time can be diminished in an ever-fluctuating commercial environment (Jansen, 2014; Marchi and Zanoni, 2017). Moreover, the term "energy demand" generally denotes any kind of energy needed to meet individual or sectoral energy requirements (Hasanuzzaman, Islam, Rahim, & Yanping, 2020). Therefore, energy

* Corresponding author. E-mail addresses: ali.roozbehnia@mail.concordia.ca (A. Roozbeh Nia), anjali.awasthi@concordia.ca (A. Awasthi), nadia.bhuiyan@concordia.ca (N. Bhuiyan).

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2021.107128

Received 5 October 2020; Received in revised form 8 January 2021; Accepted 12 January 2021 Available online 18 January 2021 0360-8352/© 2021 Elsevier Ltd. All rights reserved.

CHAPTER 4. PAPER TWO - INDUSTRY 4.0 AND DEMAND FORECASTING OF THE ENERGY SUPPLY CHAIN: A LITERATURE REVIEW

Forewords

After reviewing the research works in "Management of Sustainable Supply Chain and Industry 4.0" in previous Chapter, now in this Chapter, a comprehensive literature review of "Industry 4.0 and demand forecasting of the energy supply chain" are presented. Moreover, in Chapters 5 and 6 (subsection 5.2 and 6.2) a complete review of research works related to exergy analysis and carbon reduction policies are presented.

Abstract

The number of publications in demand forecasting of the energy supply chain augmented meaningfully due to the 2008 global financial crisis and its consequence on the global economy, mainly in energy supply chains. In spite of the fact that Industry 4.0 emerged during this period, its solutions and their impacts on energy demand forecasting are not covered by current reviews in the literature. This paper presents a comprehensive and up-to date review of publications related to forecasting approaches of energy demand in the last two decades between 2000 and 2020 with an emphasis on Industry 4.0 influences and the state-of-the-art progress on this topic. A total of 267 publications are chosen and about 73 distinctive approaches of energy demand forecasting are discovered. Accordingly, among these approaches, there are eight methods with the most citations which include 56% of the total articles. Additionally, the forecasting methods are classified into traditional and intelligent methods and the most cited publications related to both are reviewed in detail. Furthermore, the advantages and disadvantages of both traditional and intelligent forecasting methods as well as research limitations and future research are determined. The results from the literature review indicated that by employing intelligent forecasting methods, the errors and costs were reduced while these methods increase profitability.

Keywords Demand forecasting; Demand of energy; Supply Chain (SC); Intelligent methods; Industry 4.0

4.1. Introduction

Nowadays, most enterprises are going through digitization, which is known as Industry 4.0 (Roozbeh Nia, Awasthi, & Bhuiyan, 2020). The digital revolution focuses generally on manufacturing, therefore, names such as "Smart Factory" or "Factory of the Future" are used and matched with this concept (Kayikci, 2018). Under such conditions as globalization, rapidly-evolving technology, and progressively demanding customers, corporations in the same supply chain (SC) must collaborate to fulfill customer requirements superior to their competitors (Marchi & Zanoni, 2017). Furthermore, the main influence motivating Industry 4.0 is to guide businesses by applying digital technologies that recognize methods that can assist organizations in creating connections among their operations, systems, manufacturing capabilities, finished goods, and

clients. The intention of these technologies is collecting and distributing real-time functioning and marketplace information with stakeholders (Ardito, Petruzzelli, Panniello, & Garavelli, 2019).

The digitization in SCs is based on six features: connectivity, cooperation, integration, adaptiveness, cognitive improvement, and autonomous control (Kayikci, 2018). With the purpose of boosting opportunities, decreasing costs, and gaining competitive advantage, energy corporations are increasingly reconsidering their SCs. The energy division is segregated into various sections, each with their own SC problems and challenges. The common five sub-sectors in the energy SC division are presented in Fig. 4.1. The energy market today is mutually maturing and unbalanced, distinguished through growing demand and variable supply. However, the greatest challenges come from the scheduling of demand and forecasting precision and with that the configuration of materials and supply with energy demand (DHL 2015).

Oil & gas upstream	Oil & gas downstream	Chemicals & petrochemicals	Mining	Power & utilities
Exploration & production of conventional & unconventional •Crude oil •Natural gas	Refining of •Crude oil •Natural gas	Manufacturing of chemicals (excluding pharmaceutical chemicals)	Exploration & production of •Oil sands •Coal •Uranium •Minerals	Power generation from •Conventional sources •Renewable sources •Transmission & distribution •Electricity, gas, water power

Fig. 4.1 The sub-sectors in Energy SC division

Supply chain collaborations can potentially enhance energy efficiency, yet most businesses still pay secondary consideration to whether their partners employ energy management systems, including energy forecasting in their commercial process (see Fig. 4.2). Cooperation between SC partners will improve value to each partner and the SC in the function of a system, while costs can be avoided, risks can be divided, and lead and response time can be diminished in an ever-fluctuating commercial environment (Jansen, 2014; Marchi and Zanoni, 2017). Moreover, the term "energy demand" generally denotes any kind of energy needed to meet individual or sectoral energy requirements (Hasanuzzaman, Islam, Rahim, & Yanping, 2020). Therefore, energy demand can be grouped into several divisions through end-users. Consistent with the International Energy Agency (IEA, 2017), the energy demand sector categorizations are presented in Fig. 4.3. Note that in Fig. 4.3 other sector forms agriculture and fishing (IEA, 2017).



Fig. 4.2 The energy SC, demand and forecasting

Management of energy is critical for economic success and environmental security since energy is connected to many sectors such as industrial manufacture, agricultural production, access to water, education, health, population, life quality, etc., (Suganthi & Samuel, 2012). Besides, industry and governments must concurrently follow these three issues (S'anchez-Dur'an, Luque, & Barbancho, 2019):

- Energy security (consistency of energy infrastructure, and capability of energy suppliers to fulfill present and upcoming demand),
- > Energy equity (availability and affordability of energy supply for the population),
- Environmental sustainability (energy productivity and the improvement of energy provided by renewable and other low-carbon sources).



Fig. 4.3 Classifications of energy demand sectors

Unquestionably, excessive consumption of energy has a significant impression and damaging consequence on the environment. Hence, for a country and mainly in developing countries, energy demand is a core concern in developing energy strategies (Pi, Liu, & Qin, 2010). For example, the management of energy in China, including energy supply and demand, has performed a critical role (Liu, 2015), so that the prediction of energy demand has been an increasingly vital subject (Suganthi & Samuel, 2012). Therefore, it is essential to develop effective forecasting methods for energy demand (Hu, 2020). The term "forecasting" is described by the procedure of estimation, prediction, or projection of upcoming activities, events, or occurrences. Consequently, energy demand forecasting is based on the different data and information accessible. In general, demand forecasting is done by estimating past data/information through mathematical models to forecast the trend of forthcoming energy demand (Islam, Che, Hasanuzzaman, & Rahim, 2020).

From the viewpoint of a decision-maker, a well-functioning SC is the support of almost every business. To ensure a close balance between supply and demand, a very precise demand forecasting linked with enhanced replenishment policies is key (McKinsey, 2017). On the other hand, in competitive energy markets, the precise prediction of monthly, quarterly, and yearly energy consumption can deliver an advantage in dialogs and carrying out contracts for medium-term generation, transmission, and distribution (Pelka & Dudek, 2019). Also, a reliable long-term energy demand estimate is essential to recognize the energy demand and present valuable supports for outlining strategic decisions. As a result, selecting proper modeling approaches consistent with features of estimated areas is the first duty for the correct forecasting of energy demand (Chen, Rao, & Liao, 2019).

Despite the fact that recent review articles surveyed energy demand forecasting in a specific branch, such as electricity (Shao, Chao, Yang, & Zhou, 2017), natural gas (Khan, 2015; Melikoglu, 2013), building energy (Ahmad, Chen, Guo, & Wang, 2018), solar power (Ahmed,

Sreeram, Mishra, & Arif, 2020), etc. and make a category in the specific fields, few pay attention comprehensively to demand forecasting methods of all energy types in the literature. For example, Suganthi and Samuel (2012) presented a list of the forecasting methods used for energy demand and described each method in detail. After that, Ghalehkhondabi, Ardjmand, Weckman, and Young (2017) studied the ten most-employed energy demand forecasting methods in the last ten years between 2005 and 2015.

To the best of the authors' knowledge, the two above-mentioned articles were only reviewed that considered energy demand forecasting methods. However, they ignored Industry 4.0 solutions in this subject, and the time span they studied was not comprehensive. As a result, to fill the gap in the literature, we provide a comprehensive and updated review of publications related to forecasting methods of energy demand in the last two decades between 2000 and 2020 with focusing on Industry 4.0 influences and the state-of-the-art progress in this subject. Contrasted with the existing reviews on similar subjects, the novelties, and contributions of this review are as follows:

- We focus on Industry 4.0 solutions and the effects of them in energy demand forecasting.
- We categorize energy demand forecasting methods to traditional and intelligent methods and review the most cited publications related to both in detail.
- In terms of time span, we consider a comprehensive review of publications such as research articles, conference papers, books, and book chapters in the last 20 years from 2000 to 2020.
- ▶ In terms of energy type, we consider all types of energy.
- We highlight the advantages and disadvantages of both traditional and intelligent forecasting methods as well as research limitations and future researches are determined.

This review is organized in this mode: the next section reviews, categorizes, and presents some analysis of associated publications in the last two decades (2000–2020), along with explaining the methodology supposed in this review. Reviewing the most cited traditional and intelligent methods of energy demand forecasting that is resulting from the current literature as well as related top papers are represented in Sections 4.3 and 4.4, respectively. Lastly, the review's concluding remarks, the restrictions, plus some suggestions for energy demand forecasting in the Industry 4.0 era, are presented in Section 4.5.

4.2. Literature Review

The review of the last two decades' research work is built on arrangement procedure. First, the arrangement exploited in this review is explained, and later, the process of the literature review is described.

4.2.1. Method of reviewing

Related research works are distinguished through a comprehensive online exploration that aims to gather, classify, and synthesize current demand forecasting of energy SC in the Industry

4.0 era. The literature is reviewed for the period 2000–2020 by exploring Thomson Reuter's Web of Science. As a result of the insufficiency of exact keywords explaining the subject, we put a substantial attempt to sort publications by reviewing their titles, abstracts, and texts. We investigate and organize related research works to meet a vision of energy demand forecasting in the Industry 4.0 era. Normally, this step can be achieved by aiming for noticeable journals, books, and conferences. At first, we considered keywords like "demand forecasting" and "energy demand" in the "TOPIC" search field of Thomson Reuter's Web of Science. There were more than 4500 articles that, after investigation, were found not to be related to our objective. We refined our search to the "TITLE" search field and the results were more exact with 208 articles. Since in the literature, the word "Prediction" is used as well, we did a new search with this keyword "demand prediction" and found 87 more articles. After that, we put a considerable attempt to sort all papers by studying their titles, abstracts, texts, and removing unrelated articles. Finally, we considered 267 articles that were within our objective. The general review methodology for demand forecasting of energy SC and Industry 4.0 articles is as follows:

Step 1- Finding the sources (online databases)

Step 2- Searching keywords

Step 3- Developing a taxonomy and analysis based on journal papers, conference papers, books, theses, etc.

Step 4- Identifying research with implications and issues related to demand forecasting, energy SC, Industry 4.0, Features, Component and technologies, Challenges, and advantages.

Step 5- Presenting Survey outcomes: conclusions, limitations, and further research.

4.2.2. Summary of statistical analysis

Although in this study, the literature is reviewed for the period 2000–2020, initially, to understand the bigger picture in demand forecasting of energy SC, we considered the time of 1979–2020. We used the search tool of Thomson Reuters Web of Science with keywords "demand forecasting" and "energy demand" in the "TITLE" search field. We did the same thing with the keyword "demand prediction" as well. We investigated criteria such as the number of publications per year, countries/regions, document types, energy types, applications, and research areas. Based on publication years, ranging from 1979 to 2007, the number of related publications in this area was under five research works per year (see Fig. 4.4). Although from 2008 until 2020, there is a sharp increasing trend, it could be shown that after the global monetary crisis in 2008, researchers and industries understand better the importance of energy demand prediction due to cost-saving issues.



Fig. 4.4 The number of publications from 1979 to 2020

Considering Fig. 4.5, the top five research areas from 1979 to 2020 are Energy fuels (23%), Engineering (22%), Computer science (11%), Environmental sciences ecology (8%), and Business economics (7%), respectively. Given document types, more than half of the publications are Articles (60%), following with Proceedings papers (37%) and Reviews (1%), respectively (see Fig. 4.6). In the role of countries/regions as Fig. 4.7, the top three countries with the most publications in energy demand forecasting are China (27%), USA (11%), and Iran (6%), respectively. Generally, China & USA are the two biggest energy consumers, while Iran is one of the biggest energy producers (Oil and Gas) in the world. It could be recognized that since both suppliers and buyers of energy in the world are concerned about forecasting and the outlook of energy markets, local universities and research institutions focused on this topic. By investigating the energy types of each article from 2000 to 2020, more than half of them (59%) studied demand forecasting of Electricity (see Fig. 4.8). In the second and third ranks, Coal and Oil are with 17% and 10%, respectively. Once fossil fuels are gone, they cannot be replaced, so decision-makers are now keen to use renewable sources of energy. Renewable energy is an interesting issue, but only 3% of publications considered it. It is expected that this percentage will increase in the next decade. Considering the application of research, the authors found 36 different areas. About (34%) of total publications studied National energy demand (see Fig. 4.9). This is followed by forecasting energy demand of Building and Regions (City/province) with 15% and 9%, respectively. Finally, according to the type of methodology used in publications from 2000 to 2020, top three methods are Neural network, Metaheuristic algorithms and Grey model, respectively (see Fig. 4.10).



Fig. 4.5 Research areas and their publication's number from 1979 to 2020



Fig. 4.6 Document types of publications from 1979 to 2020



Fig. 4.7 Countries of publications from 1979 to 2020



Fig. 4.8 Energy types of publications from 2000 to 2020



Fig. 4.9 Application areas of publications from 2000 to 2020



Fig. 4.10 The number of publications related to each method from 2000 to 2020

4.2.3. Classification of energy demand forecasting

Demand prediction of energy has been directed in the literature, mostly focused on three forecasting prospects (S'anchez-Dur'an et al., 2019): short-term (an hour to a week) (Nagbe, Cugliari, & Jacques, 2018; Ryu, Noh, & Kim, 2016), mid-term (a month to 5 years) (Akpinar & Yumusak, 2016), and long-term (5 to 20 years) (De Oliveira & Oliveira, 2018). Also, the heart of

demand prediction of energy is the method applied for estimating (Islam et al. 2020). Forecasting methods can be considered into two types (S'anchez-Dur'an et al., 2019): data-driven approaches, whereby statistical techniques of the connection involving the demand of energy and its causal variables are certainly detected (Bourdeau, Zhai, Nefzaoui, Guo, & Chatellier, 2019); and model-driven, where this connection has been earlier recognized (Suganthi & Samuel, 2012). There is another way of categorizing the energy demand prediction approaches (Islam et al. 2020). Based on the model, for example, employing the static against the dynamic model, experimental against the mathematical model, univariate against the multivariate model, etc. In addition, based on the curve-fitting statistical technique contrasted with artificial intelligence methods (Suganthi & Samuel, 2012).

Although in the previous subsection we considered a time span of 1979–2020 to understand the bigger picture in demand forecasting of energy SC, since the number of publications per year before the year 2000 is not significant (less than five per year), in this research we focused only on publications of the last two decades from 2000 to 2020. After reviewing all publications carefully and removing duplicates, the total number of the most related publications in demand forecasting of energy was 267. Based on the literature review, in this timespan around 73 different methods of forecasting were applied by the authors. Among these methods, eight forecasting methods encompass about 56% of publications, which means they are the most used forecasting methods in the literature. We categorize these methods in Traditional (e.g. Fuzzy Logic, Grey model, Metaheuristic algorithms, Regression models, Simulation model, Time series model), and Intelligent (e.g. Machine Learning and Neural Network) models. In the following, we briefly explain each method and investigate the most cited related articles in detail.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2020	Homod et al.	Forecasting HVAC systems energy demand in real-time for Basra city	Takagi-Sugeno fuzzy	Electricity	Building	0
2018	Bock	Forecasting the energy demand of customers	fuzzy clustering	Electricity	Regions energy demand	1
2018	Pelka and Dudek	Medium-term electric energy demand forecasting	Neuro-Fuzzy System	Electricity	National energy demand	4
2018	Choudhury et al.	Renewable energy capacity estimation for Indian energy sector	Fuzzy Time Series	Coal	National energy demand	0
2017	Arcos- Aviles et al.	The design of an energy management strategy	Fuzzy Logic Control (FLC)	Electricity	Microgrid	27
2016	Bernardes et al.	Optimal energy portfolios with demand prediction and distributed generation sources	New fuzzy algorithm	Electricity	Power supply systems	0
2015	Prauzek et al.	Energy availability forecasting for harvesting- aware wireless sensor networks: analysis of energy demand of a predictor	Evolutionary Fuzzy Rules	Electricity	Harvesting- aware Wireless Sensor Networks	3

Table 4.1. A complete list of recognized articles which used Fuzzy Logic in their forecasting methods
2013	Avila et al.	Fuzzy demand forecasting in a predictive control strategy for a renewable-energy based microgrid	stable Takagi & Sugeno (T&S) fuzzy model	Electricity	Microgrid	4
2012	Iranmanesh et al.	Mid-term energy demand forecasting	Hybrid Neuro-Fuzzy Models	all	National energy demand	16
2011	Kazemi et al. (a)	Forecasting agriculture energy demand: a case study of Iran	Hierarchical Fuzzy Linear Regression (FLR) Model	Oil	Agriculture Energy Demand	3
2010	Ghanbari et al. (a)	Electrical energy demand prediction	Clustering-based Genetic Fuzzy Expert System	Electricity	Load forecasting	3

4.3. Traditional methods

4.3.1. Fuzzy Logic and fuzzy sets

Fuzzy logic and fuzzy sets are used in several qualitative and vague energy utilization data to forecast energy demand (Ghalehkhondabi et al., 2017). The advantages of fuzzy sets are: stating systems rules in "if-then" forms (Iyatomi & Hagiwara, 2004), using imprecise or vague data for decisions making, coping with human cognitive procedures, investigating vagueness at several process phases (Haji and Assadi, 2009; Ustundag, Kılınç, & Cevikcan, 2010) and condensing a large amount of data into a reduced set of variable rules (Mamlook, Badran, & Abdulhadi, 2009). In contrast, the results of fuzzy approaches are not always reasonable (Hong, Lin, & Wang, 2003). A complete list of recognized articles that used Fuzzy Logic in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.1.

Taking into consideration a low complexity Fuzzy Logic Control (FLC), Arcos-Aviles et al. (2017) created the strategy of energy management for grid power profile smoothing. They used it in a residential grid-connected microgrid having a battery Energy Storage System (ESS) and Renewable Energy Sources (RES). Their strategy employs prediction of demand and generation to forecast the outlook microgrid's performance. Considering the Battery State-of-Charge (SOC) and the error of power forecasting, their recommended strategy achieved the right control of the grid power. In the end, they confirmed it at the Public University of Navarre (UPNa, Spain) in a real micro grid of residents. With the intention of long-term demand forecasting of energy, Iranmanesh, Abdollahzade, and Miranian (2012) suggested a hybrid approach named HPLLNF. This method includes a predictor using the local linear neuro-fuzzy (LLNF) model and a Hodrick-Prescott (HP) filter for recognizing the cyclic and trend factors in the energy demand time series. Moreover, to choose the best significant input features with the smallest probable redundancies for the forecasting method, a mutual information (MI) method was used. Their proposed method was worked out in three case studies, containing demand forecasting of natural gas, crude oil, and gasoline over the next 12 months. The gained forecasting outcomes show the notable performance of the recommended method.

Furthermore, Pelka and Dudek (2018) studied a neuro-fuzzy system for the medium-term demand forecasting of energy that involves a description of input and output variables. The authors showed yearly predictor trends of the time series to filter out the patterns and combine input data. As a numerical example, they employed the recommended method for historical data on monthly

energy demand in four European countries. These results were contrasted with different methods, for instance exponential smoothing, ARIMA, and kernel regression. The high accuracy and effectiveness of the proposed method is confirmed. In another study, Avila, S'aez, Jimenez-Estevez, Reyes, and Nú~nez (2013) investigated a stable Takagi & Sugeno (T&S) fuzzy model for demand estimating in a real-life microgrid placed in Huatacondo, Chile. For validation, the authors evaluated the proposed fuzzy model with an adaptive neural network. Besides, to improve the forecasting capability, an examination of the quantity of historical data and the rate expected for training targets was done.

4.3.2. Grey model (GM)

In the 1980s, Professor Deng Julong proposed the grey system theory, which has significant influences in the literature (Deng, 2002; Liu & Lin, 2006; Xiao, Song, & Li, 2005; Zhou & He, 2013). In general, two regular grey predicting models are the GM (1,1) and Discrete GM (1,1)models (Deng, 2002; Liu & Lin, 2006). The grey models are expressed as the systems with to some extent known and partly unknown data (Ghalehkhondabi et al., 2017). This theory chooses an ambiguous system with a "small sample and poor information" as the study target (Deng, 2002) and prepares dominant technical assistance for predicting and has been effectively utilized in many fields and proved acceptable outcomes (Zhou & He, 2013). A complete list of recognized articles that used the Grey Model (GM) in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.2. Xie, Yuan, and Yang (2015) considered China's energy-saving policy and employed novel methods to forecast both the energy demand and supply patterns of China. To predict the trends, the authors used a novel Markov method with a quadratic programming model while to estimate the total quantity of energy demand and supply, they employed an optimized single variable discrete grey forecasting model. Their results were compared with the regression model, and it is recognized that the proposed model was slightly better than the regression in forecasting and simulating the case. Moreover, Pi et al. (2010) employed an improved grey model GM (1,1) by applying three methodologies of the 3-points average technology and the residual modification to estimate electricity demand and supply in China from 1984 to 2006. Their technique considered the general trend series and random variations. Their outcomes denoted that China's final energy demand will rise quickly in the period 2007–2015 while it could be supplied a scientific basis for the designed development of energy production in China. Also, Hu (2017a) suggested a novel residual modification model, FLNGM (1,1). The author applied the functional-link net (FLN) along with genetic-algorithm-based learning to approximate the modification range for its corresponding projected value gotten from the original GM (1,1) model. The genetic algorithm (GA) was exploited to automatically find out the connection weights of an FLN to create the suggested FLNGM (1,1) model with high forecasting precision. To confirm the suggested model, the author exploited real energy demand cases from China. The outcomes prove that the suggested model performs well contrasted to other grey residual modification models with sign estimation.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2020	Hu	Energy demand forecasting using a novel remnant GM(1,1) model	Grey models, NN	Coal	National energy demand	0
2019	Zhao et al.	Forecasting China's primary energy demand and energy structure	Rolling grey model (RGM), support vector regression (SVR), particle swarm optimization (PSO)	all	National energy demand	1
2019	Wang et al.	Prediction of the energy demand trend in middle Africa	Metabolic grey model (MGM), modified exponential curve method (MECM), autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA) and BP neural network model (BP)	Electricity	National energy demand	0
2018	Jiang et al.	Comparison of forecasting India's energy demand using different methods	metabolic grey model (MGM), autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA), MGM-ARIMA, and backpropagation neural network (BP)	Oil	National energy demand	5
2018	Ervural and Ervural	Improvement of grey prediction models and their usage for energy demand forecasting	Grey prediction models	Oil	National energy demand	3
2017	Hu (a)	Grey prediction with residual modification to energy demand forecasting	Grey prediction	Coal	National energy demand	7
2017	Hu (b)	Nonadditive grey prediction using functional-link net for energy demand forecasting	Nonadditive Grey Prediction	Coal	National energy demand	3
2017	He et al.	Research on the prediction of energy demand in China	Grey Theory and System Dynamics	Coal	National energy demand	1
2016	Hamzaçebi	Forecasting the monthly electricity demand in Turkey between 2015 and 2020	Grey forecasting model	Electricity	National energy demand	5
2016	Wang	Research on energy demand forecast in baoding city in China	Grey relational analysis, analogy method	all	Regions energy demand	0
2015	Xie et al.	Forecasting China's energy demand and self- sufficiency rate by grey forecasting model and Markov model	Grey forecasting model and the Markov model	Coal	National energy demand	70
2012	Wang et al.	China's energy demand forecasting	Grey System Theory	Coal	National energy demand	0
2012	Li et al.	Study on Beijing's energy utilization and forecast energy supply and demand	Grey model	Coal	Regions energy demand	0

Table 4.2. A complete list of recognized articles which used Grey model (GM) in their forecasting methods

2012	Wu et al.	The analysis and forecasting model of the energy supply and demand in Jiangxi province	Grey system and Brown nonlinearity exponential smoothing	Coal	Regions energy demand	0
2011	Chen-chen et al.	Energy demand forecast based on the new weakening buffer operators with exponential type	Grey model	Coal	National energy demand	1
2011	Xue-xia et al.	Energy risks zoning and demand forecasting in Jiangsu Province	Grey model	Coal	Regions energy demand	1
2011	Liming et al.	The tendency of Chinese energy demand and supply prediction	Grey Theory	Coal	National energy demand	0
2011	Shuangfeng et al.	Short-term energy demand forecasting model for small regional aspects	Gray model and multiple linear regression	Coal	Regions energy demand	0
2010	Pi et al.	Forecasting Energy Demand in China	Grey model	Electricity	National energy demand	32
2010	Lu et al.	Forecasting the motor vehicle, energy demand and CO2 emission from Taiwan's road transportation sector	Grey forecasting model	Gas	Transportation sector	1
2009	Xie and Li	Research on Gray prediction modeling optimized for energy consumption demand	Gray Prediction Modeling Optimized by Genetic Algorithm	Coal	National energy demand	3

4.3.3. Metaheuristic algorithms

The word "metaheuristic" expresses higher-level heuristics that are recommended for solving all-inclusive optimization problems (Dokeroglu, Sevinc, Kucukyilmaz, & Cosar, 2019). Metaheuristic algorithms are first created based on natural phenomena (Wang, Zhou, et al., 2020) and they denote the main research area in combinatorial optimization (Elshaer & Awad, 2020) as demonstrated by numerous literature reviews (e.g., Blum & Roli, 2003; Boussaïd et al., 2013; Gendreau & Potvin, 2005; Osman & Laporte, 1996) and books (e.g., Gendreau & Potvin 2010; Glover & Kochenberger, 2003). Regardless of the successes of the classical metaheuristic algorithms, new and novel evolutionary methods have been developed effectively in the preceding two decades as well. Investigation of metaheuristic algorithms through this period presents a considerable number of innovative metaheuristics stimulated by behavioral or evolutionary procedures. In several examples, this new trend of metaheuristic methods produces the finest resolutions for several unanswered benchmark problem sets (Dokeroglu et al., 2019). A complete list of recognized articles that used Metaheuristic algorithms in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.3.

In recent times, several types of research are presented by researchers to estimate the energy demand of Turkey. Ünler (2008) predicted Turkey's demand for energy more effectively by applying the Particle swarm optimization (PSO) method. They used population, gross domestic product (GDP), import, and export as key energy demand indicators. Validation of the model was made with another metaheuristic algorithm entitled ant colony optimization (ACO). In the same way, Kiran, Ozceylan, Gunduz, and Paksoy (2012) proposed a new hybrid method to forecast energy demand of Turkey. Their hybrid method was the integration of ACO and PSO, while it developed in two fashions which were linear (HAPEL) and quadratic (HAPEQ). They considered indicators such as population, GDP, import, and export for energy demand. Moreover, a contrast was created with ACO and PSO for validation. Their results showed that relative estimation errors of the HAPE model were the lowest and the quadratic form (HAPEQ) delivered better-fit solutions because of variations of the socio-economic indicators.

To forecast China's energy demand until 2020, Yu, Wei, and Wang (2012) proposed a network-based energy demand, predicting model by applying Mix-encoding PSO and Radial Basis Function (MPSO-RBF). The China energy demand was examined from 1980 to 2009 by considering population, GDP, the proportion of industry in GDP, the share of coal energy, and urbanization rate. The results showed that the suggested model has fewer hidden nodes and smaller estimated errors contrasted with other ANN-based forecasting models. Ghanbari, Kazemi, Mehmanpazir, and Nakhostin (2013) studied a new method named "Cooperative Ant Colony Optimization-Genetic Algorithm" (COR-ACO-GA), to build expert systems with the capability of modeling and simulating variations of energy demand. They applied the proposed model to three case studies include yearly demand for electricity, oil, and natural gas in Iran. Furthermore, they compared their outcomes to artificial neural networks (ANNs) and adaptive neuro-fuzzy inference systems (ANFISs). This comparison showed that the proposed model was more accurate-stable than other methods.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2019	Jalaee et al.	The modeling of the energy consumption in Iran to forecast future projections based on socioeconomic and demographic variables	Cuckoo optimization algorithm	Oil	National energy demand	0
2018	Kampelis et al.	Development of demand response energy management optimization at building and district levels	Genetic Algorithm and Artificial Neural Network Modelling	Electricity	Building	10
2017	Hu (c)	Energy demand forecasting	Genetic-algorithm-based remnant Grey prediction model	Coal	National energy demand	7
2017	Badar-Ul-Islam et al.	Electrical energy demand prediction in smart grid	Chaotically improved meta- heuristics and modified BP neural network-based model	Electricity	Smart grid	9
2016	Nazari and Kazemi	Select the best scenario for energy demand forecast of residential and commercial sectors in Iran by using particle swarm optimization algorithm	Particle swarm optimization (PSO) algorithm	Oil	Residential	0
2016	Chen et al.	Predict the energy demand of greenhouses with a better performance of accuracy and cost time	Adaptive particle swarm optimization, genetic algorithms (APSO-GA)	Electricity	Greenhouses	20
2016	Liu et al.	Prediction of primary energy demand in China	Adaptive Genetic Algorithm Energy Demand Estimation (AGAEDE) optimal model	Coal	National energy demand	8
2016	Nazari et al.	Forecasting of energy demands of residential and commercial sectors in Iran using linear and exponential functions	Genetic and Particle swarm optimization (PSO) algorithms	Electricity	Residential	2
2015	Uguz et al.	Determine Turkey's long-term energy demand	Artificial Bee Colony with Variable Search Strategies (ABCVSS) method	Oil	National energy demand	1
2015	Nazari et al.	Develop different models to analyze energy demand of residential and commercial sectors in Iran	The GA and PSO energy demand estimation models (GA-DEM, PSO-GEM)	Oil	Residential	6
2014	Cao et al.	Energy demand forecasting based on economy-related factors in China	Support machine regression and quantum-behaved particle swarm optimization	Coal	National energy demand	6
2013	Ghanbari et al.	Model and simulate fluctuations of energy demand under the influence of related factors	Cooperative Ant Colony Optimization-Genetic Algorithm (COR-ACO-GA)	all	National energy demand	40

 Table 4.3. A complete list of recognized articles which used Metaheuristic algorithm in their forecasting methods

2013	Cheng	Energy demand forecast of the city	Cellular genetic algorithm	Coal	Regions energy demand	0
2012	Baczynski and Piotrowski	Description of a worked-out method of estimating hourly demand electric energy forecasts quality for chosen consumers groups	Particle swarm optimization algorithm (PSO)	Electricity	Regions energy demand	0
2012	Yu and Zhu	Energy demand forecasting in China	A hybrid algorithm called PSO-GA (particle swarm optimization- genetic algorithm)	Coal	National energy demand	35
2012	Kiran et al.	Forecasting energy demand of Turkey	A hybrid approach based on Particle Swarm Optimization and Ant Colony Algorithm	Oil	National energy demand	111
2012	Yu et al.	China's primary energy demands in 2020	Mix-encoding Particle Swarm Optimization and Radial Basis Function (MPSO-RBF) estimation model	Coal	National energy demand	40
2012	Piltan et al.	Energy demand forecasting in Iranian metal industry	Linear and nonlinear models based on evolutionary algorithms	Electricity	Industrial sector	34
2012	Assareh, et al.	Forecasting energy demand in Iran	Genetic Algorithm (GA) and Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO) Methods	Oil	National energy demand	11
2012	Forouzanfar et al.	Transport energy demand forecasting	Multi-level genetic programming	Oil	Transportation sector	21
2010	Parol and Piotrowski	Long-term forecasting method of annual electrical energy demand in electric distribution companies	Prigogine logistic equation aided by evolutionary algorithms	Electricity	Power supply systems	0
2010	Ghanbari et al. (b)	Prediction of electrical energy demand	Hybridization of Particle Swarm Optimization and Noise Filtering	Electricity	National energy demand	3
2008	Uenler	Energy demand forecast: The case of Turkey with projections to 2025	Particle swarm optimization (PSO)	Oil	National energy demand	128

4.3.4. Regression models

One of the best universally applied statistical techniques for predicting energy demand is Regression models (Islam et al. 2020). There are two common types of Regression: Linear and Nonlinear (for more details about the categorization of regression models follow Fumo & Rafe Biswas, 2015; Sobri, Koohi-Kamali, & Rahim, 2018). Regression methods set up a predicting function by determining a dependent variable value (known as the response variable) based upon one or more independent variables (known as a predictor variable) (Abdul-Wahab, Bakheit, & Al-Alawi, 2005; Ghalehkhondabi et al., 2017). A complete list of recognized articles that used Regression models in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.4.

Some key elements affect a building's heat utilization, such as the house global heat loss coefficient (G), the south equivalent surface (SES), and the dissimilarity among the inside set point temperature and the sol-air temperature. Accordingly, Catalina, Iordache, and Caracaleanu (2013) suggested a model to forecast the demand for heating energy by applying a multiple regression forecasting method. The authors used a multiple dynamic simulation to define the values of the inputs/output data of the forecasting method. They used real data from 17 blocks of apartments for validation. Using a complete error analysis, the proposed method offered an exceptionally good accuracy with a correlation coefficient of 0.987. Another study by Zhang, Mu, Li, and Ning (2009) applied the partial least square regression (PLSR) technique with two situations to estimate the energy demand for transportation for 2010, 2015, and 2020. The authors investigated Transport energy demand for the period of 1990–2006 considering GDP, urbanization rate, passenger-turnover, and freight-turnover. Their results were remarkably close to the prediction of the Energy Research Institute of China. Additionally, to assess power and heat load profiles for several house types, Pedersen, Stang, and Ulseth (2008) proposed a load forecasting technique. The authors employed a regression analysis for the heat load model while different statistical distributions were used for the power load model. Consequently, they utilized an approach for load collection based upon the house types' load profiles to forecast the highest load demands, load length profiles, annual load profiles, and annual energy demands, all allocated into power and heat objectives, for a scheduling zone.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2019	Amin et al.	Analysis and demand forecasting of residential energy consumption	Linear regression models	Electricity	Residential	0
2017	Taniguchi et al.	Define impact on consumers' utility and propose two demand response methods which aim to minimize the impact	Linear regression	Electricity	Smart grid	0
2017	Dudek and Pelka	Medium-term electric energy demand forecasting using Nadaraya-Watson Estimator	Nonparametric regression: Nadaraya-Watson Estimator	Electricity	Power supply systems	2
2013	Mestekemper et al.	Forecasting energy demand at an intraday resolution	Semiparametric regression smoothing	Electricity	Regions energy demand	14
2013	Catalina et al.	Fast prediction of the heating energy demand	Multiple regression model	Electricity	Building	90
2013	Feng et al. (a)	Study on China's energy demand	Regression prediction based on path analysis	Coal	National energy demand	0
2012	Hong and Wang	Discuss three aspects of demand response through a case study of a US utility	Regression-based approach	Electricity	Load forecasting	3
2009	Taghizadeh et al.	Forecasting transport energy demand: a case study of Iran	Multi-level Fuzzy linear regression model	Oil	Transportation sector	0
2009	Zhang et al.	Forecasting the transport energy demand in China	Partial least square regression (PLSR)	Coal	Transportation sector	87
2009	Hida et al.	Load Forecasting on demand side for operation of battery energy storage system	Multi-Regression Model	Electricity	Load forecasting	0
2008	Pedersen et al.	Load prediction method for heat and electricity demand in buildings	Regression analyses	Electricity	Building	87

Table 4.4. A complete list of recognized articles which used Regression models in their forecasting methods

4.3.5. Simulation model

A simulation takes a model to live and demonstrations in what way an entity or incident will work (Systems Engineering Fundamentals 2003). A simulation model can be functioned in a prediction mode through studying the historical detected values of the model outcome (Tongal & Booij, 2018). A steady-state simulation presents facts about the system at a precise instant in time (typically at equilibrium, if such a state occurs). A dynamic simulation presents information over time (Daniel, Ebhora, Johnson, & Ugochukwu, 2013). Simulation helps researchers employ mutually qualitative and quantitative intelligence to develop their simulation and estimation (Pasinski, 2018). A complete list of recognized articles that used the Simulation model in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.5.

With the purpose of investigating the energy of a building, Cho, Shin, Kim, and Hong (2014) estimated the energy utilization features of HVAC&R systems. The authors aimed to exploit an energy estimation procedure and a simple simulation program. Engineers and designers could apply this program to evaluate the efficiency and economic gains of HVAC&R systems. Their procedure of energy analysis showed up how to plan and drawing for employing the most useful HVAC&R systems. Also, Obara, Morizane, and Morel (2013) proposed a simulation model to predict electric power and heat demand by using weather data and equivalent values. They aimed to schedule the storage of electricity and heat from midnight to early morning. They used some case studies, and their results showed the effect of the economic productivity of the heating system, the volume of the tidal power generator, the insulation efficiency (Q-value) on the energy cost, and the forecasting error of the tidal power generator. Furthermore, they optimized the suggested simulation model with the objective functions of cost-reducing (facilities and operation) of the model. Another research by Grueger, Robinius, Hoch, Stolten, and Hartmann (2019) proposed an intelligent operating policy based on a simulation model considering imperfect predictions (e. g. of energy fees or wind obtainability) and non-linear electrolyzer performance. Their outcomes indicate that this approach cut down hydrogen production costs by up to 9.2% and boosts wind energy utilization by up to 19%, correspondingly.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2019	Forouzandeh, and Richter	Accurate prediction of the heating energy demand of courtyard's surrounding envelopes	Temperature correction factor	Electricity	Building	0
2019	Grueger et al.	Optimized electrolyzer operation: employing forecasts of wind energy availability, hydrogen demand, and electricity prices	Simulation model	Electricity and wind	Fuel cell-based mobility	7
2018	Filippov et al.	A description of the computer-based energy demand forecasting system (EDFS)	Adaptive simulation models	Electricity	Regions energy demand	0
2017	Naoi et al.	Demand and supply simulations considering detailed forecast, scheduling and control functions for Japanese power system with a massive integration of renewable energy sources	Simulation model	Electricity	National energy demand	0
2017	Silenzi et al.	Energy demand modeling and forecast of Monoblocco building at the city hospital of Genova	Dynamic simulations	Electricity	Building	0
2017	Torres-Sanz et al.	Prediction of electric vehicles energy demand	Simulation	Electricity	Electric Vehicles	0
2016	Chu et al.	Optimal integration of alternative energy sources in production systems with customer demand forecast	Discrete-event simulation	Renewable Energy	Industrial sector	5
2014	Cho et al.	Development of an energy evaluation methodology to make multiple predictions of the HVAC&R system	Simulation	Electricity	HVAC energy demand	23
2014	Zhang et al.	Dynamic power demand prediction for battery-supercapacitor hybrid energy storage system	Simulation	Electricity	Electric Vehicles	2
2013	Obara et al.	Study on the method of electricity and heat storage planning based on energy demand and tidal flow velocity forecasts for a tidal microgrid	Simulation model	Electricity	Microgrid	10

Table 4.5. A complete list of recognized articles which used Simulation model in their forecasting methods

4.3.6. Time series model

Documenting the order of the values of a variable at consecutive equally spaced points in time produces a time series. Forecasting the upcoming values of a variable based upon the earlier detected values is called Time-series predicting (Hamilton, 1994). A normal illustration of time series is the crude oil price documented at fixed time-spaces, which are employed to forecast the prospect price of the crude oil (Ghalehkhondabi et al., 2017). Time series prediction is a wide and dynamic research topic that has obtained significant consideration from the wide type of disciplines, for instance engineering, business, statistics, etc. Hence, the majority of the literature has concentrated on methods that can get precise predictions in many real-world purposes (Hajirahimi & Khashei, 2019). A complete list of recognized articles that used the Time series model in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.6.

In Turkey, many of the experimental research studies include different methods of econometric modeling. Conversely, because the projected economic and demographic parameters regularly differ from the realizations, time-series forecasting provides superior outcomes. Consequently, Ediger and Akar (2007) forecasted the main energy demand of Turkey from 2005 to 2020 by using both the Autoregressive Integrated Moving Average (ARIMA) and seasonal ARIMA (SARIMA) approaches. The forecasting results of ARIMA are illustrated to be more consistent than the whole of the individual predictions. Furthermore, the authors suggested several strategies based on their results. Some countries such as China and India meet with various challenges about forecasting their energy demand. To better meet these future problems, they can employ improved forecasting of energy demand along with updated upcoming global energy requirements. Accordingly, Wang, Lv, and Zeng (2018), with the aim of more precisely predicting energy demand in China and India, applied some time series forecasting techniques including single-linear, hybrid-linear, and non-linear. To measure the superiority of these suggested methods, the authors employed three standards (trend map, error measure, and fit method). The outcomes presented showed that their recommended methods have an extremely high degree of fit, a little error rate, and great fitting accuracy. Another paper by Lora, Santos, Santos, Exp'osito, and Ramos (2004) studied a 24-h load prediction problem by applying a time-series forecasting technique based upon the kNN method to the Spanish transmission system. Moreover, a different model was set up based on recorded data through a typical dynamic regression method, while the parameters were approximated by solving a leastsquares problem.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2020	Salam et al.	Estimate and forecast the number of houses and the resultant energy consumptions in Brunei Darussalam	Spline interpolation, autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA) model, nonlinear autoregressive (NAR) neural network.	Electricity and water	Building	0
2019	Sanchez-Duran et al.	Forecasting energy demand for Spain	Time-series techniques	Oil	National energy demand	0
2019	Chen et al.	The long-term forecast of energy demand and uncertainty evaluation with limited data for energy-imported cities in China	Autoregressive Integrated Moving Average, Vector Autoregressive models, Monte Carlo method	Coal	Regions energy demand	0
2018	Chen and Huang	Forecasting China's primary energy demand	(ARDL) bounds testing approach and an adaptive genetic algorithm (AGA)	Coal	National energy demand	0
2018	Wang et al. (a)	Forecasting energy demand in China and India	Single-linear, hybrid-linear, and non-linear time series, grey theory	Oil	National energy demand	29
2018	Gao et al.	Optimal scheduling and real-time control schemes of battery energy storage system for microgrids	The autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA)	Electricity	Microgrid	5
2017	Rehman et al.	Forecasting long-term energy demand in Pakistan	Autoregressive Integrated Moving Average (ARIMA), Holt-Winter, the long-range alternative energy planning (LEAP)	all	National energy demand	14
2016	Adom et al.	Forecasting demand and investigate the shift in price and income elasticities and the persistent profile of shocks for diesel and gasoline fuels in the road transport sector	The structural cointegration VAR	Gasoline	Transportation sector	8
2016	Rahman et al.	Forecasting the long term energy demand of Bangladesh using SPSS from 2011-2040	Time-series model with SPSS	Electricity	National energy demand	0
2016	El Kafazi et al.	Modeling and Forecasting energy demand in Morocco	Auto-Regressive Integrated Moving Average (ARIMA)	Electricity	National energy demand	5
2015	Hao, and Yang	Forecasting and analysis of renewable energy demand in the rural areas of China	VAR model	Renewable Energy	Regions energy demand	0
2014	Wang et al.	Presenting a methodology to systematically formulate a hybrid renewable energy system (HRES)	Autoregressive (AR) model	Electricity	Residential	9

Table 4.6. A complete list of recognized articles which used Time series model in their forecasting methods

2014	Haibo and Wei-feng	Research on energy optimal scheduling based on supply and demand forecast for	Time-series model	Electricity	Industrial sector	0
2014	Haitao et al.	Spatial characters of energy demand in China	Time-series forecasting methods	Coal	National energy demand	0
2012	Pan et al.	Forecast energy demand in Taiwan's electronic parts and components manufacturing industry	SARIMA models	Electricity	Industrial sector	1
2011	Chuanping et al.	The prediction to Chinese energy demand in 2020	Visual Angle of Time Series Analysis	Coal	National energy demand	0
2008	Xu	Forecasting China energy demand up to the year 2020	Vector Autoregression Model	Oil	National energy demand	0
2007	Ediger and Akar	Forecasting of primary energy demand by fuel in Turkey	ARIMA, SARIMA	Oil	National energy demand	245
2006	Contreras and Santos	Short-term demand and energy price forecasting	Time-series procedures, Artificial Intelligence	Electricity	Electric energy markets	3
2004	Lora et al.	Application to the short-term electric energy demand	Time-series prediction	Electricity	Load forecasting	22

4.4. Intelligent methods: demand forecasting in the era of Industry 4.0

Since the fourth industrial revolution and the digitization of SCs, businesses recognize that the implementation of Industry 4.0 solutions produces competitive advantages and opportunities for added sustainable management. Therefore, Real-time data gathering and predictive analytics through big data analytics, cloud manufacturing, Artificial Intelligence (AI), deep learning, Internet-of-Things (IoT), simulation and forecasting methods are exploited. These methods deal with the modern requirements of SCs for example, flexibility, improved productivity, less waste, superior forecasting of market demand, resources optimization inside and outside an industrial unit and further sustainable manufacture procedures of SCs (Mastos et al., 2020).

In the past decades, several traditional models have been regularly utilized for energy demand prediction (Chen, Rao, Liu, et al., 2019). These methods need labor-intensive work, including collecting, compiling, and using data, often in spreadsheets. Since the volume of data is increased, traditional models have turned out to be unmanageable and time-consuming methods that result in unaware biases. On the other hand, in the area of Industry 4.0, there's an alternative approach. Companies are transferring to predicting procedures that engage employees to work out symbiotically through data-fueled, predictive algorithms. It is all made achievable with novel technologies such as AI tools. Employing these technologies through expert prediction provides enterprises the capability to determine issues they need to know about, along with issues they didn't know, with more assurance as well as speed (Hogan & Merrill, 2019).

In Industry 4.0, AI is a division of computer science which is a technology that considers human logical judgment, group behavior, and reasoning with computer simulation (Ciulla, D'Amico, Lo Brano, & Traverso, 2019). AI can be denoted as "programs, systems, algorithms, and machines that express intelligence" (Shankar, 2018), which seems like "intelligent human behavior" (Pantano & Pizzi, 2020; Syam & Sharma, 2018). AI applications are vast, and it has obtained significant attention throughout the previous decade. AI applications in the area of predicting and a number of studies have been performed by employing Machine Learning (ML) techniques and Neural Networks (NNs) (Makridakis, Spiliotis, & Assimakopoulos, 2018), as well as support vector regression (SVR) machine-based models, and random forest (RF) (Wei, Li, Peng, Zeng, & Lu, 2019) to enhance time-series forecasting. Furthermore, AI-based predictive models have been employed to determine prediction of energy demand (Casteleiro-Roca, G'omez- Gonz'alez, Calvo-Rolle, Jove, Quinti'an, Martín, & M'endez-Perez, 2018; Casteleiro-Roca et al. 2018; Khosravani, Castilla, Berenguel, Ruano, & Ferreira, 2016; Shao et al., 2017; Singh & Khatoon, 2013; Suganthi & Samuel, 2012; Torres, Aguilar, & Zu^{*}niga-Meneses, 2018).

On the contrary with traditional methods, AI-based forecasting methods do not depend on the definite association among energy demand and its affecting factors while learning after a huge quantity of historical data for the forecasting as an alternative (Wang, Jiang, Zhou, Wu, & Qin, 2016). The key success factors of AI are based on the exploitation of algorithms skilled in learning through trial and error and enhancing their performance over time (Makridakis et al., 2018). These methods have robust qualifications in treating nonlinear problems and so broadly exploited in energy demand forecasting, mainly in short-term forecasting (Wei et al., 2019; Yang, Yan, & Lam, 2014). Furthermore, AI methods application is particularly effective in conditions where a proper mathematical problem of energy consumption is not clear (Islam et al. 2020). The fact is that since 2015 the number of research studies that employed intelligent methods for energy demand forecasting increased sharply (see Fig. 4.11). Consequently, in the next subsections, we briefly investigate the two most cited intelligent methods of energy demand forecasting in the literature including ML techniques and NNs.



Fig. 4.11 The trends of forecasting methods from 2000 to 2020

4.4.1. Machine learning

In the scholarly literature for time series prediction, ML approaches have been recommended as replacements to statistical ones (Makridakis et al., 2018). The ML obtains regulations of decisions from a chain of existing objective information and with learning and assessment of chains of input and output consequences, revealing the core mechanism (Wang, Zeng, Dai, & Zhu, 2020). The purpose of ML approaches is to enhance forecasting precision by diminishing some loss function, usually the sum of squared errors. ML approaches are computationally further demanding than statistical ones, needing more dependent on computer science to be applied, finding them at the intersection of statistics and computer science (Makridakis et al., 2018). A complete list of recognized articles that used ML in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.7.

Considering building heating energy, Guo et al. (2018) developed an energy demand forecasting model by using ML approaches. Their models involved extreme learning machine, backpropagation neural networks, support vector regression, and multiple linear regression. Also, they considered the correlation analysis technique to optimize various meteorological factors, operating parameters, time, and indoor temperature parameters in the function of model variables. To evaluate the functioning of the proposed models, real data of building heating with a ground source heat pump system were gathered. Outcomes confirmed that for various ML approaches, the operations of extreme learning machine models were better than others. In the same year, Ahmad and Chen (2018a) forecasted the required upcoming energy of water source heat pumps by using four ML-based models which were CDT, FitcKnn, LRM, and Stepwise-LRM. They considered input factors that involve environmental data, power consumption data of the water source heat pump, hour-type/day-type, while the output was the net electricity consumption of the water source heat pump. To confirm the precision of the proposed models, four validation approaches such as the LMA, BRNN, GPR, and TB were utilized. In another study by Ahmad and Chen (2018b), they suggested an energy forecasting model for medium and long-term district level by employing a new ML-based model includes

1) artificial neural network with nonlinear autoregressive exogenous multivariable input model; 2) multivariate linear regression model; and 3) adaptive boosting model. For the model's input/output, they considered environmental and aggregated energy consumption data, respectively. The forecasting results showed that not only the proposed model could improve the accuracy of forecasting but give suitable forecasting intervals in the smart grid environment.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2019	Yuan et al.	Prediction-based microgrid energy management strategy	Hybrid prediction-based energy management strategy	Electricity	Microgrid	2
2019	Huang et al.	Energy demand prediction strategy for residential buildings	Ensemble learning methods	Electricity	Building	2
2019	Kim et al.	Development of a consecutive occupancy estimation framework for improving the energy demand prediction performance of building energy modeling tools	Machine learning	Electricity	Building	4
2019	Eseye et al.	Improved electricity demand forecasting in decentralized energy systems	Machine Learning	Electricity	Decentralized energy system	1
2018	Guo et al.	Energy demand prediction for building heating systems	Machine learning	Electricity	Building	27
2018	Ahmad and Chen (b)	Forecasting district level medium-term and long-term energy demand in the smart grid environment	Machine-learning models	Electricity	Smart grid	9
2018	Ahmad, and Chen (a)	Forecasting the future energy requirement of water source heat pumps	Machine learning-based models	Electricity	Water source heat pumps	10
2017	Guo et al.	A thermal response time ahead energy demand prediction strategy for building heating system	Machine-learning methods	Electricity	Building	2
2017	Paterakis et al.	Aggregated energy demand prediction	Deep Learning Versus Traditional Machine Learning Methods	wind, solar	Regions energy demand	0
2017	Minhas et al.	Load control for supply-demand balancing under renewable energy forecasting	Support Vector Machine (SVM) learning algorithm	Electricity	Smart grid	1
2015	Zhang and Jing	The prediction of cement energy demand	Support vector machine	Electricity	Industrial sector	1
2010	Frankowski et al.	Prediction the electricity demand and the electrical energy balance differences in Poland	Advanced machine learning algorithms	Electricity	National energy demand	0

Table 4.7. A complete list of recognized articles which used Machine Learning in their forecasting methods

4.4.2. Neural network (NN)

NNs are most distinguished for being appropriate to predict the future values of nonlinear data sets, peer processing to effectively execute the various immediate tasks, and the flexibility to many environmental circumstances which is the consequence of their learning structures (Chen, Lai, & Yeh, 2012). The Artificial NN (ANN) is considered as a data-driven method stimulated through the human brain. It is created by a system of processing nodes (or neurons), which carry out numerical operations and are interrelated in a definite order (Ghalehkhondabi et al., 2017). ANN is a structure for several different ML algorithms to run mutually and deal with difficult data records (Wei et al., 2019). The ANN employed data to recognize the relation of input and output variables and estimate the outputs of the noisy multivariate time series (Adamowski, Fung Chan, Prasher, Ozga-Zielinski, & Sliusarieva, 2012). The ANN-based methods employed in energy demand prediction consist of the feedforward neural network (FFNN) (Azadeh, Babazadeh, & Asadzadeh, 2013; Jebaraj, Iniyan, & Goic, 2011; Kermanshahi, 1998; Soldo, Poto'cnik, 'Simunovi'c, 'Sari'c, & Govekar, 2014), BPNN (Yu & Xu, 2014), adaptive network-based fuzzy inference system (ANFIS) (Azadeh et al., 2011; Azadeh et al., 2013), wavelet neural network (WNN) (Bhaskar & Singh, 2012; Catal^ao, Pousinho, & Mendes, 2011; Zhang, Wei, Li, Tan, & Zhou, 2018; Zhang & Wang, 2012), ESN (Bianchi, Santis, Rizzi, & Sadeghian, 2015; Wang et al. 2018c), deep learning (DL) models, and others (Burger & Moura, 2015; Jiang, Liu, & Song, 2017; Lopez, Valero, Senabre, Aparicio, & Gabaldon, 2012; Lu, Wang, Cai, & Zhao, 2015). A complete list of recognized articles that used Neural Network (NN) in their forecasting methods is presented in Table 4.8.

Gonz'alez-Romera et al. (2006) predicted the monthly demand of electricity in Spain by applying two NNs. They used some models in the movement extraction to observe which of them delivers the best results. Their outcomes were superior to other methods, especially when only one NN was employed to predict the first consumption series. After that, Yokoyama, Wakui, and Satake (2009) proposed a new global optimization method named "Modal Trimming Method" to recognize the parameter quantities of a model for non-linear programming problems. At first, they detached the trend and periodic variation of energy demand historical data, then the transformed data is manipulated as the key input to a NN. Additionally, air temperature and relative humidity were counted as further inputs to the NN, and their consequence on the forecasting of energy demand was examined. For a benchmark test, they applied the proposed model to forecast the cooling demand in a building and its effectiveness and validity were explained as well. By focusing on a medium-term energy demand predicting system, Srinivasan (2008) tried to assist utilities to recognize and predict the demand of energy for each of the end-use utilization segment of the energy system, characterizing residential, manufacturing, business, non-industrial, show business and public lighting load. The author has applied several conventional and NN-based approaches to estimate the monthly demand for energy. Based on the results, ANN-based models were superior, especially the cluster technique of data handling (GMDH) neural network.

Year	Authors	Objective	Methods of forecasting	Energy types	Application areas	Time cited
2020	Vesa et al.	Energy flexibility prediction for data center engagement	Neural Network (NN)	Electricity	Data centers (DCs)	0
2019	Pramono et al.	Short-term load forecasting (STLF)	Causal residual convolutional neural network (CNN) and long short-term memory (LSTM)	Electricity	Load forecasting	0
2019	Feng et al.	Proposing a distributed hour-ahead energy trading management is	Neural Network (NN)	Electricity	Microgrid	0
2019	Pelka and Dudek	Forecasting monthly energy demand for four European countries	Generalized Regression Neural Network	Electricity	Regions energy demand	1
2019	Casteleiro-Roca et al.	Short-term energy demand forecast in hotels	Artificial Neural Network, Support Vector Regression	Electricity	Hotels	0
2018	Yin et al.	Comprehensive forecast of urban water- energy demand	Artificial neural network model	water	Regions energy demand	5
2018	Cao et al.	Conditional density forecast of China's energy demand	Quantile regression neural network (QRNN)	Coal	National energy demand	1
2018	Mason et al.	Forecasting energy demand, wind generation, and carbon dioxide emissions in Ireland	Evolutionary neural networks	Electricity and wind	National energy demand	11
2018	Muralitharan et al.	Energy demand prediction in smart grid	Neural network	Electricity	Smart grid	43
2017	Labidi et al.	A new strategy based on power demand forecasting to the management of multi- energy district boilers equipped with hot water tanks	Wavelet-based Multi-Resolution Analysis combined with Artificial Neural Networks	wood, gas	Multi-energy district bOilers	6
2017	Ahmad et al.	Energy demand prediction for large non- domestic buildings	Random Neural Network Predictor	Electricity	Building	0
2017	Kumar et al.	Ensemble wavelet learners for demand forecasting in energy grids India	Neural network, nonlinear autoregressive exogenous model (NARX)	Electricity	Smart grid	0
2017	Hu and Jiang	Forecasting energy demand using neural- network-based grey residual modification models	Neural-network-based grey residual modification models	Electricity	Regions energy demand	17
2017	Das G.S.	Forecasting the energy demand of Turkey	Neural network based on the particle swarm optimization algorithm with mutation (PSOM- NN)	Oil	National energy demand	3

Table 4.8. A complete list of recognized articles which used Neural Network (NN) in their forecasting methods

2017	Kankal and Uzlu	Modeling and forecasting long-term electric energy demand in Turkey	Artificial neural network (ANN) with teaching-learning-based optimization (TLBO)	Electricity	National energy demand	18
2017	Furukakoi et al.	Optimum capacity of energy storage system considering solar radiation forecast error and demand response	Neural Network (NN)	Electricity	Power supply systems	0
2016	Sanjari et al.	Studying the demand forecast error and a near-optimal dispatch strategy by using an artificial neural network (ANN) is proposed for the residential energy system	Artificial neural network (ANN)	Electricity	Residential	21
2016	Deka et al.	Predictive modeling techniques to forecast energy demand in the United States: a focus on economic and demographic factors	Artificial neural network (ANN) models, regression analysis models, autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA)	all	National energy demand	8
2016	Zhao N.	Study on the prediction of energy demand based on master-slave neural network	Master-Slave Neural Network	Electricity	National energy demand	0
2015	Tianheng et al.	A supervisory control strategy for plug-in hybrid electric vehicles	Neural network model	Electricity	Electric Vehicles	52
2014	Zhang and Li	Forecasting Chinese energy supply and demand situation	Backpropagation (BP) neural network	all	National energy demand	1
2014	Es et al.	Predicting the net energy demand of Turkey	Artificial neural networks (ANN)	Oil	National energy demand	10
2014	Ardakani and Ardehali	Investigating the effects of historical DSM data on the accuracy of EEC modeling and long-term forecasting	Artificial neural network (ANN) models, improved particle swarm optimization (IPSO), shuffled frog- leaping (SFL) algorithms	Electricity	Demand-side management	43
2013	Feng et al. (b)	Predicting China's energy demand	RBF neural network model	Coal	National energy demand	0
2011	Kazemi et al. (b)	Residential and commercial energy demand forecast: Iran case study	Multi-level Artificial Neural Network	Oil	Residential	2
2011	Zhang et al.	Energy demand forecasting in China	Dynamic RBF Neural Network	Coal	National energy demand	0
2011	Filik et al.	Hourly forecasting of long term electric energy demand	Mathematical models and Artificial Neural Network (ANN)	Electricity	National energy demand	10
2010	Kazemi et al.	Annual transport energy demand forecasting by several socio-economic indicators	Artificial neural networks (ANNs) model	Oil	Transportation sector	6
2010	Kolokotroni et al.	Prediction of heating and cooling energy demand for buildings in London	Artificial Neural Network (ANN)	Electricity	Building	51

2010	Meng et al.	Monthly electric energy demand forecasting under the influence of two calendars	RBF neural network	Electricity	National energy demand	0
2009	Yokoyama et al.	Prediction of energy demands using a neural network	Neural network	Electricity	Building	81
2009	Wang and Liang	The forecast for energy demand	Artificial Neural Network	Coal	National energy demand	2
2008	Ruas et al.	Electrical energy demand prediction	Artificial Neural Networks and Support Vector Regression	Electricity	Load forecasting	0
2008	Srinivasan D.	Energy demand prediction using GMDH networks	group method of data handling (GMDH) neural network	Electricity	Sectorial energy demand	78
2008	Gonzalez-Romera et al.	Monthly electric energy demand forecasting	Neural networks and Fourier series	Electricity	National energy demand	55
2008	Abdel-Aal, R.E.	Univariate modeling and forecasting of monthly energy demand	Abductive and neural networks	Electricity	National energy demand	50
2007	Gonzalez-Romera et al.	Forecasting of the electric energy demand trend and monthly fluctuation	Neural networks	Electricity	Power supply systems	31
2007	Ungureanu et al.	Simulation and prediction of the thermal energy demand of buildings	Statistical methods and artificial neural networks	Electricity	Building	0
2006	Gonzalez-Romera et al.	Monthly electric energy demand forecasting based on trend extraction	Neural networks	Electricity	National energy demand	112
2005	Thaler et al.	Prediction of energy consumption and risk of excess demand in a distribution system	Empirical model	Gas	National energy demand	14
2005	Yokoyama et al.	Prediction of energy demands	Neural network	Electricity	Building	1
2002	Carmona et al.	Predicting the evolution of the monthly demand of electric consumption	Neural networks	Electricity	Load forecasting	5
2001	Olofsson and Andersson	Long-term energy demand predictions based on short-term measured data	Neural network	Electricity	Building	33

Table 4.9. Summary of	the most used forecast methods of energy	demand (Zhao et al. 2019	, Wang et al.	2018a; Yuana	a et al. 2017)
-----------------------	--	----------	------------------	---------------	--------------	----------------

Forecast model	Data requirement	Forecast period	The number of variables	Advantages	Disadvantages
Fuzzy Logic	Low	Short/Long term	Multivariate	High accuracy in reflecting uncertainty qualitative knowledge; good at uncertain situation prediction of input variables.	Lack of specific prediction formulas; cannot reflect the relationship between predicted values and historical data; lacking self-learning capability and specific prediction formulas; requiring more pre-tuning and testing

Grey model	Low	Short/Medium- term	Univariate	Simple; high accuracy; the sample does not need regularity and large numbers; suitable for short- and medium-term prediction; fewer model parameters	Ignore the intrinsic mechanism of the system; cannot dynamically reflect system changes; can not consider the relationship between factors
Metaheuristic algorithms	High	Short/Long term	Multivariate	Conceptual simplicity; effective in processing a large amount of data and eliminating redundant information; able to solve a discrete optimizing problem; attractive for limited feature selection	Requiring change the problem presentation; high computational efforts; complex in learning and application; producing suboptimal solutions
Regression models	Low	Short term	Multivariate	Good at analyzing multi-factor models; provide error checking of model estimation parameters; easy to calculate; the correlation degree between the factors can be analyzed	Results cannot reflect periodic wave; poor generalization; low accuracy
Simulation model	Low	Short/Long term	Multivariate	Forecast under uncertainty; able to answer many questions; low data requirements to model; easy what-if scenario analysis; low cost; innovative approach	Good theories needed; no standardized approach; challenging to validate; potential scope creep in projects; high skepticism; political implications
Time series model	Low	Short/Long term	Univariate	The mathematical model requires only endogenous variables; popular and easy to adapt in a stationary time series with no missing sample	Require timing data to be stable; cannot reflect nonlinear relationships; the determination of model parameters is complicated
Machine Learning	High	Short term	Multivariate	Creating an optimal separating hyperplane in higher dimensional feature space; improving generalization performance and existing global minimum; automates forecast updates based on the recent data Increases adaptability to changes	Difficult to determine kernel function and separate real data perfectly; sensitive to missing data; high requirement in selecting hyperparameters; poor performance in multiple classification problem; maintenance complexity is high; technology requirements are high; the amount of required data is high
Neural Network	High	Short/Long term	Multivariate	Provide self-learning function and high-speed search for optimal solutions; fully approximate any arbitrarily complex nonlinear relationship; can learn and adapt to unknown or uncertain systems; highly robust; fully tolerant	No ability to explain reasoning process and reasoning basis; cannot work when data is insufficient; turning all reasoning into numerical calculations results in the loss of information; learning time is too long; large sample size required for model training

4.5. Conclusion and policy implications

The number of articles in demand forecasting increased significantly from 2008 due to the global financial crisis and the resulting severe consequences in both countries and companies all around the world especially in the energy SC market (see Fig. 4.4). Hence, this study presented a comprehensive review of demand forecasting of energy SC in the literature published between 2000 and 2020. From the application of our methodology, we selected a total of 267 articles that are further classified. We explored several issues like the number of publications, country/area, document types, energy types, research, and application areas. Moreover, we discovered about 73 different methods of energy demand forecasting which employed by authors in the last two decades (see Appendix Table 4.A1). Consequently, among these methods, there were eight methods with the most citations which encompass 56% of total publications. Traditional predicting approaches can be greatly manual and prone to individual bias. Thus, one of the aims of this study was to investigate the impact of Industry 4.0 in energy demand forecasting. Based on our literature review, we categorized these methods to Traditional (e.g. Fuzzy Logic, Grey model, Metaheuristic algorithms, Regression models, Simulation model, Time series model) and Intelligent (e.g. Machine Learning and Neural Network) models. After that, we concisely explained each method, investigated the most cited related articles in detail, and presented a complete list with different topics such as author(s) name(s), year, objective, energy types, citations, method used, application areas (see Tables 4.1-4.8). Since 2015, the number of research studies that employed intelligent methods for energy demand forecasting increased sharply in the literature. Therefore, we further considered the two most used intelligent methods of energy demand forecasting including Machine Learning (ML) techniques and Neural Networks (NNs) to review the most cited related investigations.

The actual boost from intelligent prediction methods happens when it is linked with human brainpower. Machines don't make mistakes, and people estimate and interpret the machine's results into decisions and activities. It is this symbiotic connection that results in successful intelligent predictions—particularly once individuals implement their results within the business (Hogan & Merrill, 2019). Concerning the Mckinsey report, errors were reduced by 30–50% in SC systems by employing intelligent forecasting methods. Moreover, if warehousing costs and inventory out-of-stock states decline about 10–40%, the enhanced precision leads to up to 65% decrease in lost sales. The projected influence of AI in SC is between \$1.2 T and \$2T in industrial and SC planning (McKinsey, 2017). Conversely, this outlook becomes real evidence as shown by Deloitte's analysis. A surprising 83% of the first companies that accepted AI has previously reached moderate (53%) or substantial (30%) monetary profits from their AI investments (Davenport & Schatsky, 2017). These earnings are only set to advance with time. Accenture's report presented that AI and intelligent forecasting will increase profitability by 38% and produce extra incomes to the tune of \$14 trillion by 2035 (Purdy & Daugherty, 2017).

Regarding Table 4.9, intelligent forecasting methods require a high level of data while this requirement is low in most traditional methods (except metaheuristic algorithms). In terms of "forecast period", both traditional and intelligent forecasting methods could cover short to long-term periods. In addition, in terms of the number of variables, both groups are multivariate. Moreover, in this table, the advantages and disadvantages of traditional and intelligent methods are explained completely.

Regarding Fig. 4.11, the trend for the number of research studies that employed intelligent methods for energy demand forecasting increased sharply starting in year 2015, while there was a fluctuation trend for traditional methods. Furthermore, in terms of the usage

percentage of the forecasting methods from 2000 to 2020, traditional forecasting methods are prominent with 64% whereas intelligent methods have only 36% out of the total number of research studies. In terms of energy types from 2000 to 2020, the number of research studies which employed traditional methods were higher than intelligent methods especially in coal, oil and electricity, while in gas they were the same (see Fig. 4.12). Although Traditional methods were employed more, considering the trend that is mentioned Fig. 4.11, it is expected that the number of research studies which employ intelligent forecasting methods will increase. In terms of application areas from 2000 to 2020, intelligent methods are dominant to forecasting energy demand in Building, Data centers (DCs), Decentralized energy system, Demand side management, Hotels and Smart grid (see Fig. 4.13). The interesting point is that the forecasting of "National energy demand" is the most cited area for both methods (with 42 research studies for traditional and 18 for intelligent methods). As the authors mentioned in Section 4.2.2, China, USA, and Iran are the top three countries with the most publications in energy demand forecasting (see Fig. 4.7). It is indicated that about the forecasting of "National energy demand", both suppliers and buyers of energy in the world are concerned about the outlook of energy markets.



Fig. 4.12 The using of forecasting methods for different energy types



Fig. 4.13 The number of application areas for both Intelligent and Traditional forecasting methods

In addition to the above-mentioned issues, this study has some limitations. The following topics sum up these possible boundaries:

- This review is created for the exploration of Thomson Reuter's Web of Science. Other databases could be investigated as well.
- This review employed definite keywords to explore the database. Since the examination is greatly sensitive to these keywords, analyses that deviate slightly from these terms may have been ignored.
- Categorized research in this study are prepared generally on outcomes from academic journals (consider Fig. 4.6). Including more industrial reports in future work can advance this review's results.
- Moreover, the authors propose the following suggestions/speculations be enriched by future research:
- This study explains the most employed forecasting methods in the literature, including traditional and intelligent methods. Researchers could consider different forecasting methods of energy demand or dissimilar categories. For example, considering the rarely used methods or not-used methods.
- ➤ A new topic of future research is the development of hybrid approaches, especially a combination of Traditional and Intelligent forecasting methods.
- This study considered demand forecasting off all types of energy in the literature. Focusing on a specific type of energy such as renewable energy could be employed as well.
- Lastly, the resulting categorization tables are immensely helpful for determining prospects for more investigation in both Traditional and Intelligent forecasting models.

Paper Appendix-Chapter 4

Table 4.A-1. List of different methods of energy demand forecasting which employed by authors in last two decades

Methods/Year	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
3D city model												1									
ADL-MIDAS model																			1		
Algebraic model																	1				
ANFIS Model																		1			
Artificial Intelligence (AI)																			1		
Bayesian approach															1	1		1		1	
BCVTB (Building Control Virtual Test Bed)														1							
Bottom up approach																1	1				
Central moving average (CMA)																1					
City Energy Analyst (CEA)																		1			
Clustering approach													1						1		
Cointegration Analysis and Artificial Intelligence Algorithm																			1		
Complete decomposition method		1																			
Computer Vision																				1	
Conjoint Analysis												1									
Convective heat transfer coefficients (CHTC)																				1	
Cycle analysis			1																		
Data Mining techniques															1						
Data-Driven Technique																			3		
Decision tree																					2
Demand response (DR)																	1				1
Dynamic input-output model																1					
Econometrics model				1					1								1	1		2	
EMD-GPM model																1					
Empirical Analysis													1								

End-use model																1			
Energy demand of transport (EDT) model												1							
Exponential smoothing			1													1		1	
Extended input-output model												1							
Future Energy Management System (FEMS)												1							
Fuzzy Logic									1	1	1	1		1	1	1	3		1
General Circulation Model (GCM)														1					
Generalized additive models (GAM)															1				
Generalized Logit model					1														
Grey model (GM)								1	2	4	3			1	2	3	2	2	1
Holt method							1												
K-Nearest Neighbor Approach													1						
LEAP									1	1			1	2		1		1	
Load and mobility data																	1		
Long Short Term Memory architecture																		1	
Machine Learning														1		3	3	4	
Markov chain										1							1		
Mathematical method										1								1	
Metaheuristic algorithm							1		2		7	2	1	2	4	2	1	1	
M-Pred															1				
Multi-agent system model												1							
Neural Network (NN)	1	1		2	1	2	4	2	3	3		1	3	1	3	7	4	4	1
New urban energy demand forecasting system												1							
Nonparametric learning algorithm														1					
On-demand branch prediction (ODBP)																			1
Operational battery dispatch control algorithm													1						
Photovoltaic (PV) forecasting															1		2		
Power Demand Probabilistic Forecasting												1							
Random Forest Regressor																		1	
Regression models							1	3			1	3				2		1	

Scenario analysis						1			1				1	2		1	
Simple model											1				1		
Simulation model										1	2		1	3	1	2	
Spatial dynamic panel model										1							
Stat-fusion							1										
Static load forecasting																1	
Static method							1	1						1			
Stochastic forecast												1				1	
SunDial System															1		
Surrogate model																1	
Survey						1											
System Dynamics																1	
Thermodynamic analysis			1														
Time series model			1	1	1	1		1	1		3	1	3	1	3	2	
Transport workload method									1								
Travel demand model														1			
Two-step approach															1		
Weather Research and Forecast (WRF)										1			1	1			
WinWatt, PHPP														1			

Int. J. Production Economics 257 (2023) 108772



Contents lists available at ScienceDirect

International Journal of Production Economics

journal homepage: www.elsevier.com/locate/ijpe



PRODUCT

Integrate exergy costs and carbon reduction policy in order to optimize the sustainability development of coal supply chains in uncertain conditions

Ali Roozbeh Nia^{a,*}, Anjali Awasthi^a, Nadia Bhuiyan^b

^a Concordia Institute for Information Systems Engineering (CIISE), Concordia University, Montreal, Canada
 ^b Department of Mechanical, Industrial and Aerospace Engineering (MIAE), Concordia University, Montreal, Canada

ARTICLE INFO	A B S T R A C T
Keywords:	The coal supply chain in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of
Carbon tax policy	sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary ob-
Extended exergy accounting (EEA)	jectives, does this assumption remain accurate? This research develops a sustainable model for coal supply chain
Coal supply chain	T_{F}

jectives, does this assumption remain accurate? This research develops a sustainable model for coal supply chain in five countries by integrating exergy costs and carbon tax policy using the extended exergy accounting (EEA) method under an uncertain environment. This sustainable model is a single vendor multi-buyer economic order quantity (EOQ) model for coal supply chain with the objective of the least total exergy with the maximum carbon and imperfect quality items decrease. Additionally, some realistic suppositions such as waste disposal to the environment, the obtainable budget of buyers and stockout in the model are considered. Following this, four metaheuristic algorithms, such as WOA, GA, ACO, and SA, are suggested to solve the model, and their results are validated by the exact method (GAMS). Finally, to improve the model's sustainability, a sensitivity analysis with different exergy values is offered for coal supply chain in each country. According to the results, coal supply chains in Canada and Germany have better sustainability performance (in Joules) than Iran and Turkey.

1. Introduction

Sustainability

Fuzzy EOQ

Metaheuristic algorithm

Nowadays, the energy market is maturing and unstable, characterized by intensifying demand and fluctuating supply (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). Additionally, harmful ecological circumstances and competitive situations are converting stricter, whereas the decline of natural fuel resources impacts energy management (Caglayan and Caliskan 2021). Undeniably, inappropriate energy utilization significantly impacts and damages the environment (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). It is reported that the annual consumption of energy in the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) countries have risen by 0.5%. In comparison, this amount for non-OECD countries has expanded by about 1%. Moreover, from 2006 to 2030, energy utilization in the industrial section (non-OECD and OECD countries) grew by about 1.4% per annum (U.S. Energy Information, 2020). The energy supply is a vital element of industrial developments that broadly influences ecosystems, degrades them, and produces environmental greenhouse gases. Consequently, reducing energy utilization is crucial for environmental protection and developing sustainable resources (Jawad and JaberNuwayhid, 2018).

As a key fundamental energy source, coal has a critical position in stabilizing national economies (Kang et al., 2014). Coal is the world's greatest sole source of electrical energy (37%) and will continue the most significant supplier (22%) until 2040. Coal aids non-energies manufacturing such as cement, steel (70%), and aluminium production (60%), rare earth element extraction, coal-to-chemicals, carbon fibre manufacture, and industrial electrodes (World coal association). Typically, about 630 kg of coal are demanded to produce one metric ton of steel (Corsa). To produce one tonne of cement, approximately 200-450 kg of coal is required and about 20% of hydrogen production occurs by coal-to-gas processes (World coal association). Concerning providing renewable energy, for instance, each wind turbine needs 260 tonnes of steel created from 170 tonnes of coking coal. In Appendix Fig. A.1, global coal consumption by region in 2021 is presented (Statistical, 2021). Coking coal, also named metallurgical coal, is a type of non-renewable resource, and it is mainly intended for coke making. For sustainable development, coal resources must be used scientifically and rationally (Zhang et al., 2021a). Steel manufacturers worldwide have a considerable demand for coking coals because it is one of the essential unique inputs for steel production employing blast furnaces (Mohanty

* Corresponding author.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2023.108772

Received 9 May 2022; Received in revised form 26 December 2022; Accepted 3 January 2023 Available online 9 January 2023

E-mail addresses: ali.roozbehnia@gmail.com, ali.roozbehnia@mail.concordia.ca (A. Roozbeh Nia), anjali.awasthi@concordia.ca (A. Awasthi), nadia.bhuiyan@ concordia.ca (N. Bhuiyan).

^{0925-5273/© 2023} Elsevier B.V. All rights reserved.

CHAPTER 5. PAPER THREE - INTEGRATE EXERGY COSTS AND CARBON REDUCTION POLICY IN ORDER TO OPTIMIZE THE SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN UNCERTAIN CONDITIONS

Forewords

After literature reviewing in Chapters 3 and 4, this chapter aims to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and carbon tax policy. Moreover, carbon policies such as trade, cap and offset will be covered in Chapters 6, 7 and 8, respectively.

Abstract

The coal supply chain in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary objectives, does this assumption remain accurate? This research develops a sustainable model for coal supply chain in five countries by integrating exergy costs and carbon tax policy using the extended exergy accounting (EEA) method under an uncertain environment. This sustainable model is a single vendor multi-buyer economic order quantity (EOQ) model for coal supply chain with the objective of the least total exergy with the maximum carbon and imperfect quality items decrease. Additionally, some realistic suppositions such as waste disposal to the environment, the obtainable budget of buyers and stockout in the model are considered. Following this, four metaheuristic algorithms, such as WOA, GA, ACO, and SA, are suggested to solve the model, and their results are validated by the exact method (GAMS). Finally, to improve the model's sustainability, a sensitivity analysis with different exergy values is offered for coal supply chain in each country. According to the results, coal supply chains in Canada and Germany have better sustainability performance (in Joules) than Iran and Turkey.

Keywords Carbon tax policy; Extended exergy accounting (EEA); Coal supply chain

Sustainability; Metaheuristic algorithm; Fuzzy EOQ

5.1. Introduction

Nowadays, the energy market is maturing and unstable, characterized by intensifying demand and fluctuating supply (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). Additionally, harmful ecological circumstances and competitive situations are converting stricter, whereas the decline of natural fuel resources impacts energy management (Caglayan and Caliskan 2021). Undeniably, inappropriate energy utilization significantly impacts and damages the environment (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). It is reported that the annual consumption of energy in the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) countries has risen by 0.5%. In comparison, this amount for non-OECD countries has expanded by about 1%. Moreover, from 2006 to 2030, energy utilization in the industrial section (non-OECD and OECD countries) grew by about 1.4% per annum (U.S. Energy Information, 2020). The energy supply is a vital element of industrial

developments that broadly influences ecosystems, degrades them, and produces environmental greenhouse gases. Consequently, reducing energy utilization is crucial for environmental protection and developing sustainable resources (Jawad and JaberNuwayhid, 2018).

As a key fundamental energy source, coal has a critical position in stabilizing national economies (Kang et al., 2014). Coal is the world's greatest sole source of electrical energy (37%) and will continue the most significant supplier (22%) until 2040. Coal aids non-energies manufacturing such as cement, steel (70%), and aluminum production (60%), rare earth element extraction, coal-to-chemicals, carbon fiber manufacture, and industrial electrodes (World coal association). Typically, about 630 kg of coal are demanded to produce one metric ton of steel (Corsa). To produce one ton of cement, approximately 200–450 kg of coal is required and about 20% of hydrogen production occurs by coal-to-gas processes (World coal association). Concerning providing renewable energy, for instance, each wind turbine needs 260 tons of steel created from 170 tons of coking coal. In Appendix Fig. 5.A.1, global coal consumption by region in 2021 is presented (Statistical, 2021). Coking coal, also named metallurgical coal, is a type of nonrenewable resource, and it is mainly intended for coke making. For sustainable development, coal resources must be used scientifically and rationally (Zhang et al., 2021a). Steel manufacturers worldwide have a considerable demand for coking coals because it is one of the essential unique inputs for steel production employing blast furnaces (Mohanty et al., 2019). For instance, in 2019, the coal utilization in the steel sector was around 900 million tons of coal equivalent (Mtce) (26.2 EJ [EJ]) or about 15% of the initial international coal demand (Iron and Steel Technology Roadmap).

With the rapid growth in environmental protection, companies inside a coal supply chain, such as steel companies, are keenly seeking novel approaches beneficial for green manufacturing (Yin et al., 2020). Coal's primary gas emissions, such as CO2, SO2, NOX, and smoke dust, can contribute to global warming, damaging the ozone layer and creating acid rain (Manisalidis et al., 2020). Both coal burning and mining leave overburdened pollution in water and air resources. Hence, researching the ecological consequences of coal production and consumption is a prominent topic (Mann and Spath, 2001). In this topic, researchers agree that pricing emissions of carbon are the low-cost and most effective method for improving the sustainability of supply chain (Environment and Climate Change Canada, 2018). The significant policies for carbon pricing in the literature are carbon tax, carbon cap, carbon trade, and carbon offset (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020). Regarding sustainability and economic issues, the outputs of carbon policies in supply chain are unequal.

Supply chains are the operational sequence of interconnected procedures that manage, plan, and control goods and services between buyers and vendors (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2020). Besides the monetary costs of a coal supply chain, for instance, miners, washing factories, shippers, and power plants/steel producers, there are other charges known as "hidden costs" associated with environmental influences and emissions. Both costs should be considered in the entire operational costs of the coal supply chain (Phillips, 2008). Any manufacturing process that reduces "hidden costs," for instance, environmental effects, is recognized as a sustainable procedure. To a greater extent, sustainability in the supply chain of coal is complicated because it faces further consequences, for instance, social and ethical hazards (Naderi et al., 2021a). An example of Iranian coal supply chain with 4-item and five buyers are presented in Fig. 5.1.



Fig.5.1. An example of Iranian coal SC with 4-item and five buyers (with distance and available budgets)

Growing pressure from external shareholders to sustain company processes has fostered businesses to focus on their environmental effects and promise to implement sustainability measures in the future (Qu et al., 2019; Liu et al., 2021). Sustainable supply chain management considers social, environmental, and financial costs locally, nationally, and worldwide (Asadi and Sadjadi, 2017; Bui et al., 2020; Mangla et al., 2017). More precisely, sustainable supply chain management must be expressed to fulfill the necessities of the existing generation of businesses without failing the capability of forthcoming generations (for example, Industry 4.0) to accomplish their needs (Jabbour et al., 2020). The specialists in the multi-tier manufacturing supply chain have recognized that managing the first-tier suppliers' sustainability is insufficient to reach a sustainable performance in the whole supply chain (Sharma et al., 2021). It needs careful consideration by all practitioners in a supply chain. The integration of three sustainability aspects, for instance, economic, ecological, and social factors of a system, can be reached by applying exergy analysis (Jawad and JaberNuwayhid, 2018; Dincer and Rosen, 2012). An innovative approach that can support a supply chain to be more sustainable is Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) (Aghbashlo et al., 2018). This method integrates the effect of non-energetic manufacturing features into the complete loss assessment (Jawad and JaberNuwayhid, 2018; Sciubba, 2011). The primary benefit of employing the EEA method in the production system is that this method states all outcomes in Joules (instead of dollars); therefore, acceptable assessments among various products can be achieved (Naderi et al., 2021b; Jawad and JaberNuwayhid, 2018).

The functioning of the entire coal supply chain is one of the critical interests of the concerned participants (Mehmood et al., 2015). As society increasingly recognizes the value of the environment, waste disposal and carbon emission must become two of the leading indicators of coal supply chain assessment. Additionally, employing different carbon pricing strategies result

in various costs and carbon reductions in supply chain. Moreover, as we will see in the literature review section, the number of publications employing the EEA method is insufficient. Additionally, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no study considers carbon reduction policies with the EEA method (or exergy analysis) at the same time in a coal supply chain. Therefore, we can present three main research questions as follows.

Q1. Does incorporating a carbon reduction strategy with the EEA method in coal supply chain trigger financial benefits and sustainability advantages?

Q2. The coal supply chain in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary objectives, does this assumption remain accurate?

Q3. Which percentage set of exergy components (social, economic, and environmental characteristics) creates the lowest total exergy of supply chain? which country has more sustainable conditions for coal supply chain?

5.2. Literature review

In view of the fact that in the literature, no publication considers the EEA method (or exergy analysis) simultaneously with carbon reduction policies in coal supply chain, in this section, we focus on recent publications related to exergy analysis and the EEA method.

5.2.1. Exergy analysis

Discovering a similarity between the thermal and production procedure is a new idea that inspired some researchers to merge the notions of the first and second laws of thermodynamics with the inventory model (Jawad et al., 2015). Exergy analysis can facilitate finding an organization's wastefulness (Koroneos and Tsarouhis, 2012). It has been broadly exploited through various manufacturing and industrial companies, for example, food (Apaiah et al., 2006), aluminum (Balomenos et al., 2011), cement (Madlool et al., 2012), recycling of metal (Amini et al., 2007), management of waste (Gaudreau et al., 2009), and manufacturing (Gutowski et al., 2009). The name "exergy" was initially suggested by Rant (1956), even though other investigators had previously outlined similar meanings. Some academics like Jaber et al. (2004, 2006, 2009), Jaber and Rosen (2008), Apaiah et al. (2006), and Geldermann et al. (2006) have employed entropy methods, exergy analysis and information theory to explain chaos when modeling the performance of productive systems/processes. Moreover, employing exergy analysis in a simple economic order quantity (EOQ) model was done by Jaber et al. (2011) and Santhi and Karthikeyan (2015), respectively. Additionally, Jaber and Jawad (2015) used the second law of thermodynamics to estimate the entropy created in economic production quantity (EPQ) and Just-in-Time (JIT) systems. To calculate the costs of disorder (entropic), the authors incorporated an entropic part to the cost functions of the model. The outcomes revealed that a JIT strategy is more costly than an EPQ policy.

Furthermore, Jaber et al., (2017) established the conventional models of the economical manufacture quantity (EMQ) and JIT by covering other topics like transportation, defective products, work associated with stress/fatigue, pollution costs, and greenhouse gases (GHG) from

transport and manufacture systems. They suggested that JIT experiences lowered costs than the EMQ model when correlated stress and entropy costs were not calculated. Afterward, Jawad et al. (2018) examined the most prominent issues that can affect the entire cost of a supply chain, for instance, emissions, labor, energy (from manufacture and shipping), social effects of shipping, and entropy. The authors accepted that a two-stage supply chain (producer-buyer) is comparable to a thermal system of two heat pumps connected in sequence. They established an exergy cost function (mega-joules; MJ per year) and optimized utilized exergy as a part of sustainable development with two approaches: conventional (Hill's) and the consignment stock methods. They showed that optimizing the exergy cost function escalates the money to society for a slight extra rise in cost on the supply chain. Naderi et al. (2021a) offered a mathematical model for increasing sustainability concerning the cost of exergy demolition (entropy) for a coal supply chain in Iran. The authors applied exergy analysis for a model that involves economic and wasted exergy costs. Their results indicated that the suggested method delivers saving in the consumed exergy by allowing an additional financial cost.

5.2.2. EEA method

Regarding the EEA method, to the best of the authors' knowledge, few studies employed this method for inventory management or supply chain. The method of EEA introduced by Sciubba (2001) includes energy and raw material with other non-energetic manufacturing aspects like the costs of financial, labor, and environmental remediation. For example, Dai et al. (2012) employed the EEA method to investigate a group of social-economic utilization systems in China and explain the connection among different divisions through a thermodynamic metric. Moreover, Jawad et al. (2015) estimated the exergy costs using the EEA method under the EOQ inventory model. They used an exergetic model to find the order quantities for companies in Germany, the USA, and China. The outcomes presented that the order quantity is not equal for the three companies since the corresponding exergy of financial, labor, and environmental remediation expenses are not similar in each country. Later, Jawad et al. (2016) reviewed the economic production quantity (EPQ) model to indicate sustainability requirements. They applied the laws of thermodynamics, combined with the EEA method, to determine the sustainability of a production-inventory system and realized that sustainability could be beneficial in some circumstances. Recently, Naderi et al. (2021b) provided an analysis of exergy to develop and evaluate the utilized exergy designed for a sustainable food supply chain. Their model concerns with divergent economic, environmental, and social functions in choosing the further sustainable supply chain to make and deliver items. They employed a hybrid metaheuristic algorithm on simulated annealing (SA) and GA to solve the model.

To learn more about exergy and the EEA method, concerned scholars may suggest Ehyaei et al. (2019), Arango-Miranda et al. (2018), and Dincer and Rosen (2012). In addition, a review of research works of exergy analysis and the EEA method, along with our proposed model, is offered in Table 5.1. Traditional inventory models do not reflect inventory systems' unseen (indirect) costs. In fact, in earlier research, the cost meaning is workflow-associated cost aspects. It is limited to finding a study that evaluates the supply chain in terms of Joules (rather than conventional monetary objectives) and simultaneously assesses all sustainability features, for example, economic, labour, and environmental. There is an absence of analysis to find the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental aspects) in the EEA method for a supply

chain. Additionally, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no exergy analysis approach like the EEA in the literature consider carbon tax strategy in supply chain. Moreover, there is an absence of studies that evaluate the sustainability of coal supply chains in developed and developing countries with carbon tax strategy in terms of Joules. Lastly, there is a lack of research in the literature that evaluates the supply chain under a carbon tax strategy with vague parameters such as buyer demand.

Hence, to improve sustainability, this study considers all three hidden costs (labor, money, and ecological remediation costs) using the EEA technique integrated with carbon reduction policy (carbon tax) for a coal supply chain in Iran while utilizing Joules as a universal unit of measure (rather than monetary values). In terms of modeling, this research considers the studies of Jawad et al. (2015) and Naderi et al. (2021a) and, more precisely, develops it to a multi-item multiconstraint multi-buyer EOQ model in coal supply chain in Iran under uncertainty condition. This supply chain has a single vendor and multi-buyer (SVMB) that coordinate with the VMI approach and considers inventory stockout as a backorder. Additionally, a penalty cost for imperfect quality items disposal to the environment is considered to make the model green. Four metaheuristic algorithms, including GA, ACO, SA, and the whale optimization algorithm (WOA), are suggested to acquire a near-optimum solution of the developed exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer programming (EFNIP). In our models, we consider different objectives simultaneously, such as the costs of the inventory system, an additional budget of each buyer, the cost of poor-quality items disposal to the environment, and carbon emission related to all processes of coal supply chain. Moreover, we employ the EEA method to convert the traditional monetary costs of our models to the exergetic values of coal supply chain (values in Mega-Joules; MJ) for capital, labor, and environment. We are looking to get the optimum value of three decision variables, such as the amount of required loan (more budget) for each buyer (B_i^-) , order quantity of each item for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and amount of backorder of each item for each buyer (b_{ii}) . A real case study in a coal supply chain in Iran and eight arbitrary numerical examples with various numbers of items were offered. After that, for validation of the results by all metaheuristic algorithms, they are compared with the exact model (GAMS). In the last part, a sensitivity analysis was done to reach a win-win financial and sustainability advantages situation for the coal enterprises with the lowest total exergy and carbon emission. It includes different percentages for exergy costs in coal supply chain of five countries: Iran, Afghanistan, Turkey, Germany, and Canada. Therefore, the main contributions of this research are as follows:

- Developing the sustainability of coal supply chains in terms of Joules under carbon tax strategy and the ambiguous environment by using the EEA method.
- Evaluating the sustainability of coal supply chains in five countries to find out which country has the most sustainable coal supply chain in terms of Joules.
- > Obtaining the best value of exergy components for coal supply chain in five countries.

The rest of the manuscript is defined in this way. In Section 5.3, the problem is outlined, the suppositions are stated, and the model is mathematically expressed into a fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming model (non-exergy model) under two carbon emission policies. In Section 5.4, the non-exergy models are converted to the exergy equivalents using the EEA method. The suggested metaheuristic algorithms are presented in Section 5.5 to solve the problem. To reveal the relevance of the proposed solution method, computational test problems and sensitivity
analysis of exergy values for five countries are recommended in Section 5.6. Conclusions and forthcoming studies are offered in Section 5.7.

Table 5.1. A review of research works in exergy analysis of supply chain

Tuble 5.1. Michie	in orresearch works in exergy analysis of suppry	chall												
Authors	Objective	Single objective /multi	Solving Methods	Validation	Compare SCs	Inventory model	EEA method	Emission policy	Over-budgeting	Uncertainty	Shortage	VMI strategy	Waste disposal	Multi-buyer
Naderi et al. (2021a)	Provide a mathematical model for improving coal SC sustainability while minimizing the cost of exergy destruction (entropy) in SC	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Naderi et al. (2021b)	Provide an exergy analysis to model and minimize the consumed exergy for sustainable SC	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	Branch & bound	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Jawad et al. (2018)	Minimize the total cost of the developed SC model while focusing on the pillars of sustainable developments.	Single	Exact method	N/A	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Banasik et al. (2017a)	Develop a mathematical model for quantitative assessment of alternative production options that are associated with different ways to deal with waste in food SCs	Multi	Exact method	N/A	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Banasik et al. (2017b)	Quantify trade-offs between economic and environmental indicators and explore quantitatively alternative recycling technologies	Multi	Exact method	N/A	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Jawad et al. (2016)	Re-examines the economic production quantity (EPQ) model to reflect the needs of sustainability by using EEA and the laws of thermodynamics.	Single	Exact method (EPQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Jawad et al. (2015)	Use an exergy model to determine the EOQ inventory policies for three firms operating in the USA, Germany, and China.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No

Santhi and Karthikeyan (2015)	Determine the cycle length and the replenishment order quantity of an EOQ model to maximize the profit.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No
Jaber et al. (2009)	A mathematical model to determine batch sizes for deteriorating items while minimizing the entropy of the EOQ model.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No							
Jaber and Rosen (2008)	Improve production system performance by applying thermodynamics' first and second laws to reduce system entropy (or disorder).	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	No	Yes	No							
Jaber (2007)	Estimate the hidden costs of the EOQ model by applying the first and second laws of thermodynamics to reduce system entropy (or disorder) at a cost.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No							
Proposed model	Optimize the sustainability of coal SC in five countries with the integration of the EEA method and carbon tax policy	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	GAMS	Yes									

5.3. Problem explanation and model formulation

5.3.1. Problem description

The warehouse is vital for every company because it is a safe place for their stock. Although inventory is one of the most significant precious possessions, managing it generates a load of defective quality materials and carbon emission, which is discarded into the environment. Moving on the green with implementing sustainable inventory management methods will benefit both the environment and the enterprise. In other words, adding sustainability to the inventory management of a supply chain leads to a decrease in both the social and ecological consequences of a business with no critical impact on profitability. Based on Section 2, this study is focused on an SVMB coal supply chain in Iran with multiple items and poor-quality operating under the EOQ model. The objective function is optimizing the total exergy of coal supply chain (in terms of Joules instead of money) by incorporating the EEA method and different carbon emission policies. To bring this sustainable exergy model to realworld problems, we consider some realistic assumptions such as waste (imperfect quality items) disposal to the environment, uncertainty in buyer's demand, vendor's sales capacity, vendor managed inventory (VMI) contract between supplier and buyers. Moreover, the constraints include the storage space, the over-budgeting of each buyer, the boundary on the orders of all buyers, the total number of orders, and the vendor's sales capacity.

5.3.2. Assumptions

Regarding the purpose of this study to improve the sustainability of coal supply chain by integrating carbon policies and the EEA method, we consider the succeeding suppositions for the mathematical preparation. More sophisticated assumptions are considered for future research in Section 7.

(a) A coal supply chain includes a single vendor (supplier), multi-buyer (steel companies) by n items (different grades of coal)

(b) EOQ model is considered for the inventory model of coal supply chain (production rate is infinite).

(c) lead time for purchased items is presumed zero.

(d) Inventory stockout is permitted (as a backorder) for all items, while the linear backorder cost per unit per time unit is recognized for all items, and the time-independent fixed backorder cost per unit is presumed zero for all items.

(e) The price for the entire item is stable in the scheduling cycle

- (f) Discount by quantity is not permitted
- (g) The vendor pays the transportation cost
- (h) Buyer's demand for all items is indistinct (triangular fuzzy number)
- (i) The ordering and holding costs, as well as emission tax, are known
- (j) The buyer's storage space capacity is limited

(k) The total available budget of each buyer is limited, but the over-budgeting is permitted with some additional costs

(1) The vendor's sales capacity of all items is restricted, but it is indistinct (triangular fuzzy number)

(m) The number of all orders by all buyers is limited

(n) The buyer's order amount of an item is restricted (a lower and a higher limit due to transportation capacity)

(o) All processes in coal supply chain include mining (vendor), transportation, and using coal in the steel company (buyers), producing carbon emission and waste (imperfect quality items) disposal to the environment

(p) Distance between vendor and all buyers is fixed and known. The railway system does the transportation of all orders.

5.3.3. Notations

The symbols, parameters and decision variables of the supply chain model are presented as follows.

5.3.3.1. Parameters

i: Index of items (coal); (i = 1, 2, ..., n)

j: Index of buyers; (j = 1, 2, ..., m)

 D_{ij} : Demand rate of coal *i* for buyer *j*

 V_i : Lower limit of transportation capacity on the order amount of item i

 W_i : Upper limit of transportation capacity on the order amount of item i

G: Maximum sales capacity of the vendor on the total order amount of all items

N: Maximum total number of orders by all buyers

 C_i : Purchasing price per unit of item i

 C_{tax} : Emission tax of each unit of carbon produced by different supply chain processes

Cwaste: Cost of waste (imperfect quality items) produced by different supply chain processes

 B_i : Total available budget of all items for buyer j

 int^- : The interest rate of the required loan for buyer j

 $A_{i,s}$: Vendor's stable ordering cost per unit of item *i*

 $A_{ij,t}$: Stable shipping cost per unit of item *i* for buyer *j*, which is paid by the vendor (VMI contract)

 $A_{ii,b}$: Stable ordering cost per unit of item *i* for buyer *j*

 h_{ij} : Stock keeping cost per unit of item *i* at the warehouse of buyer *j* in a period

 s_1 : The cost of backordering a unit for one year (time-independent)

 s_2 : Linear backorder cost per unit per time unit

- F_i : Available storage capacity of buyer *j* for all items
- L_i : Distance between vendor and buyer *j* (km)
- f_m : Emissions factor of mining (ton/unit)
- f_t : Emissions factor of transportation (ton/unit)
- f_k : Emissions factor of furnace in steel manufacturer (ton/unit)
- α : Proportion of imperfect quality items in the mining process
- β : Proportion of poor-quality items in the transportation process
- γ : Proportion of defective quality items in steel manufacturer

5.3.3.2. Decision variables

 Q_{ij} : Order quantity of item *i* for buyer *j*

 b_{ij} : Backorder amount of coal *i* for buyer *j* in a cycle

 B_i^- : Total required loan for buyer j

The following subsections will develop a non-exergy mathematical model of the coal supply chain for carbon tax policy (subsection 5.3.4). Then the model is converted to an exergy fuzzy model (subsection 5.3.5).

5.3.4. A non-exergy Modeling of coal supply chain with carbon tax policy

5.3.4.1. Objective function

In the model under carbon tax policy, four objectives are defined. First, the total inventory cost of coal supply chain (TC_1) includes the ordering (TO_{ij}) , holding (TH_{ij}) , backorder (TS_{ij}) , purchasing (TP_{ij}) , and transportation (TT_{ij}) costs (Syntetos, 2014; Pasandideh et al., 2010, 2011; Razmi et al., 2010) as

$$TC_1 = TO_{ij} + TH_{ij} + TS_{ij} + TP_{ij} + TT_{ij}$$
 (5.1)

Where,

n m

$$TO_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{i,s} + A_{ij,b})$$
(5.2)

$$TH_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij}} (Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij})^2$$
(5.3)

$$TS_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left(\frac{s_1 \cdot b_{ij}^2}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_2 \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \right)$$
(5.4)

$$TP_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_i D_{ij}$$
(5.5)

$$TT_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{ij,t})$$
(5.6)

Where (D_{ij}, Q_{ij}, h_{ij}) are the demand rate of coal *i* for buyer *j*, order quantity of item *i* for buyer *j* and holding cost per unit of coal *i* for buyer *j*, respectively. Second, the total cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers. In our model, the over-achievement budget (B_j^-) is considered the cost. It means the buyer should get a loan (B_j^-) as a decision variable) with an interest rate of (int^-) . In this case, the buyer should pay this loan and the corresponding interest rate $(B_j^- + [int^- \times B_j^-])$ after the end of the year. Consequently, the whole cost related to the budget of all buyers (TC_2) is

$$TC_2 = \sum_{j}^{m} \left[B_j^- + \left(int^- \times B_j^- \right) \right]$$
(5.7)

Third, to make the model green, we consider that all coal supply chain processes produced some imperfect quality items such as coal refuse, coal waste, and coal tailings to be discarded into the environment. This waste has a total penalty cost as

$$TC_{3} = C_{waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \alpha) \cdot \beta \right) + \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \alpha) \cdot (1 - \beta) \cdot \gamma \right) \right]$$
(5.8)

Where (α, β, γ) are the proportions of imperfect quality items in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Moreover, C_{waste} is the unit cost of imperfect quality items produced by different supply chain processes. The carbon tax strategy is a tax cost on carbon discharges (Wesseh and Lin, 2018). The government charges a carbon tax (C_{tax}) on each carbon unit produced by coal supply chain companies. Hence, the entire cost of a coal supply chain includes the emission cost, whereas there is an adjustment regulation between the process cost and the tax cost of emission there. It means coal companies should stabilize the process and the emission costs consistent with various carbon tax amounts to optimize the entire cost (Li et al. 2020). Hence, the fourth objective of the model is created as

$$TC_{4} = C_{tax} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[(Q_{ij}.f_{m}) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}}.L_{j}.f_{t}\right) + (Q_{ij}.D_{ij}.f_{k}) \right]$$
(5.9)

Where (f_m, f_t, f_k) are emissions factors in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Moreover, L_j is the distance between the coal vendor and buyer *j*. Eq. (5.9) is the summation of produced carbon in mining, transportation, and steelmaking processes. So, the combination of the above four objectives $(TC_{tax} = TC_1 + TC_2 + TC_3 + TC_4)$ makes the non-exergy total cost of coal supply chain under emission tax policy.

5.3.4.2. The limitations

As revealed earlier, a real-world VMI contract includes the vendor and all the buyers in the coal supply chain. This type of VMI contract accepting a limitation for the available budget of each buyer (B_i) and consider related costs for this issue as follows:

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \sum_{i=1}^{n} C_{i} Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) \le B_{j} + (B_{j}^{-})$$
(5.10)

Where (C_i) is purchasing price per unit of item *i*. Eq. (10) demonstrates that if the total paid out money of a buyer is greater than the available budget $(\sum_{i}^{n} C_i, Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) > B_j)$, then the buyer needs to get a loan with the amount of $(B_j^- > 0)$. This amount (B_j^-) is not determined before since it is a decision variable in the model, and in Eq. (5.7), the total cost related to this constraint is formulated. Moreover, the storage capacity of each buyer (F_j) is constrained (Cárdenas-Barrón et al. 2012),

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \sum_{i=1}^{n} (Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij}) \le F_j$$
(5.11)

Where (b_{ij}) is the backorder amount of coal *i* for buyer *j* in a cycle (a decision variable). Furthermore, the railway transportation system among the vendor and buyers has some limitations in capacity. So, the Min. (V_i) and Max. (W_i) of the transportation capacity for each order quantity (Q_{ij}) are

$$V_i \le Q_{ij} \le W_i \tag{5.12}$$

In addition, the vendor has a limitation for its total sales capacity (G), which is as follows:

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} \le G \tag{5.13}$$

Likewise, there is a constraint on the total number of orders (N) by all buyers:

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \le N \tag{5.14}$$

Lastly, the j^{th} buyer's highest amount of backorder of an item i in a cycle should be fewer than or equal to its lot size (Q_{ij}) . Therefore

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij} \tag{5.15}$$

It should be stated that for simplifying the mathematical model, we ignore the cost of purchasing (Eq. 5.5) since it does not affect order quantity (Q_{ij}) in the model. With regards to Eqs. (5.1)-(5.15), the model of "multi-item" SVMB EOQ with the VMI strategy under carbon tax policy can be easily obtained as

$$TC_{tax} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{i,s} + A_{ij,b}) + \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij}} (Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) - b_{ij})^{2} + \left(\frac{s_{1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_{2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \right) \right. \\ \left. + \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{ij,t}) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} [B_{j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times B_{j}^{-})] \\ \left. + C_{waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} [(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha) + (Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \alpha) \cdot \beta) + (Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) \cdot (1 - \beta) \cdot \gamma)] \right. \\ \left. + C_{tax} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[(Q_{ij} \cdot f_{m}) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_{j} \cdot f_{t} \right) + (Q_{ij} \cdot D_{ij} \cdot f_{k}) \right]$$

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} C_{i} Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) \leq B_{j} + (B_{j}^{-})$$

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} (Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij}) \leq F_{j}$$

$$V_{i} \leq Q_{ij} \leq W_{i}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} \leq G$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \leq N$$

$$b_{ij} \leq Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \geq 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$B_{j}^{-} \geq 0, \qquad (5.16)$$

In this non-exergy sustainable model under carbon tax policy, we have three decision variables, for example, the amount of required loan (additional budget) for each buyer (B_j^-) , order quantity of each item for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and amount of backorder of each item for each buyer (b_{ij}) . In the following subsection, we will consider uncertainty to the non-exergy model in Eq. (5.16).

5.3.5. The inventory model in fuzzy environment

Stochastic modeling methods can solve the inventory model if adequate chronological data exists for ambiguous factors (Aka and Akyüz, 2021). Despite this, it is problematic to have actual and exact random distributions because of the deficiency of chronological data on the coal supply chain in Iran. In the real coal supply chain business world, the market environments

are full of uncertainties in a non-stochastic sense (Panja and Mondal 2019). Therefore, the inventory model's critical and unrealistic supposition is that the entire inventory settings operate in a deterministic and definite situation. Uncertainties within the supply chain system, including inflexible sources, the uncertainty of demand, and imprecise predictions, always exist, heading unavoidably to backorders and consequently reducing "customer satisfaction" (Diabat and Al-Salem 2015). One of the successful techniques to diminish these weaknesses is employing "fuzzy set theory (FST)," which is established by Zadeh (1965), creating workable methods to convert "ill-defined" data to mathematical terminologies.

Consequently, the problem investigated in this paper is a fuzzy SVMB multi-item coal supply chain. In this problem, the demands of each buyer and the vendor sales capacity are not well-defined values and are considered imprecise. However, the outcomes must be appropriate for top management in the real business world to determine and apply the consequent responses from fuzzy supply chain. Hence, defuzzification is compulsory (Shekarian et al., 2017). One of the most extensively used techniques is entitled "the linear ranking function method" (the first index) suggested by Yager (1979,1981), which is utilized in this research. The following subsection explains this technique concisely.

5.3.5.1. The linear ranking function method (the first index)

Consider a widespread problem in which its "objective coefficients" and "resources" are fuzzy and stated as follows.

$$\begin{array}{l} \operatorname{Min} f(z) = \tilde{e}^{T} z \\ s.t. \quad A_{j} z \leq \tilde{b}_{j}, \quad j = 1, 2, 3, ..., n \\ z \geq 0, \end{array}$$

$$(5.17)$$

While the sign '~' denotes the fuzziness of the factor, b_j is the restricted resources, z is a vector of the n-dimensional solution, and the quantity of limitations is n. Supposing "triangular fuzzy numbers" for the coefficient matrix \tilde{e} , and the vectors on the right-hand side of the restrictions \tilde{b}_j , i.e., $\tilde{e}^T = (e_L, e, e_R)$, $\tilde{b} = (b_L, b, b_R)$, the model characterized in (5.17) is converted into its crisp corresponding equation as (Yager 1979,1981):

$$Min f(z) = \left(e + \frac{d(R_e) - d(L_e)}{3}\right).z$$

s.t. $A_j z \le \left(b_j + \frac{d(R_b) - d(L_b)}{3}\right), \quad j = 1, 2, 3, ..., n$
 $z \ge 0,$ (5.18)

Whereas, for example, for the "triangular fuzzy number" pivotal point *e*, lateral margins (left and right, respectively) are indicated by $d(L_e) = e - e_L$, and $d(R_e) = e_R - e$ (see Fig. 5.2). Therefore, in this study, the buyers' demand (\widetilde{D}_{ij}) and vendor's sales capacity (\widetilde{G}) are considered fuzzy triangular numbers, i.e. $\widetilde{D}_{ij} = (D_{ij,L}, D_{ij,R})$, and $\widetilde{G} = (G_L, G, G_R)$.



Fig.5.2. Representation of a triangular fuzzy number (TFN)

5.4. Exergy Modeling of fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal supply chain under VMI

The previous section presents a fuzzy monetary sustainable model (minimum Dollar or Euro) for a coal supply chain under a carbon tax strategy. In this section, we employ the EEA method and then convert the monetary model (Eq. 5.16) to the equivalent exergy models.

5.4.1. Extended exergy accounting (EEA)

Exergy analysis involves the management of energy and mass theories with the second law of thermodynamics to draw, estimate, and enhance different energy transfer schemes (Naderi et al., 2021b). Consequently, this analysis can support a system to be more sustainable by reducing the exergy losses happening in energy changeover procedures (Aghbashlo et al., 2018). The EEA, over traditional exergy analysis, has the advantage of connecting the technical production process of specific commodities as well as production processes with their embedded system, such as social system and surrounding environment (Song et al., 2019). Therefore, EEA can facilitate an understanding of the environmental costs from a comprehensive and multidimensional perspective, which bridges the gap about the 'production of value' and distinguishes most economics and biophysical-based methods (Dai et al., 2012). To date, it has been widely accepted as a comprehensive metric that accounts for both physical and monetary costs associated with primary resource consumption. As a result, the EEA refers to a broad "value measure" for "environmental cost formation" in terms of investments and losses of the complex system of society-economy-environment comprising Material (M) and Energy (E) resources, the labor force (L), and capital (Cap), in addition to environmental remediation costs (*Env.*). It can be stated as (Jawad et al., 2015; Dai et al., 2012)

$$EEA = ee_M + ee_E + ee_{Cap} + ee_L + ee_{Env}$$
(5.19)

Where $(ee_M + ee_E)$ are the exergy of raw materials and energy flows used in producing a product, respectively. The summation of these two exergies $(ee_M + ee_E)$ could be calculated by converting the summation of purchasing costs $(\sum_i^n \sum_j^m C_i D_{ij})$ in the inventory model to the exergy equivalents (Jawad et al., 2015). As mentioned in subsection 5.3.4.2, for simplifying the mathematical model, we ignore the purchasing costs (and therefore exergy equivalents: $ee_M + ee_E$) since it does not affect the model's order quantity (Q_{ij}) . All inventory-related costs should be transformed into corresponding exergy amounts to employ the EEA method in an inventory model. The purchasing (C), ordering (A), and keeping (h) costs can be categorized into the summation of three exergy amounts of capital, labor, and environment $(ee_{Cap,i} + ee_{L,i} + ee_{Env,i})$, respectively (Jawad et al. 2018),

$$ee_{Cap,i} = i_{Cap} \times ee_{Cap} \tag{5.20}$$

$$ee_{Li} = i_L \times ee_L/Labor \ cost$$
 (5.21)

$$ee_{Env,i} = i_{Env} \times ee_{Env} \tag{5}$$

where i = A, C, or h are calculated in J/order, J/unit, and J/unit/year, correspondingly. Furthermore (Jawad et al. 2015, 2018; Sciubba 2011),

22)

$$ee_{Cap} = \alpha_x \cdot \beta_x \left(\frac{Ex_{in}}{M_2}\right) \tag{5.23}$$

$$ee_L = \frac{\alpha_x \cdot Ex_{in}}{(NWH)_{total}}$$
(5.24)

Where (ee_{Cap}, ee_L) are the specific exergy equivalent of one monetary unit $(\pounds, \$, \pounds, \$)$ and the unit equivalent exergy of labor, respectively. Moreover, (Ex_{in}) is the total incoming exergy fluctuation (J/yr), can be determined based on the energy budget of the country under study. Regarding Eq. (5.22) for the exergy environment aspect, we follow the method of Chen and Chen (2009), who considered $(ee_{Env} = ee_{Cap})$. Therefore, Eq. (5.22) is changed to $(ee_{Env,i} = i_{Env} \times ee_{Cap})$. It includes any cost paid to get labor, capital, material, and other items used to reduce the damaging environmental effect of producing a product, operating a supply chain, or providing some other service (Jawad et al., 2015).

Now considering Eqs. (5.20)-(5.22), one can calculate the three exergetic values of capital, labor, and environment $(ee_{Cap,i} + ee_{L,i} + ee_{Env,i})$ related to achieving the order cost $A_{(x)}$. Consistent with Sciubba (2011), the EEA method estimates the exergy corresponding to Labour, Money, and Ecological remediation in an item or service by factors of " α_x " and " β_x " along with a few economic quantities as GDP. Such features are vastly guided by labor indicators, population, standard workload, and local and international income. The stated features and exergy counterparts were considered and computed by Sciubba (2011) for several industrial and non-industrial countries.

5.4.2. Applying EEA to fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal supply chain under VMI

Under the carbon tax policy, the exergy equivalent of the total cost is $(TC_{(x)tax} = TC_{(x)1} + TC_{(x)2} + TC_{(x)3} + TC_{(x)4})$. This equivalent can be done with the following formulas (Jawad et al. 2015)

$$A_{(x)i,s} = \left(ee_{Cap,A(i,s)} + ee_{L,A(i,s)} + ee_{Env,A(i,s)}\right)$$
(5.25)

$$A_{(x)ij,b} = \left(ee_{Cap,A(ij,b)} + ee_{L,A(ij,b)} + ee_{Env,A(ij,b)}\right)$$
(5.26)

$$h_{(x)ij} = \left(ee_{Cap,h(ij)} + ee_{L,h(ij)} + ee_{Env,h(ij)}\right)$$
(5.27)

$$s_{(x)1} = s_1 \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{5.28}$$

$$s_{(x)2} = s_2 \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{5.29}$$

$$C_{(x)i} = \left(ee_{Cap,C(i)} + ee_{L,C(i)} + ee_{Env,C(i)}\right)$$
(5.30)

$$A_{(x)ij,t} = A_{ij,t} \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{5.31}$$

$$C_{(x)tax} = C_{tax} \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{5.32}$$

$$C_{(x)waste} = C_{waste} \times (ee_{Cap})$$
(5.33)

$$B_{(x)j} = B_j \times (ee_{Cap}) \tag{5.34}$$

As a result, by employing the above formulas to the objective functions and limitations of the model in Eq. (5.16), it is converted to a fuzzy exergy model under carbon tax policy as follows:

$$\begin{aligned} TC_{(x)tax} &= \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \left(A_{(x)i,s} + A_{(x)ij,b} \right) + \frac{h_{(x)ij}}{2Q_{ij}} \left(Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij} \right)^{2} \right. \\ &+ \left(\frac{s_{(x)1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_{(x)2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \right) + \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \left(A_{(x)ij,t} \right) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} \left[B_{(x)j}^{-} + \left(int^{-} \times B_{(x)j}^{-} \right) \right] \\ &+ C_{(x)waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1-\alpha) \cdot \beta \right) + \left(Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) \cdot (1-\beta) \cdot \gamma \right) \right] \\ &+ C_{(x)tax} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot f_{m} \right) + \left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_{j} \cdot f_{t} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}} \cdot f_{k} \right) \right] \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{split} \sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} C_{(x)i} Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) &\leq B_{(x)j} + \left(B_{(x)j}^{-}\right) \\ \sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij}\right) &\leq F_{j} \\ V_{i} &\leq Q_{ij} \leq W_{i} \\ \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} &\leq \tilde{G} \\ \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{\widetilde{D}_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} &\leq N \\ b_{ij} &\leq Q_{ij} \\ Q_{ij} &> 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n \\ b_{ij} &\geq 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m \\ B_{(x)j}^{-} &\geq 0, \end{split}$$

In the following section, we suggest four metaheuristic algorithms to solve the fuzzy exergy models in Eq. (5.35) under the EEA technique.

(5.35)

5.5. Solution method

Achieving an "analytical solution" (if any) to the model in Eq. (5.35) is challenging since the model is "nonlinear integer-programming (NIP)" in type, and it is "NP-complete" (Diabat, 2014; Gen and Cheng, 1997; Peng et al., 1998). Put differently, the decision variables are integer, the objective function has a non-derivative arrangement, and exact approaches are overcharged to be applied (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014). There are three solution search procedures for optimization models such as exact (complete), heuristic, and metaheuristic (random) search algorithms (Shokouhifar and Jalali, 2017). "Exact" techniques and problemsolver tools like LINGO, CPLEX, and GAMS are unproductive on real-size problems regarding needed CPU time (Diabat, 2014; Zahedi et al., 2016). Moreover, even though "heuristics" are not hard to apply and quick in computation time, they do not efficiently examine the search space (Naderi et al., 2021b). To get the maximum accurate outcomes in terms of precision, "metaheuristics" should be employed (Stojanovic et al., 2017). Many academics have effectively manipulated metaheuristic approaches, for example, ant colony optimization (ACO), genetic algorithm (GA), imperialist competitive algorithm (ICA), differential evolution (DE), simulated annealing (SA), particle swarm optimization (PSO) to solve complex optimization models in several areas of engineering, and science subjects (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2017a, 2017b). The type of problem is essential for choosing a good metaheuristic algorithm (Blum et al., 2011). Single-solution algorithms (e.g., SA) exhibit good local search capability, while population-based metaheuristics (e.g., GA) have superior global search capability (Shokouhifar and Jalali, 2017). Therefore, population-based metaheuristics are mostly chosen the others and prove more significant accomplishments in certain circumstances. ACO is among the superior approaches for near optimization manipulated to cope with various models in real-life situations (Gupta and Srivastava, 2020; Guan et al., 2021; Dzalbs and Kalganova, 2020). Besides, GA has confirmed its higher functioning than other metaheuristics for supply chain optimization problems (Saif-Eddine et al., 2019; Saghaeeian and Ramezanian, 2018; Woo and Kim, 2019; Rostami et al., 2020). Hence, we consider four metaheuristic algorithms, including GA, ACO, and SA, as well as a newly suggested algorithm by Mirjalili and Lewis (2016), which is named whale optimization algorithm (WOA) to solve the "exergy fuzzy NIP (EFNIP) problem" modeled in Eq. (5.35). In the following subsections, short explanations primarily supported four metaheuristic algorithms. Afterward, the phases concerned in the proposed solutions are described.

5.5.1. Genetic algorithm (GA)

A genetic algorithm (GA) is an "evolutionary algorithm" created on natural choice and genetics. Holland (1975) proposed GA, and later Goldberg (1989) explained it in detail. GA is universally applied to calculate superior-quality solutions in problem optimization (Poongothai et al., 2021; Rong et al., 2015; Shi, 2014). The authors recommend (Rostamzadeh et al., 2015, Pasandideh et al., 2011; Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014, 2015; Popovic et al., 2014) for the GA algorithm.

5.5.2. The "ant colony optimization (ACO)" algorithm

The ACO algorithm is a metaheuristic algorithm created on "swarm intelligence" (Eberhart and Shi 2000; Van den Bergh 2002) which was first utilized by "Dorigo" in the late 1980s to solve discrete optimization problems (see, for example, Colorni et al., 1991;1992;1994). ACO is the most common optimization algorithm (Gupta and Srivastava 2020; Dorigo and Stutzle 2004). It is established on the performance of ants obtaining food. Ants leave pheromone as they walk and discover their path by walking accompanied by the pheromone evidence. The extent of pheromone accumulation intensifies as ants walk back to the source point with food. Pheromone accumulation on the way back depends on the condition

and amount of food brought to the source. Pheromone accumulation /disappearance is precisely associated with the number of ants going on that route. Ants discover the optimal route by tracking the highest pheromone accumulation (De Santis et al., 2018; Booba and Gopal, 2013). The authors refer readers to (Dorigo and Stutzle, 2004; Colorni et al., 1994; Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014) for more detailed facts about the ACO algorithm.

5.5.3. The whale optimization algorithm (WOA)

A recent swarm intelligence optimization algorithm is the whale optimization algorithm (WOA), suggested by Mirjalili and Lewis (2016). This algorithm is created on the specific hunting technique of humpback whales. The method is named bubble-net attacking since whales make unique bubbles near a loop (Goldbogen et al., 2013). Their hunting method has three steps exploring prey, decreasing encircling, and spiral updating place (Mirjalili and Lewis, 2016; Wang et al., 2021; Chen et al., 2020; Lee and Lu, 2020). The WOA has a straightforward principle, operation, and uncomplicated employment since it has few parameters while powerful robustness. Therefore, the WOA algorithm has obtained broad consideration and has gained significant study outcomes (Du et al. 2021; Zhang et al. 2021b; Long et al., 2020). The critical advantage of WOA is that it demands no added tuning parameters to achieve stability in its exploration combined with exploitation (Aala Kalananda and Komanapalli 2021).

5.5.4. The solution processes

The main phases in the recommended solution process of this study are as follows:

Phase 1: Obtain the fuzzy total exergy of the SVMB-VMI coal supply chain of the model in Eq. (5.35) under emission tax policy by each metaheuristic algorithm independently.

Phase 2: Get the superior algorithm for each numerical example.

Phase 3: Find the exact solution of the problem modeled in Eq. (5.35) by GAMS and compare them with metaheuristic ones.

Phase 4: A sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs in five countries.

An illustration of the chromosomes related to the order quantity and backorder amount of a numerical example (with one vendor and five buyers, which have four items) is offered in Fig. 5.3.

Q_{i1} :	1605		130	8	12	23	1	298
Q _{i2} :	1228		125	0	12	.02	1	250
<i>Q_{i3}</i> :	1249)	121	0	12	49	1	210
<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>4} :	1209)	123	5	12	.09	1	235
<i>Q_{i5}:</i>	1296		121	6	1296		1	216
<i>b</i> _{<i>i</i>1} :	196		199	1	96	19	9	
<i>b</i> _{<i>i</i>2} :	191		195	1	91	19	5	
<i>b</i> _{<i>i</i>3} :	184		196	1	84	16	8	
<i>b</i> _{<i>i</i>4} :	177		146	1'	77	14	6	
<i>b</i> _{<i>i</i>5} :	181		167	1	81	16	7	

Fig.5.3. The demonstration of the chromosomes for the test with four items and five buyers

5.6. Numerical examples

This section gives computational tests, including one real-world coal supply chain case study in Iran and eight related arbitrary cases. We are looking to optimize sustainability in coal supply chain by considering the indirect (hidden) costs, including all three factors simultaneously (using the EEA method) under the carbon tax strategy.

5.6.1 Case study in Iran

The real-world case study includes one vendor and five coal buyers in a supply chain in Iran. Tabas Parvadeh Coal Company (TPCCO), located in Tabas city, is the biggest coal producer in Iran. Consistent with the statistics published by the Iranian Mines and Mining Industries Development and Renovation Organization (IMIDRO), TPCCO extracted 1.232 million tons of coal from March 21, 2019, to January 20, 2020). With about 1.15 billion tons of reserves, Iranian coal mines can deliver up to three million tons of coal concentrate yearly (IEA, clean coal centre, 2020). From another point of view, the production of Steel in Iran is highly reliant on coal since metallurgical coal, or coking coal is an essential component in the steel-making procedure. TPCCO produces four types (grades) of coal, and the company has five key customers (steel producers). These customers are in different cities in Iran, and the public rail transport system does the transportation of order quantities between TPCCO and them. Since the demand of each steel producer (buyer) for each type of coal, as well as the total sales capacity of TPCCO (as a vendor), are not defined precisely, we consider them as triangular fuzzy numbers (see Table 5.2). Moreover, the initial data of the test problem and its equivalent exergy parameters are presented in Tables (5.3)-(5.6), respectively. These input data taken from the Iranian Mines and Mining Industries Development and Renovation Organization (IMIDRO), Sciubba (2011) and Naderi et al. (2021a). For this real case study in Iran, consistent with the informed rates in Sciubba (2011), we take equivalent exergy parameters of Egypt due to the resemblances between Iran and Egypt regarding economic development, population, religion, and culture.

According to Jawad et al. (2015), and after discussing with supply chain directors of TPCCO, it was supposed that each cost $A_{i,S}$, $A_{i,i,b}$, $h_{i,i}$ and C_i could be split to Cap=30% for money, L=60% for labor, and Env.=10% for ecological remediation. In Section 5.4, we described the method of EEA and related formulas that we applied to our models. For example, in Table 5.3, the cost of $A_{i,s}$ is assumed $\notin 20$ for the first item, which includes $\notin 6$ (20 × 0.30), €12 (20 × 0.60), and €2 (20 × 0.10) (monetary values) for capital (*Cap*=30%), labor (*L*=60%), and environmental (Env.=10%) remediation. Moreover, these three monetary numbers are to the exergy values based on Eqs. (5.20)-(5.22), and converted we have $ee_{L,A} = 12 \times \frac{3.56}{12} = 3.56(MJ)$ $ee_{Cap,A} = 6 \times 5.68 = 34.08$ (MJ), and $ee_{Env,A} = 2 \times 5.68 = 11.36$ (MJ), whereas in total $A_{(x)i,S} = 49$ (MJ) in Table 5.6. To show better the performance of our suggested metaheuristic algorithms in solving big-size problems, besides the actual case study, we considered eight arbitrary test problems related to coal supply chain in Iran. These examples have 8 to 1024 types of coal in a supply chain with one vendor and five buyers, like the first case study. The whole initial data of these numerical examples are presented in Appendix Tables (5.A.1)-(5.A.4), respectively. Moreover, all the numerical examples are solved on a PC with an Intel Core i7-7500U CPU with 2.70GHz, and 8.00 GB RAM in Windows 10. "MATLAB" 2017a software is also employed for coding all the algorithms.

Table 5.2: Fuzzy parameters of all buyers for all items in the real case study (example with four items)

Buyer	Item 1	Item 2	Item 3	Item 4
ñ.	(330000, 340000,	(140000, 150000,	(80000,	(20000, 30000,
D_{l1}	380000)	190000)	90000,130000)	70000)
ñ	(185000, 190000,	(105000, 110000,	(65000, 70000,	(5000, 10000,
D_{l2}	225000)	145000)	105000)	45000)
$\widetilde{D_{a}}$	(137000, 140000,	(87000 90000 123000)	(47000 50000 83000)	(7000, 10000,
D_{13}	173000)	(07000, 90000, 120000)	(17000,20000,02000)	43000)
$\widetilde{D_{\iota 4}}$	(90000, 95000, 115000)	(80000, 85000, 105000)	(30000, 35000, 55000)	(0, 5000, 25000)
$\widetilde{D_{\iota 5}}$	(75000, 78000, 87000)	(65000, 68000, 77000)	(15000, 18000, 27000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
$\tilde{G} = (3$	5000,40000,60000)			

Table 5.3: Initial data of the real case study based on capital, labor, and environment values (example with four items)

	Itom	value	Init	Mone	etary v	alues
	nem	value	Unit	Cap.	L.	Env.
$A_{i,S}$	1	20	Euro/order	6	12	2
	2	20		6	12	2
	3	20		6	12	2
	4	20		6	12	2
$A_{ij,b}$	1	15	Euro/order	4.5	9	1.5
	2	15		4.5	9	1.5
	3	15		4.5	9	1.5
	4	15		4.5	9	1.5
C_i	1	200	Euro/unit	60	120	20
	2	170		51	102	17
	3	140		42	84	14

	4	100		30	60	10
h _{ij}	1	5	Euro/unit/year	1.5	3	0.5
	2	4		1.2	2.4	0.4
	3	3		0.9	1.8	0.3
	4	3		0.9	1.8	0.3

Table 5.4: Initial data of the real case study (example with four items)

$A_{ij,t} = 10$	$C_{tax} = 200; C_{waste} = 10$
$L_i = (655, 1160, 705, 1128, 1067)$	$s_1 = 3, s_2 = 0$
$B_i = (840000, 830000, 820000, 810000, 800000)$) $int^{-}=0.05, int^{+}=0.02$
$F_j = (9600, 9500, 9400, 9300, 9200)$	$f_m = 3.18 \times 10^{-3}$
N = 1400	$f_t = 1.4 \times 10^{-5}$
$\alpha = 0.1; \ \beta = 0.1; \ \gamma = 0.1$	$f_k = 5 \times 10^{-5}$
$V_i = 1200; W_i = 2500$	

Table 5.5: The exergy parameters used in the inventory analysis of each country (Sciubba, 2011)

	Unit	Iran	Afghanistan	Turkey	Germany	Canada
α_x	-	0.0121	0.0017	0.411	0.557	0.021
β_x	-	2.94	0.07	1.35	1.31	1.95
ee _{Cap}	MJ/€	5.68	1.1	20.51	3.16	3.13
eeL	MJ/WH	3.56	0.41	91.36	68.25	68.61

Table 5.6: 1	Equivalent exerg	v parameters of	'Iran's real cas	se study (exai	nple with four items)

Labor cost = $12(E/WH)$	$A_{(x)ij,b} = (30.73, 30.73, 30.73, 30.73)$
$C_{(x)tax} = 1136$	$A_{(x)ij,t} = (85.20)$
$C_{(x)waste} = 56.80$	$h_{(x)ij} = (12.25, 9.80, 7.36, 7.35)$
$s_{(x)1} = 17.04; \ s_{(x)2} = 0$	$C_{(x)i} = (490, 416.50, 343, 245)$
$A_{(x)i,S} = (49, 49, 49, 49)$	$B_{(x)j} = (4771200, 4714400, 4657600, 4600800, 4544000)$

5.6.2 Solving phases and related results

Based on subsection 5.4., the results of each phase of solving procedure for all test problems are presented here.

5.6.2.1. *Phase 1:* For an assumed numerical example, independently find the lowest fuzzy total exergy in Eq. (5.35) under emission tax policies by each metaheuristic algorithm.

Each solution algorithm is performed ten times in this phase for each fuzzy exergy numerical example in Iran. Correspondingly, the lowest fuzzy total exergy and the CPU times (seconds) under the emission tax policy (Eq. 35) are detailed in Tables 5.7 and 5.8, respectively.

5.6.2.2. *Phase 2:* Find each test problem's superior individual metaheuristic algorithm under the emission tax policy. The most exemplary metaheuristic algorithm is observed by revealing the proportion distinction between the outcomes.

Under the emission tax policy, we optimize four objectives simultaneously: the total inventory cost, the total cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, the penalty cost of coal waste dumping to the environment, and the total carbon generated by coal supply chain. Using the EEA method, we altered all model economic parameters (Euro) to equivalent exergy values (MJ). Consequently, regarded as four fuzzy exergy objective functions of this model, GA has the lowest fuzzy total exergy in numerical examples of 4-, 32-

, 64- & 128-item (from 2,103,423.54 to 68,268,875.27 MJ). Moreover, WOA is the best algorithm in examples 16-, 256- & 512-item (see Table 5.7). Finally, ACO is superior to other algorithms in examples 8- & 1024-item (4,013,395.32, and 518,222,683.09 MJ). SA has the highest fuzzy total exergy results in all test problems in the same pattern. The percentage difference between the top two algorithms in all numerical examples is less than 1.5% which means their results are close. An evaluation of algorithms in terms of the fuzzy total exergy under emission tax is presented in Fig. 5.4 for our big-size numerical examples (256-, 512- & 1024-items). Likewise, in terms of the computational time (sec.), SA has the shortest CPU time tracked by WOA, GA, and ACO (see Table 5.8 and Fig. 5.5). Furthermore, there is an increasing trend in the improvement percentage of CPU time of the best algorithms with increasing the size of numerical examples (see Fig. 5.6).



Fig.5.4. The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) comparisons of algorithms for numerical examples (Phase 2)



Fig.5.5. The CPU time (second) comparisons of algorithms for numerical examples (Phase 2)



Fig.5.6. The improvement (%) of CPU time between top two algorithms (Phase 2)

No. of items	WOA	Fuzzy total GA	exergy (MJ) ACO	SA	The best algorithms	Difference between two bests	Improvement %
4	2,124,316.51	2,103,423.54	2,149,239.07	2,229,865.34	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	20,892.97	0.99
8	4,018,749.66	4,024,539.99	4,013,395.32	4,484,607.78	ACO-WOA-GA-SA	5,354.34	0.13
16	8,022,249.53	8,111,533.36	8,028,403.95	9,268,720.34	WOA-ACO-GA-SA	6,154.42	0.08
32	17,614,298.66	17,360,279.60	17,771,544.19	18,561,033.21	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	254,019.06	1.46
64	35,155,787.91	34,664,673.10	36,043,124.05	37,192,458.33	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	491,114.81	1.42
128	68,875,447.15	68,268,875.27	69,455,453.56	76,802,024.78	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	606,571.88	0.89
256	137,679,030.04	137,723,302.18	139,170,388.10	152,060,059.56	WOA-GA-ACO-SA	44,272.14	0.03
512	275,080,936.61	275,221,821.44	277,971,334.66	307,251,073.62	WOA-GA-ACO-SA	140,884.83	0.05
1024	519,346,028.93	547,658,039.42	518,222,683.09	618,273,942.66	ACO-WOA-GA-SA	1,123,345.84	0.22
Exact m	ethod's result (4 iter	$ms) = 2,06\overline{3,660.06}$ (M	MJ); Difference with	GA=39,763.48; % I	Error=1.92		

Table 5.7: The fuzzy total exergy found by the algorithms (Eq. 5.35) in Iran

Table 5.8: The CPU times of solving test problems by the algorithms (Eq. 5.35) in Iran

No. of — items	WOA	CPU time GA	CPU time (second)GAACOSA		The best algorithms	Difference between two bests	Improvement %
4	0.159	0.212	0.129	0.019	SA-ACO-WOA-GA	0.11	593.28
8	0.200	0.306	0.199	0.021	SA-ACO-WOA-GA	0.18	865.94
16	0.331	0.313	0.326	0.026	SA-GA-ACO-WOA	0.29	1121.92
32	0.486	0.480	0.375	0.029	SA-ACO-GA-WOA	0.35	1173.23
64	0.762	0.720	0.652	0.035	SA-ACO-GA-WOA	0.62	1750.68
128	1.464	1.312	1.302	0.055	SA-ACO-GA-WOA	1.25	2252.62
256	2.164	2.387	2.421	0.082	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	2.08	2542.30
512	3.885	4.076	5.333	0.156	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	3.73	2387.74
1024	7.451	7.874	9.669	0.234	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	7.22	3079.42
Exact meth	od's result (4 iter	ns) = 4.186 Sec.; Dif	ference with GA=3.9	7 Sec.; % Error=	1876.30		

5.6.2.3. Phase 3: Find the "exact" results and compare them with metaheuristic ones.

To develop a good knowledge and understanding of the solution obtained through the suggested algorithms, a solution may be contrasted with an "exact method." This "exact result" can be achieved through exact optimizer software such as "GAMS" or an optimization library in "Python." In this study, the proposed mathematical model (Eq. 5.35) under emission tax policy is solved in small sizes (example with four items) by GAMS. A comparison with the best metaheuristic algorithm is made.

For the 4-item numerical example under emission tax policy and Eq. (5.35), the exact result for the fuzzy total exergy is 2,063,660.06 (MJ), while the outcome of the best metaheuristic algorithm (GA) for this example is 2,149,239.07 (MJ). Consequently, the difference between them is 39,763.48 (MJ), and the percentage penalty or error is 1.92%. Because the percentage penalty is minor, indicating the fair dominance of the solutions obtained through the best-suggested algorithm (Cárdenas-Barrón et al., 2012), as it is remarkably close to the exact method (see Table 5.7 and Fig. 5.7). Considering computation time, the difference between the exact method and GA is 3.97 (Sec.), while the percentage penalty is 1876.30%. Similarly, it means the metaheuristic algorithm (GA) solved the tax policy model more quickly (see Table 5.8 and Fig. 5.8). Moreover, the diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms are presented in Fig. 5.9.



Fig.5.7. Comparison of the fuzzy total exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm

(Phase 3)



Fig.5.8. Comparison of CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm (Phase 3)



Fig.5.9. The diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms (Phases 2 & 3)

5.6.2.4. *Phase 4:* A sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy cost components in five countries.

In this phase, we balance financial and sustainable benefits for coal supply chain enterprises. As our proposed models are sustainable, we are looking to adjust the exergy percentage for capital, labor, and environmental remediation by a sensitivity analysis to decrease the fuzzy total exergy and carbon emission more than before. Moreover, to get more insight into this issue, we compare the sensitivity analysis of coal supply chain in Iran with two neighboring countries (Afghanistan and Turkey) and two developed countries such as Germany and Canada. We assume the same coal supply chain and items for all five countries. Previous step assumed that each cost $A_{i,S}$, $A_{ij,b}$, h_{ij} and C_i could be allocated to Cap=30% for money, L=60% for labor, and Env=10% for ecological remediation (consider it as Set A). Now, in this step to get more insight, we have changed these percentages to make five different exergy sets (see Table 5.9), including A (30-60-10), B (50-30-20), C (20-50-30), D (30-20-50), and E (3333-33). Considering each exergy set, we obtained the fuzzy total exergy for a 4-item test problem under the carbon tax policy for coal supply chain in each country using the GAMS. Moreover, the exergy parameters of five countries are presented in Table 5.5, and all sensitivity results are presented in Table 5.9. In the following, we explain the results in detail.



Fig.5.10. Sensitivity analysis - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy of each country (Phase 4)

5.6.2.4.1 Analysis of each country

Considering Table 5.9 and Fig. 5.10, for coal supply chain in each country, we have:

- Afghanistan: in this country, the top exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) since more exergy weight is assigned for Labor (60%) and less for Environment (10%). It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 1,504,757.85 (MJ) for coal supply chain. Furthermore, the worst exergy components in Afghanistan are Set E (33-33-33) when the same weights (33%) are assigned to Capital, Labor, and Environment with 1,540,156.67 (MJ).
- Canada: The best exergy components are Set D (30-20-50) when Environment has 50% weight, going along with Capital (30%) and Labor (20%), respectively. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 2,055,844.41 (MJ) for Canada. Similarly, the weakest exergy components are Set C (20-50-30) when more exergy weight is supposed for Labor (50%), which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 4,606,446.58 (MJ).
- Germany: Like Canada, the best exergy components in Germany are Set D (30-20-50), when 50% of weight is assigned to Environment. It produced the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 2,109,044.72 (MJ) for coal supply chain. Moreover, the unhealthiest exergy components are Set C (20-50-30) when 50% weight is assigned to Labor, which made the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 4,492,797.20 (MJ).
- Iran: The top exergy components are Set A (30-60-10), as Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It made the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 2,110,974.62 (MJ). The weakest exergy components in Iran are Set D (30-20-50), when 50% weight is allocated to Environment, which created the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 2,274,445.14 (MJ).

- Turkey: Like Iran, the best exergy components in Turkey are Set A (30-60-10), while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%). It established the least amount of fuzzy total exergy with 4,351,316.03 (MJ) for coal supply chain. Likewise, the worst exergy components are Set D (30-20-50) when more weight is provided to the Environment (50%), which generated the highest fuzzy total exergy of 4,780,003.95 (MJ).
- Respecting Table 5.9 and Fig. 5.10, the minimum total exergy (MJ) in coal supply chain of each country is as follow Afghanistan (1,504,757.85), Canada (2,055,844.41), Germany (2,109,044.72), Iran (2,110,974.62), and Turkey (4,351,316.03).
- Among all presented countries, the coal supply chain in Afghanistan has the lowest total exergy (1,504,757.85 MJ), followed by Canada, Germany, Iran, and Turkey, respectively (see Fig. 5.10).
- Moreover, coal supply chain in Turkey creates the highest total exergy under exergy Sets of B (50-30-20), D (30-20-50) and E (33-33-33), among other countries. Similarly, Canada, under exergy Sets of A (30-60-10) and C (20-50-30), forms the greatest total exergy in coal supply chain (see Table 5.9).

5.6.2.4.2 Analysis of each exergy set

Considering Table 5.9 and Fig. 5.11, for each exergy set, we have:

- Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): In this set, more weight is assigned to Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment. Although this set works well for coal supply chain in Afghanistan, with the minimum total exergy of 1,504,757.85 (MJ), Canada has 4,606,147.99 (MJ).
- Exergy Set B (50%-30%-20%): In this set, more weight is assumed for Capital (50%) along with Labor (30%) and Environment (20%), respectively. Regardless of coal supply chain in Turkey (4,654,099.79 MJ), exergy set B operates well in Afghanistan with 1,533,788.62 (MJ).
- Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this set, Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. Exergy set C performs well in coal supply chain in Afghanistan (1,533,954.88 MJ), even though in Canada, the total exergy is 4,606,446.58 (MJ).
- Exergy Set D (30%-20%-50%): In this set, Labor has only 20% while 50% is for Environment. Despite the high result in Turkey with 4,780,003.95 (MJ), exergy set D runs well in Afghanistan with 1,512,552.55 (MJ).
- Exergy Set E (33%-33%-33%): In this set, all three exergy components have equal 33% weight. Although exergy set E does not perform well in Turkey with 4,602,880.36 (MJ), it runs well in Afghanistan with 1,540,156.67 (MJ).
- Moreover, all exergy Sets (A-E) generated the minimum total exergy for coal supply chain in Afghanistan (see Fig. 5.11).



Fig.5.11. Sensitivity analysis - Min. and Max. of each exergy set (Phase 4)

%(Cap-L-Env.)			Min Country	May	Country					
		AF*	CA	GE	IR	TR	IVIIII.	min.	IVIAX.	max.
Set A	30-60-10	1,504,757.85	4,606,147.99	4,479,364.93	2,110,974.62	4,351,316.03	1,504,757.85	AF	4,606,147.99	CA
Set B	50-30-20	1,533,788.62	2,667,490.61	2,655,420.96	2,230,157.59	4,654,099.79	1,533,788.62	AF	4,654,099.79	TR
Set C	20-50-30	1,533,954.88	4,606,446.58	4,492,797.20	2,234,708.24	4,412,490.90	1,533,954.88	AF	4,606,446.58	CA
Set D	30-20-50	1,512,552.55	2,055,844.41	2,109,044.72	2,274,445.14	4,780,003.95	1,512,552.55	AF	4,780,003.95	TR
Set E	33-33-33	1,540,156.67	3,007,167.24	2,928,353.16	2,220,750.94	4,602,880.36	1,540,156.67	AF	4,602,880.36	TR
Balanced	Min.	1,504,757.85	2,055,844.41	2,109,044.72	2,110,974.62	4,351,316.03	Min. Min.		Max. Max.	
point	Set min	Α	D	D	Α	Α	1,504,757.85	AF	4,780,003.95	TR
	Max.	1,540,156.67	4,606,446.58	4,492,797.20	2,274,445.14	4,780,003.95	Set A		Set D	
	Set max	Ε	С	С	D	D				
*AF: Afgha	*AF: Afghanistan, CA: Canada, GE: Germany, IR: Iran, TR: Turkey									

 Table 5.9: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs in five countries (example with four items)

5.7. Conclusions and future research works

Classical models do not consider inventory systems' unseen (indirect) costs. In fact, in earlier research, the meaning of the cost is workflow-associated cost aspects, and it is limited to finding a study that evaluates the supply chain in terms of Joules (rather than conventional monetary objectives) and, at the same time, assesses all sustainability features, for example, economic, labour, and environmental. Moreover, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no exergy analysis approach like the EEA in the literature take into account the carbon tax strategy in supply chain. With increasing awareness of global warming and environmental issues, problems such as carbon emission and imperfect quality items discarded to the environment related to coal mining and steel manufacturing have become crucial indicators of coal supply chain evaluation. Moreover, there is a lack of research in the literature that evaluates the supply chain under a carbon tax strategy with vague parameters such as buyer demand. Finally, there is an absence of studies that evaluate the sustainability of coal supply chains in developed and developing countries with a carbon tax strategy in terms of Joules.

Hence, this research considers the studies of Jawad et al. (2015) and Naderi et al. (2021a) and, more precisely, develops it into a multi-item multi-constraint multi-buyer EOQ model in coal supply chain under uncertainty conditions. This supply chain has a single vendor and multi-buyer (SVMB) that coordinate with the VMI approach and considers inventory stockout as a backorder. Additionally, to make the model green, a penalty cost for imperfect quality items disposal to the environment is considered. By employing the EEA method and Mega-Joules (*MJ*) as a universal unit of measure, the total exergy of the coal supply chain can be calculated. Additionally, a carbon tax is utilized to assess the sustainability performance of coal supply chain. Four metaheuristic algorithms were suggested to solve the model, including GA, ACO, SA, and WOA, and their results were compared with the exact method, like GAMS. In the last part, a sensitivity analysis with different exergy values (for Capital, Labor, and Environment) was done to find the best exergy set for coal supply chain in five countries, including Iran, Afghanistan, Turkey, Germany, and Canada.

In this study, we presented three research questions (in Section 5.1) and attempted to answer them.

Q1. Does incorporating a carbon tax strategy with the EEA method in coal supply chain trigger financial benefits and sustainability advantages?

In subsection 5.3.4, we developed a non-exergy mathematical model of the coal supply chain for carbon tax strategy. Then the model has converted to a fuzzy model in subsection 5.3.5, and finally, a recent supply chain assessment method entitled the EEA (regarding Joules) was used in section 4. This technique covers energy and material's primary aggregate exergy subject and costs related to monetary externality (labor and capital) and environmental externality (environmental aspects). Consequently, this technique could promote both the financial system and the environment. Four famous metaheuristic algorithms (WOA, GA, ACO, and SA) are employed to solve the exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer programming (EFNIP) problem modelled in Eq. (5.35). Concerning this model, and the results in subsection 6.2 for all test problems (from 4-item to 512-item), GA and WOA are the top two algorithms with the lowest fuzzy total exergy except for test problem 1024-item, which ACO is superior. When comparing the results with the exact method (GAMS), there is a small percentage error (1.92%) between them. Therefore, it could validate the results of metaheuristic algorithms in this study. The percentage penalty in CPU

running time between the exact method and suggested metaheuristic algorithms is high while solving the model by the metaheuristic algorithm (GA) is faster.

Q2. The coal supply chain in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary objectives, does this assumption remain accurate?

Considering the sensitivity analysis in subsection 5.6.2.4, we evaluated the sustainability of coal supply chain in five countries, such as Iran, Afghanistan, Turkey, Germany, and Canada (see Table 5.9). Subject to the findings, coal supply chains in Canada and Germany have better sustainability performance in Joules than Iran and Turkey. For example, the lowest total exergy of a coal supply chain in Canada and Germany are 2,055,844.41 and 2,109,044.72 (MJ), respectively, while in Iran and Turkey, they are 2,110,974.62 and 4,351,316.03 (MJ), respectively. The explanation is that conventional supply chain evaluation techniques consider monetary measures while the technique of EEA reflects all three characteristics of sustainability (Labour, Money, and Environmental remediation) in goods or services. Furthermore, in our study, there is one exceptional country; the coal supply chain in Afghanistan has far better sustainability performance than all countries, with the lowest total exergy equal to 1,504,757.85 (MJ). The reason behind this outstanding result is that the exergy parameters of Capital ($ee_{Cap} = 1.1$, MJ/Euro) and Labour ($ee_L = 0.41$, MJ/WH) in Afghanistan are less than other countries in this study (see Table 5.5).

Q3. Which percentage set of exergy components (social, economic, and environmental characteristics) creates the lowest total exergy of supply chain? which country has more sustainable conditions for coal supply chain?

Regarding subsection 5.6.2.4 and Table 5.9, it is examined that with carbon tax strategy, exergy Set A (30-60-10) that is assigned more weight (60%) on Labor and less (10%) on Environment could create the lowest fuzzy total exergy in coal supply chain of the countries such as Afghanistan, Iran, and Turkey. Moreover, exergy Set D (30-20-50), which is given more weight (50%) to Environment, followed by 30% to Capital and only 20% to Labor, could form the lowest fuzzy total exergy in Canada and Germany. As mentioned in the previous answer, with 1,504,757.85 (MJ), Afghanistan has the finest sustainable coal supply chain among all countries in this study, followed by Canada, Germany, and Iran with 2,055,844.41; 2,109,044.72 and 2,110,974.62 (MJ), respectively. Among all countries in this study, the weakest sustainability condition (highest fuzzy total exergy) for coal supply chain belongs to Turkey, with 4,351,316.03 (MJ).

In contrast to the conventional financial and commercial models, the outcomes of our analysis propose that even though we supposed that the factors of inventory models are unchanged for the five coal supply chains, sustainability improvement could be achieved because of the adjustments among exergy's inflows/outflows in the five countries. It means no fixed exergy components amount creates the highest sustainability in all countries. For example, based on our results in Table 5.9, considering more weight (50%) to Environment and only 20% to Labor as set D (30-20-50) creates the maximum sustainability for coal supply chain in Canada and Germany (with 2,055,844.41 and 2,109,044.72 MJ) and at the same time the weakest sustainability for Iran and Turkey (with 2,110,974.62 and 4,351,316.03 MJ).

Another point is that, for developed countries like Canada and Germany, improving the sustainability of coal supply chain in terms of Joules takes place when more weight is given to the

exergy of the Environment (for example, 50% in Set D) and less on exergy of Labour. In contrast, more emphasis on the exergy of Labor and less on the Environment (for example, Labor=60%, Environment=10% in Set A) for developing countries creates sustainability improvement. Therefore, decision-makers in coal supply chain could realize that adjusting which sustainability aspect (Capital, Labor and Environment) is more important in each country.

Regarding Table 5.9, on the one hand, the sustainability performance of coal supply chain in Afghanistan is 36.62% better than in Canada. Afghanistan has the best sustainability condition for coal supply chain with only 1,504,757.85 (MJ). Considering Table 5.5, one can conclude that all exergy parameters in Afghanistan, such as $(ee_{Cap}, ee_L, \alpha_x, \beta_x)$ are less than other countries. On the other hand, the mentioned exergy parameters (precisely ee_{Cap} , ee_L) in Turkey are higher than other countries, which creates the weakest sustainability condition. Therefore, these exergy parameters significantly impact the total exergy cost of coal supply chain in each country. Consequently, another way to improve the sustainability in each country is to find ways to decrease exergy parameters. If we look at Eqs. (5.23) and (5.24), exergy parameters of (ee_{Cap}, ee_L) are dependent on two econometric coefficients (α_x, β_x) as well as (Ex_{in}) . As mentioned in subsection 4.1, these are related to the type of societal organization, the historical period, the technological level, the pro-capital resource consumption, and the geographic location of the country they are (Sciubba, 2011). Adjusting (α_x , β_x , Ex_{in}), if possible, is a complicated mission that demands great attempts from all shareholders, governments, individuals, societies, business organisations, scientists, etc. For example, controlling the importing and exporting of goods from and to the country, extraction of ores and minerals placed within the control level of the society. Individuals, societies, and business organisations can support in this way by promoting locally made goods. This, also, can enhance the rate of labor force in the country by establishing more job opportunities (Jawad et al., 2018). Moreover, effective productivity (output per hour worked) growth can boost per capita GDP and income of a country. Interested readers are encouraged to study Sciubba (2011) for more information.

Moreover, looking at exergy equations in Section 4 (For example, Eqs. 5.25-5.34), all exergy parameters in Table 5.5 have a direct relation to the cost elements of the inventory models (such as ordering, purchasing, and holding), and accordingly highly impact on the total exergy functioning of a coal supply chain. Therefore, decreasing the cost elements of the inventory model in coal supply chain is another way to improve sustainability. For example, employing stock classification, shorter order cycles, supplier lead time reduction, eliminating obsolete inventory, apply a Just-in-Time inventory system, and monitor key performance indicators.

Top management in coal supply chains must reduce waste resources such as energy, labor, material, and pollution to diminish the negative impact on coal supply chain sustainability. Additionally, a coal supply chain may need to find the potential prospects to moderate its total exergy cost without losing its benefits or customers. From another point of view, these results may encourage the government to regulate sustainability policies better. It means reducing the negative impacts of economic growth without losing the speed of development (a win-win strategy).

The following topics for future research are suggested:

- (a) The multi-objective model can be considered.
- (b) Economic production quantity (EPQ) or a production system can be considered.
- (c) Lead times can be included.

(d) Quantity discounts in cost per unit of items can be permitted.

(e) Other emission gas such as SO2 and NOx could be considered.

(f) Other carbon policies like cap, trade or offset can be investigated.

(g) Fuzzy parameters can be considered as an Interval type 2.

(h) Multi-echelon supply chains such as single-buyer multi-supplier and multi-buyer multi-supplier supply chains can be investigated.

(i) Other new meta-heuristic algorithms such as sperm whale algorithm (SWA), sine cosine algorithm (SCA), moth-flame optimization algorithm (MFO), ant lion Optimizer (ALO), and differential evolution (DE) can also be used.

Postscripts:

This chapter considered carbon tax policy for coal SC to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting. In the next chapter, carbon trade policy will be applied to coal SC. Additionally, carbon cap and offset policies will be presented in Chapters 7 and 8, respectively as additional material.

Paper Appendix-Chapter 5

Table 5.A.1. Fuzz	y demands of all bu	vers for all items (a vendor and	five buyers)
		•/		

1 (330000, 340000, 380000) (15000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (75000, 78000, 115000) 2 (140000, 150000, 190000) (145000) (135000, 10000, 123000) (80000, 85000, (30000, 35000, 105000) (55000, 70000, 105000) (5000, 10000, 105000) (5000, 12000) 7 (80000, 130000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 12000) (15000, 12000) 8 (2000, 30000, 105000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 1000, 105000) (15000, 12000) (15000, 12000) 9 (330000, 30000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 10200, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 1050000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 10	Item (<i>i</i>)	D_{i1}	D_{i2}	D_{i3}	D_{i4}	D_{i5}
380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 2 (140000, 150000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 23000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 3 (80000, (65000, 70000, 40000, 130000) (5000, 10000, 70000) (7000, 10000, 70000) (7500, 15000, 83000) (7500, 78000, 83000) (7500, 78000, 83000) (7500, 78000, 83000) (7500, 78000, 8000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 190000, 145000) (75000, 78000, 173000) (75000, 78000, 190000, 190000) (85000, 70000, 145000) (75000, 78000, 123000) (75000, 78000, 1000, 10000, 190000, 145000) (8000, 85000, 10000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 10000, 10000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 10000, 10000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 10000, 10000, 105000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 10000, 10000, 105000, 10	1	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(137000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
2 (140000, 150000, 190000) (15000, 110000, (55000, 70000, 45000) (87000, 90000, 105000) (85000, 70000, (5000, 10000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 10000, 30000, 27000) (15000, 10000, 43000) (15000, 10000, (137000, 140000, 380000) (15000, 10000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 190000) (15000, 10000, 115000) (15000, 10000, 87000) (15000, 10000, (105000, 110000, 190000) (15000, 10000, 190000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 20000, 30000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 20000, 30000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 20000, 30000) (15000, 18000, 30000, 30000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 30000, 30000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 30000, 12000) (15000, 18000, 30000, 30000, 12000) (15000, 18000, 30000, 10000, 105000, 10000, 105000, 10000, 105000, 10000, 105000, 10000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 27000, 105000, 27000, 105000, 27000, 105000, 27000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 27000, 105000, 10		380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)
190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 3 (80000, (65000,70000, (47000,50000, (50000,12000, 105000) 4 (2000,3000, (5000,10000, (7000,10000, (0,5000,25000) (7500,78000, 5 (33000,340000, (18500,190000, (137000,140000, (9000,95000, (7500,78000, 6 (14000,150000, (105000,110000, (8700,9000, (3000) 77000) 7 (80000, (6500,7000, (47000,5000, (3000,3000, (15000,1800, 90000,130000, (15000,10000, (7000,1000, (3000,3000, (5000,7000, (47000,5000, (3000,3000, (5000,7800, 8 (20000,30000, (15000,19000, (137000,14000, (9000,9500, (7500,7800, 9 (33000,34000, (18500,19000, (13700,14000, (9000,9500, (15000,1800, 19 (4000,15000, (10500,1000, (7000,1000, (5000,7000, (3000,3500, (1500,1800, 19 (4000,15000, (15000,11000, (3700,9800,	2	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
3 (80000, 90000, 130000) (50000, 70000, 83000) (47000, 50000, 85000) (50000, 97000) (5000, 10000, 43000) (5000, 12000) (0, 3000, 90000, 12000) 5 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000) (137000, 140000, 137000) (0, 5000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 6 (140000, 150000, 190000) (15500, 70000, (15500, 70000, 90000, 130000) (15500, 70000, 105000, 90000, 130000) (15500, 70000, 105000, 90000, 130000, 105000, 38000) (15000, 19000, (10000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 19000, (137000, 140000, 38000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 7000, 1000) (15000, 8500, 1000, 10000) (15000, 8500, 1000, 10000) (15000, 1000, 10000) (15000, 18000, 10000) (15000, 18000, 10000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 10000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 18000, 1000) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) (15000, 1200) <td></td> <td>190000)</td> <td>145000)</td> <td>123000)</td> <td>105000)</td> <td>77000)</td>		190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
90000,130000) 165000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 4 (2000, 30000, (500, 10000, (7000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 5 (330000) 45000) (137000, 140000, (9000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 6 (14000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (8000, 85000, (65000, 6000, 90000, 130000) 145000) 123000 (3000, 3000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 30000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 5000, (3000, 3000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (7000) 8 (20000, 30000, (15000, 110000, (7000, 10000, (5000, 7000) 87000) 9 (33000, 34000, (18500, 19000, (137000, 14000, 90000, 35000, (5000, 8800, 190000 145000, (65000, 7000, (3000, 3500, (5000, 8800, 77000) 10 (14000, 150000, (15000, 110000, (7000, 10000, (3000, 3500, (5000, 12000) 11 (8000, 3000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (7000, 10000, <	3	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
4 (2000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 45000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 5000, 25000) 5 (33000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 113000) (137000, 140000, 87000) (90000, 95000, 87000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 6 (14000, 150000, 190000) (145000, 110000, 87000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, 45000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 27000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 7 (80000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, 45000, 10000, 380000) (15000, 10000, 25000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 25000, 87000) 9 (33000, 340000, 10000, 190000) (145000, 110000, 115000) (15000, 18000, 115000) 87000) 10 (14000, 150000, 145000, 10000) (137000, 140000, 105000) (0, 3000, 25000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 11 (80000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, 45000) (137000, 140000, 30000) (0, 3000, 25000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 12 (2000, 30000, 105000) (15000, 110000, 45000) (137000, 140000, 30000) (5000, 0000, 30000) (5000, 0000, 30000, 12000) (5000, 0000, 30000, 12000) (5000, 0000, 30000, 12000) (5000, 0000, 30000, 12000) (5000, 0000, 30000, 12000) (5000, 10000, 105000)		90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
70000) 45000) 43000) 5 (330000) (185000, 190000, 115000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, (80000, 85000, 190000) (65000, 68000, 190000) 6 (14000, 150000, 190000) (165000, 10000, (15000) (87000) (30000, 35000, 27000) 7 (80000, (2000, 30000, 30000, 30000, 330000) (15000, 10000, (5000, 10000, (13000, 140000, (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 145000) (30000, 25000, (137000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 380000) 9 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (145000) (137000, 140000, (137000, 115000) (80000, 85000, (5000, 68000, 19000) (5000, 68000, (15000) 10 (140000, 150000, (10500) (145000, 12200) (32000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (15000) 83000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, 12000) 11 (80000, (3000, 34000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (7500, 78000, 330000) (25000, 1000, 115000) (2000, 9000, 13000, 145000, 12000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000, 19000, 145000, 123000) (15000, 85000, (15000, 18000, 9000, 130000, 145000, 123000) (15000, 85000, (15000, 18000, 9000, 130000, 145000, 123000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000, 137000) (75000, 78000, 137000) 18	4	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
5 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 73000) (90000, 85000, 15000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 7 (80000, 90000, 130000) (105000, 110000, 105000) (37000, 90000, 30000, 30000, 70000) (15000, 13000, 105000) (15000, 13000, 90000, 130000) (05000, 70000, 45000) (37000, 10000, 30000, 30000, 70000) (0, 3000, 12000, 105000) (0, 3000, 12000, 70000) 8 (2000, 30000, 70000) (185000, 190000, 115000) (0, 3000, 25000, 70000) (75000, 78000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 77000) 9 (330000, 340000, 190000) (185000, 190000, 145000) (137000, 140000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, 27000) (5000, 68000, 12000) (5000, 18000, 27000) 11 (80000, 30000, 340000, 105000, (5000, 10000, 43000) (7000, 10000, 105000) (0, 3000, 27000) 12 (20000, 30000, 380000) (18500, 19000, 105000) (137000, 140000, 380000) (0, 3000, 12000) 13 (33000, 34000, 380000) (18500, 19000, 105000) (137000, 115000) 87000) 14 (140000, 15000, 14000, 130000) (165000, 70000, 45000) (30000, 35000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 380000) (3000, 35000, 105000) </td <td></td> <td>70000)</td> <td>45000)</td> <td>43000)</td> <td></td> <td></td>		70000)	45000)	43000)		
380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 6 (14000, 15000, (05700, 9000, (80000, 8500, (5600, 6800, 190000) 145000) 123000) 105000, (3000, 8500, (1500, 1800, 90000, 130000) 105000, 83000) 55000, 27000) 8 (2000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 9 (33000, 34000, (18500, 19000, (137000, 140000, (9000, 95000, (7500, 78000, 380000) 225000 173000) 115000) 87000) 10 (14000, 15000, (10500, 110000, (8700, 5000, 2000), (5000, 8500, 16000, 77000) 11 (80000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 47000, 5000, 5000, 25000), (15000, 18000, 77000) 12 (20000, 30000, (500, 10000, 47000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000), (7500, 78000, 13000) 135000, 19000, 1137000, 115000, 87000, 87000, 87000, 87000, 130000, 145000, 123000) 135000, 97000, 145000, 123000) 15000, 97000, 15000, 77000, 145000, 12300, 15000, 77000, 145000, 12300, 15000, 77000, 145000, 123000, 15000, 77000, 145000, 12300, 15000, 17000, 10000, 77000, 145000, 12300, 15000, 77000, 145000, 12300, 130000, 1050	5	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(137000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
6 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 55000, 35000, 105000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (7000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 105000) 8 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 70000, 0, 30000, 380000) (25000, 10000, 103000, 115000) (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 77000) 9 (330000, 340000, 104000, 150000, 104000, 150000, (18500, 19000), 105000, 115000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, (15000, 110000, 105000,		380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)
190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 7 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 8 (2000, 3000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (73000, 12000) 9 (330000, 340000, (18500, 190000, (13700, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 10 (14000, 150000, (10500, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 5000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 165000) 83000) 55000) 27000) (13000, 14000, (9000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 12 (2000, 3000, (18500, 19000, (13700, 14000, (9000, 9500, (75000, 7800, 13 (33000, 34000, (18500, 19000, (13700, 14000, (9000, 9500, (7500, 7800, 14 (140000, 15000, (10500, 11000, (700, 10000, (0, 5000,	6	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
7 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, 10000, 70000) (65000, 70000, 83000) (55000) 27000) 8 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 7000, 380000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 5000, 78000, 87000) 9 (33000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 145000) (137000, 140000, 123000) (65000, 78000, 87000) (65000, 78000, 77000) 10 (140000, 150000, 190000) (145000) 123000) 155000) 77000) 11 (8000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 19000, 105000) (7000, 10000, 70000) (15000, 18000, 9000, 13000) (15000, 19000, 103000, 105000) (7000, 10000, 70000) (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 9000, 95000, 70000) 13 (33000, 34000, 195000, (18500, 19000, (18500, 19000, 125000) (13700, 140000, 105000) (7500, 78000, 77000) 14 (140000, 15000, 190000) (15000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (55000) (75000, 78000, 15000) (75000, 78000, 15000) 15 (80000, (65000, 66000, 105000) (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (7500, 78000, 15000) (7500, 78000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 105000)		190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
90000,130000) 105000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 8 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 9 (330000, 34000), (18500, 19000), (137000, 14000), (90000, 9500), (75000, 78000, 10 (140000, 15000), (105000, 110000, (87000, 9000), (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 190000, 130000 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 13 (330000, 340000, (185000, 19000, (137000, 140000, (9000, 9500), (7500, 78000, 14 (140000, 15000, (10500, 11000, (8700, 9000), (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 190000) 145000) 123000 105000) 77000) 14 14 (140000, 15000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 1	7	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
8 (2000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (0, 3000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000) 45000) 43000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 10 (140000, 150000, (10500, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (5500, 68000, 190000) 145000) 123000 105000, 77000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 12000) 12 (2000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 13 (330000, 340000, (18500, 19000, (137000, 140000, (9000, 9500, (75000, 78000, 14 (14000, 15000, (10500, 110000, (8700, 9000, (3000, 35000, (5500, 16000, 190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000 155000) 16 (2000, 3000, (5000, 10000, (13700, 14000, (9000, 9500, (7500, 78000, 173000) 115000)		90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
70000 45000 45000 90000 145000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 15000 90000 145000 123000 105000 70000 190000 145000 123000 105000 30000 55000 70000 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000 45000 43000 43000 115000 87000 13 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (13700, 140000, (9000, 95000, (7500, 78000, 8700) 14 (14000, 15000, (10500, 110000, (87000, 9000), (30000, 3500), (15000, 18000, 9000) 15 (80000, (5500, 7000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 16 (20000, 30000, (55000, 10000, (7000, 140000, (9000, 95000, (7500, 78000, 8500) 17 (330000, 340000,	8	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
9 (330000, 340000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (9000, 95000, (75000, 78000), 19000) 10 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 105000) 83000) 25000) 27000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 105000) 83000) 25000) (75000, 78000, (0, 3000, 18000, 15000) 13 (330000, 340000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 190000) 115000) 87000) 14 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 9000), 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 15 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000) 145000) 123000) 105000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 38000, (55000, 78000, 138000) 16 (20000, 30000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (75000, 78000, 380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 17 (330000, 340000, (105000, 110000, (7000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (50000, 25000)) (75000, 78000, 190000, 105000) <td>0</td> <td>70000)</td> <td>45000)</td> <td>43000)</td> <td>(00000 05000</td> <td>(75000 70000</td>	0	70000)	45000)	43000)	(00000 05000	(75000 70000
380000) 225000) 173000) 113000) 87000) 10 (140000, 150000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, 77000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 5000), (30000, 35000, 27000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000 45000) 43000) (15000, 15000, 10200, 10300) (75000, 78000, 38000) (75000, 78000, 10300) 13 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 19000) 115000) 87000) 14 (140000, 150000, (10500, 110000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 105000) 77000) 15 (80000, (65000, 70000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000)) (75000, 78000, 10300) 16 (20000, 340000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000)) (75000, 78000, 10000, 113000) 17 (33000, 340000, (18500, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (75000, 78000, 19000) 18 (14000, 150000, (10500, 110000, (8700, 90000, (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 19000) 190000) 145000) 123000) 15000) 77000) 18 (140000, 150000, (10500,	9	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(13/000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
10 (140000, 150000, 16000, 110000, 123000) (87000, 90000, 105000, 77000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 105000) 27000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 77000) 13 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 19000) 135000) 87000) 14 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 19000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 15 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000), 105000) 77000) 16 16 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 50000, 25000)) (0, 3000, 12000) 77000) 16 (20000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (7000, 10000, (0, 50000, 25000)) (0, 3000, 18000, 9000), (15000, 18000, 90000, (13000), 15000) 77000) 19 (80000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000), (75000, 78000, 19000), 13000) 123000) 115000) 87000) 224000) 73000) 1150	10	380000)	225000)	1/3000)	115000)	8/000)
190000) 143000) 125000) 125000) 17000) 11 (80000, (65000, 70000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000,130000) 105000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 12 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 13 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 14 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, (87000, 90000, (80000, 85000, (5500, 7000) 190000) 145000 123000) 105000, (75000, 78000, 90000,130000 105000, (30000, 35000, (5500, 7000) (7000, 1000, 90000,130000, (5500, 7000, (47000, 5000, (3000, 35000, (5500, 7000) 16 (2000, 30000, (5500, 7000, (7000, 1000, (0, 5000, 2500) (7500, 78000, 17 (33000, 15000, (18500, 19000, (13700, 140000, (9000, 5500) (7500, 7800, 17 (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (300	10	(140000, 150000, 100000)	(105000, 110000, 145000)	(87000, 90000, 122000)	(80000, 85000, 105000)	(65000, 68000, 77000)
11 (80000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 115000, 100000, 100000, 10000, 10000, 100000, 10000, 10000, 10000, 10000, 10	11	(80000)	(65000, 70000)	(47000, 50000)	(20000, 25000)	(15000, 18000
12 (2000, 3000) (5000, 1000) (0, 5000, 2500) (0, 3000, 1200) 13 (33000, 34000) (18500) 19000) (13700, 14000) (9000, 9500) (7500, 7800) 14 (14000, 15000) (18500, 19000) (13700, 14000) (9000, 9500) (7500, 7800) 14 (14000, 15000) (10500) 173000) 115000) 87000) 15 (8000, (6500, 7000, (4700, 5000) (3000, 3500) (1500, 1800) 9000, 13000) 145000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 16 (2000, 3000, (500, 1000) (700, 1000, (0, 5000, 2500) (0, 3000, 1200) 70000) 45000 43000 115000 87000) 10500) 7000) 16 (2000, 3000, (18500, 19000, (13700, 14000, (9000, 9500, (7500, 7800, 70000) 45000 173000 115000 87000) 138000, (6500, 7800, 18 (14000, 15000, (16500, 7000, (4700, 5000, (3000, 3500, (5500, 1800, 90000, 130000)	11	(80000, 130000)	(03000, 70000, 105000)	(47000, 50000, 83000)	(50000, 55000, 55000, 55000)	(13000, 18000, 27000)
12 (2000) (5000) (5000) (10000) (10000) (1000) <td>12</td> <td>(2000, 130000)</td> <td>(5000, 10000)</td> <td>(7000, 10000)</td> <td>(0, 5000, 25000)</td> <td>(0, 3000, 12000)</td>	12	(2000, 130000)	(5000, 10000)	(7000, 10000)	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
13 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, (80000, 85000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 14 (140000, 150000, 190000) (165000, 110000, (145000) (87000, 90000, (87000, 90000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 15 (80000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 380000) (75000, 78000, 27000) 17 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 110000, 173000) (15000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (15000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 145000) (87000, 90000, (30000, 35000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 19 (80000, 90000, 130000) (55000, 70000, (47000, 50000, 30000, 20 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 27000) 20 (20000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 105000) (137000, 140000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 380000) 21 (330000, 340000, 105000, 105000) (185000, 190000, 105000) (137000, 140000, 105000) (75000, 78000, 105000) 22 (140000, 150000, 1	12	70000)	45000)	43000)	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 5000, 12000)
10 10000 12000 173000 115000 87000 14 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (105000, 110000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 10000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, (0, 3000, 25000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, (20000, 30000, 380000) (5000, 10000, (185000, 190000, 105000) (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 17 (330000, 340000, (185000, 110000, 190000) (185000, 190000, (105000, 110000, 190000) (15000, 18000, (105000, 110000, 105000) (75000, 78000, (15000, 18000, 105000) 18 (140000, 150000, (105000, 10000, 190000) (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 19 (80000, (30000, 340000, 380000) (5000, 10000, (137000, 140000, 380000) (75000, 78000, 27000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 173000) (137000, 140000, (30000, 35000, 15000) (5000, 68000, 77000) 22 (140000, 150000, (15000, 110000, 23 (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, 24 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 105000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 12000) 23 (80000, (2000, 30000, 30000, 20000, 130000) (35000, 27000) (30000, 27000) </td <td>13</td> <td>(330000, 340000,</td> <td>(185000, 190000)</td> <td>(137000, 140000)</td> <td>(90000, 95000,</td> <td>(75000, 78000,</td>	13	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000)	(137000, 140000)	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
14 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 85000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 15 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (47000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (90000, 95000, 173000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 17 (33000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (105000, 110000, 85000, 115000) (137000, 140000, 87000) (90000, 95000, (65000, 68000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (15000, 70000, (65000, 70000, 9000, 130000) (15000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 45000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 9000, 130000) (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, 70000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 20 (20000, 30000, (330000, 340000, 105000) (5000, 10000, (185000, 190000, 123000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 110000, 123000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 10000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (25000) (137000, 140000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 68000, 105000) (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (25000, 10000, (105000, 77000) (25000, 68000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 68000, 105000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (25000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (10	10	380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)
190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 15 (80000, 90000,130000) 105000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 17 (33000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 105000) (137000, 140000, (87000, 90000, 85000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 145000) (87000, 90000, (30000, 35000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 19 (80000, 9000,130000) (65000, 70000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (0, 3000, 12000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 21 (330000, 340000, 105000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 105000) (173000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (185000, 123000) (75000, 78000, (0, 3000, 12000) 22 (140000, 150000, 145000) (137000, 140000, (87000, 9000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000,130000) (155000, 110000, (87000, 90000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000,130000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 23 (80000, (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, (0, 3000, 12000) <	14	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
15 (80000, 90000,130000) (65000,70000, 105000) (47000,50000, 83000) (30000,35000, 55000) (15000,18000, 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 17 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 105000) (137000, 140000, (137000, 140000, 380000) (90000, 95000, (65000, 68000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 105000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, (5000, 10000, 90000, 130000) (0, 5000, 25000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 20 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 105000) (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, 45000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 123000) (15000, 18000, 123000) (65000, 70000, (65000, 78000, 190000) (15000, 18000, 105000) (10000, (0, 000, 0, 000, 105000) (0, 3000, 12000) (0, 3000, 12000) (0, 3		190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
90000,130000) 105000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 16 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 17 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (137000) (90000, 95000, (80000, 85000, 190000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (65000, 70000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, (47000, 5000) (30000, 35000, (30000, 35000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 20 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, (7000, 10000, 90000, 130000) (75000, 78000, (0, 3000, 22000) 21 (33000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 145000) (137000, 140000, (87000, 90000, 95000, 105000) (75000, 78000, (65000, 68000, 190000) 22 (140000, 150000, (105000, 110000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 110000, (47000, 50000, 105000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (5000, 10000, (0, 30000, 27000) 23 (80000, (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 24 (20000, 30000, (185000, 190000, 380000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, (0, 3000, 12000)	15	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
16 (2000, 3000, 7000) (500, 1000, 4500) (700, 1000, 4300) (0, 500, 2500) (0, 300, 1200) 17 (33000, 34000, 38000) (18500, 19000, 22500) (13700, 14000, 17300) (9000, 9500, 1500) (7500, 7800, 8700) 18 (14000, 15000, 19000) (10500, 11000, (6500, 7000, 9000, 13000) (6500, 7000, 12300) (8000, 3500, 10500) (6500, 6800, 7700) 19 (8000, 9000, 13000) (6500, 7000, 10500) (4700, 5000, 8300) (3000, 3500, 10500) (1500, 1800, 2700) 20 (2000, 3000, 10500) (500, 10000, 10500) (700, 1000, 10500) (0, 500, 2500) (0, 300, 1200) 21 (33000, 340000, 38000) (18500, 19000, 225000) (13700, 140000, 137000, 140000, 10500) (9000, 9500, 15000) (7500, 7800, 8700) 22 (14000, 15000, 19000) (14500) 123000) 10500) 77000) 23 (8000, (6500, 7000, 14500) (4700, 5000, (3000, 3500), 10500) (1500, 1800, 9000, 13000) 27000) 24 (2000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 10500) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (75000, 78000, 8700) 25 (330000, 340000, 38000) (185000, 190000, 225000) <		90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
70000) 45000) 43000) 17 (33000, 34000, 38000) (18500, 19000, 22500) (13700, 14000, 17300) (9000, 9500, 11500) (7500, 7800, 8700) 18 (14000, 15000, 19000) (10500, 11000, 14500) (8700, 9000, (8000, 8500, 19000) (6500, 6800, 19000) 19 (8000, 9000, 13000) (6500, 7000, 10500) (4700, 5000, 8300) (3000, 3500, 5500) (1500, 1800, 2700) 20 (2000, 3000, 10500) (500, 1000, 4500) (700, 1000, 43000) (0, 5000, 2500) (0, 300, 1200) 21 (33000, 34000, 38000) (18500, 19000, 22500) (13700, 14000, 13700, 14000, 15000) (9000, 9500, 8700) (7500, 7800, 8700) 22 (14000, 15000, 10500, 1000, 19000) (15500, 10000, 10500, 12300) (80000, 8500, 10500) (6500, 6800, 10500, 10500) 23 (8000, (6500, 7000, 10500) (4700, 5000, 10500) (3000, 3500, 10500) (1500, 1800, 9000, 13000) 24 (2000, 30000, 7000) (500, 10000, 4500) (13700, 14000, 10500) (9000, 9500, 10500, 7500, 78000, 7000) 25 (33000, 340000, 38000) (18500, 190000, 22500) (13700, 140000, 7000, 45000) (7500, 78000, 8700)	16	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		70000)	45000)	43000)		
380000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000) 18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 85000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 19 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (47000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 20 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 225000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (30000, 35000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 23 (80000, 90000, 130000) (5000, 10000, 105000) (7000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (185000, 190000, 45000) (137000, 140000, 90000, 95000, 173000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 15000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	17	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(137000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
18 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 85000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 19 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (47000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 20 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 21 (330000, 340000, 185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (185000, 190000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 15000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, (30000, 35000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 23 (80000, (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, 105000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, (185000, 190000, 45000) (137000, 140000, (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)		380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)
190000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 19 (80000, 90000,130000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (47000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 20 (20000, 30000, (20000, 340000, 380000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (105000, 110000, 190000) (90000, 95000, (65000, 68000, 190000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (105000, 123000) (80000, 85000, (65000, 70000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, 105000) 77000) 23 (80000, (20000, 30000, 105000) (5000, 70000, (65000, 70000, (7000, 10000, 70000) (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 27000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, (2000), 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 380000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	18	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
19 (80000, 90000,130000) (65000,70000, 105000) (47000,50000, 83000) (30000,35000, 55000) (15000,18000, 27000) 20 (20000,30000, 70000) (5000,10000, 45000) (7000,10000, 43000) (0,5000,25000) (0,3000,12000) 21 (330000,340000, 380000) (185000,190000, 225000) (137000,140000, (105000,110000, 105000) (90000,95000, (105000,85000, 105000) (75000,78000, 65000,68000, 77000) 22 (140000,150000, 190000) (105000,110000, (105000,70000, 90000,130000) (65000,70000, (47000,50000, 90000,130000) (15000,18000, 105000) (15000,18000, 27000) 23 (80000, 90000,130000) (5000,10000, (5000,10000, 70000) (7000,10000, 43000) (0,5000,25000) (0,3000,12000) 24 (20000,30000, 70000) (5000,10000, 45000) (137000,140000, 43000) (90000,95000, (75000,78000, 380000) (75000,78000, 87000)	10	190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
90000,130000 105000 83000 55000 27000 20 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 87000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, (87000, 90000, 105000) (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 77000) (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, 90000, 130000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 23 (80000, (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (7000, 10000, (30000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (137000, 140000, 43000) (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 380000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	19	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
20 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 3000, 25000) (0, 3000, 25000) 21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, (137000, 90000, 190000) (90000, 95000, 15000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, (105000, 12000) (87000, 90000, (87000, 90000, 105000) (80000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 77000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 23 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, 70000) (5000, 10000, (5000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	20	90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
21 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000) 22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 85000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 23 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, 105000) (47000, 50000, 83000) (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	20	(20000, 30000, 70000)	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
21 (130000, 340000, 140000, 110000, 110000, 140000, 140000, 150000, 95000, 115000, 78000, 130000, 1150000, 115000) (13000, 110000, 115000) (13000, 110000, 115000) (15000, 18000, 115000) 22 (140000, 150000, 145000) (105000, 110000, 123000) (180000, 85000, (65000, 68000, 145000) (15000) (15000, 18000) 23 (80000, (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 9000), 105000) 105000) 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 50000, (0, 5000, 25000)) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000) 45000) 43000) 25 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 38000)) 25 (330000, 340000, 225000) (185000, 190000, 173000) 115000) 87000)	21	(330000)	(185000)	(137000, 140000)	(90000 95000	(75000 78000
22 (140000, 150000, 190000) (105000, 110000, 145000) (87000, 90000, (87000, 90000, 123000) (80000, 85000, 105000) (65000, 68000, 77000) 23 (80000, 90000, 130000) (65000, 70000, (65000, 70000, 90000, 130000) (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, 55000) (15000, 18000, 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	21	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000, 225000)	(137000, 140000, 173000)	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
22 (140000, 150000, 160000, 110000, 110000, 110000, 10000, 50000, 10000, 10000, 10000, 10000, 10000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, 105000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 130000) 145000) 123000) 105000) 77000) 23 (80000, (65000, 70000, (47000, 50000, (30000, 35000, (15000, 18000, 90000, 55000)) 105000) 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, (5000, 10000, (7000, 10000, (0, 5000, 25000)) (0, 3000, 12000) 70000) 45000) 43000) 25 (330000, 340000, (185000, 190000, 173000) (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 38000) 25 (330000) 225000) 173000) 115000) 87000)	22	(140000)	(105000)	(87000, 90000	(80000 85000	(65000, 68000
23 (80000, 90000,130000) (65000,70000, 105000) (47000,50000, 83000) (30000,35000, 55000) (15000,18000, 27000) 24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)		190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
90000,130000) 105000) 83000) 55000) 27000) 24 (2000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	23	(80000,	(65000, 70000.	(47000, 50000.	(30000, 35000.	(15000, 18000.
24 (20000, 30000, 70000) (5000, 10000, 45000) (7000, 10000, 43000) (0, 5000, 25000) (0, 3000, 12000) 25 (330000, 340000, 380000) (185000, 190000, 225000) (137000, 140000, 173000) (90000, 95000, 115000) (75000, 78000, 87000)	-	90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
70000)45000)43000)25(330000, 340000, 380000)(185000, 190000, 225000)(137000, 140000, (137000, 140000, 115000)(90000, 95000, (75000, 78000, 87000)	24	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
25(330000, 340000, 380000)(185000, 190000, 225000)(137000, 140000, (137000, 140000, (90000, 95000, (115000)(75000, 78000, 87000)25(100, 190000, (100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100,		70000)	45000)	43000)		
380000)225000)173000)115000)87000)	25	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(137000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
		380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)

26	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
	190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
27	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
	90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
28	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
	70000)	45000)	43000)		
29	(330000, 340000,	(185000, 190000,	(137000, 140000,	(90000, 95000,	(75000, 78000,
	380000)	225000)	173000)	115000)	87000)
30	(140000, 150000,	(105000, 110000,	(87000, 90000,	(80000, 85000,	(65000, 68000,
	190000)	145000)	123000)	105000)	77000)
31	(80000,	(65000, 70000,	(47000, 50000,	(30000, 35000,	(15000, 18000,
	90000,130000)	105000)	83000)	55000)	27000)
32	(20000, 30000,	(5000, 10000,	(7000, 10000,	(0, 5000, 25000)	(0, 3000, 12000)
	70000)	45000)	43000)		

 Table 5.A.2. Initial data of all test problems (monetary value) and their equivalent exergy values (MJ) for Iran

_

Item		Cos	st values	5 (€)		Exergy equivalent (MJ)				
<i>(i)</i>	$A_{i,S}$	$A_{ij,b}$	$A_{ij,t}$	h _{ij}	C_i	$A_{(x)i,S}$	A _{(x)ij,b}	$A_{(x)ij,t}$	$h_{(x)ij}$	$C_{(x)i}$
1	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
2	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
3	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
4	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
5	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
6	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
7	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
8	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
9	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
10	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
11	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
12	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
13	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
14	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
15	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
16	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
17	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
18	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
19	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
20	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
21	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
22	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
23	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
24	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
25	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
26	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
27	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
28	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245
29	20	15	10	5	200	49	36.75	85.20	12.25	490
30	20	15	10	4	170	49	36.75	85.20	9.80	416.50
31	20	15	10	3	140	49	36.75	85.20	7.36	343
32	20	15	10	3	100	49	36.75	85.20	7.35	245

 32
 20
 15
 10
 3
 100
 49
 36.75
 85.20

 * For the test problems with greater than 32 items, these data are repeated

Test	Resource	Buyer 1	Buyer 1	Buyer 1	Buyer 4	Buyer 5	
problem							
4 items	B_i	840000	830000	820000	810000	800000	
(real case	$B_{(x)i}$	4771200	4714400	4657600	4600800	4544000	
study)	F_i	9600	9500	9400	9300	9200	
• *	Ĝ	(35000, 40	000, 60000)	-			
			, ,				
	B_{i}	1680000	1660000	1640000	1620000	1600000	
8 items	$B_{(x)j}$	9542400	9428800	9315200	9201600	9088000	
	F_{i}	19200	19000	18800	18600	18400	
	Ĝ	(80000, 850	000, 105000)	-			
	B_j	3360000	3320000	3280000	3240000	3200000	
16 items	$B_{(x)j}$	19084800	18857600	18630400	18403200	18176000	
	F_j	38400	38000	37600	37200	36800	
	Ĝ	(170000, 175	5000, 195000)				
	R	6720000	6640000	6560000	6480000	6400000	
22 itama	Bess	38160600	27715200	27260800	26806400	36252000	
32 items	$D_{(x)j}$	76800	76000	37200800	74400	72600	
	$\frac{\Gamma_j}{\tilde{c}}$	(350000 355	70000	- 73200	/4400	/3000	
	G	(330000, 333	,000, 373000)				
	Bi	13440000	13280000	13120000	12960000	12800000	
64 items	$B_{(x)i}$	176339200	75430400	74521600	73612800	72704000	
-	F_i	1536000	152000	150400	148800	147200	
	Ĝ	(710000, 715	5000, 735000)	-			
-			. ,				
	B_j	26880000	26560000	26240000	25920000	25600000	
128 items	$B_{(x)j}$	152678400	150860800	149043200	147225600	145408000	
	F_j	307200	304000	300800	297600	294400	
	\tilde{G} (1430000, 1435000, 1455000)						
	_						
	B_j	53760000	53120000	52480000	51840000	51200000	
256 items	$B_{(x)j}$	305356800	301721600	298086400	294451200	290816000	
	F_j	614400	608000	601600	595200	588800	
	G		(2870000, 2875	000, 2895000)			
	R.	107520000	106240000	10/060000	103680000	102400000	
512 itoms	B_j	610713600	603443200	596172800	588002400	581632000	
512 items	$D_{(x)j}$	1228800	1216000	1202200	1100400	1177600	
	$\frac{\Gamma_j}{\tilde{c}}$	1228800	(5750000 5755	1203200	1190400	11//000	
	ŭ		(3730000, 3733				
	Bi	215040000	212480000	209920000	207360000	204800000	
1024	$B_{(x)i}$	1221427200	1206886400	1192345600	1177804800	1163264000	
items	F_i	2457600	2432000	2406400	2380800	2355200	
	Ĝ	(1	15190000, 11519	5000, 11521500	0)		

Table 5.A.3. Resource data of all test problems (monetary value) and their equivalent exergy values (MJ)

Country		$ee_{Cap(i,s)}$	$ee_{L(i,s)}$	$ee_{Env(i,s)}$	Total
Iran	$A_{(x)i,S}$	34.08	3.56	11.36	49.00
	A _{(x)ij,b}	25.56	2.67	8.52	36.75
	$h_{(x)ij}$	8.52	0.89	2.84	12.25
	$C_{(x)i}$	340.80	35.60	113.60	490.00
Afghanistan	$A_{(x)i,S}$	6.6	0.41	2.2	9.21
	A _{(x)ij,b}	4.95	0.31	1.65	6.91
	$h_{(x)ij}$	1.65	0.10	0.55	2.30
	$C_{(x)i}$	66.00	4.10	22.00	92.10
Turkey	$A_{(x)i,S}$	123.06	91.36	41.02	255.44
	A _{(x)ij,b}	92.29	68.52	30.76	191.58
	$h_{(x)ij}$	30.77	22.84	10.26	63.86
	$C_{(x)i}$	1230.60	913.60	410.20	2554.40
Germany	$A_{(x)i,S}$	18.96	68.25	6.32	93.53
	A _{(x)ij,b}	14.22	51.19	4.74	70.15
	$h_{(x)ij}$	4.74	17.06	1.58	23.38
	$C_{(x)i}$	189.60	682.50	63.20	935.30
Canada	$A_{(x)i,S}$	18.78	68.61	6.26	93.65
	A _{(x)ij,b}	14.085	51.4575	4.695	70.24
	$h_{(x)ij}$	4.70	17.15	1.57	23.41
	$C_{(x)i}$	187.80	686.10	62.60	936.50

Table 5.A.4. The exergy values of inventory parameters (values in MJ) for 1st item (i=1)



Fig. 5.A.1. Coal consumption by region in 2021



Assessment of coal supply chain under carbon trade policy by extended exergy accounting method

Ali Roozbeh Nia¹ · Anjali Awasthi¹ · Nadia Bhuiyan²

Accepted: 20 May 2023 © The Author(s), under exclusive licence to Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, part of Springer Nature 2023

Abstract

Within an uncertain environment and following carbon trade policies, this study uses the Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) method for coal supply chains (SCs) in eight of the world's most significant coal consuming countries. The purpose is to improve the sustainability of coal SCs in terms of Joules rather than money while considering economic, environmental, and social aspects. This model is a multiproduct economic production quantity (EPQ) with a single-vendor multi-buyer with shortage as a backorder. Within the SC, there are some real constraints, such as inventory turnover ratio, waste disposal to the environment, carbon dioxide emissions, and available budgets for customers. For optimization purposes, three recent metaheuristic algorithms, including Ant Lion Optimizer, Lion Optimization Algorithm, and Whale Optimization Algorithm, are suggested to determine a near-optimum solution to an "exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming (EFNIP)." Moreover, an exact method (GAMS) is employed to validate the results of the suggested algorithms. Additionally, sensitivity analyses with different percentages of exergy parameters, such as capital, labor, and environmental remediation, are done to gain a deeper understanding of sustainability improvement in coal SCs. The results showed that sustainable coal SC in the USA has the lowest fuzzy total exergy, while Poland and China have the highest.

Keywords Extended exergy accounting (EEA) \cdot Coal supply chain (SC) \cdot Sustainability \cdot Carbon emission \cdot Fuzzy price \cdot Inventory model

1 Introduction

Production systems rely heavily on traditional fossil fuels, mainly coal and oil (Wang et al. 2023). It is estimated that industrial sectors account for over 50% of global energy consumption (Safarian 2023). Almost all coal is composed of dead plant material. As a result of accumulated plant material being buried under anoxic conditions for millions of years,

Published online: 10 June 2023

🙆 Springer

Extended author information available on the last page of the article
CHAPTER 6. PAPER FOUR - ASSESSMENT OF COAL SUPPLY CHAIN UNDER CARBON TRADE POLICY BY EXTENDED EXERGY ACCOUNTING METHOD

Forewords

Previous chapter considered carbon tax policy for coal SC. Now, this chapter aims to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting and carbon trade policy. Moreover, carbon cap and offset policies will be presented in Chapters 7 and 8, respectively as additional material.

Abstract

Within an uncertain environment and following carbon trade policies, this study uses the Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA) method for coal supply chains (SCs) in eight of the world's most significant coal consuming countries. The purpose is to improve the sustainability of coal SCs in terms of Joules rather than money while considering economic, environmental, and social aspects. This model is a multi-product economic production quantity (EPQ) with a single-vendor multi-buyer with shortage as a backorder. Within the SC, there are some real constraints, such as inventory turnover ratio, waste disposal to the environment, carbon dioxide emissions, and available budgets for customers. For optimization purposes, three recent metaheuristic algorithms, including Ant Lion Optimizer, Lion Optimization Algorithm, and Whale Optimization Algorithm, are suggested to determine a near-optimum solution to an "exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming (EFNIP)." Moreover, an exact method (GAMS) is employed to validate the results of the suggested algorithms. Additionally, sensitivity analyses with different percentages of exergy parameters, such as capital, labor, and environmental remediation, are done to gain a deeper understanding of sustainability improvement in coal SCs. The results showed that sustainable coal SC in the USA has the lowest fuzzy total exergy, while Poland and China have the highest.

Keywords Extended Exergy Accounting (EEA); Coal supply chain (SC); Sustainability; Carbon emission; Fuzzy price; Inventory model

6.1. Introduction

Production systems rely heavily on traditional fossil fuels, mainly coal and oil (Wang et al., 2023). It is estimated that industrial sectors account for over 50% of global energy consumption (Safarian, 2023). Almost all coal is composed of dead plant material. As a result of accumulated plant material being buried under anoxic conditions for millions of years and being exposed to high temperatures and pressures over that time, coal was formed (Australian Government, 2022). Coal is the world's largest source of energy for electricity generation and the production of steel, cement, and paper (U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), 2021). About 75% of coal is found in only 5 countries (USA, Russia, Australia, China, and India), while the biggest coal consumers are China (54%), India (18%), USA (6%), Japan (3%), and South Africa (2.3%) (Phengsaart et al., 2023). According to Notes from Poland (2022), Poland ranks 9th in the world in coal consumption to generate 70% of electricity, by far the highest figure in Europe.

In terms of production, China tops the list supplying about 50% of global coal demand. Other key players in the global coal trade include India (9.9%), Indonesia (7.5%), USA (6.4%), Australia (5.9%), Russia (5.3%) and Poland (1.3%) (Phengsaart et al., 2023).

Moreover, coal related SCs represent one of the major concerns for stakeholders (Mehmood et al., 2015) since these industries constitute a significant proportion of carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions (Sun and Yang, 2021). Iron and steel manufacturing, for instance, emitted about 2,600 million tons of carbon in 2019. This number is expected to rise to 2,700 million tons by 2050 if no sustainable development scenario is applied (U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), 2022). As society becomes more aware of the value of the environment, waste disposal (imperfect quality items) and carbon dioxide emissions must become leading indicators of coal SC assessment. According to the European Union's Joint Research Centre, China is the largest emitter of CO2 in the world, with 11680 Mt (11.680 GT) of carbon dioxide emissions in 2020. This is just over 32% of the world's total 2020 emissions. The United States and India released the second-and third-highest amount of carbon emissions at 4.535 and 2.411 GT (or roughly 12.6% and 6% of total global emissions). Moreover, Japan and Iran are the 5th and 6th CO2-emitting countries in the world. It should be mentioned that China, the USA, and India are also three of the most populous countries on Earth. In general, developed countries and major emerging markets lead in total carbon dioxide emissions.

Various countries worldwide have set impressive emission-cut goals in the outlook to tackle climate change and the function of sustainable development (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020; Sun and Yang, 2021). In this effort, environmental administrations around the globe agree that pricing carbon emissions is the most inexpensive and successful means to achieve their emission reduction goals (Environment and Climate Change Canada, 2018). The primary carbon pricing strategies are carbon tax, carbon cap, carbon offset, and carbon trade (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020), whereas each approach has different costs and carbon reductions. The benefits of applying each carbon emission policy are not equal for companies involved in coal SC. While some carbon policies are more environmentally friendly, others are more economically beneficial.

Moreover, emerging Industry 4.0 technologies and concerns about global warming show that decision-makers need to change their point of view in assessing the SC's performance (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2020). Shifting from traditional assessment methods to novel and more sustainable methods is one of the critical aspects of the fourth industrial revolution. Extended Exergy Accounting is an innovative method that can help SCs become more sustainable (Aghbashlo et al., 2018). This method integrates the effect of non-energetic manufacturing features into the complete loss assessment (Jawad et al., 2018; Sciubba, 2011). The primary benefit of employing the extended exergy accounting method in the production system is that this method states all outcomes in Joules (instead of dollars); therefore, acceptable assessments among different products can be achieved (Naderi et al., 2021b; Jawad et al., 2018). Moreover, energy (in terms of Joules) is essential to operate all manufacturing and SC processes (Jawad et al., 2015).

It is true that the energy market (natural gas, oil, and coal) today tends to be maturing and unbalanced, characterized by increasing demand and fluctuating supply (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2021). There are tangible signs to verify that demand and price are not predetermined and can influence a broad collection of market influences and customer behaviors. While some scholars have focused on the direct issues, there are also unforeseen issues such as the economic environment, business events, and global politics (Su et al., 2021). For example, oil and gas prices have risen to their

highest levels in nearly a decade because of Russia's unprovoked invasion of Ukraine. As a result, many countries have re-evaluated their energy sources. The fact is that uncertainties in demand and energy consumption significantly affect the total SC cost as the penalty cost of unsatisfied demand increases (Priyan et al. 2022). In response to this issue, Zadeh (1965) proposed "fuzzy set theory (FST)," which translates "ill-defined" data into mathematical terms.

Considering these issues, we can present the main research questions of this study as follows:

Q1. Is it possible to assess the sustainability of coal SC under a carbon reduction policy in terms of Joules rather than money to benefit the economy and the environment?

Q2. Generally speaking, coal SC in developing countries, or even China, has the lowest overall cost; however, considering sustainability aspects (social, economic, and environmental characteristics) in Joules, does this assumption still hold true?

Q3. Which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules?

Q4. What is the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) to achieve the most significant saving wherever coal SCs are working?

Consequently, the first goal of this study is to find the optimum total exergy of coal SC in different developed and developing countries under carbon trade policy in an uncertain environment (for carbon trade price and customer demand). The second objective is comparing the sustainability of coal SC in eight countries in terms of Joules rather than money. Finally, this research aims to improve the sustainability of coal SC by performing a sensitivity analysis on the three exergy parameters of sustainability (economic, environmental, and social) in the extended exergy accounting method.

Author/s	Objective	Posults	EEA	Fuzzy
(year)	Objective	Kesuits	method	price
Devlin and Yang (2022)	Focused on assessing potential green SCs for an Australia-Japan iron and steel case study	Suggested to reduce the green premium, a carbon tax of A\$66–192/t CO2 would be required in 2030 and A\$0–70/t CO2 in 2050	No	No
Kunche and Mielczarek (2021)	Presented a comparative overview of studies using the system dynamics approach to evaluate carbon mitigation strategies	This study included their scope, model description, test scenarios, and mitigation methods	No	No
Da et al., (2021)	Examined optimal inputs for clean coal technology in a coal enterprise and optimal carbon reduction quantities in a manufacturer	Focusing on the dominant mode, can affect carbon reduction under different leading models of cap-and-trade with government subsidies	No	No
Hančlová et al., (2020)	Identified and evaluated the interactions between the factors of the EU ETS (prices of emission allowances and grandfathering) and factors of the steel industry such as prices and production levels	Steel companies in the Czech Republic pass on the costs for emissions to their customers	No	No
Li et al., (2020)	Examined the impact of different carbon policies on coal SC networks	The government could guide organizations in reducing carbon by formulating reasonable emission policies	No	No
Da et al., (2019)	Developed a coal-electric power SC strategy that reduces carbon at two levels and operated with financial constraints	The government could encourage a low-carbon economy by controlling bank loan interest rates	No	No
Duan et al., (2019)	Explored the impact of emission reduction policies on China's steel production and economic level	The government should consider the overall and regional balance as well as benchmark values for carbon trading when deciding whether to implement a single or mixed policy	No	No
Gonela (2018)	Designed a hybrid electric SC (HESC) based on coal and biomass for electricity generation in a case study of North Dakota (ND) in the USA	coal-based electricity generation is preferred if the goal is to reduce costs, whereas biomass-based electricity generation is preferred if the goal is to reduce carbon emissions	No	No
Li et al., (2018)	Examined the carbon trading method's consequences in China's power sector	Using a carbon trade policy would negatively affect the entire economy, but the adverse effects would be removed in the future	No	No
Chaabane et al., (2012)	Provided a framework for designing a sustainable SC, in the aluminum industry	Top management will achieve sustainability goals through effective carbon management policies	No	No

Table 6.1. A short review of studies on carbon policies in heavy industries

6.2. Literature review

The leading publications related to carbon policies in coal-based industries such as cement, steel, etc. are shown in Table 6.1. Based on this table, there is no study that employs the extended exergy accounting method or considers uncertain environment for carbon. Therefore, in this section, the literature related to our study is reviewed in two categories: exergy analysis concepts, and the extended exergy accounting method. After that, research gaps and our contributions in this research compared to existing studies are presented.

6.2.1. Exergy analysis concepts

Although Rant (1956) first introduced the name "exergy," parallel denotations had previously been defined by other researchers. Exergy is the capability to produce work or adequate energy or a quantity of work (Liu et al., 2020). Jaber et al. (2004) tried to connect thermodynamics with inventory management and showed the pertinency of the first and second laws of thermodynamics to manufacture systems through the economic order (production) quantity (EOQ/EPQ) model. Later, Jaber et al. (2006) supposed that the performance of the production systems is like physical systems. Their results showed that the order quantity strategy is to order in more oversized lots less often than when the entropy cost is omitted considering entropy cost. Moreover, Jaber et al. (2009) established Jaber et al. (2004) 's research paper by extending an entropic mathematical model for deciding batch sizes for deteriorating goods. The outcomes of the entropy EOQ model indicated ordering in larger quantities than recommended by the traditional model. Later, Jaber et al. (2011) presented the notion of exergy (valuable energy) cost. The authors added exergy and entropy costs to the EOQ model and established it in a simple reverse logistics system. They supposed forward and backward product streams to be cost-related, and consequently, a revenue method is accepted.

In another study, Jawad and Jaber (2015) proposed using exergy-economics and exergetic costing when developing inventory models. The authors encourage that employing the suggested inventory modeling may be more effective for other sustainable industries. Additionally, Jaber et al. (2017) developed the traditional models of the economical manufacture quantity (EMQ) and Just-in-time (JIT) by comprising other issues. Their outcomes indicated that JIT, which produces items in small quantities more often, experiences lower costs than the EMQ model once associated stress and entropy costs were not counted. Afterward, Jawad et al. (2018) studied the chief issues that can impact the entire cost of an SC, for example, emissions, labor, energy, social effects of shipping, and entropy. The outcomes presented that optimizing the exergetic cost function grows the money significantly to society for a slight extra rise in cost on the section of the SC.

Moreover, in an industrial bread SC in the Netherlands, Banasik et al. (2017a) studied a multi-objective mixed-integer linear programming model to evaluate the collection of eco-efficient solutions relating to manufacturing planning decisions. The authors employed exergy analysis to state environmental performance of the SC. Their outcomes approve the results from the literature that avoidance is the most acceptable waste management policy from an ecological viewpoint. In another study for a mushroom SC, Banasik et al. (2017b) investigated a multi-objective mixed-integer linear programming model to calculate interchanges among financial and ecological gauges and investigate quantitatively substitute recycling tools. The total exergy loss is used in this study as a single metric gauge for environmental performance. They discovered that accepting closing loop tools in modern mushroom manufacture can grow both the overall productivity of the SC and

the environmental functioning. Naderi et al. (2021a) presented a mathematical model for enhancing sustainability involving the cost of exergy demolition (entropy) for a coal SC in Iran. The authors employed exergy analysis for a model that involves economic and wasted exergy costs. Their outcomes showed an extra-economic cost, but it will support managers to measure this added cost which is essential for other decisions.

6.2.2. Extended exergy accounting method

It was Sciubba (1998) who developed the traditional analysis of exergy and later introduced the "Extended Exergy Accounting" method (Sciubba, 2003a, 2003b). The extended exergy accounting is expressed as the quantity of the main exergy aggregately exploited to manufacture and discard actual products or services (Song et al., 2019). This method contains energy and material's main aggregate exergy subject and cost corresponding to economic externality (labor and capital) and ecological externality (environmental remediation). The extended exergy accounting connects production systems' processes with surrounding systems (Song et al., 2019). Regarding the method, to the best of the authors' knowledge, only three studies employed this method for inventory management or SC. For example, Jawad et al. (2015) employed the notions of the extended exergy accounting method in inventory management for three factories in the USA, China, and Germany to involve the three aspects of sustainability: financial, ecological, and social. The outcomes presented that the order quantity in the companies is different since the corresponding exergy of money, labor and environment costs are not the same in each company. Later, Jawad et al. (2016) extended the traditional EPQ model by employing the extended exergy accounting method and thermodynamics laws to determine the degree of sustainability of a manufacture-inventory model. The outcomes revealed that an item's cost has a crucial function in diminishing the model's entropy creation (exergy lost). Moreover, for a conventional cement production SC in China, Song et al. (2019) utilized the extended exergy accounting method to estimate the cumulative exergy consumption (CExC), labor and money exergy, and ecological remediation exergy. They measured cement manufacture's environmental costs and the segments with exergy deficiencies. Finally, Naderi et al. (2021b) studied the utilized exergy for a sustainable SC through an extended exergy accounting method for a food SC in Iran. They suggested a hybrid global- and local-search metaheuristic algorithm to solve the model. Their findings revealed that exergy minimization substantially reduces the cost for society as different from raising the cost in some sections of the SC. For example, the recommended method delivers 4.48% savings in the utilized exergy of the SC through undertaking added economic costs.

To explore more about exergy components, exergy analysis and the extended exergy accounting method in detail, we suggest Arango-Miranda et al. (2018), Dincer and Rosen (2013), and Ehyaei et al. (2019) to interested readers. Additionally, a brief review of papers that used exergy analysis and the extended exergy accounting method (comparing with our proposed model) is available in Table 6.2. Based on this table, for example, no study considers carbon policy with the extended exergy accounting method.

Table 6.2. A brief review of research works in exergy analysis of supply chain

		5,j.		-					F		-				
Authors (years)	Objective	Single objective /multi	Solving methods	Verification	Compare SCs	Inventory model	EEA technique	Carbon policy	nventory turnover	Balanced	Waste discarding	Fuzzy	Shortage	VMI policy	Multi-buyer
Naderi et al. (2021a)	Provide a mathematical model for improving coal SC sustainability while minimizing the cost of exergy destruction (entropy) in SC	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Naderi et al. (2021b)	Provide an exergy analysis to model and minimize the consumed exergy for sustainable SC	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	Branch & bound	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Jawad et al. (2018)	Minimize the total cost of the developed SC model while focusing on the pillars of sustainable developments.	Single	Exact method	N/A	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No
Banasik et al. (2017a)	Develop a mathematical model for quantitative assessment of alternative production options that are associated with different ways to deal with waste in food SCs	Multi	Exact method	N/A	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No	No
Banasik et al. (2017b)	Quantify trade-offs between economic and environmental indicators and explore quantitatively alternative recycling technologies	Multi	Exact method	N/A	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes
Jawad et al. (2016)	Re-examines the economic production quantity (EPQ) model to reflect sustainability needs by using EEA and the laws of thermodynamics.	Single	Exact method (EPQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No

Jawad et al. (2015)	Use an exergy model to determine the EOQ inventory policies for three firms operating in the USA, Germany, and China.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	Yes	No							
Santhi and Karthikeyan (2015)	Determine the cycle length and the replenishment order quantity of an EOQ model to maximize the profit.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No
Jawad and Jaber (2015)	Use exergo-economics and exergetic costing when developing inventory models	Single	Exact method	N/A	N/A	Yes	No								
Jaber and Jawad (2015)	Estimate the entropy created in EPQ and JIT systems	Single	Exact method (EPQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No								
Jaber et al. (2009)	A mathematical model to determine batch sizes for deteriorating items while minimizing the entropy of the EOQ model.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No								
Jaber and Rosen (2008)	Improve production system performance by applying thermodynamics' first and second laws to reduce system entropy (or disorder).	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	No	Yes	No								
Jaber (2007)	Estimate the hidden costs of the EOQ model by applying the first and second laws of thermodynamics to reduce system entropy (or disorder) at a cost.	Single	Exact method (EOQ formula)	N/A	N/A	Yes	No								
Proposed model	Optimize the fuzzy exergy cost of an SC with the EEA method under trade emission policy	Single	Metaheuristic algorithm	GAMS	Yes										

6.2.3. Research gaps and our contributions

Regarding literature review, Tables 6.1 and 6.2, there are still several research gaps, including G1. There is a lack of research that assess a SC under carbon policy within an uncertain environment, for example, fuzzy carbon price or customer demand. G2. It is rare to find studies that assess a SC in terms of Joules instead of money (as traditional performance measures) and simultaneously evaluate all sustainability aspects, such as economic, labour, and environmental. G3. There is a lack of examinations that employ the extended exergy accounting method to assess a SC under any carbon reduction policy. As a matter of fact, no exergy analysis method in the literature takes into consideration carbon emission policy. G4. There is a scarcity of studies that compare the sustainability of coal SCs between developed and developing countries under carbon trade policy with the extended exergy accounting method. G5. There is a deficiency of investigation to find the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental aspects) in the extended exergy accounting method for a SC. G6. In addition, some real-world issues are ignored, such as considering the inventory turnover ratio for SC models, defective quality products discarded into the environment, shipping charges on the whole of coal SC (mining, railway transportation and steel making), vendor managed inventory (VMI) policy for coordinating SC, and the costs of loan/investment for budget limitation. In brief, the three contributions of this study to the literature are as follows:

- Improving the sustainability of coal SCs in terms of Joules (total exergy rather than traditional monetary objectives) in developed and developing countries under carbon trade policy and the uncertain environment by employing the extended exergy accounting method.
- Comparing the sustainability of coal SC in eight countries to determine which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules.
- Finding the best value of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) for coal SC in both developed and developing countries which creates the highest sustainability.

The remainder of the study is structured as follows. In Section 6.3, the problem is outlined, the suppositions are stated, and the problem is mathematically expressed into a fuzzy nonlinear integer-programming model under emission trade policy. In Section 6.4, exergy modeling of fuzzy optimization using extended exergy accounting is presented. The proposed solution method is presented in Section 6.5 to solve the problem. Section 6.6 presents computational test problems and sensitivity analysis of exergy values to reveal the recommended solution methods' relevance. Finally, conclusions and potential studies are offered in Section 6.7.

6.3. Problem description and model formulation

6.3.1. Problem description

Elevated energy market uncertainties (e.g., price and demand), disruptions (e.g., COVID-19 and global warming), and competition (e.g., global market and customer satisfaction) over current years have produced variations (negative and positive) to coal SC administration (Teerasoponpong and Sopadang, 2022). It is true that coal is a low-cost and plentiful resource, but carbon dioxide (CO2) from coal usage in industries such as power plant, cement, steel and paper is responsible for about 40% of global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Therefore, it is the responsibility of legislations and coal SC decision making to invest and innovate for cutting their carbon emissions.

This paper is inspired by the studies of Jawad et al. (2016) and Naderi et al. (2021a) and uses them to develop a multi-product multi-limitation EPQ model with backorder for a coal SC in eight countries under the fuzzy environment. Moreover, a VMI contract is employed for a single supplier and multi-buyer to coordinate the coal SC. The extended exergy accounting method with Mega-Joules (MJ) as a universal unit of measure is used to find the total exergy of the model. Besides, the buyers' demand, purchasing price per unit of product, cost of goods sold per unit of product, and carbon price of each unit of carbon are considered fuzzy. A famous carbon reduction policy, called carbon trade, is used to compare the model's performance as a sustainability measure and control the produced carbon emission of SC enterprises. Moreover, three recent metaheuristic algorithms are exercised to obtain a near-optimum solution of the developed exergy fuzzy nonlinear integer programming (EFNIP) to diminish the fuzzy total exergy of a coal SC. Additionally, ten numerical examples, including an actual case study in coal SC in Iran, were presented to display the pertinency of the proposed model. Likewise, the results are compared with the exact method (GAMS) to confirm the outcomes. Finally, a sensitivity analysis with changing the percentage of exergy parameters, including the capital, labor, and environmental remediation, has been done with seven different exergy sets of percentages (A-G) in eight developed and developing countries. Sensitivity analysis aims to find the best exergy values (capital, labour, and environmental remediation) of the extended exergy accounting method that create the highest sustainability for coal SC of Iran, Australia, China, India, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe.

6.3.2. Assumptions

Considering the purpose of this research to develop the sustainability of coal SC by integrating carbon trade policy and the extended exergy accounting method, we consider the succeeding assumptions for the mathematical preparation. More sophisticated assumptions are considered for future research in Section 6.7. There is a single supplier, multi-buyer coal SC with n products (different grades of coal) when stockout is permitted in the type of backorder for all products. The supplier's production rate for all products is fixed and known (EPQ model). In this model, quantity discount is not permitted, and the supplier pays the shipping cost whereas the setup and keeping costs are known. There are constraints on the capacity of the buyer's warehouse, budget and order quantity of a product and the total number of orderings. Additionally, all transportation between supplier and buyers are done by the railway system when distance between them is fixed and known. Moreover,

(a) Buyer's demand for the entire product, the price for all products and the price of carbon trade are fuzzy (trapezoidal fuzzy number)

(b) The linear backorder cost per unit per time unit is known for the entire products while the timeindependent fixed backorder cost per unit is supposed to be zero

(c) Orders are supposed to be immediate (lead time=0)

(d) Coal Mining (supplier), shipping, and utilizing coal in the steel companies (buyers) produce carbon emission and waste (defective quality products) disposal to the environment.

6.3.3. Notations

The indices, factors, and decision variables of the SC model are described in Table 6.3.

The following subsections will develop a non-exergy mathematical model (a basic model) of the coal SC for carbon trade policy (subsection 6.3.4). Then it has converted to a fuzzy model in subsection 6.3.5.

Table 6.3. Notations	
Indices:	
<i>i</i> : Index of the products; $(i = 1, 2,, n)$	<i>j</i> : Index of buyers; $(j = 1, 2,, m)$
Factors:	t_f : Constant shipping cost of each order which is paid by the
D_{ij} : Demand rate of product <i>i</i> for buyer <i>j</i>	supplier (VMI contract)
<i>P_i</i> : Rate of production of the i^{th} product $(P_i \ge \sum_{j=1}^{m} D_{ij})$ Q_{Max} : Upper limit of transportation capacity on each order quantity N_{Max} : Max. total number of orders by all buyers C_i : Buying price per unit of product <i>i</i> by buyers C_o : Cost of goods sold per unit of product <i>i</i> by the supplier ITR_j : Inventory turnover ratio of buyer <i>j</i> C_{trade} : Emission trade price of each unit of produced carbon X_j : Total available budget of all products for buyer <i>j</i> int^- : The interest rate of the essential loan for buyer <i>j</i> int^+ : Interest (benefit) rate of new investment for buyer <i>j</i> $K_{i,s}$: Supplier's fixed setup cost per unit of product <i>i</i> $K_{ij,b}$: Constant ordering cost per unit of product <i>i</i> for buyer <i>j</i> δ_m : Proportion of imperfect quality items in mine process δ_k : Proportion of imperfect quality items in steel manufacturer Decision variables:	t_v : Variable shipping cost per unit of a product which is paid by the supplier (VMI contract) t_i : Labor cost for loading/unloading of coal per hour t_M : Machine/equipment cost for loading/unloading of coal Lo: Loading time of coal in a railcar (railway wagon) Un: Unloading time of coal from a railcar h_{ij} : Keeping cost per unit of product <i>i</i> held in the warehouse of buyer <i>j</i> in a period s_1 : fixed backorder cost per unit (time-independent) s_2 : Linear backorder cost per unit per time unit W_j : Available storage area of buyer <i>j</i> for all products L_j : Distance between supplier and buyer <i>j</i> (km) θ_m : Emissions factor of mining (ton/unit) θ_t : Emissions factor of furnace in steel manufacturer (ton/unit) E_j : Upper limit on aggregate carbon emissions of all products of each buyer <i>F</i> : Upper limit on total imperfect quality items disposal to the environment by all processes
Q_{ij} : Order quantity of product <i>i</i> for buyer <i>j</i>	e_j^+ : Emission credits that should be bought by buyer <i>j</i>
b_{ij} : Maximum backorder level of product <i>i</i> for	e_j^- : Emission credits that could be sold by buyer <i>j</i>
buyer <i>j</i> in a cycle	-
x_i^+ : Total new investment for buyer <i>j</i>	
x_i^- : Total required loan for buyer <i>j</i>	

6.3.4. A non-exergy modeling of coal SC under carbon trade policy

6.3.4.1. Objective function

Carbon trade integrates government regulations and market methods in a flexible policy that the Kyoto Protocol plans. With this policy, companies' carbon emissions are restricted (see Eq. 9); consequently, if a company generates carbon dioxide further than the launched cap, it must purchase extra carbon credits (e^+) . In contrast, the company could sell its carbon credits (e^-) to other companies on the carbon market (Jiang et al., 2016), whereas the carbon price (C_{trade}) is determined by supply and demand in this market (Li et al., 2020). Although the price of carbon is considered known and fixed in the literature, this study considers it fuzzy (see subsection 6.3.5). The trading strategy provides businesses with a great motivation to save money by reducing emissions in the most economical methods. This policy is employed in the European Union, Quebec province in Canada, California in the United States of America, and seven areas in China (Haites 2018). Consequently, the carbon trade cost is

$$Z_{1} = \sum_{j}^{m} C_{trade} \times (e_{j}^{+} - e_{j}^{-})$$
(6.1)

The shipping costs accounted for about 40% of the entire delivered cost of coal in 2019 (U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), 2019). Transportation costs are also impacted by road distance, accessibility of shipping mode and supply source alternatives, and the competition among coal and other goods for shipping. Therefore, the total transportation cost of coal includes constant (t_f) and variable (t_v) costs, along with the cost of loading/unloading coal (t_L) in/from railcars and cost of equipment (t_M) is

$$Z_2 = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_f \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_v \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot (t_L + t_M) \right) \right]$$
(6.2)

Where (*Lo*, *Un*) are the loading/unloading time of coal in/from a railcar. The vendormanaged inventory (VMI) strategy is the regular inventory management in SC in which the upstream company completely controls the inventory at the downstream company's location (Giovanni, 2021). In the VMI system, the determinations about scheduling and amount of buyer's replenishment are decided by the supplier that is assumed to have comprehensive information concerning the customers' requirements, to prevent stockouts (Comez-Dolgan et al., 2021, Maio and Lagana, 2020). Therefore, it is expected that the supplier gives the ordering, shipping, and keeping costs rather than the buyer as a part of the stated contract; the buyer gives no cost (Mateen et al., 2014; Yao et al., 2007; Razmi et al., 2010; Pasandideh et al., 2011; Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014, 2015). Furthermore, in an EPQ model with defective quality items and stockout as a backorder that utilizes the VMI strategy, the coal SC's total inventory cost is established by calculating the ordering/setup ($TC_{O_{ij}}$), keeping ($TC_{H_{ij}}$), stockout ($TC_{S_{ij}}$), and purchasing ($TC_{P_{ij}}$) costs as (Pasandideh et al., 2010, 2011)

$$Z_3 = TC_{O_{ij}} + TC_{H_{ij}} + TC_{S_{ij}} + TC_{P_{ij}}$$
(6.3)
Where,

$$TC_{O_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \left(K_{i,s} + K_{ij,b} \right)$$
(6.4)

$$TC_{H_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i}\right)} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i}\right) - b_{ij}\right)^2$$
(6.5)

$$TC_{S_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left(\frac{s_1 \cdot b_{ij}^2}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} + \frac{s_2 \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} \right)$$
(6.6)

$$TC_{P_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{i} D_{ij}$$
 (6.7)

Where (D_{ij}, Q_{ij}, h_{ij}) are the demand rate, order quantity and holding cost per unit of coal *i* for buyer *j*, respectively. As mentioned previously, the existing budget of each buyer could be deposited in a bank account or invested in other projects to get profits. Now, we take into account a real-world balanced limitation (see subsection 6.3.4.2) where the total amount of the existing budget for each buyer is restricted (see Eq. 6.8). To the best of the authors' knowledge, this type of objective function and limitation, have not been studied yet. On the one hand, each buyer's underachievement budget $(x_j^+ \text{ as a decision variable})$ is regarded as the benefit. It means this amount of money (x_j^+) may be invested in a new project with an actual interest rate (int^+) and make a profit (as a $int^+ \times x_j^+$) for the buyer. On the other hand, the over-achievement budget $(x_j^- \text{ as a decision variable})$ is regarded as the cost. It means the buyer must get a loan with the amount of (x_j^-) and an interest rate of (int^-) . After All, the buyer should pay this loan as well as the interest rate $(x_j^- + [int^- \times x_j^-])$ at the end of the period. Therefore, the total cost/benefit associated with the budget of all buyers is

$$Z_4 = \sum_{j}^{m} \left[x_j^- + \left(int^- \times x_j^- \right) - \left(int^+ \times x_j^+ \right) \right]$$
(6.8)

Wherever in Eq. (6.8), the first two components are linked to the cost functions, and the last part with a negative symbol is related to the benefit obtained. Moreover, under and over-achievement budgets (x_j^+, x_j^-) are not known parameters and are considered decision variables. Hence, the non-exergy total cost of coal SC under the carbon trade policy is the summation of $TC_{trade} = Z_1 + Z_2 + Z_3 + Z_4$.

6.3.4.2. The constraints

The constraints of this model are as follows:

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{0} \cdot D_{ij}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)-b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij}\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)}$$

$$(6.9)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \theta_m \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_j \cdot \theta_t \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot D_{ij} \cdot \theta_k \right) \right] + \left(e_j^- - e_j^+ \right) = E_j$$

$$(6.10)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{m} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_m \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot \left(1 - \delta_m \right) \cdot \delta_t \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \left(1 - \delta_m \right) \cdot \left(1 - \delta_t \right) \cdot \delta_k \right) \right] \le F$$
(6.11)

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right) - b_{ij} \right] \le W_j \tag{6.12}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[C_{i} Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_{m}) \right] + \left(x_{j}^{+} - x_{j}^{-} \right) = X_{j}$$
(6.13)

n

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \le N_{Max}$$
(6.14)

$$Q_{ij} \le Q_{Max} \tag{6.15}$$

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij} \tag{6.16}$$

Eq. (6.9) is an inventory turnover ratio (ITR_i) limitation. To the best of the authors' knowledge, this limitation has not been presented in SC literature before. The inventory turnover ratio is applied as a comparative measure of inventory performance between competitors and is crucial to control inventory (Beklari et al., 2018). This proportion is an economic index that merges the cost of goods sold with average inventories at cost (Kwak 2019). The inventory turnover ratio shows how often inventories are turned over a period. For Eq. (6.10), as mentioned before, with the policy of carbon trade, each buyer inside coal SC can only produce within an offered cap (E_i) of emission. If this actual emission amount goes above the emission limit, the company must purchase carbon credits (e^+) . The company can vend these extra emission credits (e^-) if the actual emission amount runs under the emission limit (Li et al., 2020). Hence, with the emission trade policy, a new emission restriction is included in the model where Eq. (6.10) corresponds to the total generated carbon in mining, shipping, and steelmaking processes. In Eq. (6.10), $(\theta_m, \theta_t, \theta_k)$ are emissions factors in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Additionally, L_j is the distance between the coal vendor and buyer j. Eq. (6.11) aims to make the model green since it considers a limitation (F) on total defective products (waste) disposal to the environment by all processes in coal SC. In this equation, $(\delta_m, \delta_t, \delta_k)$ are the proportions of imperfect quality items in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Furthermore, Eq. (6.12) expresses that the warehouse space of each buyer (W_i) is restricted, where (b_{ii}) is the backorder amount of coal *i* for buyer *j* in a cycle (a decision variable).

As shown before, a real-world contractual agreement grants balanced constraints (Eq. 6.13) for the existing budget of each buyer (X_i) . To the best of the authors' knowledge, this type of limitation has not been given in SC literature in the past. Where Eq. (6.13) indicates that, on the one hand, if the total paid-out money of a buyer is below the existing budget $(\sum_{i}^{n} C_{i}, Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m}) < \delta_{m})$ X_i), the buyer saves an amount of $(x_i^+ > 0)$. It is possible the company invests this amount in a new project and makes a profit (see Eq. 6.8). On the other hand, if the total paid out money of a buyer is more than the existing budget $(\sum_{i=1}^{n} C_i Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) > X_j)$, so the buyer demands to get a loan with the amount of $(x_i^- > 0)$. The total cost/benefit linked to this balanced limitation is expressed in Eq. (6.8). In addition, Eq. (6.14) is related to the limitation on the total number of orders (N_{Max}) by all buyers. Additionally, there is a constraint for the shipping system (railway) while the Max. of shipping capacity (Q_{Max}) for each order quantity is stated in Eq. (6.15). Finally, based on Eq. (6.16), the quantity of backorder of product *i* for j^{ih} buyer (b_{ij}) in a cycle should be fewer than or equal to its order amount (Q_{ii}) . It should be mentioned that intending to simplify the mathematical model; we ignore the cost of purchasing (Eq. 6.7) in our model. Regarding Eqs. (6.1)-(6.16) and under carbon trade policy, the non-exergy crisp model of "multi-product" balanced limitations single-vendor multi-buyer (SVMB) EPQ can be easily achieved as

2

$$TC_{trade} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (K_{i,s} + K_{ij,b}) + \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_{m}) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij} \right) \right] \\ + \left(\frac{s_{1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)} + \frac{s_{2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)} \right) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} C_{trade} \times (e_{j}^{+} - e_{j}^{-}) \\ + \sum_{i}^{m} \left[x_{j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times x_{j}^{-}) - (int^{+} \times x_{j}^{+}) \right] \\ + \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_{j} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_{v} \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot (t_{L} + t_{M}) \right) \right]$$

s.t.

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{0} \cdot D_{ij}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)-b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij}\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij},\theta_{m}\right)+\left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}},L_{j},\theta_{t}\right)+\left(Q_{ij},D_{ij},\theta_{k}\right)\right]+\left(e_{j}^{-}-e_{j}^{+}\right)=E_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_m) + (Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \delta_m) \cdot \delta_t) + (Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) \cdot (1 - \delta_t) \cdot \delta_k) \right] \le F$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right) - b_{ij} \right) \le W_j$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} C_i \cdot Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) + (x_j^+ - x_j^-) = X_j$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \le N_{Max}$$

$$Q_{ij} \le Q_{Max}$$

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \ge 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$x_j^+, x_j^-, e_j^+, e_j^- \ge 0,$$
(6.17)

In this non-exergy sustainable model, we are looking to optimize four objectives simultaneously: (a) the total inventory cost, (b) the entire cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, (c) the total coal transportation cost among SC members, (d) and the cost of produced carbon emission by all processes. Consequently, we have six decision variables, for example, the amount of required loan/investment for each buyer (x_j^-, x_j^+) , the carbon credits for each buyer (e_j^+, e_j^-) , the order quantity of each item for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and the amount of backorder of each item for each buyer (b_{ij}) . The following subsection considers uncertainty to the non-exergy model in Eq. (6.17).

6.3.5. The inventory model in fuzzy environment

Stochastic modelling methods can solve the inventory model with sufficient historical data for ambiguous parameters (Aka and Akyüz, 2021). Despite this, it is problematic to have actual and exact random distributions because of the unavailability of historical data on the coal SC in Iran. Moreover, in the real coal SC business world, the market environments are full of ambiguities in a non-stochastic sense (Panja and Mondal, 2019). Therefore, most inventory models in the literature consider an impractical assumption; all the inventory settings occur in a deterministic and particular condition. To cope with this unrealistic assumption, Zadeh (1965) proposed "fuzzy set theory (FST)," which converts "ill-defined" data to mathematical terminologies. Accordingly, the problem considered in this study is a fuzzy EPQ SVMB multi-product SC. As discussed in Hanss (2005), different types of fuzzy numbers are usually used to express ambiguous or uncertain information since they can deal with the ambiguity or uncertainty of complex fuzzy information

(Wan et al., 2021). Moreover, the trapezoidal fuzzy number is a commonly used representation of uncertain information in real applications (He et al., 2018). Therefore, in this study, the buyer's demands, the unit price of products, the cost of goods sold per unit of product, and the carbon trade price are considered ill-defined and trapezoidal fuzzy numbers.

6.3.5.1. Graded Mean Integration representation technique

To figure out and employ the consequent responses from fuzzy SC, the results should be relevant for the top management of the companies. Therefore, defuzzification is necessary (Shekarian et al., 2017). As several techniques for the defuzzification of fuzzy numbers can be applied, one of the most employed, the "graded mean integration" technique (Chen and Hseih, 1998), is used in this paper. In most circumstances employing the extension rule to get the membership function of the fuzzy total cost function is not easy. Because the membership function does not alter with fuzzy arithmetic procedures, it is probable to estimate the defuzzified amount immediately through the graded mean integration technique through arithmetic procedures (Mahata and Goswami, 2013). Chen and Hseih (1998) method is helpful since it scores each point of support set of fuzzy numbers, and it is probable to determine the level of resemblance among fuzzy numbers concerning graded mean integration amounts. Suppose $\tilde{A} = (a_1, a_2, a_3, a_4)$ is a trapezoidal fuzzy number and L^{-1} , R^{-1} are correspondingly the inverse functions of *L* and *R*. Describe the graded mean *h*-level amount of \tilde{A} as $\frac{h[L^{-1}(h)+R^{-1}(h)]}{2}$ (Mahata and Goswami, 2013). So, the graded mean integration of fuzzy number \tilde{A} can be calculated as

$$P(\tilde{A}) = \frac{\int_{0}^{1} \frac{h[L^{-1}(h)+R^{-1}(h)]}{2} dh}{\int_{0}^{1} h.dh} = \int_{0}^{1} h[L^{-1}(h) + R^{-1}(h)]. dh$$
(6.18)

For trapezoidal fuzzy number $\tilde{A} = (a_1, a_2, a_3, a_4)$, $L^{-1}(h) = a_1 + (a_2 - a_1)h$ and $R^{-1}(h) = a_4 + (a_4 - a_3)h$. Afterward, the graded mean integration depiction of trapezoidal fuzzy number $\tilde{A} = (a_1, a_2, a_3, a_4)$ by Eq. (6.18) is given by

$$P(\tilde{A}) = \frac{a_1 + 2a_2 + 2a_3 + a_4}{6} \tag{6.19}$$

Therefore, in this study the buyers' demand (\widetilde{D}_{ij}) , purchasing price per unit of product i (\widetilde{C}_i) , cost of goods sold per unit of product i (\widetilde{C}_0) , and trade price of each unit of carbon (\widetilde{C}_{trade}) are considered trapezoidal fuzzy numbers i.e. $\widetilde{D}_{ij} = (D_{ij,1}, D_{ij,2}, D_{ij,3}, D_{ij,4}), \quad \widetilde{C}_i = (C_{i,1}, C_{i,2}, C_{i,3}, C_{i,4}), \quad \widetilde{C}_0 = (C_{0,1}, C_{0,2}, C_{0,3}, C_{0,4}), \text{ and } \widetilde{C}_{trade} = (C_{t,1}, C_{t,2}, C_{t,3}, C_{t,4}).$

6.4. Exergy modeling of fuzzy optimization of multi-buyer coal SC

The earlier section presents a fuzzy monetary sustainable EPQ model (minimum Dollar or Euro) for a coal SC under a carbon trade policy. In this section, we consider three factors of hidden cost in a coal SC such as capital (*Cap*), labor (*L*), and environment (*Env.*) remediation by employing the extended exergy accounting method and then convert the monetary model (Eq. 6.17) to the equivalent exergy model.

6.4.1. Extended exergy accounting

Extended exergy accounting is the quantity of initial exergy (in Joules; J) aggregate consumed in the manufacture, operation, and discarding procedure of certain goods or services. This method delivers more information than an entirely financial method, which cannot support any suggestion about utilizing global resources (Jawad et al., 2016). The initial aggregate exergy includes material (M), and energy (E), corresponding exergy of labor (L), money (Cap.), and ecological (Env.) remediation costs, of which the last three components are counted as the cost correspondence of economic externality and ecological externality (Song et al., 2019). It can be expressed as (Naderi et al., 2021b)

$$EEA = ee_M + ee_E + ee_{Cap} + ee_L + ee_{Env}$$
(6.20)

Where $(ee_M + ee_E)$ are the exergy of raw materials and energy flows, used in producing a product. The summation of these two exergies $(ee_M + ee_E)$ could be determined by transforming the summation of purchasing costs $(\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_i D_{ij})$ in the inventory model to the exergy equivalents (Jawad et al., 2015). As mentioned in subsection 6.3.4.2, for simplifying the mathematical model, we ignore the purchasing costs (and therefore exergy equivalents: $ee_M + ee_E$) since it does not affect the model's order quantity (Q_{ij} as decision variable). All related costs should be transformed into comparable exergetic amounts to employ the extended exergy accounting method in an inventory model. The setup (K), buying (C), and keeping (h) costs can be categorized into the summation of three exergetic amounts of capital, labor, and environment ($ee_{Cap,i} + ee_{L,i} + ee_{Env,i}$), respectively (Jawad et al. 2018),

$$ee_{Cap,i} = (i_{Cap}) \times ee_{Cap}$$
 (6.21)

$$ee_{L,i} = i_L \times ee_L/Labor \ cost$$
 (6.22)

$$ee_{Env,i} = i_{Env} \times ee_{Env} \tag{6.23}$$

where i = K, C, or h are calculated in J/order, J/unit, and J/unit/year, respectively. Concerning Eq. (6.23) for the exergy of environment characteristic, we accept the approach of Chen and Chen (2009), who respected ($ee_{Env} = ee_{Cap}$). Consequently, Eq. (6.23) is switched to ($ee_{Env,i} = i_{Env} \times ee_{Cap}$). It comprises any cost paid to get labor, capital, material, and other items used to reduce the damaging environmental effect of manufacturing a product, operating a SC, or delivering some other service (Jawad et al., 2015). Moreover (Jawad et al., 2015, 2018; Sciubba, 2011; Naderi et al., 2021b),

$$ee_{Cap} = \alpha. \beta\left(\frac{Ex_{in}}{M_2}\right)$$
 (6.24)

$$ee_L = \frac{\alpha.Ex_{in}}{(NWH)_{total}} \tag{6.25}$$

Where (ee_{Cap}, ee_L) are the specific exergy equivalent of one monetary unit $(\in, \$, \pounds, \clubsuit)$ and the unit equivalent exergy of labor, respectively. Additionally, (Ex_{in}) is the total incoming exergy fluctuation (J/yr), can be defined based on the energy budget of the country under investigation. Based on Sciubba (2011), the extended exergy accounting method determines the exergy corresponding to Labour, Money, and Ecological remediation (Eqs. 6.24 and 6.25) in goods or services by elements of " α " and " β " and some financial factors like GDP. These aspects are highly inspired by population, labor statistics, regular and international income, and normal workload. The stated aspects and exergy counterparts were examined and figured out by Sciubba (2011) for some developed and developing countries. For example, if setup cost ($K = \notin 30$) and we consider the percentages of money, labor, and ecological remediation denote the order cost, e.g., 60%, 30%, and 10%, therefore, $K_{Cap} = 0.6 \times 30 = \notin 18$, $K_L = 0.3 \times 30 = \notin 9$ and $K_{Env} = 0.1 \times 30 = \notin 3$. Considering Eqs. (6.21)-(6.25), one can calculate the three exergetic values of capital, labor, and environment ($ee_{Cap,K} + ee_{L,K} + ee_{Env,K}$) related to setup/order cost to achieve exergy $K_{(x)}$.

6.4.2. Applying extended exergy accounting to fuzzy optimization of multi-buyer coal SC

Under the carbon trade policy, the exergy equivalent of the total cost is $(TC_{(x)} = Z_{(x)1} + Z_{(x)2} + Z_{(x)3} + Z_{(x)4})$, These equivalents can be done with the following formulas (Jawad et al. 2015)

$$K_{(x)i,s} = \left(ee_{Cap,K(i,s)} + ee_{L,K(i,s)} + ee_{Env,K(i,s)}\right)$$
(6.26)

$$K_{(x)ij,b} = \left(ee_{Cap,K(ij,b)} + ee_{L,K(ij,b)} + ee_{Env,K(ij,b)}\right)$$
(6.27)

$$h_{(x)ij} = \left(ee_{Cap,h(ij)} + ee_{L,h(ij)} + ee_{Env,h(ij)}\right)$$
(6.28)

$$s_{(x)1} = s_1 \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.29}$$

$$s_{(x)2} = s_2 \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.30}$$

$$t_{(x)f} = t_f \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.31}$$

$$t_{(x)v} = t_v \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.32}$$

$$t_{(x)L} = t_L \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.33}$$

$$t_{(x)M} = t_M \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.34}$$

$$\widetilde{C_{(x)\iota}} = \left(ee_{Cap,\widetilde{C(\iota)}} + ee_{L,\widetilde{C(\iota)}} + ee_{Env,\widetilde{C(\iota)}}\right)$$
(6.35)

$$\widetilde{C_{(x)trade}} = \widetilde{C_{trade}} \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.36}$$

$$X_{(x)j} = X_j \times \left(ee_{Cap}\right) \tag{6.37}$$

Therefore, by using the above formulas to the objective functions and limitations of the model in Eq. (6.17), it is converted to a fuzzy exergy model as follows:

6.4.3. A fuzzy exergy modeling of coal SC with carbon trade policy

$$\begin{aligned} TC_{(x)trade} &= \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} (K_{(x)i,s} + K_{(x)ij,b}) + \frac{h_{(x)ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_{m}) \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij} \right)^{2} \right. \\ &+ \left(\frac{s_{(x)1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} + \frac{s_{(x)2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} \right) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} C_{(x)trade} \times (e_{j}^{+} - e_{j}^{-}) \\ &+ \sum_{i}^{m} [x_{(x)j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times x_{(x)j}^{-}) - (int^{+} \times x_{(x)j}^{+})] \\ &+ \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_{(x)f} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_{(x)v} \right) + \left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot (t_{(x)L} + t_{(x)M}) \right) \right] \end{aligned}$$

s.t.

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{(x)0} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{(x)0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)-b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij}\left(1-\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} \ge ITR_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{i}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \theta_{m}\right) + \left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_{j} \cdot \theta_{t}\right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}} \cdot \theta_{k}\right)\right] + \left(e_{j}^{-}-e_{j}^{+}\right) = E_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_{m}\right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1-\delta_{m}) \cdot \delta_{t}\right) + \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m}) \cdot (1-\delta_{t}) \cdot \delta_{k}\right)\right] \le F$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij}\right) \le W_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left(\widetilde{C_{(x)i}} \cdot Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\right) + \left(x_{(x)j}^{+} - x_{(x)j}^{-}\right) = X_{(x)j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \le N_{Max}$$

$$Q_{ij} \le Q_{Max}$$

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \ge 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$x_{(x)j}^{+}, x_{(x)j}^{-}, e_{j}^{+}, e_{j}^{-} \ge 0,$$

(6.38)

Under the extended exergy accounting technique, the following section suggests three recent metaheuristic algorithms to solve the fuzzy exergy model in Eq. (6.38).

6.5. A solution algorithm

In general, for solving optimization models like Eq. (6.38), there are three solution search methods such as exact (complete), heuristic, and metaheuristic (Shokouhifar and Jalali, 2017). The weakness of "Exact" approaches, for instance, LINGO, CPLEX, and GAMS are primarily on demanded CPU running time, particularly in real-size problems (Diabat 2014; Zahedi et al., 2016), while "heuristics" approaches do not explore the search space effectively (Naderi et al., 2021b). In contrast, "metaheuristics" algorithms have enhanced the global search implementation slightly (Yan et al., 2021; Guo et al., 2020) and have the most precision results with a reasonable CPU running time (Stojanovic et al., 2017). Since the model in Eq. (6.38) is "nonlinear integer-programming (NIP)" and "NP-complete," finding an "analytical solution" (if any) is demanding (Diabat, 2014; Gen and Cheng, 1997; Peng et al., 1998). The fact is that the objective function has a non-derivative arrangement, and the decision variables are integers (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014). Optimization with metaheuristic algorithms is an influential and well-known method utilized in several engineering and real-world problems (Islam et al., 2021; Maier et al., 2019). These algorithms focus on improved reliability, enhanced system performance, efficient resources, superior system response, profit intensification, error, and cost reduction. (Maier et al., 2019).

Metaheuristic algorithms employ a stochastic manner for the optimization process created on random operators (Islam et al., 2021). Moreover, natural or biological phenomena have stimulated metaheuristic algorithms based on swarm intelligence and evolution (Abdullah and Ahmed, 2020; Islam and Ahmed, 2020) and applied them to various models (Wang et al., 2020a). Many researchers have successfully employed traditional swarm intelligence and evolutionary algorithms, for instance, ant colony optimization (ACO), particle swarm optimization (PSO), and genetic algorithm (GA) (Roozbeh Nia et al., 2017a, 2017b). Despite these algorithms, there are some modern and attractive examples involving the Horse herd Optimization Algorithm (HOA) (MiarNaeimi et al., 2021; Moldovan, 2020), Whale Optimization Algorithm (WOA) (Mirjalili and Lewis, 2016; Islam et al., 2021; Yan et al., 2021; Zhang and Wen, 2021; Wang et al., 2021b), Lion Optimization Algorithm (LOA) (Yazdani and Jolai, 2016; Varshney et al., 2021; Selvi and Ramakrishnan, 2020; Wang et al., 2020b; Gope et al., 2019), Ant Lion Optimizer (ALO) (Mirjalili, 2015; Wang et al., 2020a; Bekakra et al., 2021; Singh et al., 2021; Chen et al., 2020a; Pradhan et al., 2020), and Grey wolf optimizer (GWO) (Mirjalili et al., 2014; Padhy and Panda, 2021; Bekakra et al., 2021; Wang et al., 2021a; Liu et al., 2021; Tütüncü et al., 2021).

The GA and ACO presents a high risk of falling into local optimal, accordingly might lead to an inconsistent result thus needed more iteration to find the optimal solutions (Varshney et al., 2021). Moreover, GA, ACO and PSO have many factors, and it is complicated to decide on correct parameters (Shinoda and Miyata, 2019). In this study we consider three recent metaheuristic

algorithms: ALO, LOA, and WOA, to solve the "exergy fuzzy NIP (EFNIP) problem" modeled in Eq. (38). The reasons for selecting these three modern algorithms are as follows:

- ALO has been demonstrated as an efficient optimization algorithm in many areas (Mirjalili, 2015; Dubey et al., 2016; Ali et al., 2017; Wang et al., 2020a) and has a good performance in deciding global optimum (Pradhan et al., 2020; Mirjalili, 2015). The crucial aspect of selecting ALO is by reason of its efficient search space employing random walk and choice of search agents by chance. (Pradhan et al., 2020). ALO has drawn extensive interest because of its relatively adequate efficiency, flexibility, and simplicity (Wang et al., 2020a).
- In most circumstances, the outcomes achieved by LOA deliver outstanding solutions in fast convergence and global optima accomplishment (Yazdani and Jolai, 2016). This approach uses the local as well as global optima and thus gives the optimal solution with minimum cost (fitness function) and takes less iteration (Varshney et al., 2021).
- WOA demands no added modification parameters to come to an outstanding balance between its exploration and exploitation (Aala Kalananda and Komanapalli, 2021). Study findings present that WOA is outstanding to other optimization methods, for instance, PSO, ACO, GA, differential evolution (DE), and gravitational search for solution precision and convergence speed (Chen et al., 2020c; Kaur and Arora, 2018; Mohammed et al., 2019, Jahromi et al., 2018). Since the benefits of effortless assumption, simple operation, straightforward application, few modification parameters, and strong robustness, the WOA algorithm has received widespread interest and has achieved many significant research outcomes (Du et al., 2021; Zhang et al., 2021; Long et al., 2020).

Based on the literature, metaheuristic algorithms' parameters substantially impact outcome quality and running time (Yang et al., 2009; Kao and Zahara, 2008). Consequently, the algorithm's parameters employed are based on a pilot study, and the algorithm's results will be validated with GAMS output in small-size problems. In the following subsections, short explanations primarily supported three metaheuristic algorithms. Interested readers are encouraged to see referred studies about these algorithms in detail. Afterward, the phases concerned in the proposed solutions are described.

6.5.1. The Ant Lion Optimization algorithm (ALO)

The Ant Lion Optimization algorithm, which Mirjalili (2015) proposed, is one of the naturestimulated optimization procedures for solving one-dimensional and multidimensional optimization models (Pradhan et al., 2020). The algorithm is stimulated by the hunting behavior of antlions that catch their prey, ants, by digging a pit in the sand (Singh et al., 2021; Mirjalili, 2015). A larva of an ant lion builds a conical-formed hole by going along a spherical route in the sand and putting the sand with its enormous jaw. After excavating the hole, larvae conceal at the bottom, stopping for ants to be stuck in the hole. When an ant has been stuck in the hole, the ant lion drops sand towards the outside, so it falls its target into the hole. Once an ant is stuck into the jaw, the ant lion draws the prey toward itself and eats (Mirjalili, 2015; Chen et al., 2020a). Six main processes were planned in ALO to replicate communication between the ant and the ant lion in the hole, comprising of random walk of ants, getting caught in the ant lion's trap, the construction of a hole, descending ants towards the ant lion, sticking prey, re-construction of the hole, and elitism, respectively (Mirjalili 2015; Wang et al., 2020a). An analysis of all prior studies on ALO is newly offered by (Heidari et al., 2020; Abualigah et al., 2020; Abderazek et al., 2020). Moreover, Appendix Fig. 6.A.1. presents pseudo-code of the ALO algorithm.

6.5.2. The lion optimization algorithm (LOA)

Yazdani and Jolai (2016) suggested Lion Optimization Algorithm (LOA) as a populationbased metaheuristic approach. It is an optimization naturally motivated by the attributes of lions. It replicates lions' social and hunting performance, for instance, prey capturing, roaming, mating, and defence (Selvi and Ramakrishnan, 2020). The lion has specific social behavior; hence it is the most powerful mammal globally. Lions have two forms of social behavior: inhabitants and travelers, and lions can switch over them. Inhabitants live in parties known as pride, in which resident females and males appear to give birth. The second structural behavior is so-called travelers, who occasionally move about in pairs or singularly. A detailed explanation of all LOA steps is presented in Yazdani and Jolai (2016). Moreover, Appendix Fig. 6.A.2. presents pseudocode of the LOA algorithm.

6.5.3. The whale optimization algorithm (WOA)

The whale optimization algorithm (WOA) is a recent swarm intelligence optimization method suggested by Mirjalili and Lewis (2016). The WOA algorithm is motivated by the hunting method of humpback whales. Their predation process is called the bubble-net attacking method, and it has been seen that it is done by producing unique bubbles along a circle (Goldbogen et al., 2013). The hunting behavior primarily includes three stages: search for prey, diminishing encircling, and spiral revising location (Mirjalili and Lewis, 2016; Wang et al., 2021b; Chen et al., 2020b, 2020c; Lee and Lu, 2020). The WOA uses three operators that simulate these phases. Among them, the operator replicating the bubble-net hunting behavior of humpback whales is an essential process in WOA (Li et al., 2021). In WOA, the location of each humpback whale stands for a search agent. During the search process, the whales progressively acquire the proper location of the prey by encircling, twisting, and capturing it at the end (Zhang et al., 2021). The WOA obtains the best solution to the global optimization problem by continuously revising the search agent (Yan et al., 2021). Moreover, WOA depends on a linearly declining vector whose value reduces from 2 to 0 as the repetitions develop (Aala Kalananda and Komanapalli, 2021). Appendix Fig. 6.A.3. presents pseudo-code of the WOA algorithm.

At the end of this section, the main steps in the recommended solution process of Eq. (38) under carbon trade emission policy and uncertain environment are presented in Fig. 6.1. Moreover, an illustration of the chromosomes related to the order quantity (Q) and backorder amount (b) of a numerical example with one supplier and ten buyers who have four products are presented in Fig. 6.2, correspondingly.

S.1	 Find the near-optimal solution of the model in Eq. (38) by three metaheuristic algorithms Find the superior algorithm for each numerical example
S.2	 Find the exact solution of the model in Eq. (38) by GAMS Compare them with metaheuristic algorithms ones
S.3	 A sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs of coal SC in eight countries Find the highest carbon reduction and lowest exergy for each

Fig.6.1. Flow chart of the proposed solving procedure

Q_{i1} :	1590	1343	1162	2001	<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>2} :	1135	1619	1167	1341
<i>Q</i> _{i3} :	1187	1838	1192	1673	<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>4} :	1183	1055	1857	2101
<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>5} :	1320	2216	1310	1076	Q_{i6}	1470	1486	1877	558
<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>7} :	1013	1023	1151	689	<i>Q_{i8}:</i>	1935	2104	1566	805
Q _{i9} :	1461	1099	1797	1404	<i>Q</i> _{<i>i</i>10}	1216	1427	2074	606



Fig.6.2. An example of the chromosomes for the numerical example with four products and ten buyers

6.6. Numerical examples

This section gives numerical test problems, including one real-world coal SC case study in Iran and nine arbitrary cases related to it. We are looking to optimize sustainability in a coal SC by considering the indirect (hidden) costs in Joules and including all three factors simultaneously (using the extended exergy accounting method) under a carbon trade policy in an uncertain environment. Based on the recommended solution steps in Fig. 6.1, we are examining to get the optimum value of six decision variables, such as the amount of required loan/investment for each buyer (x_j^-, x_j^+) , the required carbon credits for each buyer (e_j^+, e_j^-) , order quantity of each product for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and amount of backorder of each product for each buyer (b_{ij}) . Moreover, a sensitivity analysis considers different percentages for exergy costs in coal SC of eight countries: Iran, India, China, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe to find the best exergy values that great the highest sustainability in each country. These countries are ranked in the top 20 countries with the most coal consumption globally (Statista, 2020).

6.6.1 Case study in Iran

The real-world case study includes one supplier and ten buyers of coal products in an SC in Iran. Tabas Parvadeh Coal Company (TPCCO), located in Tabas city, is the biggest coal producer in Iran. Consistent with the statistics printed by the Iranian Mines and Mining Industries Development and Renovation Organization (IMIDRO), TPCCO extracted 1.232 million tons of coal from March 21, 2019, to January 20, 2020. With about 1.15 billion tons of reserves, Iranian coal mines can deliver up to three million tons of coal concentrate yearly (IEA, clean coal center 2020). From another point of view, the production of steel in Iran is highly dependent on coal since metallurgical coal, or coking coal, is an essential part of steel-making operations. TPCCO produces four diverse types (grades) of coal, and this company has ten key customers (steel producers) in different cities in Iran. TPCCO and all buyers use the public rail transport system to transport coal orders. Since demand of each steel producer (buyer) for each type of coal, coal purchasing price, and carbon emission price is not stated precisely, we consider them trapezoidal fuzzy numbers (see Appendix Tables 6.A.1 & 6.A.2). Moreover, the initial data of the test problems (parameters and resource values) and their equivalent exergy parameters are presented in Appendix Tables 6.A.3-6.A.10, respectively. Moreover, all inventory costs and their equivalent exergy cost related to real case study in Iran are presented in Table 6.4. Consistent with the informed values in Sciubba (2011) as the only reference study for the extended exergy accounting method in the literature, we take equivalent exergy parameters of Egypt due to the resemblances between Iran and Egypt regarding economic development, population, religion, and culture. Therefore, exergy parameters of Iran and selected countries are presented in Table 6.5.

After consulting with SC managers of TPCCO, it was estimated that each cost of $K_{i,S}$, $K_{ij,b}$, h_{ij} and C_i can be divided to Cap=30% for capital, L=60% for labor, and Env=10%for ecological remediation. In Subsection 4.1, we described the method of extended exergy accounting and related formulas that we applied to our model. For example, in Table 6.4, the cost of $K_{i,S}$ is assumed $\in 20$ for the first product which includes $\in 6$ (20×0.30), $\in 12$ (20×0.60) and $\in 2$ (20×0.10) (monetary values) for capital (Cap=30%), labor (L=60%) and environmental (Env=10%) remediation, respectively. Moreover, these three numbers are converted to the exergy values of 34.08, 3.56, and 11.36 *MJ*, respectively (in total $K_{(x)i,S} = 49$ *MJ*). To show better the performance of our suggested modern metaheuristic algorithms in solving big-size test problems, besides the actual case study, we considered nine arbitrary numerical examples related to it with 10, 20, 40, 80, 160, 320, 640, 1280, and 2560 products in a sustainable coal SC in Iran with one supplier and 15 buyers. The initial data of all numerical examples are shown in Appendix Tables (6.A.1)-(6.A.10), respectively. As noted previously, a pilot study is used for the parameter tuning of all suggested metaheuristic algorithms, and the test problems are solved on a PC with an Intel Core i7-7500U CPU with 2.70GHz and 8.00 GB RAM in Windows 10. The "MATLAB" 2017a software is also employed for coding all the algorithms.

	Prod. value	ue Unit <mark>N</mark>	Mone	etary v	alues	Exerg	y values	s (MJ)	Total avanav		
	Frou.	value	Unit	Cap.	L.	Env.	ee _{Cap,i}	$ee_{L,i}$	ee _{Env,i}	Total exergy	
$K_{i,S}$	i	20	Euro/order	6	12	2	34.08	3.56	11.36	49	$K_{(x)i,S}$
K _{ij,b}	i	15	Euro/order	4.5	9	1.5	25.56	2.67	8.52	36.75	$K_{(x)ij,b}$
C_i	1	200	Euro/unit	60	120	20	340.8	35.6	113.6	490	$C_{(x)i}$
	2	170		51	102	17	289.68	30.26	96.56	416.50	
	3	140		42	84	14	238.56	24.92	79.52	343.00	
	4	100		30	60	10	170.40	17.80	56.80	245.00	
h _{ij}	1	5	Euro/unit/year	1.5	3	0.5	8.52	0.89	2.84	12.25	$h_{(x)ij}$
	2	4		1.2	2.4	0.4	6.82	0.71	2.27	9.80	
	3	3		0.9	1.8	0.3	5.11	0.53	1.70	7.35	
	4	3		0.9	1.8	0.3	5.11	0.53	1.70	7.35	

 Table 6.4: Inventory costs and their equivalent exergy based on capital (30%), labor (60%), and environment (10%) values (Test with four products)

Table 6.5: The exergy parameters of selected countries (sensitivity analysis) (Sciubba, 2011)

	Unit	Iran	Australia	China	India	Japan	Poland	USA	Zimbabwe
α_x	-	0.0121	0.018	0.0015	0.0419	0.773	0.55	0.145	0.0026
$\boldsymbol{\beta}_{x}$	-	2.94	1.69	0.477	1.32	1.9	0.57	1.43	3.9
ee _{Cap}	MJ/Euro	5.68	3.56	14.01	4.34	3.35	14.02	2.85	3.35
eeL	MJ/WH	3.56	71.21	48.66	1.64	70.18	76.55	72.82	70.18

6.6.2 Solving phases and related results

6.6.2.1 Step one - Metaheuristic algorithms

Based on solving procedure (Fig. 6.1), at the first step, all suggested metaheuristic algorithms are executed 15 times for the fuzzy exergy model with carbon trade policy (Eq. 6.38). The outputs of algorithms include the lowest fuzzy total exergy (MJ), and the CPU times (*seconds*) are presented in Tables 6.6 and 6.7, respectively. Based on the results, the superior metaheuristic algorithm for the smallest fuzzy total exergy (MJ) and running times (*seconds*) could be found for the model (Eq. 6.38).

Concerning the fuzzy total exergy and in line with the fallouts shown in Table 6.6, ALO is the best algorithm (with 32,753,094.69 and 122,319,654.35 MJ) in the actual case study in Iran with four products as well as the numerical test with ten products, while for test problems from 20 to 2560 products, WOA is the best. For our large size test problems (640, 1280 & 2560 products), WOA gets the lowest fuzzy total exergy cost (3,964,974,414.68; 8,490,424,760.63 &

20,715,326,512.04 MJ) followed by LOA, and ALO, respectively (see Fig. 6.3). Regarding Appendix Fig. 6.A.4, performance improvement between top two algorithms from 20p to 80p test problems, are less since the results of them are very close together. But in large-size test problems the average performance enhancement between the results of WOA and LOA is about 90%, which means the results of WOA are outstanding. In opposition, ALO has the highest fuzzy total exergy (MJ) results in our medium and large-size test problems.

Considering the CPU time (Sec.), WOA is absolutely the best algorithm with the lowest running time in all test problems (see Fig. 6.4). For example, in our large-size test problems (640, 1280 & 2560 products), the WOA CPU times were 49.23, 78.89, and 154.47 (Sec.), respectively (see Table 6.7). Moreover, in large-size test problems, the average of WOA's performance improvement (%) with the second-best algorithm is about 700% which means WOA solves the models fast (see Appendix Fig. 6.A.5). Conversely, ALO has the highest CPU time among other algorithms in all test problems except for 1285 products, where LOA (with 829.7169 Sec.) is the worse algorithm (see Table 6.7). In Fig. 6.5, we presented some convergence diagrams of the smallest fuzzy total exergy by the proposed algorithms.

Test	ALO	LOA	WOA	Min. (MJ)	The bests	Performance improvement (%)
4p	32,753,094.69	56,130,526.91	48,504,010.50	32,753,094.69	ALO-WOA-LOA	48.09
10p	122,319,654.35	291,716,085.98	265,533,078.08	122,319,654.35	ALO-WOA-LOA	117.08
20p	620,356,160.82	464,274,771.96	444,387,816.87	444,387,816.87	WOA-LOA-ALO	4.48
40p	1,229,059,326.54	606,789,259.79	556,126,023.95	556,126,023.95	WOA-LOA-ALO	9.11
80p	2,772,002,306.09	950,139,646.13	887,480,983.66	887,480,983.66	WOA-LOA-ALO	7.06
160p	6,468,347,547.44	2,366,142,295.46	1,010,480,171.31	1,010,480,171.31	WOA-LOA-ALO	134.16
320p	12,809,569,710.57	5,295,722,151.09	2,409,465,266.86	2,409,465,266.86	WOA-LOA-ALO	119.79
640p	28,098,451,686.15	7,622,351,301.01	3,964,974,414.68	3,964,974,414.68	WOA-LOA-ALO	92.24
1280p	57,806,847,743.44	18,118,616,031.71	8,490,424,760.63	8,490,424,760.63	WOA-LOA-ALO	113.40
2560p	112,083,644,493.09	37,319,812,944.67	20,715,326,512.04	20,715,326,512.04	WOA-LOA-ALO	80.16

 Table 6.6: The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) observed by the algorithms under carbon trade policy in Iran (Eq. 6.38)

Table 6.7: The CPU times (Sec.) of solving numerical examples by the algorithms under carbon trade policy in Iran (Eq. 6.38)

Test	ALO	LOA	WOA	Min. (Sec.)	The bests	Performance improvement (%)
4p	3.07	3.23	0.97	0.97	WOA-ALO-LOA	214.90
10p	8.29	7.53	1.52	1.52	WOA-LOA-ALO	395.23
20p	14.71	12.62	2.60	2.60	WOA-LOA-ALO	384.68
40p	27.78	26.81	4.03	4.03	WOA-LOA-ALO	565.62
80p	53.99	51.63	5.57	5.57	WOA-LOA-ALO	826.17
160p	104.94	98.24	8.72	8.72	WOA-LOA-ALO	1026.17
320p	207.59	190.57	18.37	18.37	WOA-LOA-ALO	937.27
640p	406.38	339.40	49.23	49.23	WOA-LOA-ALO	589.36
1280p	801.43	829.72	78.89	78.89	WOA-ALO-LOA	915.85
2560p	1,606.61	1,442.98	154.47	154.47	WOA-LOA-ALO	834.17



Fig.6.3. The total fuzzy exergy comparisons of algorithms in large size test problems (step 1)



Fig.6.4. The CPU time comparisons of all algorithms (step 1)



Fig.6.5. The convergence diagram of the total fuzzy exergy by the proposed algorithms (step 1)

6.6.2.2 Step two - Exact method

A solution may be compared with an "exact method" to validate the results by suggested algorithms. Exact optimizer software, for example, "GAMS" or an optimization library in "Python," can find the "exact result." In this research, the proposed mathematical model (Eq. 6.38) under carbon trade strategy is solved in small size (test with four products) by GAMS. A contrast with the best metaheuristic algorithm is made in Table 6.8. Taking into account Eq. (38) for the 4-product test problem, the exact result for the fuzzy total exergy is 31,537,292.44 (MJ), while the outcome of the best metaheuristic algorithm (ALO) for this test is 32,753,094.69 (MJ). Therefore, the percentage penalty between the exact method and ALO is 3.86% (see Table 6.8). Because the percentage penalty is minor, suggesting the excellent dominance of the solutions got by the best-suggested algorithm (Cárdenas-Barrón et al., 2012) since it is remarkably close to the exact method and ALO is 1.21 (Sec.), but the percentage penalty is 39.48%. It shows that the metaheuristic algorithm (ALO) solved the carbon trade model more rapidly (see Appendix Fig. 6.A.6).

	ALO	Exact	Difference	Penalty (%)
Fuzzy total exergy:	32,753,094.69	31,537,292.44	1,215,802.25	3.86
CPU time:	3.07	4.28	1.21	39.48

Table 6.8: Comparing the results of the exact method (GAMS) with the best algorithm (ALO)



Fig.6.6. Comparison of the total fuzzy exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2)

6.6.2.3 Step three- Sensitivity analysis

In the earlier subsections, we studied the optimization of a sustainable fuzzy EPQ model of coal SC in Iran by taking into account different objectives simultaneously: the costs of the inventory system, an additional required budget of each buyer, coal transportation cost among SC members, and carbon emission cost. All goals in the models and related limitations under the emission trade strategy are in MJ in place of monetary values. This step tries to balance economic and sustainable advantages for coal SC companies. Considering that our proposed model is sustainable, we modify the exergy percentage for capital, labor, and environmental remediation by a sensitivity analysis to find the best values of exergy components that improve the sustainability of coal SC more than before. Additionally, to gain further insight into this adjustment, we evaluate sustainable coal SC in Iran as well as seven selected developing and developed countries with the world's most significant coal consumption. They are India, China, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe (Statista, 2020). We assumed the same coal SC and products for all these countries to make a comparative analysis. In the previous section, we mentioned that in our numerical examples, it was assumed that each cost of $K_{i,S}$, $K_{i,i,b}$, $h_{i,i}$ and C_i can be allocated to Cap=30% for capital, L=60% for labor, and Env=10% for ecological remediation (consider it as exergy Set A). In this section, to get more insight, we have changed these percentages to make seven different exergy sets (see Appendix Fig. 6.A.7), including A (30-60-10), B (60-20-20), C (20-50-30), D (20-40-40), E (20-30-50), F (30-10-60) and G (33-33-33). Considering each exergy set, we computed the fuzzy total exergy for a 4-item test problem under carbon trade policy for all countries by GAMS (see Table 6.9). For example, we consider coal SC in the USA and exergy Set C (*Cap*=20%, L=50%, and Env=30%), then employing extended exergy accounting method to convert all monetary costs of $K_{i,S}$, $K_{ij,b}$, h_{ij} and C_i to equivalent (MJ). After that, we run model Eq. (38) with four product test problems using the Exact method (GAMS). Likewise, the same process was done for other exergy Sets (A-G) and considering other countries' coal SC. Finally, all results are presented in Table 6.9. In the following we explain the results in detail.

		ty analysis of	unicient p	citemages in	Tuble 05. Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy elements (example with four products)										
Sets (%)			Fuzzy t	otal exergy (Emission tr	ade) MJ			Min.	Country	Max.	Country			
*	AU**	СН	IN	IR	JA	РО	US	ZI	(MJ)	min.	(MJ)	max.			
A (30-60-	37,386,6	121,884,4	32,520,6	31,537,2	38,038,4	106,551,3	31,673,7	31,803,4	31,537,2	Iron	121,884,4	China			
10)	44.58	57.74	76.90	92.44	72.22	02.66	57.27	58.12	92.44	IIall	57.74	Cillia			
B (60-20-	27,362,6	109,229,9	56,664,3	50,042,1	40,279,2	110,155,0	22,604,5	23,779,7	22,604,5	LISA	110,155,0	Poland			
20)	03.27	63.03	03.08	80.33	08.50	55.08	64.59	47.58	64.59	USA	55.08	rolaliu			
С (20-50-	36,172,0	83,731,24	24,826,1	35,822,2	30,489,6	86,131,62	29,064,2	26,772,1	24,826,1	India	86,131,62	Dolond			
30)	81.05	2.82	36.13	52.13	73.91	7.76	37.19	35.64	36.13	India	7.76	Poland			
D (20-40-	30,457,3	94,201,68	32,528,3	43,914,3	36,862,1	92,933,11	31,090,8	25,762,8	25,762,8	Zimbabw	94,201,68	China			
40)	41.89	5.52	08.04	27.75	47.59	4.17	27.64	54.83	54.83	e	5.52	China			
E (20-30-	35,641,7	111,411,4	43,026,7	43,802,2	36,228,0	109,302,8	25,320,9	28,886,5	25,320,9	LICA	111,411,4	China			
50)	76.33	81.62	17.09	95.45	06.97	25.19	51.45	60.45	51.45	USA	81.62	Cillia			
F (30-10-	24,251,6	128,734,2	29,354,4	49,114,88	22,873,5	123,315,6	19,675,6	22,873,5	19,675,6		128,734,2	China			
60)	04.43	40.79	58.87	5.31	47.02	02.00	09.14	47.02	09.14	USA	40.79	Cillia			
G (33-33-	33,163,7	121,351,1	31,623,7	44,552,8	32,432,0	118,125,5	29,934,3	24,146,3	24,146,3	Zimbabw	121,351,1	China			
33)	23.31	02.11	90.11	27.66	70.96	44.27	68.36	38.65	38.65	e	02.11	China			
Min	24,251,6	83,731,24	24,826,1	31,537,2	22,873,5	86,131,62	19,675,6	22,873,5	Min M	:	Max Ma	MD			
IVIIII.	04.43	2.82	36.13	92.44	47.02	7.76	09.14	47.02		III. (IVIJ)		IX. (IVIJ)			
Set Min.	F	С	С	А	F	С	F	F	19,675,6 09.14	USA	128,734,2 40.79	China			
Max.	37,386,6	128,734,2	56,664,3	50,042,1	40,279,2	123,315,6	31,673,7	31,803,4							
Sot Mor	A	E	D	D	D	52.00 E	A								
Set Max.	A	Г	В	В	В	Г	A	A							
*Set (Cap%	-L%-Enviro	nment%); **/	AU: Australia	a, CH: China,	, IN: India, I	R: Iran, JA: Ja	ipan, PO: Po	land, US: the	e USA, ZI: Z	imbabwe					

 Table 6.9: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy elements (example with four products)

6.6.2.3.1 Analysis of each country

Considering Table 6.9 and Fig. 6.7, for coal SC in each country, we have:

- Australia: For coal SC under the carbon trade policy in this country, the top exergy components are Set F (30-10-60) since more exergy percentage is assumed for Environment (60%) and less for Labor (10%). It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 24,251,604.43 (MJ) for coal SC. Besides, the worst exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which created the highest fuzzy total exergy with 37,386,644.58 (MJ).
- China: The best exergy components are Set C (20-50-30) when Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 83,731,242.82 (MJ) for coal SC. Likewise, the weakest exergy components are Set F (30-10-60) when more exergy percentage is assumed for Environment (60%) and only 10% for Labor, which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 128,734,240.79 (MJ).
- India: Like China, the finest exergy components in India are Set C (20-50-30), when Labor has 50% weight, while Environment and Capital are 30% and 20%, respectively. It produced the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 24,826,136.13 (MJ) for coal SC. Moreover, the unpleasant exergy components are Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is expected for Capital (60%) and the same weights (20%) for Labor and Environment, which formed the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 56,664,303.08 (MJ).
- Iran: For coal SC in this country, the top exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) as Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It made the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 31,537,292.44 (MJ). Like India, the unhealthiest exergy components in Iran are Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is assigned to Capital (60%) and the same weights for Labor and Environment (20%), which generated the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 50,042,180.33 (MJ).
- ➤ Japan: Like Australia, the best exergy components in Japan are Set F (30-10-60), while more exergy percentage is given to Environment (60%) and less to Labor (10%). It established the least amount of fuzzy total exergy with 22,873,547.02 (MJ) for coal SC. Furthermore, the unhealthiest exergy components are Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is provided to Capital (60%) and the same weights for Labor and Environment (20%), which generated the highest fuzzy total exergy of 40,279,208.50 (MJ).
- Poland: Like India and China, the excellent exergy components in Poland are Set C (20-50-30), when Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. It created the least possible fuzzy total exergy of 86,131,627.76 (MJ) for coal SC. Besides, the worst exergy components are Set F (30-10-60), when more exergy percentage is offered to Environment (60%) and less on Labor (10%), which created the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 123,315,602.00 (MJ).
- The USA: Like Australia and Japan, the superior exergy components in the USA are Set F (30-10-60) as more exergy percentage is assumed to Environment (60%) and less on Labor (10%). It generated the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 19,675,609.14 (MJ) for coal SC. Additionally, the harmful exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which established the highest fuzzy total exergy of 31,673,757.27 (MJ).
- Zimbabwe: Like Australia, Japan and the USA, the first-rate exergy components in Zimbabwe are Set F (30-10-60) because more exergy percentage is assumed to

Environment (60%) and less on Labor (10%). It crafted the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 22,873,547.02 (MJ) for coal SC. Additionally, the weakest exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 31,803,458.12 (MJ).

- Considering Table 6.9, the best total exergy (MJ) in each country is as follow: Australia (24,251,604.43), China (83,731,242.82), India (24,826,136.13), Iran (31,537,292.44), Japan (22,873,547.02), Poland (86,131,627.76), the USA (19,675,609.14) and Zimbabwe (22,873,547.02).
- Among all presented countries, the coal SC in the USA has the smallest total exergy (19,675,609.14 MJ), followed by Japan, Zimbabwe, Australia, India, Iran, China, and Poland, respectively (see Fig. 6.7).
- Moreover, coal SC in China creates the highest total exergy for all exergy sets except for Set B (60-20-20) and Set C (20-50-30) related to Poland (see Fig. 6.8).

6.6.2.3.2 Analysis of each exergy set

Considering Table 6.9, Fig. 6.8, and Appendix Fig. 6.A.7, for each exergy set, we have:

- Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): This exergy set has 60% for Labor, while for Environment, it is only 10%. Although this set works well for coal SC in Iran, with the minimum total exergy of 31,537,292.44 (MJ), in China, it is 121,884,457.74 (MJ).
- Exergy Set B (60%-20%-20%): In this set, more weight is assumed for Capital (60%) and the same for Labor and Environment (20%). Despite coal SC in Poland (110,155,055.08 MJ), exergy set B operates well in the USA with 22,604,564.59 (MJ).
- Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this set, Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. Exergy set C performs well in coal SC in India (24,826,136.13 MJ), even though in Poland, the total exergy is 86,131,627.76 (MJ).
- Exergy Set D (20%-40%-40%): In this set, Capital has only 20% while 40% is for both Labor and Environment. In spite of the high result in China with 94,201,685.52 (MJ), exergy set D runs well in Zimbabwe with 25,762,854.83 (MJ).
- Exergy Set E (20%-30%-50%): In this set, 50% is assigned to Environment and 20% and 30% to Capital and Labor, respectively. Exergy set E operates well in the USA with 25,320,951.45 (MJ), although the result is high in China (111,411,481.62 MJ).
- Exergy Set F (30%-10%-60%): In this set, 60% is allocated to Environment and only 10% Labor. Exergy set F performs well in the USA (19,675,609.14 MJ), despite the fact that the result is not healthy in China (128,734,240.79 MJ).
- Exergy Set G (33%-33%-33%): In this set, all three exergy components have equal 33% weight. Even though exergy set G does not perform well in China with 121,351,102.11 (MJ), it runs well in Zimbabwe with 24,146,338.65 (MJ).
- Moreover, exergy Sets B (30-60-10), E (20-30-50) and F (30-10-60) created the minimum total exergy for coal SC in the USA, while all exergy sets except Set B (30-60-10) and Set C (20-50-30) created the highest total exergy in China (see Fig. 6.8).



Fig.6.7. Sensitivity analysis for each country – Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)



Fig.6.8. Sensitivity analysis for each set - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)

6.7. Conclusions and future work

According to the literature review, there is a lack of studies that assess a coal SC under a carbon trade policy with ambiguous parameters such as carbon price and customer demand. Likewise, it is scarce to obtain research that assesses a SC in terms of Joules (in place of traditional monetary measures of performance) and simultaneously evaluates all sustainability characteristics, such as economic, labour, and environmental. Similarly, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no exergy analysis method like the extended exergy accounting in the literature considers carbon

policy in SC. Therefore, this study develops the work in the papers by Jawad et al. (2016) and Naderi et al. (2021a) to a multi-product multi-limitation inventory (EPQ) model with backorder for a coal SC in Iran under an uncertain environment. By applying the extended exergy accounting technique and Mega-Joules (*MJ*) as a universal unit of measure, the total exergy of the coal SC can be calculated. Moreover, a well-known carbon reduction strategy (carbon trade) is employed to evaluate the sustainability performance of the model. In this study, we presented four research questions (in Section 6.3) and attempted to answer them.

Q1. Is it possible to assess the sustainability of coal SC under a carbon reduction policy in terms of Joules rather than money, to benefit both the economy and the environment?

In subsection 6.3.4, we developed a non-exergy mathematical model of the coal SC for carbon trade policy. Then the model has converted to a fuzzy model in subsection 6.3.5, and finally, a new SC assessment method called the extended exergy accounting (in terms of Joules) was employed in section 6.4. This method contains energy and material's main aggregate exergy subject and costs corresponding to economic externality (labor and capital) and ecological externality (environmental remediation). Therefore, employing this method could benefit both the economy and the environment. After that, three recent metaheuristic algorithms (ALO, LOA, and WOA) are utilized. When contrasting the best algorithm outcomes in small-size test problems (four products) with the exact method (GAMS), there is a small percentage error (3.86%) under the carbon trade policy between them. Therefore, it could validate the results of metaheuristic algorithms in this study.

Q2. Generally speaking, coal SC in developing countries, or even China, has the lowest overall cost; however, considering sustainability aspects (social, economic, and environmental characteristics) in terms of Joules, does this assumption still hold true?

Regarding the sensitivity analysis in subsection 6.6.2.3, we compared the sustainability of coal SC in eight developed and developing countries, such as Iran, India, China, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe (see Table 6.9). They are the world's most significant coal-consuming countries (Statista, 2020). It was observed that, Poland and China have the highest fuzzy total exergy of a sustainable coal SC (86,131,627.76 and 83,731,242.82 MJ, respectively) among eight selected countries. The reason behind this issue is that traditional assessment methods consider economic measures. In contrast, the method of extended exergy accounting (as mentioned in Section 6.4) considers all three aspects of sustainability (Labour, Money, and Ecological remediation) in goods or services. It determines the exergy corresponding to them (in terms of Joules) by some elements significantly affected by population, normal workload, labor statistics, and local and international wages in each country. Therefore, the extended exergy accounting results show the total number of Joules that coal SC utilized in Labour, Money, and Ecological aspects.

Q3. Which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules?

Based on Table 6.9, the lowest total exergy of a sustainable coal SC among all eight countries belongs to the USA (19,675,609.14 MJ) under the carbon trade policy. It means sustainable coal mining and related processes in the USA have economic and environmental advantages compared to China or developing countries such as Iran and Zimbabwe. Moreover, Japan, Zimbabwe, Australia, India, Iran, China, and Poland followed the USA (see Fig. 6.7).
Q4. What is the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) to achieve the greatest saving wherever coal SCs are working?

Considering subsection 6.2.3 and Table 6.9, it is observed that under carbon trade policy, exergy Set F (30-10-60) percentages created the minimum fuzzy total exergy (highest carbon and exergy reduction) in coal SC of the countries such as Australia, Japan, the USA, and Zimbabwe. Set F (30-10-60) is given more weight (60%) to Environment, 30% to Capital and only 10% to Labor. Likewise, for coal SC in China, India, and Poland, exergy Set C (20-50-30) generated the least amount of fuzzy total exergy (83,731,242.82; 24,826,136.13 & 86,131,627.76 MJ respectively). In Set C (20-50-30), the emphasis is on Labor with 50% weight, while Capital and Environment have 20% and 30%, respectively. Finally, for coal SC in Iran, Set A (30-60-10) has the best exergy component with the minimum fuzzy total exergy of (31,537,292.44 MJ). Labor with 60% is the first weight in Set A (30-60-10), while only 10% was assigned to Environment and 30% to Capital.

Moreover, the theoretical and managerial implications of this work are presented as follows:

It is important to note that the EEA method has the advantage of enabling meaningful comparisons between coal SCs in different countries that produce the same coal type. By comparing the amount of exergy consumed in the coal production process and related SC processes, it becomes easier to determine where a coal SC business should be located. Due to this, selecting a product from a country with low wages, such as China or India, may not always be beneficial as more exergy is required for its production. Using the EEA method provides an indication of the sustainability impact of coal SCs in an era when climate change concerns are increasing prevalent.

The exergy equations in Section 6.4 (for instance, Eqs. 6.26-6.37) show that all exergy parameters in Table 6.5 are directly related to the cost elements of inventory models (such as setup, purchasing, and holding), and affect the exergy functioning of the coal SC in a significant way. It is therefore critical to decrease the cost elements of a coal SC's inventory model to improve sustainability. The managers could use stock classification and shorter order cycles, reducing the lead time of suppliers, eliminating obsolete inventory, implementing a Just-in-Time inventory system, and monitoring key performance indicators.

Unlike conventional financial and commercial models, the results of our study found that despite assumptions that inventory parameters in coal SC are unchanged for all eight countries, more savings could be achieved through the tuning of exergy's inflows and outflows in each country. It means that no fixed amount of exergy components (Capital, Labor and Environment) can deliver the highest sustainability in all countries. According to our results in Table 6.9, set F (30-10-60) with 60% weight allocated to the environment and only 10% to labor generates the greatest sustainability for the USA (19,675,609.14 MJ) as well as the most unpleasant sustainability for China (128,734,240.79 MJ). Hence, finding the most appropriate values of the exergy components of the SC would be another task for decision makers.

Another point is that, considering Table 6.5, one can conclude that the exergy parameter of Capital ($ee_{Cap} = 2.85 \text{ MJ/Euro}$) in the USA is less than the other countries. In contrast, China and Poland have the highest exergy parameter of Capital ($ee_{Cap} = 14.01 \& 14.02 \text{ MJ/Euro}$) among other countries. This would be one of the reasons why the USA has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules whereas China and Poland are the least sustainable. Therefore, a way to increase

sustainability in each country is to find ways to decrease exergy parameters. If we look at Eqs. (6.24) and (6.25), exergy parameters of (ee_{Cap}, ee_L) are dependent on two econometric coefficients (α_x, β_x) as well as (Ex_{in}) . Subsection 6.4.1 explains that these are influenced by the type of societal organization, the historical period, the technological level, the pro-capital resource consumption, and the geographical location of the country (Sciubba, 2011). All shareholders, governments, individuals, societies, business organisations, scientists, etc., need to contribute significantly to adjusting parameters, if possible. An example is controlling the import and export of goods from and to the country, or extracting ores and minerals. Promoting locally made goods can be a way for individuals, societies, and business organizations to support this cause. As a result, there would be more jobs available in the country, and increasing the labor force rate (Jawad et al., 2018). Additionally, effective productivity growth (output per hour worked) can boost a country's income and GDP per capita. For more information, readers are encouraged to consult Sciubba (2011).

In addition, decision-makers should find ways to improve the sustainability of their coal SC by reducing waste, labor, material, and pollution, which will reduce the damaging effects of coal SC. When calculating energy costs, managers of SC would have more flexibility since they could use available resources rather than just capital to calculate the quantity. Furthermore, this research will also guide managers of international coal mining companies who wish to decide which country has more sustainable conditions for their business and investments. Furthermore, the EEA method in this study is subject to some limitations, including the following:

- When EEA is employed to a coal SC, the precision of the outcomes is dependent upon the assumptions made.
- It is possible that the EEA method in coal SCs may have limitations when more than one country is involved in the SC processes (international companies).
- Insufficient data regarding a country's total exergy input, the quantity of exergy represented in the workforce, the exergy of raw materials and energy consumed to supply a coal.

The following avenues for future research are suggested for consideration:

- a) A coal production system.
- b) An international coal SC model that works in more than one country at the same time.
- c) Comparing a global coal SC with a national one.
- d) A model with multi-objective (integrating inventory measures).
- e) The strategy of increasing carbon price with increasing the amount of carbon (price dependent on amount) by each company.
- f) The SC of coal power plants.
- g) Quantity discounts in cost per unit of products can be allowed.
- h) Multi-echelon SCs, for example, single-buyer multi-supplier and multi-buyer multi-supplier SCs, can be investigated.
- i) Lead times can be included.

Postscripts:

This chapter considered carbon trade policy for coal SC to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by incorporating extended exergy accounting. In the next chapter, carbon cap policy will be applied to coal SC. Additionally, carbon offset policy will be presented in Chapter 8, as additional material.

Paper Appendix-Chapter 6

Table 6.A.1. Fuzzy demands of 15 buyers (<i>i</i>) and 10 products (<i>i</i>) (values: *1000)	
Tuble of the Tuble of the buyers () and to produces () (tubles. 1000)	

	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••									
j	i=1	i=2	i=3	i=4	i=5	i=6	i=7	i=8	i=9	i=10
1	(100, 110,	$(70, 80, 9\overline{5},$	(65, 68, 72,	(16, 18, 21,	(115, 118, 122,	(85, 88, 91,	(66, 68, 71,	(16, 18, 21,	(112, 118, 121,	(82, 88, 91,
1	125,150)	120)	75)	26)	125)	97)	76)	26)	130)	100)
2	(100, 110,	(60, 70, 85,	(55, 58, 62,	(16, 18, 21,	(115, 118, 122,	(75, 78, 81,	(56, 58, 61,	(16, 18, 21,	(112, 118, 121,	(72, 78, 81,
2	125,150)	110)	65)	26)	125)	87)	66)	26)	130)	90)
2	(90, 100, 115,	(60, 70, 85,	(55, 58, 62,	(11, 13, 16,	(105, 108, 112,	(75, 78, 81,	(56, 58, 61,	(11, 13, 16,	(102, 108, 111,	(72, 78, 81,
5	140)	110)	65)	21)	115)	87)	66)	21)	120)	90)
1	(70 80 05 120)	(40, 50, 65,	(35, 38, 42,	(6, 8, 11,	(85 88 02 05)	(55, 58,	(36, 38, 41,	(6, 8, 11,	$(82 \ 88 \ 01 \ 100)$	(52, 58, 61,
4	(70, 80, 95, 120)	90)	45)	16)	(83, 88, 92, 93)	61,67)	46)	16)	(82, 88, 91, 100)	70)
5	(60, 70, 85, 110)	(40, 50, 65,	(25, 28, 32,	(5, 7, 10,	(75 78 82 85)	(55, 58,	(26, 28, 31,	(5, 7, 10,	$(77 \ 78 \ 81 \ 90)$	(52, 58, 61,
5	(00, 70, 00, 110)	90)	35)	15)	(75, 76, 62, 65)	61,67)	36)	15)	(72, 70, 01, 70)	70)
6	(50, 60, 75, 100)	(30, 40, 55,	(15, 18, 22,	$(1 \ 6 \ 0 \ 14)$	(65 68 72 75)	(45, 48, 51,	(16, 18, 21,	$(1 \ 6 \ 9 \ 14)$	(62 68 71 80)	(42, 48, 51,
U	(50, 00, 75, 100)	80)	25)	(4, 0,), 14)	(05, 00, 72, 75)	57)	26)	(4, 0,), 14)	(02, 00, 71, 00)	60)
7	(40, 50, 65, 90)	(20, 30, 45,	(10, 13, 17,	(3 5 8 13)	(55 58 62 65)	(35, 38, 41,	(11, 13, 16,	(3 5 8 13)	(52 58 61 70)	(32, 38, 41,
1	(40, 50, 05, 50)	70)	20)	(3, 5, 6, 15)	(55, 56, 62, 65)	47)	21)	(5, 5, 6, 15)	(52, 50, 01, 70)	50)
8	(30, 40, 55, 80)	(10, 20, 35,	(5, 8, 12,	$(2 \ 4 \ 7 \ 12)$	(45 48 52 55)	(25, 28, 31,	(6, 8, 11,	$(2 \ 4 \ 7 \ 12)$	(42 48 51 60)	(22, 28, 31,
U	(50, 10, 55, 60)	60)	15)	(2, 1, 7, 12)	(13, 10, 52, 55)	37)	16)	(2, 1, 7, 12)	(12, 10, 51, 00)	40)
9	(20, 30, 45, 70)	(10, 20, 35,	(3, 6, 10,	$(1 \ 3 \ 6 \ 11)$	$(35 \ 38 \ 42 \ 45)$	(25, 28, 31,	(4 6 9 14)	$(1 \ 3 \ 6 \ 11)$	(32 38 41 50)	(22, 28, 31,
	(20, 50, 15, 70)	60)	13)	(1, 5, 0, 11)	(55, 56, 12, 15)	37)	(1, 0,), 11)	(1, 5, 6, 11)	(52, 50, 11, 50)	40)
10	(10, 20, 35, 60)	(0, 10, 25,	$(0 \ 3 \ 7 \ 10)$	(0, 2, 5, 10)	(25 28 32 35)	(15, 18, 21,	$(1 \ 3 \ 6 \ 11)$	(0, 2, 5, 10)	(22, 28, 31, 40)	(12, 18, 21,
10	(10, 20, 55, 00)	50)	(0, 5, 7, 10)	(0, 2, 3, 10)	(20, 20, 52, 50)	27)	(1, 5, 6, 11)	(0, 2, 3, 10)	(22, 20, 31, 10)	30)
11	(100, 110,	(70, 80, 95,	(65, 68, 72,	(16, 18, 21,	(115, 118, 122,	(85, 88, 91,	(66, 68, 71,	(16, 18, 21,	(112, 118, 121,	(82, 88, 91,
	125,150)	120)	75)	26)	125)	97)	76)	26)	130)	100)
12	(100, 110,	(60, 70, 85,	(55, 58, 62,	(16, 18, 21,	(115, 118, 122,	(75, 78, 81,	(56, 58, 61,	(16, 18, 21,	(112, 118, 121,	(72, 78, 81,
	125,150)	110)	65)	26)	125)	87)	66)	26)	130)	90)
13	(90, 100, 115,	(60, 70, 85,	(55, 58, 62,	(11, 13, 16,	(105, 108, 112, 100, 110, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100	(75, 78, 81,	(56, 58, 61,	(11, 13, 16,	(102, 108, 111,	(72, 78, 81,
10	140)	110)	65)	21)	115)	87)	66)	21)	120)	90)
14	(70, 80, 95, 120)	(40, 50, 65,	(35, 38, 42,	(6, 8, 11,	(85, 88, 92, 95)	(55, 58,	(36, 38, 41,	(6, 8, 11,	(82, 88, 91, 100)	(52, 58, 61,
	(,,,	90)	45)	16)	(,,,,,,,,,,,,	61,67)	46)	16)	(- , ,	70)
15	(60, 70, 85, 110)	(40, 50, 65,	(25, 28, 32,	(5, 7, 10,	(75, 78, 82, 85)	(55, 58,	(26, 28, 31,	(5, 7, 10,	(72, 78, 81, 90)	(52, 58, 61,
-0	(00, 00, 110)	90)	35)	15)	(,,,)	61.67)	36)	15)	(.=,,,)	70)

 90)
 35)
 15)

 * Demand values are repeated for test problems with greater than ten products

Table	0.11.2. I u <i>LL</i> y	parameters for	15 buyers () and	io products (i) (v	alues. 10)					
	i=1	i=2	i=3	i=4	i=5	i=6	i=7	i=8	i=9	i=10
õ.	(5, 8, 12,	(9, 12, 16,	(12, 15, 19,	(15, 18, 22,	(5, 8, 12,	(9, 12, 16,	(12, 15, 19,	(15, 18, 22,	(5, 8, 12,	(9, 12, 16,
C_i :	15)	19)	22)	25)	15)	19)	22)	25)	15)	19)
$\widetilde{C_{trad}}$	$\tilde{l}_{e} = (33.6, 36.6)$	6, 40.6, 43.6)	$\widetilde{C_0} = (5, 8, 12, 15)$)						

Table 6.A.2. Fuzzy parameters for 15 buyers (*j*) and 10 products (*i*) (values: *10)

* Parameter values are repeated for test problems with greater than ten products

Table 6.A.3. Initial data (monetary value) of test problem with ten products and their equivalent of exergy values (MJ)

Prod.		Cost v	alues		Exergy equivalent					
<i>(i)</i>	$K_{i,S}$	K _{ij,b}	h _{ij}	C_i	$K_{(x)i,S}$	$K_{(x)ij,b}$	$h_{(x)ij}$	$C_{(x)i}$		
1	20	15	5	200	49	36.75	14.94	597.67		
2	20	15	4	170	49	36.75	11.95	508.02		
3	20	15	3	140	49	36.75	8.97	418.37		
4	20	15	3	100	49	36.75	8.97	298.83		
5	20	15	5	200	49	36.75	14.94	597.67		
6	20	15	4	170	49	36.75	11.95	508.02		
7	20	15	3	140	49	36.75	8.97	418.37		
8	20	15	3	100	49	36.75	8.97	298.83		
9	20	15	5	200	49	36.75	14.94	597.67		
10	20	15	4	170	49	36.75	11.95	508.02		

* These values are repeated for test problems with greater than 10 products

Table 6.A.4. Initial da	ata of the actual	case study in I	ran with four 1	products (witho	ut exergy)
	nen of the needin			51 0 4 4 6 6 5 (11 1 e 1 0	

$P_i = (780000, 550000, 320000, 110000)$	$s_1 = 3, s_2 = 0$
$L_j = (635, 586, 1084, 1028, 763, 1102, 382, 688, 603, 877)$	$int^{-}=0.04, int^{+}=0.02$
$E_j = (18000, 16800, 15800, 12000, 10700, 8900, 7400, 5500, 5000, 3700)$	$\theta_m = 3.18 \times 10^{-3}$
$X_j = (290000, 290000, 300000, 290000, 300000, 2800000, 2800000, 28000000, 28000000, 28000000, 28000000, 280000000000$	$\theta_t = 1.4 \times 10^{-5}$
$W_j = (6400, 6500, 6600, 6900, 7000, 7100, 7200, 7300, 7400, 7500)$	$\theta_k = 5 \times 10^{-5}$
$t_f = 10; t_v = 15; t_l = 12; t_m = 8;$	$\delta_m = 0.10; \ \delta_t = 0.08; \ \delta_k = 0.12$
$N_{max} = 1300; F = 22000; ITR = 17; Q_{max} = 2500$	$L_0 = 1; U_n = 2.5$

Table 6.A.5. Equivalent exergy parameters of the actual case study in Iran with four products

Table 6.A.6. Warehouse space (W_i) of each buyer in all examples (10-2560 products)

	10p	20p	40p	80p	160p	320p	640p	1280p	2560p
Buyer 1	16,500	33,000	66,000	132,000	264,000	528,000	1,056,000	2,112,000	4,224,000
Buyer 2	16,600	33,200	66,400	132,800	265,600	531,200	1,062,400	2,124,800	4,249,600
Buyer 3	16,700	33,400	66,800	133,600	267,200	534,400	1,068,800	2,137,600	4,275,200
Buyer 4	17,200	34,400	68,800	137,600	275,200	550,400	1,100,800	2,201,600	4,403,200
Buyer 5	17,300	34,600	69,200	138,400	276,800	553,600	1,107,200	2,214,400	4,428,800
Buyer 6	17,500	35,000	70,000	140,000	280,000	560,000	1,120,000	2,240,000	4,480,000
Buyer 7	17,600	35,200	70,400	140,800	281,600	563,200	1,126,400	2,252,800	4,505,600
Buyer 8	17,800	35,600	71,200	142,400	284,800	569,600	1,139,200	2,278,400	4,556,800
Buyer 9	17,900	35,800	71,600	143,200	286,400	572,800	1,145,600	2,291,200	4,582,400
Buyer 10	18,000	36,000	72,000	144,000	288,000	576,000	1,152,000	2,304,000	4,608,000
Buyer 11	16,500	33,000	66,000	132,000	264,000	528,000	1,056,000	2,112,000	4,224,000
Buyer 12	16,600	33,200	66,400	132,800	265,600	531,200	1,062,400	2,124,800	4,249,600
Buyer 13	16,700	33,400	66,800	133,600	267,200	534,400	1,068,800	2,137,600	4,275,200
Buyer 14	17,200	34,400	68,800	137,600	275,200	550,400	1,100,800	2,201,600	4,403,200
Buyer 15	17,300	34,600	69,200	138,400	276,800	553,600	1,107,200	2,214,400	4,428,800

Table 6.A.7. Available budget (X_i) of each buyer (exergy values) in all examples (10-2560 products)

	10p	20p	40p	80p	160p	320p	640p	1280p	2560p
Buyer 1	4,260,000	8,520,000	17,040,000	28,400,000	56,800,000	113,600,000	221,520,000	443,040,000	886,080,000
Buyer 2	4,260,000	8,520,000	17,040,000	32,376,000	64,752,000	129,504,000	227,200,000	454,400,000	908,800,000
Buyer 3	3,976,000	7,952,000	15,904,000	30,672,000	61,344,000	122,688,000	227,200,000	454,400,000	908,800,000

Buyer 4	3,976,000	7,952,000	15,904,000	30,672,000	61,344,000	122,688,000	227,200,000	454,400,000	908,800,000
Buyer 5	3,805,600	7,611,200	15,222,400	30,444,800	60,889,600	121,779,200	227,200,000	454,400,000	908,800,000
Buyer 6	3,805,600	7,611,200	15,222,400	30,444,800	60,889,600	121,779,200	232,880,000	465,760,000	931,520,000
Buyer 7	3,805,600	7,611,200	15,222,400	30,444,800	60,889,600	121,779,200	224,360,000	448,720,000	897,440,000
Buyer 8	3,748,800	7,497,600	14,995,200	29,990,400	59,980,800	119,961,600	224,360,000	448,720,000	897,440,000
Buyer 9	3,748,800	7,497,600	14,995,200	29,990,400	59,980,800	119,961,600	232,880,000	465,760,000	931,520,000
Buyer 10	3,578,400	7,156,800	14,313,600	28,627,200	57,254,400	114,508,800	223,792,000	447,584,000	895,168,000
Buyer 11	3,578,400	7,156,800	14,313,600	28,627,200	57,254,400	114,508,800	219,248,000	438,496,000	876,992,000
Buyer 12	3,578,400	7,156,800	14,313,600	28,627,200	57,254,400	114,508,800	226,064,000	452,128,000	904,256,000
Buyer 13	3,521,600	7,043,200	14,086,400	28,172,800	56,345,600	112,691,200	223,792,000	447,584,000	895,168,000
Buyer 14	3,521,600	7,043,200	14,086,400	28,172,800	56,345,600	112,691,200	223,792,000	447,584,000	895,168,000
Buyer 15	3,521,600	7,043,200	14,086,400	28,172,800	56,345,600	112,691,200	223,792,000	447,584,000	895,168,000

Table 6.A.8. Permitted carbon emission (E_i) of each buyer in all examples (10-2560 products)

	10p	20p	40p	80p	160p	320p	640p	1280p	2560p
Buyer 1	41,000	82,000	164,000	270,000	530,000	1,060,000	2,080,000	4,160,000	8,320,000
Buyer 2	38,000	76,000	152,000	285,000	560,000	1,120,000	2,000,000	4,000,000	8,000,000
Buyer 3	36,000	72,000	144,000	255,000	500,000	1,000,000	1,900,000	3,800,000	7,600,000
Buyer 4	26,000	52,000	104,000	190,000	370,000	740,000	1,420,000	2,840,000	5,680,000
Buyer 5	23,000	46,000	92,000	184,000	365,000	730,000	1,320,000	2,640,000	5,280,000
Buyer 6	18,000	36,000	72,000	144,000	285,000	570,000	1,110,000	2,220,000	4,440,000
Buyer 7	13,000	26,000	52,000	104,000	200,000	400,000	800,000	1,600,000	3,200,000
Buyer 8	9,000	18,000	36,000	72,000	140,000	280,000	560,000	1,120,000	2,240,000
Buyer 9	7,000	14,000	28,000	56,000	110,000	220,000	440,000	880,000	1,760,000
Buyer 10	3,000	6,000	12,000	24,000	45,000	90,000	180,000	360,000	720,000
Buyer 11	41,000	82,000	164,000	295,000	580,000	1,160,000	2,170,000	4,340,000	8,680,000
Buyer 12	38,000	76,000	152,000	270,000	530,000	1,060,000	2,000,000	4,000,000	8,000,000
Buyer 13	36,000	72,000	144,000	270,000	530,000	1,060,000	1,850,000	3,700,000	7,400,000
Buyer 14	26,000	52,000	104,000	200,000	400,000	800,000	1,520,000	3,040,000	6,080,000
Buyer 15	23,000	46,000	92,000	184,000	365,000	730,000	1,400,000	2,800,000	5,600,000

	4p	10p	20p	40p	80p	160p	320p	640p	1280p	2560p
Nmax	1300	8200	19000	43,000	96,000	192,000	405,000	840,000	1,680,000	3,500,000
ITR	17	17	20	20	20	20	20	20	20	20
F	22000	82000	164000	328,000	656,000	1,312,000	2,624,000	5,248,000	10,496,000	20,992,000

 Table 6.A.9. Initial data of the resources of all examples (4-2560 products)

Table 6.A.10. The exergy values of inventory parameters (values in MJ) for 1st product (i=1)

Country		$ee_{Cap(i,s)}$	$ee_{L(i,s)}$	$ee_{Env(i,s)}$	Total
Iran	K _{(x)i,S}	34.08	3.56	11.36	49
	K _{(x)ij,b}	25.56	2.67	8.52	36.75
	$h_{(x)ij}$	8.52	0.89	2.84	12.25
	$C_{(x)i}$	340.80	35.60	113.60	490
Australia	K _{(x)i,S}	21.36	71.21	7.12	99.69
	K _{(x)ij,b}	16.02	53.41	5.34	74.77
	$h_{(x)ij}$	5.34	17.80	1.78	24.92
	$C_{(x)i}$	213.60	712.10	71.20	996.90
China	K _{(x)i,S}	84.06	48.66	28.02	160.74
	K _{(x)ij,b}	63.04	36.49	21.01	120.56
	$h_{(x)ij}$	21.02	12.17	7.01	40.19
	$C_{(x)i}$	840.60	486.60	280.20	1607.40
India	K _{(x)i,S}	26.04	1.64	8.68	36.36
	K _{(x)ij,b}	19.53	1.23	6.51	27.27
	$h_{(x)ij}$	6.51	0.41	2.17	9.09
	$C_{(x)i}$	260.40	16.40	86.80	363.60
Japan	K _{(x)i,S}	20.10	70.18	6.70	96.98
	K _{(x)ij,b}	15.07	52.63	5.02	72.74
	$h_{(x)ij}$	5.03	17.55	1.68	24.25
	$C_{(x)i}$	201	701.80	67	969.80
Poland	K _{(x)i,S}	84.12	76.55	28.04	188.71
	K _{(x)ij,b}	63.09	57.4125	21.03	141.53

	$h_{(x)ij}$	21.03	19.14	7.01	47.18
	$C_{(x)i}$	841.20	765.50	280.40	1887.10
The USA	K _{(x)i,S}	17.1	72.82	5.7	95.62
	K _{(x)ij,b}	12.82	54.61	4.27	71.72
	$h_{(x)ij}$	4.28	18.21	1.43	23.91
	$C_{(x)i}$	171.00	728.20	57.00	956.20
Zimbabwe	K _{(x)i,S}	20.1	70.18	6.7	96.98
	K _{(x)ij,b}	15.07	52.63	5.02	72.74
	$h_{(x)ij}$	5.03	17.55	1.68	24.25
	$C_{(x)i}$	201.00	701.80	67.00	969.80

Initialize the first population of ants and antlions randomly
Calculate the fitness of ants and antlions
Find the best antlions and assume it as the elite (determined
optimum)
while the end criterion is not satisfied
for every ant
Select an antlion using Roulette wheel
Update c and d
Create a random walk and normalize it
Update the position of ant
end for
Calculate the fitness of all ants
Replace an antlion with its corresponding ant it if becomes
fitter
Update elite if an antlion becomes fitter than the elite
end while
Return elite

Figure 6.A.1. Pseudo-code of the ALO algorithm (Mirjalili, 2015).

1. Generate random sample of Lions $N_{pop}(N_{pop}$ is number of initial population).

2. Initiate prides and nomad lions

i. Randomly select %N (Percent of lions that are nomad) of initial population as nomad lion. Partition remained lions into P (P is number of prides) prides randomly, and formed each pride's territory.

ii. In each pride %S (Sex rate) of entire population are known as females and the rest as males. This rate in nomad lions is inversed.

3. For each pride do

i. Some randomly selected female lion go hunting.

ii. Each of remained female lion in pride go toward one of the best selected position from territory.

iii. In pride, for each resident male; %R (Roaming percent) of territory randomly are selected and checked.

%Ma (Mating probability) of females in pride mate with one or several resident male. \rightarrow *New cubs become mature.* iv. Weakest male drive out from pride and become nomad.

4. For Nomad do

i. Nomad lion (both male and female) moving randomly in search space.

%Ma (Mating probability) of nomad Female mate with one of the best nomad male. → New cubs become mature.

ii. Prides randomly attacked by nomad male.

5. For each pride do

i. Some female with I rate ((Immigrate rate)) immigrate from pride and become nomad.

6. Do

i. First, based on their fitness value each gender of the nomad lions are sorted. After that, the best females among them are selected and distributed to prides filling empty places of migrated females.

ii. With respect to the maximum permitted number of each gender, nomad lions with the least fitness value will be removed.

If termination criterion is not satisfied, then go to step 3

Figure 6.A.2. Pseudo-code of the LOA algorithm (Yazdani and Jolai, 2016).

Initialize the whales population X_i ($i = 1, 2,, n$)
Calculate the fitness of each search agent
X^* =the best search agent
<i>while</i> (t < maximum number of iterations)
for each search agent
Update a, A, C, l, and p
<i>if1</i> (<i>p</i> <0.5)
$if2 \ (A < 1)$
Update the position of the current search agent
<i>else if2</i> ($ A \ge 1$)
Select a random search agent (X_{rand})
Update the position of the current search agent
end if2
else if $(p \ge 0.5)$
Update the position of the current search
end if1
end for
Check if any search agent goes beyond the search space and amend it
Calculate the fitness of each search agent
<i>Update X* if there is a better solution</i>
t=t+1
end while
return X*

Figure 6.A.3. Pseudo-code of the WOA algorithm (Mirjalili and Lewis, 2016).



Figure 6.A.4. Performance improvement (%) between top two algorithms in the total fuzzy exergy (step 1)



Figure 6.A.5. Performance improvement (%) of CPU time between top two algorithms (step 1)



Figure 6.A.6. Comparison of CPU time between exact method and ALO algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2).



Figure 6.A.7. Seven exergy sets (capital, labor & environment) for coal SC.

CHAPTER 7. ADDITIONAL RESULTS FOR CHAPTER 5

Forewords

Previous chapters considered carbon tax and trade policies for coal SC. Now, this chapter follows Chapter 5 while considers carbon cap policy to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by extended exergy accounting. Moreover, carbon offset policy will be presented in Chapter 8, as additional material.

As mentioned in Chapter 1, the main carbon pricing policies are carbon tax, carbon cap, carbon offset, and carbon trade (Malladi and Sowlati, 2020), whereas each carbon policy has different costs and carbon reductions. The advantages of employing each carbon emission policy are not equal for companies involved in coal SC. While some carbon policies are more environmentally friendly, others are more economically beneficial. In Chapter 5, carbon tax policy was applied to a EOQ model of the coal SC and then the model converted to a sustainable coal SC (in terms of Joules) by using EEA method. Now, this chapter extends the EOQ model and results presented in Chapter 5 by applying the carbon cap policy. To make a comparison between the results of the model under carbon tax and cap policies, the same assumptions, and concepts (as Chapter 5) are used here.

The following subsections will develop a non-exergy EOQ model of the coal SC for carbon cap policy. Then the model is converted to an exergy fuzzy model in terms of Joules by applying the EEA method.

7.1. A non-exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon cap policy

7.1.1. Objective function

In the model under carbon cap policy, three objectives are defined. First, the total inventory cost of coal SC (TC_1) include the ordering (TO_{ij}) , holding (TH_{ij}) , stockout (TS_{ij}) , purchasing (TP_{ij}) , and transportation (TT_{ij}) costs (Pasandideh et al. 2010, 2011; Razmi et al. 2010) as

$$TC_{1} = TO_{ij} + TH_{ij} + TS_{ij} + TP_{ij} + TT_{ij}$$
(7.1)

Where,

$$TO_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{i,s} + A_{ij,b})$$
(7.2)

$$TH_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij}} (Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij})^{2}$$
(7.3)

$$TS_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left(\frac{s_1 \cdot b_{ij}^2}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_2 \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \right)$$
(7.4)

$$TP_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_i D_{ij}$$
(7.5)

$$TT_{ij} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{ij,t})$$
(7.6)

Where (D_{ij}, Q_{ij}, h_{ij}) are the demand rate of coal *i* for buyer *j*, order quantity of item *i* for buyer *j* and holding cost per unit of coal *i* for buyer *j*, respectively. Second, the total cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers. In our model, the over-achievement budget (B_j^-) is considered as the cost. It means the buyer should get a loan (B_j^-) as a decision variable) with an interest rate of (int^-) . In this case, the buyer should pay this loan and the corresponding interest rate $(B_j^- + [int^- \times B_j^-])$ after the end of the year. Consequently, the whole cost related to the budget of all buyers (TC_2) is

$$TC_2 = \sum_{j}^{m} \left[B_j^- + \left(int^- \times B_j^- \right) \right]$$
(7.7)

Third, to make the model green, we consider that all coal SC processes produced some wastes (imperfect quality items such as coal refuse, coal waste, and coal tailings) which to be discarded to the environment. This waste has a penalty cost as

$$TC_{3} = C_{waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha) + (Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \alpha) \cdot \beta) + (Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) \cdot (1 - \beta) \cdot \gamma) \right]$$
(7.8)

Where (α, β, γ) are the proportions of imperfect quality items in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Moreover, C_{waste} is the unit cost of imperfect quality items produced by different supply chain processes. So, the combination of the above three objectives $(TC_{cap} = TC_1 + TC_2 + TC_3)$ makes the non-exergy total cost of coal SC under emission cap policy.

7.1.2. The limitations

The emission cap policies imply that each buyer inside the coal SC can merely manufacture within an assumed emission cap (Cap_j) . If this quantity surpasses the emission cap, the related buyer will hinder manufacture until the carbon emissions comply with the cap (Yang et al., 2018). Consequently, a limitation on carbon emissions is included in the problem with the emission cap strategies.

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot f_m \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_j \cdot f_t \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot D_{ij} \cdot f_k \right) \right] \le Cap_j$$

$$(7.9)$$

Where (f_m, f_t, f_k) are emissions factors in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Moreover, L_j is the distance between the coal vendor and buyer *j*. This constraint is the summation of produced carbon in mining, transportation, and steelmaking

processes, respectively. As revealed earlier, a real-world VMI prescribed contract includes the vendor and all the buyers in the coal SC. This type of VMI contract accepting a limitation for the available budget of each buyer (B_j) and taking into account related costs for this issue can be expressed as follows:

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \sum_{i=1}^{n} C_{i} Q_{ij} (1-\alpha) \le B_{j} + (B_{j}^{-})$$
(7.10)

Where (C_i) is purchasing price per unit of item *i*. Eq. (7.10) demonstrates that if the total paid out money of a buyer is greater than the available budget $(\sum_{i}^{n} C_i Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) > B_j)$, then the buyer needs to get a loan with the amount of $(B_j^- > 0)$. This amount (B_j^-) is not determined before since it is a decision variable in the model, and in Eq. (7.7), the total cost related to this constraint is formulated. Moreover, the storage capacity of each buyer (F_j) is constrained (Cárdenas-Barrón et al. 2012),

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \sum_{i=1}^{n} (Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij}) \le F_j$$
(7.11)

Furthermore, the railway transportation system among a vendor and all buyers has some limitations for its capacity. So, the Min. (V_i) and Max. (W_i) of the transportation capacity for each order quantity (Q_{ii}) are

$$V_i \le Q_{ij} \le W_i \tag{7.12}$$

In addition, the vendor has a limitation for its total sales capacity (G), which is as follows:

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} \le G \tag{7.13}$$

Likewise, there is a constraint on the total number of orders (N) by all buyers:

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \le N \tag{7.14}$$

Lastly, the j^{th} buyer's highest amount of backorder of an item *i* in a cycle should be fewer than or equal to its lot size amount (Q_{ii}) . Therefore

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij} \tag{7.15}$$

It should be stated that for simplification of the mathematical model, we ignore the cost of purchasing (Eq. 7.5) in the model. With regards to Eqs. (7.1)-(7.15), the model of "multi-item" SVMB EOQ with the VMI strategy under carbon cap policy can be easily obtained as

$$TC_{cap} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{i,s} + A_{ij,b}) + \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij}} (Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) - b_{ij})^{2} + \left(\frac{s_{1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_{2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \right) \right. \\ \left. + \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (A_{ij,t}) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} [B_{j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times B_{j}^{-})] \\ \left. + C_{waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} [(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha) + (Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \alpha) \cdot \beta) + (Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) \cdot (1 - \beta) \cdot \gamma)] \right]$$

s.t.

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij}, f_{m} \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}}, L_{j}, f_{t} \right) + \left(Q_{ij}, D_{ij}, f_{k} \right) \right] \leq Cap_{j}$$

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} C_{i} \cdot Q_{ij} (1 - \alpha) \leq B_{j} + \left(B_{j}^{-} \right)$$

$$\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \alpha) - b_{ij} \right) \leq F_{j}$$

$$V_{i} \leq Q_{ij} \leq W_{i}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} \leq G$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \leq N$$

$$b_{ij} \leq Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \geq 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$B_{j}^{-} \geq 0, \qquad (7.16)$$

In this non-exergy sustainable model, we are looking to optimize three objectives simultaneously: the total inventory cost, the entire cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, and the penalty cost of coal waste disposal to the environment. Consequently, we have three decision variables, for example, the amount of required loan (more budget) for each buyer (B_j^-) , order quantity of each item for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and amount of backorder of each item for each buyer (b_{ij}) .

7.2. The inventory model in fuzzy environment

This subsection is the same as fuzzy environmental issues in chapter 5.

7.3. Exergy Modeling of fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal SC under VMI

This subsection is the same as Exergy Modeling in chapter 5.

7.3.1 A fuzzy exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon cap policy

As a result, by employing the exergy formulas to the objective functions and limitations of model in Eq. (7.16), it is converted to fuzzy exergy models under carbon cap as follows:

$$TC_{(x)cap} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \left(A_{(x)i,s} + A_{(x)ij,b} \right) + \frac{h_{(x)ij}}{2Q_{ij}} \left(Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) - b_{ij} \right)^{2} + \left(\frac{s_{(x)1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij}} + \frac{s_{(x)2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \right) + \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \left(A_{(x)ij,t} \right) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} \left[B_{(x)j}^{-} + \left(int^{-} \times B_{(x)j}^{-} \right) \right] + C_{(x)waste} \times \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \alpha \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1-\alpha) \cdot \beta \right) + \left(Q_{ij}(1-\alpha) \cdot (1-\beta) \cdot \gamma \right) \right]$$

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij}, f_{m} \right) + \left(\frac{\widetilde{D}_{ij}}{Q_{ij}}, L_{j}, f_{t} \right) + \left(Q_{ij}, \widetilde{D}_{ij}, f_{k} \right) \right] \leq Cap_{j} \\ &\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} C_{(x)i}. Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) \leq B_{(x)j} + \left(B_{(x)j}^{-} \right) \\ &\sum_{j}^{m} \sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij}(1 - \alpha) - b_{ij} \right) \leq F_{j} \\ &V_{i} \leq Q_{ij} \leq W_{i} \\ &\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} Q_{ij} \leq \widetilde{G} \\ &\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{\widetilde{D}_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \leq N \\ &b_{ij} \leq Q_{ij} \\ &Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n \end{split}$$

$$b_{ij} \ge 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

 $B_{(x)j}^{-} \ge 0,$ (7.17)

7.4. Solution method

This section is the same as the chapter 5 with the same methods and metaheuristic algorithms.

7.5. Numerical examples

This section is the same as the chapter 5 with the same real case study in Iran and all test problems.

7.5.1 Solving phases and related results

To avoid complexity of the chapter, the results of each phase of solving procedure for all test problems include Tables and Figures are presented in Appendix 1.

Country	Policy	Set A(30-60- 10)	Set B(50-30- 20)	Set C(20-50- 30)	Set D(30-20- 50)	Set E(33-33- 33)	Minimum (MJ)	Maximum (MJ)
Afghanistan	Сар	141,316.53	164,919.79	146,451.08	174,187.82	161,779.26	141,316.53	174,187.82
	Tax	1,504,757.85	1,533,788.62	1,533,954.88	1,512,552.55	1,540,156.67	1,504,757.85	1,540,156.67
Canada	Сар	3,269,610.51	1,285,976.37	3,268,083.12	666,924.42	1,555,685.52	666,924.42	3,269,610.51
	Tax	4,606,147.99	2,667,490.61	4,606,446.58	2,055,844.41	3,007,167.24	2,055,844.41	4,606,446.58
Germany	Cap	3,216,971.32	1,192,900.68	3,048,417.64	600,277.13	1,528,691.42	600,277.13	3,216,971.32
_	Tax	4,479,364.93	2,655,420.96	4,492,797.20	2,109,044.72	2,928,353.16	2,109,044.72	4,492,797.20
Iran	Cap	734,828.56	854,814.77	761,440.02	901,519.42	838,931.07	734,828.56	901,519.42
	Tax	2,110,974.62	2,230,157.59	2,234,708.24	2,274,445.14	2,220,750.94	2,110,974.62	2,274,445.14
Turkey	Сар	2,972,014.13	3,256,774.91	3,032,929.71	3,368,441.83	3,219,102.84	2,972,014.13	3,368,441.83
_	Tax	4,351,316.03	4,654,099.79	4,412,490.90	4,780,003.95	4,602,880.36	4,351,316.03	4,780,003.95
	Cap	141,316.53	164,919.79	146,451.08	174,187.82	161,779.26		
Min (MI)	Country	AF	AF	AF	AF	AF	_	
IVIIII. (IVIJ)	Tax	1,504,757.85	1,533,788.62	1,533,954.88	1,512,552.55	1,540,156.67		
	Country	AF	AF	AF	AF	AF	_	
	Cap	3,269,610.51	3,256,774.91	3,268,083.12	3,368,441.83	3,219,102.84		
Max (MD	Country	CA	TR	СА	TR	TR	_	
141ax. (1413 <i>)</i>	Tax	4,606,147.99	4,654,099.79	4,606,446.58	4,780,003.95	4,602,880.36		
	Country	CA	TR	СА	TR	TR		

Table 7.1. Sensitivity analysis of exergy components under carbon cap and tax policies (Fuzzy total exergy in MJ)

7.6 Comparing the carbon cap and tax policies

All sensitivity analysis results under carbon cap and tax policies are integrated in Table 7.1. Considering the results of Chapters 5 and this chapter, comparing the results of coal SCs under carbon cap and tax policies in developed and developing countries include Afghanistan, Canada, Germany, Iran and Turkey is possible. Generally, if we consider all inventory costs parameter the same, the total exergy (MJ) of coal SC under carbon tax policy is higher than carbon cap policy since there is an additional tax cost in the objective function of the model (see Chapter 5, Eq. 5.9).



7.6.1 Analysis of each country-carbon cap and tax policies

Fig. 7.1. Sustainability of coal SC in Afghanistan under the carbon cap and tax policies

Afghanistan (Fig. 7.1): in this developing country, the best sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon cap and tax policies are with exergy Set A (30-60-10) since more exergy weight is assigned for Labor (60%) and less for Environment (10%). It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 141,316.53 and 1,504,757.85 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon cap and tax policies, respectively. Furthermore, exergy Set E (33-33-33) creates the worst sustainability performance in Afghanistan under both carbon cap and tax policies since the same weights (33%) are assigned to Capital, Labor, and Environment elements.



Fig. 7.2. Sustainability of coal SC in Canada under the carbon cap and tax policies



Fig. 7.3. Sustainability of coal SC in Germany under the carbon cap and tax policies

Canada (Fig. 7.2): in this developed country, the top sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon cap and tax policies are with exergy Set D (30-20-50) when Environment has 50% weight, going along with Capital (30%) and Labor (20%), respectively. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 666,924.42 & 2,055,844.41 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon cap and tax policies, respectively. Moreover, under carbon cap policy, this is exergy Set A (30-60-10) which creates the worst sustainability performance whereas only 10% is assigned to Environmental element. Under carbon tax policy, exergy Set C (20-50-30)

makes the worst sustainability performance in Canada when more exergy weight is supposed for Labor (50%).

Germany (Fig. 7.3): Like Canada, exergy Set D (30-20-50) with 50% Environmental weight creates the best sustainability performance under both carbon cap and tax policies. It produced the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 600,277.13 & 2,109,044.72 (MJ) for coal SC in Germany by carbon cap and tax policies, respectively. Likewise, under carbon cap policy, this is exergy Set A (30-60-10) which creates the worst sustainability performance whereas only 10% is assigned to Environmental element. Under carbon tax policy, exergy Set C (20-50-30) with 50% Labor weight makes the lowest sustainability performance.



Fig. 7.4. Sustainability of coal SC in Iran under the carbon cap and tax policies

Iran (Fig. 7.4): In this developing country, the highest sustainability performance of coal SC is by exergy Set A (30-60-10), as Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It made the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 734,828.56 & 2,110,974.62 (MJ) under both carbon cap and tax policies. The lowest sustainability performance is with exergy Set D (30-20-50), when 50% weight is allocated to Environment, which created the maximum fuzzy total exergy (MJ) under both carbon policies.



Fig. 7.5. Sustainability of coal SC in Turkey under the carbon cap and tax policies

Turkey (Fig. 7.5): This developing country has the same sustainability conditions with Iran. the best sustainability performance is with exergy Set A (30-60-10), while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%). It established the minimum amount of fuzzy total exergy with 2,972,014.13 & 4,351,316.03 (MJ) by carbon cap and tax policies, respectively. Similarly, the maximum fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability in MJ) is with exergy Set D (30-20-50) when more weight is provided to the Environment (50%).



Fig. 7.6. The best exergy set for each country under the carbon cap and tax policies



Fig. 7.7. The worst exergy set for each country under the carbon cap and tax policies

- Respecting Fig. 7.6, the best exergy set in developing countries like Afghanistan, Iran and Turkey is exergy Set A (30-60-10) under both carbon cap and tax policies, while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%). It creates the highest sustainability conditions with the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ. Moreover, in developed countries like Canada and Germany, the best exergy set is Set D (30-20-50) with 50% Environmental weight creates the best sustainability performance under both carbon cap and tax policies.
- Among all presented developed and developing countries, the coal SC in Afghanistan has the lowest total exergy (the most sustainable conditions) with 141,316.53 & 1,504,757.85 (MJ) under carbon cap and tax policies, respectively (see Fig. 7.6). Germany, Canada, Iran, and Turkey are followed Afghanistan.
- Respecting Fig. 7.7, the worst exergy set in developing countries like Iran and Turkey is Set D (30-20-50) with 50% Environmental weight. It creates the highest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability) under both carbon cap and tax policies. In developed countries such as Canada and Germany, the worst exergy set under the carbon cap policy is Set A (30-60-10) and under carbon tax policy is Set C (20-50-30) with 50% Labor weight.
- Moreover, coal SC in Turkey has the highest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability conditions) among all presented developed and developing countries with 3,368,441.83 & 4,780,003.95 (MJ) under carbon cap and tax policies, respectively (see Fig. 7.7).

7.6.2 Analysis of each exergy set-carbon cap and tax policies

Considering Table 7.1 for each exergy set, we have:



Fig. 7.8. The exergy Set A in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax policies.



Fig. 7.9. The exergy Set B in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax policies.

- Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): Considering this exergy set which has 60% weight for Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment, creates the most sustainable performance (the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) in Afghanistan under both carbon cap and tax policies. At the same time, exergy set A creates the worst sustainability performance with highest fuzzy total exergy (MJ) in Canada under both carbon policies (see Fig. 7.8).
- Exergy Set B (50%-30%-20%): Regarding this exergy set which has more emphasis on Capital (50%), coal SC in Turkey has the lowest sustainability performance (the highest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) under both carbon policies. At the same time, exergy set B works well in Afghanistan (see Fig. 7.9).



Fig. 7.10. The exergy Set C in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax policies.



Fig. 7.11. The exergy Set D in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax policies.

- Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this exergy set is assigned more weight on Labor (50%) which creates the best sustainability conditions for coal SC in Afghanistan under both carbon policies. Simultaneously, it creates the lowest sustainability conditions in Canada (see Fig. 7.10).
- Exergy Set D (30%-20%-50%): When more emphasis is put on Environment (50%), exergy set D creates the worst sustainability conditions in Turkey under both carbon cap and tax policies. All at once, it operates well in terms of sustainability in Afghanistan (see Fig. 7.11).



Fig. 7.12. The exergy Set E in developed and developing countries under the carbon cap and tax policies.

- Exergy Set E (33%-33%-33%): In this set, all three exergy components have equal 33% weight which creates the highest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability) in Turkey and the lowest in Afghanistan under both carbon cap and tax policies (see Fig. 7.12).
- Moreover, all exergy Sets (A-E) generated the minimum fuzzy total exergy for coal SC in Afghanistan among all presented countries.

In this chapter, carbon cap policy is applied to the EOQ model in Chapter 5 to make a comparison between using the carbon tax and cap policies in terms of Joules in a coal SC among five developed and developing countries such as Afghanistan, Canada, Germany, Iran and Turkey. All sensitivity results are presented in Table 7.1 for coal SC in five countries. Moreover, analysis of each country (subsection 7.6.1) and analysis of each exergy set (subsection 7.6.2) for both carbon tax and cap policies are presented in this chapter. In the next chapter, carbon offset policy will be applied to the coal SC.

CHAPTER 8. ADDITIONAL RESULTS FOR CHAPTER 6

Forewords

Previous chapters considered carbon tax, trade, and cap policies for coal SC. Now, this chapter follows Chapter 6 while considers carbon offset policy to improve the sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developing countries by extended exergy accounting.

Similar to the concept of Chapter 7, in this Chapter carbon offset policy is applied to the EPQ model of the coal SC in Chapter 6 (under carbon trade policy) and then the model is converted to a sustainable coal SC (in terms of Joules) by using EEA method. To make a comparison between the results of the EPQ model under carbon trade and offset policies, the same assumptions, and concepts (as Chapter 6) are used here.

The following subsections will develop a non-exergy EPQ model of the coal SC for carbon offset policy. Then the model is converted to an exergy fuzzy model by applying the EEA method.

8.1. A non-exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon offset policy

8.1.1. Objective function

m

A carbon offset is a product or service that a company buys or invests in in order to cut its carbon emissions. Companies regularly pay third-party companies to absorb additional carbon emissions by planting trees or developing green environmental protection plans (Fisher et al., 2018). In the carbon offset plan, companies are given a carbon agreement goal, and carbon further than the goal is offset by buying carbon credits (e^+ , as a decision variable) from qualified emission decrease sources (Zhou and Wen 2019). The distinction between carbon offset and carbon trade is that companies need to buy the carbon credits with the carbon offset policy. In contrast, the surplus carbon credits cannot be sold (Li et al., 2020). Although the price of carbon is considered known and fixed in the literature, this study considers it fuzzy. If the company's carbon surpasses the given carbon limit, they must pay carbon offset cost for additional carbon credits ($C_{offset} \times e^+$), which is an objective function for the model. Consequently, the carbon offset cost is

$$Z_1 = \sum_{j}^{m} C_{offset} \times (e_j^+)$$
(8.1)

The shipping costs accounted for about 40% of the entire delivered cost of coal in 2019 (U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), 2019). Transportation costs are also impacted by road distance, accessibility of shipping mode and supply source alternatives, and the competition among coal and other goods for shipping. Therefore, the total transportation cost of coal includes constant (t_f) and variable (t_v) costs, along with the cost of loading/unloading coal (t_L) in/from railcars and cost of equipment (t_M) is

$$Z_{2} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_{f} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_{v} \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot (t_{L} + t_{M}) \right) \right]$$
(8.2)

Where (*Lo*, *Un*) are the loading/unloading time of coal in/from a railcar. The vendormanaged inventory (VMI) strategy is the regular inventory management in SC in which the upstream company completely controls the inventory at the downstream company's location (Giovanni, 2021). In the VMI system, the determinations about scheduling and amount of buyer's replenishment are decided by the supplier that is assumed to have comprehensive information concerning the customers' requirements, to prevent stockouts (Comez-Dolgan et al., 2021, Maio and Lagana, 2020). Therefore, it is expected that the supplier gives the ordering, shipping, and keeping costs rather than the buyer as a part of the stated contract; the buyer gives no cost (Mateen et al., 2014; Yao et al., 2007; Razmi et al., 2010; Pasandideh et al., 2011; Roozbeh Nia et al., 2014, 2015). Furthermore, in an EPQ model with defective quality items and stockout as a backorder that utilizes the VMI strategy, the coal SC's total inventory cost is established by calculating the ordering/setup ($TC_{O_{ij}}$), keeping ($TC_{H_{ij}}$), stockout ($TC_{S_{ij}}$), and purchasing ($TC_{P_{ij}}$) costs as (Pasandideh et al., 2010, 2011)

$$Z_3 = TC_{O_{ij}} + TC_{H_{ij}} + TC_{S_{ij}} + TC_{P_{ij}}$$
(8.3)

Where,

$$TC_{O_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} (K_{i,s} + K_{ij,b})$$
(8.4)

$$TC_{H_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i}\right)} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i}\right) - b_{ij}\right)^2$$
(8.5)

$$TC_{S_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left(\frac{s_1 \cdot b_{ij}^2}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} + \frac{s_2 \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} \right)$$
(8.6)

$$TC_{P_{ij}} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_i D_{ij}$$
(8.7)

Where (D_{ij}, Q_{ij}, h_{ij}) are the demand rate, order quantity and holding cost per unit of coal *i* for buyer *j*, respectively. As mentioned previously, the existing budget of each buyer could be deposited in a bank account or invested in other projects to get profits. Now, we take into account a real-world balanced limitation where the total amount of the existing budget for each buyer is restricted (see Eq. 8.8). To the best of the authors' knowledge, this type of objective function and limitation, have not been studied yet. On the one hand, each buyer's under-achievement budget (x_j^+) as a decision variable) is regarded as the benefit. It means this amount of money (x_j^+) may be invested in a new project with an actual interest rate (int^+) and make a profit (as a $int^+ \times x_j^+$) for the buyer. On the other hand, the over-achievement budget (x_j^-) as a decision variable) is regarded

as the cost. It means the buyer must get a loan with the amount of (x_j^-) and an interest rate of (int^-) . After All, the buyer should pay this loan as well as the interest rate $(x_j^- + [int^- \times x_j^-])$ at the end of the period. Therefore, the total cost/benefit associated with the budget of all buyers is

$$Z_4 = \sum_{j}^{m} \left[x_j^- + \left(int^- \times x_j^- \right) - \left(int^+ \times x_j^+ \right) \right]$$
(8.8)

Wherever in Eq. (8.8), the first two components are linked to the cost functions, and the last part with a negative symbol is related to the benefit obtained. Moreover, under and over-achievement budgets (x_j^+, x_j^-) are not known parameters and are considered decision variables. Hence, the non-exergy total cost of coal SC under the carbon offset policy is the summation of $TC_{offset} = Z_1 + Z_2 + Z_3 + Z_4$.

8.1.2. The constraints

m

n

The constraints of this model are as follows:

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{0} \cdot D_{ij}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)-b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij}\left(1-\frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)}$$

$$(8.9)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \theta_m \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_j \cdot \theta_t \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot D_{ij} \cdot \theta_k \right) \right] \le E_j + (e_j^+)$$
(8.10)

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_m \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \delta_m) \cdot \delta_t \right) + \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_m) \cdot (1 - \delta_t) \cdot \delta_k \right) \right] \le F$$

$$(8.11)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right) - b_{ij} \right] \le W_j$$

$$(8.12)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} [C_{i} Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m})] + (x_{j}^{+} - x_{j}^{-}) = X_{j}$$
(8.13)

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \le N_{Max}$$

$$(8.14)$$

$$Q_{ij} \le Q_{Max} \tag{8.15}$$

$$b_{ij} \le Q_{ij} \tag{8.16}$$

Eq. (8.9) is an inventory turnover ratio (ITR_j) limitation. To the best of the authors' knowledge, this limitation has not been presented in SC literature before. The inventory turnover

ratio is applied as a comparative measure of inventory performance between competitors and is crucial to control inventory (Beklari et al., 2018). This proportion is an economic index that merges the cost of goods sold with average inventories at cost (Kwak 2019). The inventory turnover ratio shows how often inventories are turned over a period. For Eq. (8.10), as mentioned before, with the policy of carbon offset, each buyer inside coal SC can only produce within an offered cap (E_i) of emission. If this actual emission amount goes above the emission limit, the company must purchase carbon credits (e^+) (Li et al., 2020). Hence, with the emission offset policy, a new emission restriction is included in the model where Eq. (8.10) corresponds to the total generated carbon in mining, shipping, and steelmaking processes. In Eq. (8.10), $(\theta_m, \theta_t, \theta_k)$ are emissions factors in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Additionally, L_i is the distance between the coal vendor and buyer j. Eq. (8.11) aims to make the model green since it considers a limitation (F) on total defective products (waste) disposal to the environment by all processes in coal SC. In this equation, $(\delta_m, \delta_t, \delta_k)$ are the proportions of imperfect quality items in mining, transportation, and steel manufacturer processes, respectively. Furthermore, Eq. (8.12) expresses that the warehouse space of each buyer (W_i) is restricted, where (b_{ij}) is the backorder amount of coal *i* for buyer *j* in a cycle (a decision variable).

As shown before, a real-world contractual agreement grants balanced constraints (Eq. 8.13) for the existing budget of each buyer (X_j) . To the best of the authors' knowledge, this type of limitation has not been given in the SC literature in the past. Where Eq. (8.13) indicates that, on the one hand, if the total paid-out money of a buyer is below the existing budget $(\sum_{i}^{n} C_i. Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) < X_j)$, the buyer saves an amount of $(x_j^+ > 0)$. It is possible the company invests this amount in a new project and makes a profit (see Eq. 6.8). On the other hand, if the total paid out money of a buyer is more than the existing budget $(\sum_{i}^{n} C_i. Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) > X_j)$, so the buyer demands to get a loan with the amount of $(x_j^- > 0)$. The total cost/benefit linked to this balanced limitation is expressed in Eq. (8.8). In addition, Eq. (8.14) is related to the limitation on the total number of orders (N_{max}) by all buyers. Additionally, there is a constraint for the shipping system (railway) while the Max. of shipping capacity (Q_{max}) for each order quantity is stated in Eq. (8.15).

Finally, based on Eq. (8.16), the quantity of backorder of product *i* for j^{th} buyer (b_{ij}) in a cycle should be fewer than or equal to its order amount (Q_{ij}) . It should be mentioned that intending to simplify the mathematical model; we ignore the cost of purchasing (Eq. 8.7) in our model. Regarding Eqs. (8.1)-(8.16) and under carbon offset policy, the non-exergy crisp model of "multiproduct" balanced limitations single-vendor multi-buyer (SVMB) EPQ can be easily achieved as

$$TC_{offset} = \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \left(K_{i,s} + K_{ij,b} \right) + \frac{h_{ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} \left(Q_{ij} \left(1 - \delta_m \right) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right) - b_{ij} \right)^2 + \left(\frac{s_1 \cdot b_{ij}^2}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} + \frac{s_2 \cdot b_{ij} \cdot D_{ij}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_i} \right)} \right) \right] + \sum_{j}^{m} C_{offset} \times (e_j^+)$$

$$+\sum_{j}^{m} [x_{j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times x_{j}^{-}) - (int^{+} \times x_{j}^{+})] \\ + \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_{f} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_{v} \right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot (t_{L} + t_{M}) \right) \right]$$

s.t.

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{0} \cdot D_{ij}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m}) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right)} \geq ITR_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \theta_{m}\right) + \left(\frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot L_{j} \cdot \theta_{t}\right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot D_{ij} \cdot \theta_{k}\right)\right] \leq E_{j} + (e_{j}^{+})$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_{m}\right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \delta_{m}) \cdot \delta_{t}\right) + \left(Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m}) \cdot (1 - \delta_{t}) \cdot \delta_{k}\right)\right] \leq F$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left(Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m}) \left(1 - \frac{D_{ij}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij}\right) \leq W_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} C_{i} \cdot Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_{m}) + \left(x_{j}^{+} - x_{j}^{-}\right) = X_{j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{D_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \leq N_{Max}$$

$$Q_{ij} \leq Q_{Max}$$

$$b_{ij} \leq Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \geq 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$(8.17)$$

In this non-exergy sustainable model, we are looking to optimize four objectives simultaneously: (a) the total inventory cost, (b) the entire cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, (c) the total coal transportation cost among SC members, (d) and the cost of produced carbon emission by all processes. Consequently, we have five decision variables, for example, the amount of required loan/investment for each buyer (x_j^-, x_j^+) , the carbon credits for each buyer (e_j^+) , the order quantity of each item for each buyer (Q_{ij}) , and the amount of

backorder of each item for each buyer (b_{ij}) . The following subsection considers uncertainty to the non-exergy model in Eq. (8.17).

8.2. The inventory model in fuzzy environment

Г

This subsection is the same as fuzzy environmental issues in chapter 6.

8.3. Exergy modeling of fuzzy optimization of SVMB coal SC under VMI

This subsection is the same as Exergy Modeling in Chapter 6.

8.3.1 A fuzzy exergy Modeling of coal SC with carbon offset policy

As a result, by employing the exergy formulas to the objective functions and limitations of model in Eq. (8.17), it is converted to fuzzy exergy models under carbon offset as follows:

$$\begin{split} TC_{(x)offset} &= \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left| \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} (K_{(x)i,s} + K_{(x)ij,b}) + \frac{h_{(x)ij}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} \left(Q_{ij} (1 - \delta_{m}) \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right) - b_{ij}\right)^{2} \right. \\ &+ \left(\frac{s_{(x)1} \cdot b_{ij}^{2}}{2Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} + \frac{s_{(x)2} \cdot b_{ij} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij} \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)} \right) \right| + \sum_{j}^{m} C_{(x)trade} \times (e_{j}^{+}) \\ &+ \sum_{i}^{m} [x_{(x)j}^{-} + (int^{-} \times x_{(x)j}^{-}) - (int^{+} \times x_{(x)j}^{+})] \\ &+ \sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \left[\left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot t_{(x)f} \right) + \left(Q_{ij} \cdot t_{(x)v} \right) + \left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}} \cdot (Lo + Un) \cdot \left(t_{(x)L} + t_{(x)M} \right) \right) \right] \end{split}$$

s.t.

$$\frac{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} C_{(x)0} \cdot \widetilde{D_{ij}}}{\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{C_{(x)0} \cdot \left(Q_{ij}(1-\delta_{m})\left(1-\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)-b_{ij}\right)^{2}}{2Q_{ij}\left(1-\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{P_{i}}\right)}}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \left[\left(Q_{ij},\theta_{m}\right)+\left(\frac{\widetilde{D_{ij}}}{Q_{ij}},L_{j},\theta_{t}\right)+\left(Q_{ij},\widetilde{D_{ij}},\theta_{k}\right)\right] \leq E_{j}+\left(e_{j}^{+}\right)$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} [(Q_{ij} \cdot \delta_m) + (Q_{ij} \cdot (1 - \delta_m) \cdot \delta_t) + (Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) \cdot (1 - \delta_t) \cdot \delta_k)]] \leq F$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} (Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m) \left(1 - \frac{\widetilde{D}_{ij}}{P_i}\right) - b_{ij}) \leq W_j$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} (\widetilde{C_{(x)i}} \cdot Q_{ij}(1 - \delta_m)) + (x_{(x)j}^+ - x_{(x)j}^-) = X_{(x)j}$$

$$\sum_{i}^{n} \sum_{j}^{m} \frac{\widetilde{D}_{ij}}{Q_{ij}} \leq N_{Max}$$

$$Q_{ij} \leq Q_{Max}$$

$$b_{ij} \leq Q_{ij}$$

$$Q_{ij} > 0, integer, i = 1, 2, ..., n$$

$$b_{ij} \geq 0, integer, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$x_{(x)j}^+, x_{(x)j}^-, e_j^+, e_j^- \geq 0,$$
(8.18)

8.4. Solution method

This section is the same as the chapter 6 with the same methods and metaheuristic algorithms.

8.5. Numerical examples

This section is the same as the chapter 6 with the same real case study in Iran and all test problems.

8.5.1 Solving phases and related results (carbon offset)

To avoid complexity of the chapter, the results of each phase of solving procedure for all test problems include Tables and Figures are presented in Appendix 2.

8.6 Comparing the carbon trade and offset policies

Considering the results of Chapters 6 and this section, comparing the results of coal SCs under carbon trade and offset policies in some developed and developing countries include Australia, China, India, Iran, Japan, Poland, the USA and Zimbabwe is possible. As mentioned in Chapter 6, these are the countries with high consumption of coal in the world. Table 8.1 presented all sensitivity analysis results under carbon trade and offset policies. Generally, if we consider all inventory costs parameter the same, there is a possibility that total exergy (MJ) of coal SC under carbon trade policy be lower than carbon offset policy since under carbon trade, the company could sell their carbon credits ($Z_1 = \sum_{j=1}^{m} C_{trade} \times (e_j^+ - e_j^-)$) and makes profit (see chapter 6, Eq. 6.1).

Country	Policy	Set A(30-60- 10)	Set B(60-20- 20)	Set C(20-50- 30)	Set D(20-40- 40)	Set E(20-30- 50)	Set F(30-10- 60)	Set G(33- 33-33)	Minimum	Maximum
Australi	T 1.	37,386,644.5	27,362,603.2	36,172,081.0	30,457,341.8	35,641,776.3	24,251,604.	33,163,723.3	24,251,604	37,386,644.
а	Irade	8	7	5	9	3	43	1	.43	58
	Offect	58,194,888.9	37,972,201.9	29,582,062.7	50,525,851.3	37,058,048.2	25,381,554.	36,154,500.2	25,381,554	58,194,888.
	Uliset	8	0	7	6	8	37	0	.37	98
China	Trade	121,884,457.	109,229,963.	83,731,242.8	94,201,685.5	111,411,481.	128,734,240	121,351,102.	83,731,242	128,734,240
Cilina	maut	74	03	2	2	62	.79	11	.82	.79
	Offset	178,509,576.	166,472,938.	96,953,009.6	156,133,267.	161,309,694.	153,294,716	136,870,365.	96,953,009	178,509,576
	Olisee	98	65	8	82	66	.80	31	.68	.98
India	Trade	32,520,676.9	56,664,303.0	24,826,136.1	32,528,308.0	43,026,717.0	29,354,458.	31,623,790.1	24,826,136	56,664,303.
		0	8	3	4	9	87	1	.13	08
	Offset	41,297,642.7	58,836,368.8	25,466,158.6	47,301,831.5	45,946,885.8	49,637,349.	38,479,371.3	25,466,158	58,836,368.
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	9	4	3	/0	1	.09	<u>81</u>
Iran	Trade	31,337,292.4	30,042,180.3	33,822,232.1	43,914,327.7	43,802,293.4	49,114,885.5	44,332,827.0	51,557,292	50,042,180. 22
		4	76 961 900 5	51.001.655.0	50 771 912 9	<u> </u>	66 594 725	71 022 762 2	.44	33 76 961 900
	Offset	41,099,551.4	70,001,090.5	51,091,055.9 2	5	40,213,103.0	15	/1,952,702.5 8	41,099,551	70,001,090. 52
		38 038 472 2	40 279 208 5	30 489 673 9	36 862 147 5	36 228 006 9	22 873 547	32 432 070 9	22 873 547	40 279 208
Japan	Trade	2	0	1	9	7	02	6	02	40,279,200. 50
		60.286.069.4	40.887.175.4	35.269.221.2	40.123.715.8	38,498,459,3	27.876.026.	35.790.111.5	27.876.026	60.286.069.
	Offset	5	7	0	6	8	26	4	.26	45
Poland	T 1.	106,551,302.	110,155,055.	86,131,627.7	92,933,114.1	109,302,825.	123,315,602	118,125,544.	86,131,627	123,315,602
	Irade	66	08	6	7	19	.00	27	.76	.00
	Offeret	135,055,722.	156,214,948.	95,760,363.8	124,452,996.	135,883,311.	147,446,020	146,622,025.	95,760,363	156,214,948
	Uliset	76	54	9	38	16	.63	05	.89	.54
USA	Trada	31,673,757.2	22,604,564.5	29,064,237.1	31,090,827.6	25,320,951.4	19,675,609.	29,934,368.3	19,675,609	31,673,757.
USA	maue	7	9	9	4	5	14	6	.14	27
	Offset	38,278,772.2	23,177,067.9	35,476,600.2	39,435,137.7	26,724,522.6	21,032,559.	33,876,380.9	21,032,559	39,435,137.
	Olisee	4	2	2	5	6	94	9	.94	75
Zimbab	Trade	31,803,458.1	23,779,747.5	26,772,135.6	25,762,854.8	28,886,560.4	22,873,547.	24,146,338.6	22,873,547	31,803,458.
we		2	8	4	3	5	02	5	.02	12
	Offset	36,156,127.0	25,972,295.0	29,749,298.6	25,914,513.0	33,867,997.4	24,119,890.0	31,260,609.8	24,119,890	36,156,127.
		1	9	8	9	8	7	2	.07	01
N (*	Trade	51,537,292.4	22,604,564.5	24,826,136.1	25,762,854.8	25,320,951.4	19,675,609.	24,146,338.6		
Min.	C	4	9	3	3	5	14	5		
(MJ)	Count ry	Iran	USA	India	Zimbabwe	USA	USA	Zimbabwe		

 Table 8.1. Sensitivity analysis of exergy components under carbon trade and offset policies (Fuzzy total exergy in MJ)

	Offset	36,156,127.0 1	23,177,067.9 2	25,466,158.6 9	25,914,513.0 9	26,724,522.6 6	21,032,559. 94	31,260,609.8 2
	Count ry	Zimbabwe	USA	India	Zimbabwe	USA	USA	Zimbabwe
Max. (MJ)	Trade	121,884,457. 74	110,155,055. 08	86,131,627.7 6	94,201,685.5 2	111,411,481. 62	128,734,240 .79	121,351,102. 11
	Count ry	China	Poland	Poland	China	China	China	China
	Offset	178,509,576. 98	166,472,938. 65	96,953,009.6 8	156,133,267. 82	161,309,694. 66	153,294,716 .80	146,622,025. 05
	Count rv	China	China	China	China	China	China	Poland


8.6.1 Analysis of each country-carbon trade and offset policies

Fig. 8.1. Sustainability of coal SC in Australia under the carbon trade and offset policies

Australia (Fig. 8.1): This developed country is one of the key players in the global coal trade (5.9%). The best sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon trade and offset policies are with exergy Set F (30-10-60) since more exergy weight is assigned for Environment (60%) and less for Labor (10%). It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 24,251,604.43 & 25,381,554.37 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Furthermore, exergy Set A (30-60-10) creates the worst sustainability performance in Australia under both carbon trade and offset policies since more exergy weight is assigned for Labor (60%) and less for Environment (10%).



Fig. 8.2. Sustainability of coal SC in China under the carbon trade and offset policies



Fig. 8.3. Sustainability of coal SC in India under the carbon trade and offset policies

- China (Fig. 8.2): In the biggest coal consumer in the world (54%), the maximum sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon trade and offset policies are with exergy Set C (20-50-30) when Labor has 50% weight, going along with Capital (20%) and Environment (30%), respectively. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 83,731,242.82 & 96,953,009.68 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Moreover, under carbon trade policy, this is exergy Set F (30-10-60) which creates the worst sustainability performance whereas only 10% is assigned to Labor element and 60% for Environment. Under carbon offset policy, exergy Set A (30-60-10) makes the worst sustainability performance in China when more exergy weight is supposed for Labor (60%) and only 10% for Environment.
- India (Fig. 8.3): In the second biggest coal consumer in the world (18%), like China, exergy Set C (20-50-30) with 50% Labor weight and 20% for Capital creates the best sustainability performance under both carbon trade and offset policies. It produced the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 24,826,136.13 & 25,466,158.69 (MJ) for coal SC in India by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Likewise, under both carbon trade and offset policies, this is exergy Set B (60-20-20) which creates the worst sustainability performance whereas 60% is assigned to Capital element.



Fig. 8.4. Sustainability of coal SC in Iran under the trade and offset policies

Iran (Fig. 8.4): In this developing country, the highest sustainability performance of coal SC is by exergy Set A (30-60-10), as Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It made the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 31,537,292.44 & 41,699,351.48 (MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies. Like India, the lowest sustainability performance is with exergy Set B (60-20-20), when 60% weight is allocated to Capital, which created the maximum fuzzy total exergy (MJ) under both carbon policies.



Fig. 8.5. Sustainability of coal SC in Japan under the carbon trade and offset policies

Japan (Fig. 8.5): This developed country has the same sustainability conditions with Australia. The best sustainability performance under both carbon policies is with exergy Set F (30-10-60), while more exergy percentage is given to Environment (60%). It established the minimum amount of fuzzy total exergy with 22,873,547.02 & 27,876,026.26 (MJ) by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Moreover, the maximum fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability in MJ) under carbon trade policy is with exergy Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is provided to the Capital (60%). Under carbon offset policy, this is exergy Set A (30-60-10) which creates the lowest sustainable condition when Labor and Environment elements have 60% and 10%, respectively.



Fig. 8.6. Sustainability of coal SC in Poland under the carbon trade and offset policies



Fig. 8.7. Sustainability of coal SC in the USA under the carbon trade and offset policies

- Poland (Fig. 8.6): Poland ranks 9th in the world in coal consumption to generate 70% of electricity, by far the highest figure in Europe. Like India and China, the greatest sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon trade and offset policies in Poland are with exergy Set C (20-50-30) when Labor has 50% weight, going along with Capital (20%) and Environment (30%), respectively. It created the lowest fuzzy total exergy of 86,131,627.76 & 95,760,363.89 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Moreover, under carbon trade policy, this is exergy Set F (30-10-60) which generates the unhealthiest sustainability performance whereas only 10% is assigned to Labor element and 60% for Environment. Under carbon offset policy, exergy Set B (60-20-20) makes the lowest sustainability performance in Poland when more exergy weight is supposed for Capital (60%) and the same (20%) for Labor and Environment aspects.
- The USA (Fig. 8.7): This developed country is the third biggest coal consumers (6%) in the world. Like Australia and Japan, the highest sustainability performance of coal SC under both carbon trade and offset policies are with exergy Set F (30-10-60) since more exergy weight is assigned for Environment (60%) and less for Labor (10%). It created the lowest fuzzy total exergy of 19,675,609.14 & 21,032,559.94 (MJ) for coal SC by carbon trade and offset policies, respectively. Furthermore, exergy Set A (30-60-10) creates the worst sustainability performance in the USA under carbon trade policy since more exergy weight is assigned for Labor (60%) and less for Environment (10%). Under carbon offset, this is exergy Set D (20-40-40) which generates the lowest sustainability condition since only 20% is assigned to Capital and the same weights (40%) for both Labor and Environmental aspects.



Fig. 8.8. Sustainability of coal SC in Zimbabwe under the carbon trade and offset policies

Zimbabwe (Fig. 8.8): This African developing country has the same sustainability conditions with Australia, Japan, and the USA. The superior sustainability performance under both carbon policies is with exergy Set F (30-10-60), while more exergy percentage is given to Environment (60%) and only 10% for Labor. It established the least amount of fuzzy total exergy with 22,873,547.02 & 24,119,890.07 (MJ) by carbon trade and offset

policies, respectively. Moreover, like Australia, the largest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest possible sustainability in MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies in Zimbabwe is with exergy Set A (30-60-10) when more weight is provided to the Labor (60%) and only 10% for Environmental aspect.



Fig. 8.9. The best exergy set for each country under the carbon trade and offset policies

- Respecting Fig. 8.9, the best exergy set (with the highest sustainability performance in MJ) in developing countries like Iran is exergy Set A (30-60-10) under both carbon trade and offset policies, while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment. Moreover, it is observed that Zimbabwe as a developing country in Africa has the same sustainability condition for coal SC with the developed countries like Australia, Japan, and the USA. The best exergy set for mentioned countries is Set F (30-10-60) when Environmental aspect has 60% weight and Labor only 10%. It creates the best sustainability performance (the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies. In the two most populated countries like China and India, this is exergy Set C (20-50-30) which generates the best sustainable performance for coal SC since 50% weight is assigned to Labor. Coal SC in Poland (in the Europe) has the same condition with China and India.
- Among all presented developed and developing countries, the coal SC in the USA has the lowest total exergy (the most sustainable conditions) with 22,604,564.59 & 23,177,067.92 (MJ) under carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.9). Zimbabwe, Japan, Australia, India, China, and Poland are followed the USA.



Fig. 8.10. The worst exergy set for each country under the carbon trade and offset policies

- Respecting Fig. 8.10, under carbon trade policy the worst exergy set (the lowest sustainability with the highest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) in Australia, the USA and Zimbabwe is exergy Set A (30-60-10) with 60% Labor weight and only 10% for Environmental aspect. In China and Poland, exergy Set F (30-10-60) with 60% Environmental weight and only 10% for Labor aspect is the worst exergy set under the carbon trade policy. Moreover, in India and Iran exergy Set B (60-20-20) creates the lowest sustainable performance when 60% weight is assigned to Capital and the same weights (20%) for Labor and Environmental aspects.
- Concerning Fig. 8.10, under carbon offset policy the worst exergy set (the minimal sustainability with the greatest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) in Australia, China, Japan and Zimbabwe is exergy Set A (30-60-10) with 60% Labor weight and only 10% for Environmental aspect. In India, Iran and Poland, exergy Set B (60-20-20) with 60% Capital weight and the same weights (20%) for Labor and Environmental aspects is the worst exergy set under the carbon offset policy. Moreover, in the USA exergy Set D (20-40-40) creates the lowest sustainable performance when only 20% weight is assigned to Capital and the same weights (40%) for Labor and Environmental aspects.
- Moreover, coal SC in China has the highest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability conditions) among all presented developed and developing countries with 121,884,457.74 & 178,509,576.98 (MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.10).

8.6.2 Analysis of each exergy set-carbon trade and offset policies



Considering Table 8.1 for each exergy set, we have:

Fig. 8.11. The exergy Set A in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.



Fig. 8.12. The exergy Set B in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.

Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): Considering this exergy set which has 60% weight for Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment, creates the most sustainable performance (the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) among all the countries in Iran (31,537,292.44) under carbon trade and in Zimbabwe (36,156,127.01) under carbon offset policy. At the same time, exergy set A creates the worst sustainability performance with the highest fuzzy total exergy (MJ) in China under both carbon policies (see Fig. 8.11).

Exergy Set B (60%-20%-20%): Regarding this exergy set which has more emphasis on Capital (60%), coal SC in the USA has the lowest sustainability performance (the highest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) under both carbon policies. At the same time, exergy set B works unhealthy in terms of MJ in Poland (110,155,055.08) and China (166,472,938.65) under carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.12).



Fig. 8.13. The exergy Set C in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.

Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this exergy set is assigned more weight on Labor (50%) which creates the best sustainability conditions among all the countries for coal SC in India under both carbon policies. Simultaneously, it creates the lowest sustainability conditions (in MJ) in Poland (86,131,627.76) and China (96,953,009.68) under carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.13).



Fig. 8.14. The exergy Set D in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.



Fig. 8.15. The exergy Set E in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.

- Exergy Set D (20%-40%-40%): When less emphasis is put on Capital (20%) and the same weights (40%) for Labor and Environmental aspects, exergy set D creates the worst sustainability conditions among all the countries in China under both carbon trade and offset policies. All at once, it operates well in terms of sustainability (the lowest fuzzy total exergy) in Zimbabwe under both carbon policies (see Fig. 8.14).
- Exergy Set E (20%-30%-50%): In this set, 50% weight is assigned to Environmental aspect and only 20% for Capital. It creates the highest fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability) in China and the lowest (the highest sustainability) in the USA under both carbon trade and offset policies (see Fig. 8.15).



Fig. 8.16. The exergy Set F in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.



Fig. 8.17. The exergy Set G in developed and developing countries under the carbon trade and offset policies.

- Exergy Set F (30%-10%-60%): With 60% weight for Environmental aspect and only 10% for Labor, Set F creates the maximum fuzzy total exergy (the minimal sustainability) in China (128,734,240.79 & 153,294,716.80 MJ) and the minimal (the maximum sustainability) in coal SC in the USA under both carbon trade and offset policies (see Fig. 8.16).
- Exergy Set G (33%-33%-33%): In this set, the same weights (33%) are given to all sustainability aspects. It creates the lowest fuzzy total exergy (the highest the sustainability) in Zimbabwe under both carbon trade and offset policies. Moreover, the weakest sustainability condition in terms of MJ is belong to China (121,351,102.11) and Poland (146,622,025.05) under carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.17).
- Moreover, all exergy Sets (A-E) generated the maximum fuzzy total exergy (the lowest sustainability) for coal SC in China and Poland among all presented countries under both carbon trade and offset policies (see Table 8.1).

In this chapter, carbon offset policy is applied to the EPQ model in Chapter 6 to make a comparison between the carbon trade and offset policies in terms of Joules in a coal SC among some developed and developing countries such as India, China, Iran, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe. All sensitivity results are presented in Table 8.1 for coal SC in all countries. Moreover, analysis of each country (subsection 8.6.1) and analysis of each exergy set (subsection 8.6.2) for both carbon tax and cap policies are presented in this chapter. In the next chapter, a comprehensive conclusion for all four carbon policies and related models will be presented as well as the research limitations and future research.

CHAPTER 9. CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE WORK

In this manuscript-based thesis, a comprehensive literature review about sustainability management in SC and demand forecast in energy SC was done in Chapters 3 and 4, respectively. Moreover, research works related to exergy analysis and carbon reduction policies in the past two decades were reviewed in Chapters 5 (subsection 5.2) and 6 (subsection 6.2). According to the literature review, there is a lack of studies that assess a coal SC under any carbon reduction policies such as carbon cap, tax, trade and offset with ambiguous parameters for example, carbon price and customer demand. Likewise, little research has been done to assess a SC in terms of Joules (in place of traditional monetary measures of performance) and simultaneously evaluates all sustainability characteristics (economic, labour, and environmental). Similarly, to the best of the authors' knowledge, no exergy analysis method like the extended exergy accounting (EEA) in the literature considers carbon reduction policies in SC. Therefore, this dissertation developed the work of Jawad et al. (2016) and Naderi et al. (2021a) to a multi-product multi-limitation inventory (EOQ/EPQ) model with backorder for a coal SC in Iran under an uncertain environment. By applying the EEA technique and Mega-Joules (MJ) as a universal unit of measure, the total exergy of the coal SC can be calculated. Moreover, the sustainability performance of coal SC in terms of Joules (considering economic, labour, and environmental aspects) in developed and developing countries under four well-known carbon reduction strategies such as carbon tax (Chapter 5), carbon trade (Chapter 6), carbon cap (Chapter 7) and carbon offset (Chapter 8) are evaluated.

In Chapter 5, a carbon tax policy was applied to a coal SC in Iran, Afghanistan, Turkey, Canada and Germany under EOQ inventory model and then the mathematical model was converted to an exergy model (in terms of Joules) by the EEA method. The model was solved by some traditional and modern metaheuristic algorithms (WOA, GA, ACO, and SA). The results of metaheuristic algorithms were validated by exact method (GAMS software) in small size test problems. Finally, a sensitivity analysis for different weights of exergy aspects (Capital, Labor and Environment) for all countries was done to find out which exergy weight is creating the most sustainable performance for coal SC in each country. In the same way, in Chapter 6, carbon trade policy was applied to a coal SC in India, China, Iran, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe. The same solution process was done for this chapter while three recent metaheuristic algorithms: ALO, LOA, and WOA were employed to solve the model. Chapter 7 developed the model in Chapter 5 by employing carbon cap policy. Similarly, Chapter 8 developed the model in Chapter 7 and between carbon trade and offset policies in Chapter 8 was made.

9.1 Research contributions

In earlier studies, as we saw in Chapters 1 and 2, there were some research gaps that this study tried to fill them. Therefore, this PhD thesis contributes to the literature by assess a coal SC include one vendor and multi-buyer with multi-product and multi-limitation inventory models (EOQ/EPQ) with backorder under four different carbon reduction policies such as carbon tax (Chapter 5), carbon cap (Chapter 7), carbon trade (Chapter 6) and carbon offset (Chapter 8) within an uncertain environment, for example, carbon price or customer demand. Moreover, this study

assessed a SC in terms of Joules instead of dollars (as a traditional performance measures) and simultaneously evaluate all sustainability aspects, such as economic, labour, and environmental. Furthermore, to the best author's knowledge, this is the first study that employ the EEA method to assess the sustainability of a coal SC under four carbon emission policies. Additionally, this study compared the sustainability of coal SCs between developed and developing countries under carbon tax and cap policies (in Chapters 5 and 7 among Iran, Afghanistan, Turkey, Germany, and Canada) and under carbon trade and offset policies (in Chapters 6 and 8 among Iran, Australia, China, India, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe) with the EEA method. Besides, this thesis obtained the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental aspects) in the EEA method for a coal SC in both developed and developing countries (please see Tables 7.1 and 8.1) that created the highest sustainability of coal SC in both developed and developed and developing countries and obtained which country has the best sustainability performance (the lowest total exergy) in terms of Joules (please see Figs. 7.6 and 8.9).

In this dissertation, four research questions (in Chapter 1) were presented. We summarize the answers to each in this section and highlight the research contributions.

Q1. Does incorporating a carbon reduction strategy with the EEA method in coal SC trigger financial benefits and sustainability advantages?

In Chapters 5-8, four non-exergy mathematical models of the coal SC under carbon cap, tax, trade, and offset policies were developed. Then the models were converted to fuzzy models, and finally, a new SC assessment method called the EEA (in terms of Joules) was employed for all models. This method contains energy and material's main aggregate exergy subject and costs corresponding to economic externalities (labor and capital) and ecological externality (environmental remediation). Therefore, employing this method could benefit both the economy and the environment. By employing well-known and recent metaheuristic algorithms (GA, ACO, SA, ALO, LOA, and WOA) all models were solved, and their results were verified by the exact method (GAMS software) in small-size test problems (four products).

Q2. The coal SC in developing countries is supposed to have the lowest cost overall; however, in terms of sustainability (social, economic, and environmental aspects) and considering Joules rather than monetary objectives, does this assumption remain accurate?

Regarding the sensitivity analysis in Chapters 5-8, the sustainability of coal SC under carbon cap and tax policies were compared in five developed and developing countries such as Afghanistan, Iran, Turkey, Germany, and Canada (see Table 7.1). Moreover, under the carbon trade and offset policies, eight developed and developing countries, such as Iran, India, China, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe were assessed (see Table 8.1). They are the world's most significant coal-consuming countries (Statista, 2020).

- Under carbon cap and tax policies:
 - It is observed that coal SCs in developing countries such as Iran and Turkey have lower sustainability performance in MJ than the developed countries such as Germany and Canada under carbon cap and tax policies.
- Under carbon trade and offset policies:

• It is observed that coal SCs in the developing countries such as India and China have lower sustainability performance in MJ than the developed countries such as the USA, Japan and Australia under carbon trade and offset policies.

The reason behind this issue is that traditional assessment methods consider economic measures only. In contrast, the method of EEA considers all three aspects of sustainability (Labour, Money, and Ecological remediation) in goods or services. It determines their corresponding exergy (in terms of Joules rather than Dollar or Euro) by some elements significantly affected by population, normal workload, labor statistics, and local and international wages in each country. Therefore, the EEA method results show the total number of Joules that coal SC utilized in Labour, Money, and Ecological aspects.

Q3. Which country has the most sustainable coal SC in terms of Joules?

- Based on Table 7.1 and under carbon cap and tax policies, among all five presented countries (developed and developing), the coal SC in Afghanistan has the lowest total exergy (the best sustainable conditions) with 141,316.53 & 1,504,757.85 (MJ) under carbon cap and tax policies, respectively (see Fig. 7.6). Germany, Canada, Iran, and Turkey followed Afghanistan. It is observed that coal mining and related enterprises in the developed countries such as Germany and Canada have economic and environmental advantages compared to developing countries such as Iran and Turkey in terms of MJ.
- Additionally, based on Table 8.1 and under carbon trade and offset policies, the minimal total exergy (the best sustainable performance) of a coal SC among all eight countries belongs to the USA with 22,604,564.59 & 23,177,067.92 (MJ) under carbon trade and offset policies, respectively (see Fig. 8.9). Zimbabwe, Japan, Australia, India, China, and Poland followed the USA. It means coal mining and related businesses in the USA have monetary and ecological benefits contrasted to developing countries (like China and India or Iran and Zimbabwe) in terms of MJ.

Q4. What is the best percentage of exergy components (social, economic, environmental characteristics) to achieve the greatest saving wherever coal SCs are working?

- Under carbon cap and tax policies:
 - Respecting Fig. 7.6 and Table 7.1, the best exergy set in developing countries like Afghanistan, Iran and Turkey is exergy Set A (30-60-10), while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environmental aspect. It creates the best sustainability conditions with the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ. Moreover, in developed countries like Canada and Germany, the best exergy set is Set D (30-20-50) with 50% Environmental weight which creates the best sustainability performance under both carbon cap and tax policies.
- Under carbon trade and offset policies:
 - Respecting Fig. 8.9 and Table 8.1, the best exergy set (with the highest sustainability performance in MJ) in developing countries like Iran is exergy Set A (30-60-10) under both carbon trade and offset policies, while more exergy percentage is given to Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment. Moreover, it is observed that Zimbabwe as a developing country in Africa has the same sustainability condition for coal SC with the developed countries like Australia, Japan, and the USA. The best exergy set for mentioned countries is Set F (30-10-60) when Environmental aspect has 60% weight and Labor only 10%. It creates the best sustainability

performance (the lowest fuzzy total exergy in MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies. In the two most populated countries like China and India, this is exergy Set C (20-50-30) which generates the best sustainable performance for coal SC since 50% weight is assigned to Labor. Moreover, Coal SC in Poland (in the Europe) has the same condition with China and India.

9.2 Management implications and future research

There are some observations based on the results for improving the sustainability of coal SC in each country are presented in what follows.

The exergy equations in Chapters 5-6 (for instance, Eqs. 5.20-5.34) showed that the all exergy parameters such as capital, labor and environmental aspects $(ee_{Cap,i}, ee_{L,i}, ee_{Env,i})$ had direct relation to the cost elements of inventory models such as setup/ordering (*K*), purchasing (*C*), and holding(*h*). Consequently, these inventory costs affect the total exergy of the coal SC in a significant way. It is therefore critical to decrease the cost elements of a coal SC's inventory model to improve sustainability. For example, by using stock classification and shorter order cycles, reducing the lead time of suppliers, eliminating obsolete inventory, implementing a Just-in-Time inventory system, and monitoring key performance indicators.

Unlike conventional financial and commercial models, the results of our study found that a way to improve the sustainability performance of coal SC is tuning of the weights that are assigned to the exergy of capital, Labor and Environmental aspects in each country (see Tables 7.1 and 8.1). It means that no fixed amount of exergy components (Capital, Labor and Environment) can deliver the highest sustainability in all countries. For example, according to the results in Table 8.1, exergy Set F (30-10-60) with 60% weight allocated to the environment and only 10% to labor generates the best sustainability for coal SC in the USA (19,675,609.14 & 21,032,559.94 MJ) under both carbon trade and offset policies. Simultaneously, this exergy Set generates the worst sustainability for China (128,734,240.79 & 153,294,716.80 MJ). Hence, finding the best amount of exergy elements (capital, labor and environment) for each country and try to tune them is important.

Another point is that, considering Appendix 3-Table A.9.1 (which is made by integrating Tables 5.5-6.5) and Appendix 3-Fig. A.9.1, one can conclude that the exergy parameters of Capital $(ee_{Cap} = 1.1 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ and Labor $(ee_L = 0.41 \text{ MJ/WH})$ in Afghanistan are less than all presented countries. This would be one of the reasons why coal SC in Afghanistan has the most sustainable performance in terms of Joules under carbon cap and tax policies, whereas Iran $(ee_{Cap} = 5.68 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ and Turkey $(ee_{Cap} = 20.51 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ have the worst sustainable condition. Similarly, for example, under carbon trade and offset policies, the exergy parameter of Capital $(ee_{Cap} = 2.85 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ in the USA is less than Japan, Australia, India, China, Poland, and Zimbabwe. However, China $(ee_{Cap} = 14.01 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ and Poland $(ee_{Cap} = 14.02 \text{ MJ/Euro})$ are the worst sustainable conditions under carbon trade and offset policies. Therefore, a way to increase sustainabile conditions under carbon trade exergy parameters ($ee_{Cap} = 14.02 \text{ MJ/Euro}$) are

If we look at exergy formulas of Capital $(ee_{Cap} = \alpha_x \cdot \beta_x \left(\frac{Ex_{in}}{M_2}\right))$ and Labor $(ee_L = \frac{\alpha_x \cdot Ex_{in}}{(NWH)_{total}})$ in Chapters 5-6, both exergy parameters (ee_{Cap}, ee_L) are dependent on two econometric coefficients (α_x, β_x) as well as (Ex_{in}) . Chapters 5-6 explain that these values are influenced by the

type of societal organization, the historical period, the technological level, the pro-capital resource consumption, and the geographical location of the country (Sciubba, 2011). Therefore, to decrease these parameters and consequently improving sustainability of coal SC, all shareholders, governments, individuals, societies, business organisations, scientists, etc., need to contribute significantly to adjusting the parameters, if possible. An example is controlling the import and export of goods from and to the country or extracting ores and minerals. Promoting locally made goods can be a way for individuals, societies, and business organizations to support this cause. As a result, there would be more jobs available in the country, and increasing the labor force rate (Jawad et al., 2018). Additionally, effective productivity growth (output per hour worked) can boost a country's income and GDP per capita. For more information, readers are encouraged to consult Sciubba (2011).

In addition, decision-makers should find ways to improve the sustainability of their coal SC by reducing waste, labor, material, and pollution, which will reduce the damaging effects of coal SC. When calculating energy costs, managers of SC would have more flexibility since they could use available resources rather than just capital to calculate the quantity. Furthermore, this research will also guide managers of international coal mining companies who wish to decide which country has more sustainable conditions for their business and investments.

Additionally, the EEA method in this thesis is subject to some restrictions, involving the following:

- When EEA is used to a coal SC, the precision of the results is dependent upon the assumptions made.
- It is possible that the EEA method in coal SCs may have restrictions when more than one country is included in the SC processes (international companies).
- Insufficient data regarding a country's total exergy input, the quantity of exergy represented in the workforce, the exergy of raw materials and energy consumed to supply a coal.

Moreover, the following avenues for future research are suggested for consideration:

- a) A coal production system.
- b) A model with multiple objectives (integrating inventory measures).
- c) An international coal SC model that works in more than one country at the same time.
- d) Comparing a global coal SC with a national one.
- e) The strategy of increasing carbon price with increasing the amount of carbon (price dependent on amount) by each country.
- f) A sensitivity analysis for different carbon cap limitation by each country under carbon cap policy.
- g) The SC of coal power plants.
- h) Quantity discounts in cost per unit of products can be allowed.
- i) Interval type 2 fuzzy parameters can be considered.
- j) Multi-echelon SCs, for example, single-buyer multi-supplier and multi-buyer multisupplier SCs, can be investigated.
- k) Lead times can be included.

References

Aala Kalananda, V.K.R., Komanapalli, V.L.N. (2021). A combinatorial social group whale optimization algorithm for numerical and engineering optimization problems. Applied Soft Computing, 99:106903.

Abderazek, H., Yildiz, A.R., Mirjalili, S. (2020). Comparison of recent optimization algorithms for design optimization of a cam-follower mechanism. Knowledge-Based Systems, 191:105237.

Abdel-Aal, R. E. (2008). Univariate modeling and forecasting of monthly energy demand time series using abductive and neural networks. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 54(4), 903–917.

Abdi, M. R., Labib, A., Edalat, F. D., Abdi, A. (2018). Integrated reconfigurable manufacturing systems and smart value chain: Sustainable infrastructure for the factory of the future. Cham, online: Springer. ISBN 978-3-319-76846-5.

Abdul-Wahab, S. A., Bakheit, C. S., Al-Alawi, S. M. (2005). Principal component and multiple regression analysis in modelling of ground-level ozone and factors affecting its concentrations. Environmental Modelling & Software, 20(10), 1263–1271.

Abdullah, S.M., Ahmed, A. (2020). Hybrid bare bones fireworks algorithm for load flow analysis of islanded microgrids. In: Handbook of research on fireworks algorithms and swarm intelligence, IGI Global, 283–314.

Abualigah, L.M., Shehab, M., Alshinwan, M., Mirjalili, S.M., Elaziz, M.E. (2020). Ant lion optimizer: a comprehensive survey of its variants and applications. Archives of Computational Methods in Engineering, 28:1397–1416.

Accenture. (2014). Big data analytics in supply chain: hype or here to stay? In Accenture global operations megatrends study (pp. 1–20).

Adamowski, J., Fung Chan, H., Prasher, S. O., Ozga-Zielinski, B., Sliusarieva, A. (2012). Comparison of multiple linear and nonlinear regression, autoregressive integrated moving average, artificial neural network, and wavelet artificial neural network methods for urban water demand forecasting in Montreal, Canada. Water Resources Research, 48(1).

Adom, P. K., Amakye, K., Barnor, C., Quartey, G., Bekoe, W. (2016). Shift in demand elasticities, road energy forecast and the persistence profile of shocks. Economic Modelling, 55, 189–206.

Agarwal, G., Barari, S., Tiwari, M. K. (2012). A PSO-based optimum consumer incentive policy for WEEE incorporating reliability of components. International Journal of Production Research, 50(16), 4372–4380.

Aghbashlo, M., Tabatabaei, M., Hosseini, S.S., Dashti, B.B., Soufiyan, M.M., (2018) Performance assessment of a wind power plant using standard exergy and extended exergy accounting (EEA) approaches. Journal of Cleaner Production, 171, 127–136.

Agus, A., Ahmad, S. (2017). The significant impact of customer relations practices (CRP), information technology (IT) and information sharing between supply chain partners (IS) on product sales. Gading Journal for the Social Sciences, 12(01), 65–85.

Ahmad, T., Chen, H. (2018a). Utility companies strategy for short-term energy demand forecasting using machine learning based models. Sustainable Cities and Society, 39, 401–417.

Ahmad, T., Chen, H. (2018b). Potential of three variant machine-learning models for forecasting district level medium-term and long-term energy demand in smart grid environment. Energy, 160, 1008–1020.

Ahmad, T., Chen, H., Guo, Y., Wang, J. (2018). A comprehensive overview on the data driven and large scale based approaches for forecasting of building energy demand: A review. Energy and Buildings, 16515, 301–320.

Ahmad, J., Larijani, H., Emmanuel, R., Mannion, M., Javed, A., Phillipson, M. (2017). Energy demand prediction through novel random neural network predictor for large non-domestic buildings. In 2017 Annual IEEE International Systems Conference (SysCon) (pp. 1–6).

Ahmed, R., Sreeram, V., Mishra, Y., Arif, M. D. (2020). A review and evaluation of the state-ofthe-art in PV solar power forecasting: Techniques and optimization. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 124, Article 109792.

Aka, S., Akyuz, G. (2021). An inventory and production model with fuzzy parameters for the food sector. Sustainable Production and Consumption, 26:627–637.

Akpinar, M., Yumusak, N. (2016). Year ahead demand forecast of city natural gas using seasonal time series methods. Energies, 9, 727.

Ali, E., Abd, E.S., Abdelaziz, A. (2017). Ant lion optimization algorithm for optimal location and sizing of renewable distributed generations. Renew Energy, 101:1311–1324.

Alfalla-Luque, R., Medina-Lopez, C., Dey, P. K. (2013). Supply chain integration framework using literature review. Production Planning & Control, 24, 800–817. https://doi.org/10.1080/09537287.2012.666870.

Almada-Lobo, F. (2016). The Industry 4.0 revolution and the future of manufacturing execution systems (MES). Journal of Innovation Management, 3(4), 16–21.

Alrabghi, A. (2018) Simulation based optimization frameworks as key enablers for the transformation to Industry 4.0. In Proceedings of International Conference on Computers and Industrial Engineering, CIE.

Amin, P., Cherkasova, L., Aitken, R., Kache, V. (2019). Analysis and demand forecasting of residential energy consumption at multiple time scales. IFIP/IEEE Symposium on Integrated Network and Service Management (IM), 2019, 494–499.

Amini, S., Remmerswaal, J., Castro, M., Reuter, M., (2007) Quantifying the quality loss and resource efficiency of recycling by means of exergy analysis. Journal of Cleaner Production. 15 (10), 907–913.

Anderson, M. S. (2007). An introductory note on the environmental economics of the circular economy. Sustainability Science, 2, 133–140.

Apaiah, R., Linnemann, A.R., Van Der Kooi, H.J., (2006) Exergy analysis: a tool to study the sustainability of food supply chains. Food Research International, 39 (1), 1–11.

Aragón-Correa, J. A., Hurtado-Torres, N., Sharma, S., García-Morales, V. J. (2008). Environmental strategy and performance in small firms: A resource-based perspective. Journal of Environmental Management, 86(1), 88–103. Arango-Miranda, R., Hausler, R., Romero-Lopez, R., Glaus, M., Ibarra-Zavaleta, S.P., (2018) An overview of energy and exergy analysis to the industrial sector, a contribution to sustainability. Sustainability 10 (1), 153.

Arcos-Aviles, D., Pascual, J., Guinjoan, F., Marroyo, L., Sanchis, P., Marietta, M. P. (2017). Low complexity energy management strategy for grid profile smoothing of a residential grid-connected microgrid using generation and demand forecasting. Applied Energy, 205, 69–84.

Ardakani, F. J., Ardehali, M. M. (2014). Novel effects of demand side management data on accuracy of electrical energy consumption modeling and long-term forecasting. Energy Conversion and Management, 78, 745–752.

Ardito, L., Petruzzelli, A. M., Panniello, U., Garavelli, A. C. (2019). Towards Industry 4.0: Mapping digital technologies for supply chain management-marketing integration. Business Process Management Journal, 25(2), 323–346.

Asadi, E., Sadjadi, S., (2017) Optimization methods applied to renewable and sustainable energy: a review. Uncertain Supply Chain Management 5 (1), 1–26.

Assareh, E., Behrang, M. A., Ghanbarzdeh, A. (2012). Forecasting energy demand in iran using genetic algorithm (GA) and particle swarm optimization (PSO) methods. Energy Sources, Part B: Economics, Planning, and Policy, 7, 411–422.

Australian Government, (2022). Coal, https://www.ga.gov.au/digital-publication/aecr2022/coal.

Avila, F., Saez, D., Jimenez-Estevez, G., Reyes, L., Núnez, A. (2013). Fuzzy demand forecasting in a predictive control strategy for a renewable-energy based microgrid. European Control Conference (ECC), 2013, 2020–2025.

Azadeh, A., Asadzadeh, S. M., Saberi, M., Nadimi, V., Tajvidi, A., Sheikalishahi, M. (2011). A Neuro-fuzzy-stochastic frontier analysis approach for long-term natural gas consumption forecasting and behavior analysis: The cases of Bahrain, Saudi Arabia, Syria, and UAE. Applied Energy, 88(11), 3850–3859.

Azadeh, A., Babazadeh, R., Asadzadeh, S. M. (2013). Optimum estimation and forecasting of renewable energy consumption by artificial neural networks. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 27, 605–612.

Azadeh, A., Saberi, M., Asadzadeh, S. M., Hussain, O. K., Saberi, Z. (2013). A neurofuzzy multivariate algorithm for accurate gas consumption estimation in South America with noisy inputs. International Journal of Electrical Power & Energy Systems, 46, 315–325.

Baczynski, D., Piotrowski, P. (2012). PSO algorithm efficiency analysis in quality estimation of electric energy hourly demand forecast of selected consumers groups. Przeglad Elektrotechniczny, 88(11), 25–29.

Badar-Ul-Islam, B., Baharudin, Z., Nallagownden, P. (2016). Development of chaotically improved meta-heuristics and modified BP neural network-based model for electrical energy demand prediction in smart grid. Neural Computing and Applications, 28, 877–891.

Badurdeen, F., Iyengar, D., Goldsby, T. J., Metta, H., Gupta, S., Jawahir, I. S. (2009). Extending total life-cycle thinking to sustainable supply chain design. International Journal of Product Lifecycle Management, 4(1–3), 49–67.

Bag, S., Telukdarie, A., Pretorius, J.H.C., Gupta, S. (2018). Industry 4.0 and supply chain sustainability: framework and future research directions. Benchmarking: An International Journal.

Bagchi, P. K., Chun, H. B., Skjoett-Larsen, T., Boege, Soerensen L. (2005). Supply chain integration: A European survey. The International Journal of Logistics Management, 16(2), 275–294.

Balomenos, E., Panias, D., Paspaliaris, I., (2011) Energy and exergy analysis of the primary aluminum production processes: a review on current and future sustainability. Mineral Processing and Extractive Metallurgy Review, 3 (2), 69–89.

Banasik, A., Kanellopoulos, A., Claassen, G.D.H., Bloemhof-Ruwaard, J.M., van der Vorst, J.G., (2017a) Assessing alternative production options for eco-efficient food supply chains using multi-objective optimization. Annals of Operations Research, 250 (2), 341–362.

Banasik, A., Kanellopoulos, A., Claassen, G.D.H., Bloemhof-Ruwaard, J.M., van der Vorst, J.G., (2017b) Closing loops in agricultural supply chains using multi-objective optimization: a case study of an industrial mushroom supply chain. International Journal of Production Economics, 183, 409–420.

Banchuen, P., Sadler, I., Shee, H. (2017). Supply chain collaboration aligns order winning strategy with business outcomes. IIMB Management Review, 29(2), 109–121.

Banks, C., Kotecha, R., Curtis, J., Dee, C., Pitt, N., Papworth, R. (2018). Enhancing highrise residential construction through design for manufacture and assembly—A UK case study. Proceedings of Institution of Civil Engineers: Management, Procurement and Law, 171(4), 164–174.

Barratt, R. (2016). How automation is changing the supply chain. Supply Demand Chain Exec. RetrievedOctober 15, 2016, from https://www.sdcexec.com/warehousing/article/12267524/howautomation-is-changing-the-supplychain.

Baumers, M., Tuck, C., Wildman, R., Ashcroft, I., Rosamond, E., Hague, R. (2013). Transparency built-in: Energy consumption and cost estimation for additive manufacturing. Journal of Industrial Ecology, 17(3), 418–431.

Bechtold, J., Kern, A., Lauenstein, C., Bernhofer, L. (2014) Industry 4.0—The Capgemini consulting view: Sharpening the picture beyond the hype.

Bechtsis, D., Tsolakis, N., Vlachos, D., Srai, J. S. (2018) Intelligent autonomous vehicles in digital supply chains: A framework for integrating innovations towards sustainable value networks. Journal of Cleaner Production, 181, 60–71.

Bedekar, A. (2017). Opportunities & Challenges for IoT in India. https://technology.siliconindiamag azine.com/viewpoint/cxoinsights/opportunities-challenges-foriot-in-india-nwid-1060.html.

Beier, J. (2016). Simulation approach towards energy flexible manufacturing systems. Cham: Springer International Publishing.

Bekakra, Y., Zellouma, L., Malik, O. (2021). Improved predictive direct power control of shunt active power filter using GWO and ALO –Simulation and experimental study. Ain Shams Engineering Journal, 12(4):3859–3877.

Beklari, A., Nikabadi, M.S., Farsijani, H., Mohtashami, A. (2018). A hybrid algorithm for solving vendors managed inventory (VMI) model with the goal of maximizing inventory turnover in producer warehouse. Industrial Engineering & Management Systems, 17(3):570–587.

Bernardes, F. G., Ferreira, L. A., Saldanha, R. R. (2016). Optimal energy portfolios with demand prediction and distributed generation sources. Eighteenth International Middle East Power Systems Conference (MEPCON), 2016, 318–323.

Beske, P., Land, A., Seuring, S. (2014). Sustainable supply chain management practices and dynamic capabilities in the food industry: Acritical analysis of the literature. International Journal of Production Economics, 152, 131–143.

Bhaskar, K. V., Singh, S. N. (2012). AWNN-assisted wind power forecasting using feedforward neural network. IEEE Transactions on Sustainable Energy, 3, 306–315.

Bianchi, F. M., Santis, E. D., Rizzi, A., Sadeghian, A. (2015). Short-term electric load forecasting using echo state networks and PCA decomposition. IEEE Access, 3, 1931–1943.

Bjorn, C., Olivier, V. E., Stijn, V. (2013) Impact of e-waste on the operating model of a close the digital divide organization. In ECIS 2013—Proceedings of the 21st European Conference on Information Systems.

Blum, C., Roli, A. (2003). Metaheuristics in combinatorial optimization: Overview and conceptual comparison. ACM Computing Surveys, 35(3), 268–308.

Blum, C., Puchinger, J., Raidl, G.R., Roli, A., (2011) Hybrid metaheuristics in combinatorial optimization: A survey. Applied Soft Computing, 11 (6), 4135–4151.

Blümel, E. (2013). Global challenges and innovative technologies geared toward new markets: Prospects for virtual and augmented reality. Procedia Computer Science, 25, 4–13.

Bock, C. (2018). Forecasting Energy Demand by Clustering Smart Metering Time Series. In: J. Medina, et al. (Eds.) Information Processing and Management of Uncertainty in Knowledge-Based Systems. Theory and Foundations. IPMU 2018. Communications in Computer and Information Science (p. 853). Cham: Springer.

Booba, B., Gopal, T.V., (2013). Comparison of ant colony optimization & particle swarm optimization in grid environment. International Journal of Advanced Research in Computer Science and Applications 1 (5).

Bourdeau, M., Zhai, X., Nefzaoui, E., Guo, X., Chatellier, P. (2019). Modeling and forecasting building energy consumption: A review of data-driven techniques. Sustainable Cities and Society, 48, Article 101533.

Boussaïd, I., Lepagnot, J., Siarry, P. (2013). A survey on optimization metaheuristics. Information Sciences, 237, 82–117.

BP, (2022). Energy data. https://www.bp.com/en/global/corporate/energy-economics/statistical-review-of-world-energy/downloads.html.

Brandenburg, M., Govindan, K., Sarkis, J., Seuring, S. (2014). Quantitative models for sustainable supply chain management: Developments and directions. European Journal of Operational Research, 233(2), 299–312.

Branke, J., Farid, S. S., Shah, N. (2016). Industry 4.0: A vision for personalized medicine supply chains? Cell Gene Therapy Insights, 2(2), 263–270.

Bressanelli, G., Perona, M., Saccani, N. (2018). Towards the circular supply chain: A literature review of challenges. Proceedings of the Summer School Francesco Turco, 171–178.

BRICS Business Council. (2017). Skill development for Industry 4.0. In A White Paper by BRICS Skill Development Working Group. BRICS Business Council, India Group. Retrieved October 22, 2017, from http://www.globalskillsummit.com/Whitepaper-Summary.pdf.

Brofman Epelbaum, F. M., Martinez, M. G. (2014). The technological evolution of food traceability systems and their impact on firm sustainable performance: ARBV approach. International Journal of Production Economics, 150, 215–224.

Bucci, G., Bentivoglio, D., Finco, A. (2018). Precision agriculture as a driver for sustainable farming systems: State of art in literature and research. Quality—Access to Success, 19(S1), 114–121.

Bui, T.D., Tsai, F.M., Tseng, M.L., Ali, M.H., (2020). Identifying sustainable solid waste management barriers in practice using the fuzzy Delphi method. Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 154, 104625.

Burger, E. M., Moura, S. J. (2015). Gated ensemble learning method for demand-side electricity load forecasting. Energy and Buildings, 109, 23–34.

Büyüközkan, G., Göçer, F. (2018). Digital supply Chain: Literature review and a proposed framework for future research. Computers in Industry, 97, 157–177.

Byrne, G., Dimitrov, D., Monostori, L., Teti, R., van Houten, F., Wertheim, R. (2018). Biologicalisation: Biological transformation in manufacturing. CIRP Journal of Manufacturing Science and Technology, 21, 1–32.

Caglayan, H., Caliskan, H., (2021). Advanced exergy analyses and optimization of a cogeneration system for ceramic industry by considering endogenous, exogenous, avoidable and unavoidable exergies under different environmental conditions. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 140, 110730.

Cao, M., Zhang, Q. (2011). Supply chain collaboration: Impact on collaborative advantage and firm performance. Journal of Operations Management, 29(3), 163–180.

Cao, Z., Yuan, P., Ma, Y. B. (2014). Energy demand forecasting based on economy related factors in China. Energy Sources, Part B: Economics, Planning, and Policy, 9, 214–219.

Cao, S., Xu, Q., Jiang, C., He, Y. (2018). Conditional density forecast of China's energy demand via QRNN model. Applied Economics Letters, 25(12), 867–875.

CapGemini, Infor, GTNexus. (2016). The current and future state of digital supply chain transformation. http://www.gtnexus.com/resources/papers-and-reports/current-and-future-statedigital-supply-chain-transformation.

Cardenas-Barron, L.E., Trevino-Garza, G., Wee, H.M., (2012). A simple and better algorithm to solve the vendor managed inventory control system of multi-product multi-constraint economic order quantity model. Expert Systems with Applications, 39, 3888–3895.

Carmona, D., Jaramillo, M. A., Gonzalez, E., Alvarez, J. A. (2002). Electric energy demand forecasting with neural networks. IEEE 2002 28th Annual Conference of the Industrial Electronics Society. IECON 02, 3.

Carter, P. L., Monczka, R. M., Ragatz, G. L. (2009). Supply chain integration: Challenges and good practices. From: <u>https://www.supplychainbrain.com/articles/5448-supply-chain-integration-challenges-and-good-practices</u>.

Casteleiro-Roca J., Gomez-Gonzalez J. F., Calvo-Rolle J. L., Jove E., Quintian H., Martín J. F. A., ... Mendez-Perez J. A. (2018). Prediction of the energy demand of a hotel using an artificial intelligence-based model. In: F. de Cos Juez, et al. (Eds.) Hybrid Artificial Intelligent Systems. HAIS 2018. Lecture Notes in Computer Science (vol.10870). Cham: Springer.

Casteleiro-Roca, J. L., Gonzalez, J. F., Calvo-Rolle, J. L., Jove, E., Quintian-Pardo, H., Diaz, B. G., et al. (2019). Short-term energy demand forecast in hotels using hybrid intelligent modeling †. Sensors (Basel, Switzerland), 19(11), 2485.

Catalao, J. P., Pousinho, H. M., Mendes, V. M. (2011). Short-term wind power forecasting in Portugal by neural networks and wavelet transform. Renewable Energy, 36(4), 1245–1251.

Catalina, T., Iordache, V., Caracaleanu, B. (2013). Multiple regression model for fast prediction of the heating energy demand. Energy and Buildings, 57, 302–312.

Cecere, L. (2014). Digital supply chain - insights on driving the digital supply chain transformation. From:

https://www.supplychain247.com/paper/digital_supply_chain_insights_on_driving_the_digital_s upply_chain/Supply_Chain_Insights.

Chaabane, A., Ramudhin, A., Paquet M. (2012). Design of sustainable supply chains under the emission trading scheme. International Journal of Production Economics, 135(1):37–49.

Chen, S.H., Hseih, C.H. (1998). Graded mean integration representation of generalized fuzzy numbers. In: Proceedings of the sixth conference on fuzzy theory and its applications, Chinese fuzzy systems association, Taiwan, 1–6.

Chen, G., Chen, B., (2009). Extended-exergy analysis of the Chinese society. Energy 34 (9), 1127–1144.

Chen, C. F., Lai, M. C., Yeh, C. C. (2012). Forecasting tourism demand based on empirical mode decomposition and neural network. Knowledge-Based Systems, 26, 281–287.

Chen, F., Deng, P., Wan, J., Zhang, D., Vasilakos, A. V., Rong, X. (2015). Data mining for the internet of things: Literature review and challenges. International Journal of Distributed Sensor Networks, 11(8), 1–14.

Chen, R.-Y. (2015). Intelligent IoT-enabled system in green supply chain using integrated FCM method. International Journal of Business Analytics, 2(3), 47–66.

Chen, J., Yang, J., Zhao, J., Xu, F., Zheng, S., Zhang, L. (2016). Energy demand forecasting of the greenhouses using nonlinear models based on model optimized prediction method. Neurocomputing, 174, 1087–1100.

Chen, S., Huang, J. (2018). Forecasting China's primary energy demand based on an improved AI model. Chinese Journal of Population Resources and Environment, 16(1), 36–48.

Chen, R., Rao, Z., Liao, S. (2019). Hybrid LEAP modeling method for long-term energy demand forecasting of regions with limited statistical data. Journal of Central South University, 26, 2136–2148.

Chen, R., Rao, Z., Liu, G., Chen, Y., Liao, S. (2019). The long-term forecast of energy demand and uncertainty evaluation with limited data for energy-imported cities in China: A case study in Hunan. Energy Procedia, 160, 396–403.

Chen, J., Qi, X., Chen, L., Chen, F., Cheng, G. (2020a). Quantum-inspired ant lion optimized hybrid k-means for cluster analysis and intrusion detection. Knowledge-Based Systems, 203:106167.

Chen, H., Li, W.D., Yang, X. (2020b) A whale optimization algorithm with chaos mechanism based on quasi-opposition for global optimization problems. Expert Systems with Applications, 158:113612.

Chen, X., Cheng, L., Liu, C., Liu, Q.Z., Liu, J.W., Mao, Y. et al (2020c). A WOA-based optimization approach for task scheduling in cloud computing systems. IEEE Systems Journal, 14(03):3117–3128.

Chen, H., Li, W.D., Yang, X., (2020). A whale optimization algorithm with chaos mechanism based on quasi-opposition for global optimization problems. Expert Systems with Applications 158.

Chen Y., Raza K., Alharthi M. (2023). The nexus between remittances, education, and energy consumption: Evidence from developing countries, Energy Strategy Reviews, 46, 101069.

Chen-chen, L., Yan, G., Zhu-yan, S. (2011). Energy Demand Forecast based on the new weakening buffer operators with exponential type. Energy Procedia, 5, 2522–2526.

Cheng, Y. G. (2013). Energy demand forecast of city based on cellular genetic algorithm. Applied Mechanics and Materials, 263–266, 2122–2125.

Cho, J., Shin, S., Kim, J., Hong, H. (2014). Development of an energy evaluation methodology to make multiple predictions of the HVAC&R system energy demand for office buildings. Energy and Buildings, 80, 169–183.

Choudhury, S., Patra, A. K., Parida, A., Chatterjee, S. (2018). renewable energy capacity estimation for indian energy sector using energy demand forecasting through fuzzy time series. International

Conference on Emerging Trends and Advances in Electrical Engineering and Renewable Energy (ETAEERE), 435, 551–558.

Chu, K., Kaifuku, K., Saitou, K. (2016). Optimal integration of alternative energy sources in production systems with customer demand forecast. IEEE Transactions on Automation Science and Engineering, 13(1), 206–214.

Chuanping, Z., Zijun, Y., Binbin, C. (2011). The prediction to Chinese energy demand in 2020based on the visual angle of time series analysis. Energy Procedia, 5, 112–117.

Ciulla, G., D'Amico, A., Lo Brano, V., Traverso, M. (2019). Application of optimized artificial intelligence algorithm to evaluate the heating energy demand of nonresidential buildings at European level. Energy, 176, 380–391.

Clear, A. K., Ganglbauer, E., Comber, R., Hazas, M., Friday, A., Rogers, Y. (2013). Green food technology: Ubicomp opportunities for reducing the environmental impacts of food. In UbiComp 2013 Adjunct—Adjunct Publication of the 2013 ACM Conference on Ubiquitous Computing (pp. 553–557).

Colorni, A., Dorigo, M., Maniezzo, V., (1991). Distributed optimization by ant colonies. Proceedings of European Conference on Artificial Life 191, 134–142. Paris, France, 1991.

Colorni, A., Dorigo, M., Maniezzo, V., (1992). An investigation of some properties of an "ant algorithm. In: Proceedings of the Parallel Problem Solving from Nature Conference, pp. 509–520. Brussels, Belgium, 1992.

Colorni, A., Dorigo, M., Maniezzo, V., (1994). Ant system for job-shop scheduling. JORBEL 34, 39–53.

Comez-Dolgan, N., Moussawi-Haidar, L., Jaber, M.Y. (2021). A buyer-vendor system with untimely delivery costs: Traditional coordination vs. VMI Consign Stock. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 154:107009.

Contreras, J., Santos, J. E. (2006). Short-term demand and energy price forecasting. MELECON 2006–2006 IEEE Mediterranean Electrotechnical Conference, 924–927.

Corsa. https://corsacoal.com/about-corsa/coal-in-steelmaking/.

Counsil, S. C. (2004). SCOR model, supply chain operations reference model. http://www.supplychain.org.

Coyle, J. J., Thomchick, E. A., Ruamsook, K. (2015). Environmentally sustainable supply chain management: An evolutionary framework. In Marketing dynamism & sustainability: Things change, things stay the same (pp. 365–374). Cham: Springer.

Craig, R. C., Easton, P. L. (2011). Sustainable supply chain management: Evolution and future directions. International Journal of Physical Distribution&LogisticsManagement, 41(1), 46–62.

Crowley, C., Carcary, M., Doherty, E., Conway, G. (2017). Rethinking IT sourcing and supplier management for the digital age. In Proceedings of the 11th European Conference on Information Systems Management, ECISM 2017 (pp. 64–72).

CSOC, (2020). Advances in intelligent systems and computing. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-51971-1_16.

Cukier, K. (2018). Big data and the future of business. In Turner (Ed.), The book reinventing the company in the digital age, BBVA (pp. 37–51).

Da, B., Liu, C., Liu, N., Xia, Y., Xie, F. (2019). Coal-electric power supply chain reduction and operation strategy under the cap-and-trade model and green financial background. Sustainability, 11:3021.

Da, B., Liu, C., Liu, N., Fan, S. (2021). Strategies of two-level green technology investments for coal supply chain under different dominant modes. Sustainability, 13:3643.

Dai, J., Fath, B., Chen, B., (2012). Constructing a network of the social-economic consumption system of China using extended exergy analysis. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews 16 (7), 4796–4808.

Dallasega, P., Sarkis, J. (2018). Understanding greening supply chains: Proximity analysis can help. Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 139, 76–77.

Dam, L., Petkova, B. N. (2014). The impact of environmental supply chain sustainability programs on shareholder wealth. International Journal of Operations & Production Management, 34(5), 586–609.

Daniel, E. C., Ebhora, W. S., Johnson, F. A., Ugochukwu, O. (2013). Modeling and simulation of a time series forecasting models and analysis in a manufacturing industry. International Journal of Scientific & Engineering Research, 4(9).

Das, G. S. (2017). Forecasting the energy demand of Turkey with a NN based on an improved Particle Swarm Optimization. Neural Computing and Applications, 28, 539–549.

Davenport, T., Schatsky, D. (2017) Dispelling five myths about cognitive technology. Deloitte.

Davis, J., Edgar, T., Porter, J., Bernaden, J., Sarli, M. (2012). Smart manufacturing, manufacturing intelligence and demand-dynamic performance. Computers & Chemical Engineering, 47, 145–156.

Dawson, T. (2014). Industry 4.0 opportunities and challenges for smart manufacturing. Retrieved April 28, 2019, from https://ihsmarkit.com/research-analysis/q13-industry-40-opportunitiesand-challenges-for-smart-manufacturing.html.

De Carolis, A., Macchi, M., Negri, E., Terzi, S. (2017). A maturity model for assessing the digital readiness of manufacturing companies. IFIP Advances in Information and Communication Technology, 513, 13–20.

De Oliveira, E. M., Oliveira, F. L. C. (2018). Forecasting mid-long term electric energy consumption through bagging ARIMA and exponential smoothing methods. Energy, 144, 776–788.

De Santis, R., Montanari, R., Vignali, G., (2018). An adapted ant colony optimization algorithm for the minimization of the travel distance of pickers in manual warehouses. European Journal of Operational Research, 267 (1), 120–137.

Deka, A., Hamta, N., Esmaeilian, B., Behdad, S. (2016). Predictive modeling techniques to forecast energy demand in the United States: A focus on economic and demographic factors. Journal of Energy Resources Technology-transactions of The Asme, 138(2), Article 022001.

Delina, R., Húska, P., Klézl, V. (2018). Transparency for innovation driven supply chain ecosystem—National approach, IDIMT 2018: Strategic Modeling in Management. In Economy and Society—26th Interdisciplinary Information Management Talks (pp. 311–318).

DelGiudice, M. (2016) Discovering the internet of things (IoT) within the business process management: A literature review on technological revitalization. Business Process Management Journal, 22(2), 263–270.

Deng, J. L. (2002). The Basis of Grey Theory. Wuhan, China: Press of Huazhong University of Science & Technology.

Depren, S.K., Kartal, M.T., Çelikdemir, N.Ç., Depren, "O. (2022). Energy consumption and environmental degradation nexus: A systematic review and meta-analysis of fossil fuel and renewable energy consumption, Ecological Informatics, 70, 101747.

Devlin, A., Yang, A. (2022). Regional supply chains for decarbonising steel: energy efficiency and green premium mitigation. Energy Conversion and Management, 254:115268. DHL, (2015). The power behind the energy supply chain. www.dhl.com/supplychain.

Diabat, A., (2014). Hybrid algorithm for a vendor managed inventory system in a two-echelon supply chain. European Journal of Operational Research, 238, 114–121.

Diabat, A., Al-Salem, M., (2015). An integrated supply chain problem with environmental considerations. International Journal of Production Economics, 164, 330–338.

Dincer, I., Rosen, M.A., (2012). Exergy: Energy, Environment and Sustainable Development, first ed. Elsevier Science. Sept. 21, 2007.

Ding, B. (2018). Pharma Industry 4.0: Literature review and research opportunities in sustainable pharmaceutical supply chains. Process Safety and Environmental Protection, 119, 115–130.

Dokeroglu, T., Sevinc, E., Kucukyilmaz, T., Cosar, A. (2019). A survey on new generation metaheuristic algorithms. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 137.

Dorigo, M., Stutzle, T., (2004). Ant Colony Optimization. MA. MIT Press, Cambridge USA, 2004.

Dougados, M., Ghioldi, S., Van Doesburg, R., Subrahmanyam, K. V. J. (2013). The missing link supply chain and digital maturity. White Paper: Capgemini Consulting.

Du, W., Zhang, Q., Chen, Y., Ye, Z., (2021). An urban short-term traffic flow prediction model based on wavelet neural network with improved whale optimization algorithm. Sustainable Cities and Society, 69, 102858.

Duan, Y., Han, Z., Mu, H., Yang, J., Li, Y. (2019). Research on the impact of various emission reduction policies on China's iron and steel industry production and economic level under the carbon trading mechanism. Energies. 12(9):1624.

Duarte, S., Cruz-Machado, V. (2017). Exploring linkages between lean and green supply chain and the Industry 4.0. In International Conference on Management Science and Engineering Management (pp. 1242–1252). Cham: Springer.

Dubey, H.M., Pandit, M., Panigrahi, B. (2016). Ant lion optimization for short-term wind integrated hydrothermal power generation scheduling. International Journal of Electrical Power & Energy Systems, 83:158–174.

Dudek, G., Pelka, P. (2017). Medium-term electric energy demand forecasting using Nadaraya-Watson estimator. In 2017 18th International Scientific Conference on Electric Power Engineering (EPE) (pp. 1–6).

Dzalbs, I., Kalganova, T., (2020). Accelerating supply chains with Ant Colony Optimization across a range of hardware solutions. Computers & Industrial Engineering 147, 106610.

Dzopalic, M., Zubovic, J., Bradic-Martinovic, A. (2010). Effective implementation of E-CRM strategy. Polish Journal of Management Studies, 1, 52–63.

Eberhart, R., Shi, Y., (2000). Comparing inertia weights and constriction factors in particle swarm optimization. In: Proceedings of the 2000 IEEE Congress on Evolutionary Computation, vols. 84–88. IEEE Press, New York, 2000.

Ediger, V.S., Akar, S. (2007). ARIMA forecasting of primary energy demand by fuel in Turkey. Energy Policy, 35(3), 1701–1708.

Ehyaei, M.A., Ahmadi, A., Rosen, M.A., (2019). Energy, exergy, economic and advanced and extended exergy analyses of a wind turbine. Energy Conversion and Management, 183, 369–381.

El Kafazi, I., Bannari, R., Abouabdellah, A. (2016). Modeling and forecasting energy demand. In International Renewable and Sustainable Energy Conference (IRSEC), Marrakech (pp. 746–750).

Elshaer, R., Awad, H. (2020). A taxonomic review of metaheuristic algorithms for solving the vehicle routing problem and its variants. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 140.

Environment and Climate Change Canada, (2018). Estimated impacts of the federal carbon pollution pricing system 2018. https://www.canada.ca/en/services/environment/weather/ climatechange/climate-action/pricing-carbon-pollution/estimated-impacts-federal-system. html (Accessed July 3, 2019).

Energy Information Administration (EIA) (2022). Monthly energy review. https://www.eia.gov/totalenergy/data/monthly, January 23, 2022.

Erol, S., Schumacher, A., Sihn, W. (2016). Strategic guidance towards Industry4.0-A three stage process model. In International Conference on Competitive Manufacturing, COMA 2016; Proceedings Stellenbosch (pp. 495–500).

Ervural, B.Ç., Ervural, B. (2018). Improvement of grey prediction models and their usage for energy demand forecasting. Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 34(4), 2679–2688.

Es, H. A., Kalender, F. Y., Hamzacebi, C. (2014). Forecasting the net energy demand of turkey by artificial neural networks. Journal of the Faculty of Engineering and Architecture of Gazi University, 29(3), 495–504.

Eseye, A. T., Lehtonen, M., Tukia, T., Uimonen, S., Millar, R. J. (2019). Machine learning based integrated feature selection approach for improved electricity demand forecasting in decentralized energy systems. IEEE Access, 7, 91463–91475.

EY. (2016). Digital supply chain: It's all about that data.

Fahimnia, B., Sarkis, J., Gunasekaran, A., Farahani, R. (2017). Decision models for sustainable supply chain design and management. Annals of Operations Research, 250(2), 277–278.

Feng, X., Zhang, J. S., Zou, S. H., Bao, W. (2013a). Study on China's energy demand ridge regression prediction based on path analysis. Advanced Materials Research, 805–806, 1447–1454.

Feng, X., Bao, W., Ha, B. (2013b). Prediction on China's energy demand based on RBF neural network model. Advanced Materials Research, 805–806, 1421–1424.

Feng, K., Liu, C., Song, Z. (2019). Hour-ahead energy trading management with demand forecasting in microgrid considering power flow constraints. Energies, 12 (18), 3494.

Filik, U. B., Gerek, O. N., Kurban, M. (2011). Hourly forecasting of long term electric energy demand using a novel modeling approach. International Journal of Innovative Computing Information and Control, 7(6), 3545–3557.

Filippov, S. P., Grygorieva, N. A., Makarova, E. V. (2018). Energy demand forecasting system. International Multi-Conference on Industrial Engineering and Modern Technologies (FarEastCon), 2018, 1–7.

Fiorini, M., Lin, J.-C. (2015). Clean mobility and intelligent transport systems. The Institution of Engineering and Technology. ISBN: 978-184919896-7, 978-184919895-0.

Forkel, E., Baum, J., Schumann, C.-A., Mueller, E. (2018). Smart interoperable logistics and additive manufacturing—Modern technologies for digital transformation and Industry 4.0. In SAE Technical Papers.

Forouzandeh, A., Richter, T. (2019). Accurate prediction of heating energy demand of courtyard's surrounding envelopes using temperature correction factor. Energy and Buildings, 193, 49–68.

Forouzanfar, M., Doustmohammadi, A., Hasanzadeh, S. (2012). Transport energy demand forecast using multi-level genetic programming. Applied Energy, 91(1), 496–503.

Frankowski, J., Kaminski, B., Zientek, A. (2010). Methodology for forecasting electrical energy demand and balance differences - Experiences from vattenfall distribution Poland. RYNEK ENERGII, 6, 33–37.

Fumo, N., Rafe Biswas, M. A. (2015). Regression analysis for prediction of residential energy consumption. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 47(Suppl. C), 332–343.

Furukakoi, M., Sediqi, M. M., Senjyu, T., Danish, M. S., Howlader, A. M., Hassan, M. M., et al. (2017). Optimum capacity of energy storage system considering solar radiation forecast error and demand response. In 2017 IEEE 3rd International Future Energy Electronics Conference and ECCE Asia (IFEEC 2017 - ECCE Asia) (pp. 997–1001).

Garcia-Muiña, F. E., González-Sánchez, R., Ferrari, A. M., Settembre-Blundo, D. (2018). The paradigms of Industry 4.0 and circular economy as enabling drivers for the competitiveness of businesses and territories: The case of an Italian ceramic tiles manufacturing company. Social Sciences, 7(12), 255.

Gao, H., Choi, J., Yun, S., Lee, H., Ahn, S. (2018). Optimal scheduling and real-time control schemes of battery energy storage system for microgrids considering contract demand and forecast uncertainty. Energies, 11, 1371.

Gaudreau, K., Fraser, R.A., Murphy, S., (2009). The tenuous use of exergy as a measure of resource value or waste impact. Sustainability, 1 (4), 1444–1463.

Gebler, M., Schoot Uiterkamp, A. J. M., Visser, C. (2014). A global sustainability perspective on 3D printing technologies. Energy Policy, 74(C), 158–167.

Geldermann, J., Treitz, M., Rentz, O., (2006). Integrated technique assessment based on the pinch analysis approach for the design of production networks. European Journal of Operational Research 171 (3), 1020–1032.

Gen, M., Cheng, R., (1997). Genetic Algorithm and Engineering Design, first ed. John Wiley and Sons, New York, U.S.A. 1997.

Gendreau, M., Potvin, J.-Y. (2005). Metaheuristics in combinatorial optimization. Annals of Operations Research, 140(1), 189–213.

Gendreau M., Potvin J.-Y. (Eds.). (2010). Handbook of Metaheuristics, International series in operations research & management science. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4419-1665-5.

Genovese, A., Acquaye, A.A., Figueroa, A., Koh, S.L. (2017). Sustainable supply chain management and the transition towards a circular economy: Evidence and some applications. Omega, 66, 344–357.

Ghadimi, P., Azadnia, A. H., Heavey, C., Dolgui, A., Can, B. (2016). A review on the buyer supplier dyad relationships in sustainable procurement context: Past, present and future. International Journal of Production Research, 54(5), 1443–1462.

Ghadimi P., Wang C., Lim M. K (2019). Sustainable supply chain modeling and analysis: Past debate, present problems and future challenges. Resources, Conservation & Recycling, 140, 72–88.

Ghalehkhondabi, I., Ardjmand, E., Weckman, G. R., Young, W. A., II (2017). An overview of energy demand forecasting methods published in 2005–2015. Energy Systems, 8, 411–447.

Ghanbari, A., Ghaderi, S.F., Azadeh, M.A. (2010a). A Clustering based Genetic Fuzzy expert system for electrical energy demand prediction. In 2010 The 2nd International Conference on Computer and Automation Engineering (ICCAE) (Vol. 5, pp. 407–411).

Ghanbari, A., Ghaderi, S.F., Azadeh, M.A. (2010b). Prediction of electrical energy demand by hybridization of Particle Swarm Optimization and Noise filtering. In 2010 The 2nd International Conference on Computer and Automation Engineering (ICCAE) (Vol. 5, pp. 402–406).

Ghanbari, A., Kazemi, S. M. R., Mehmanpazir, F., Nakhostin, M. M. (2013). A Cooperative Ant Colony Optimization-Genetic Algorithm approach for construction of energy demand forecasting knowledge-based expert systems. Knowledge-based systems, 39, 194–206.

Gibson, I., Rosen, D., Stucker, B. (2014). Additive manufacturing technologies: 3D printing, rapid prototyping, and direct digital manufacturing. New York, NY: Springer.

Gilchrist, A. (2016). Industry 4.0: The industrial internet of things. Apress.

Ginige, A., Walisadeera, A. I., Ginige, T., De Silva, L., Di Giovanni, P., Mathai, M., et al. (2016). Digital knowledge ecosystem for achieving sustainable agriculture production: Acase study from Sri Lanka. In Proceedings—3rd IEEE International Conference on Data Science and Advanced Analytics, DSAA 2016 (Vol. 7796947, pp. 602–611). Giovanni, P.D. (2021). Smart Supply Chains with vendor managed inventory, coordination, and environmental performance. European Journal of Operational Research, 292:515–531.

Glover F., Kochenberger G. A. (Eds.) (2003). Handbook of Metaheuristics, International series in operations research & management science. https://doi.org/10.1007/b101874.

Gökalp, E., Sener, U., Eren, P. E. (2017). Development of an assessment model for industry 4.0: Industry 4.0-MM. In International Conference on Software Process Improvement and Capability Determination (pp. 128–142). Cham: Springer.

Goldberg, D.E., (1989). Genetic Algorithms in Search, Optimization and Machine Learning. Addison-Wesley, Reading, MA, 1989.

Goldbogen, J.A., Friedlaender, A.S., Calambokidis, J., McKenna, M.F., Simon, M., Nowacek, D.P., (2013). Integrative approaches to the study of baleen whale diving behavior, feeding performance, and foraging ecology. Bioscience, 63 (2), 90–100.

Gonela, V. (2018). Stochastic optimization of hybrid electricity supply chain considering carbon emission schemes. Sustainable Production and Consumption, 14:136–151.

Gonzalez-Romera, E., Jaramillo-Moran, M.'A., Carmona-Fernandez, D. (2006). Monthly electric energy demand forecasting based on trend extraction. IEEE Transactions on Power Systems, 21(4), 1946–1953.

Gonzalez-Romera, E., Jaramillo-Moran, M. A., Carmona-Fernandez, D. (2007). Forecasting of the electric energy demand trend and monthly fluctuation with neural networks. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 52(3), 336–343.

Gonzalez-Romera, E., Jaramillo-Moran, M. A., Carmona-Fernandez, D. (2008). Monthly electric energy demand forecasting with neural networks and Fourier series. Energy Conversion and Management, 49(11), 3135–3142.

Goodship, V., Stevels, A. L. N. (2012). Waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE) handbook Woodhead Publishing. eBook ISBN: 9780857096333.

Gope, S., Dawn S., Mitra, R., Goswami, A.K., Tiwari, P.K. (2019). Transmission congestion relief with integration of photovoltaic power using lion optimization algorithm. In: Bansal J, Das K, Nagar A, Deep K, Ojha A (eds) Soft Computing for Problem Solving. Advances in Intelligent Systems and Computing. Springer, Singapore, p 816.

Grueger, F., Robinius, M., Hoch, O., Stolten, D., Hartmann, J. (2019). Optimized electrolyzer operation: Employing forecasts of wind energy availability, hydrogen demand, and electricity prices. International Journal of Hydrogen Energy, 44(9), 4387–4397.

Gružauskas, V., Baskutis, S., Navickas, V. (2018). Minimizing the trade-off between sustainability and cost effective performance by using autonomous vehicles. Journal of Cleaner Production, 184, 709–717.

GTnexus. (2016). The internet of things supply chain. GT NEXUS (pp. 1–6).

Guan, B., Zhao, Y., Li, Y., (2021). An improved ant colony optimization with an automatic updating mechanism for constraint satisfaction problems. Expert Systems with Applications 164, 114021.

Guarraia, P., Gerstenhaber, G., Athanassiou, M., Boutot P.-H. (2015). The intangible benefits of a digital supply chain. From: <u>https://www.bain.com/insights/the-intangible-benefits-of-a-digital-supply-chain/</u>

Gupta, A., Srivastava, S., (2020). Comparative analysis of ant colony and particle swarm optimization algorithms for distance optimization. Procedia Computer Science, 173, 245–253.

Gutowski, T.G., Branham, M.S., Dahmus, J.B., Jones, A.J., Thiriez, A., Sekulic, D.P., (2009). Thermodynamic analysis of resources used in manufacturing processes. Environmental Science & Technology, 43 (5), 1584–1590.

Guo, Y., Li, G., Chen, H., Wang, J., Huang, Y. (2017). A thermal response time ahead energy demand prediction strategy for building heating system using machine learning methods. Energy Procedia, 142, 1003–1008.

Guo, Y., Wang, J., Chen, H., Li, G., Liu, J., Xu, C., et al. (2018). Machine learning-based thermal response time ahead energy demand prediction for building heating systems. Applied Energy, 221, 16–27.

Guo, W.Y., Liu, T., Dai, F., Xu, P. (2020). An improved whale optimization algorithm for forecasting water resources demand. Applied Soft Computing, 86:105925.

Haibo, D., Wei-feng, Z. (2014). Research on energy optimal scheduling based on supply and demand forecast for iron and steel enterprises. Sixth International Conference on Measuring Technology and Mechatronics Automation, 2014, 502–505.

Haitao, M., Chuanglin, F., Yabo, Z. (2013). Spatial characters of energy demand in China based on time-series forecasting methods. International Conference on Manufacture Engineering and Environment Engineering (MEEE), 84, 1447–1453.

Haites, E. (2018). Carbon taxes and greenhouse gas emissions trading systems: What have we learned? Climate Policy, 18(8):955–966.

Hajdul, M., Cudzilo, M. (2011). One common framework for information and communication systems in transport and logistics—Case study. Environmental Science and Engineering (Subseries: Environmental Science), 501–513.

Haji, A., Assadi, M. (2009). Fuzzy expert systems and challenge of new product pricing. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 56(2), 616–630.

Hajirahimi, Z., Khashei, M. (2019). Hybrid structures in time series modeling and forecasting: A review. Engineering Applications of Artificial Intelligence, 86, 83–106.

Hamilton, J. D. (1994). Time series analysis. Princeton: Princeton University Press.

Hamzaçebi, C. (2016). Primary energy sources planning based on demand forecasting: The case of Turkey. Journal of Energy in Southern Africa, 27, 2–10.

Hančlova, J., Zapletal, F., Šmid, M. (2020). On interaction between carbon spot prices and Czech steel industry. Carbon Management, 11(2):121–137.

Handfield, R., Linton, T. (2017). The LIVING supply chain: The evolving imperative of operating in real time. Wiley. ISBN: 978-111930802-7, 978-111930625-2.

Hanifan, G., Sharma, A., Newberry, C. (2014). The digital supply network: A new paradigm for supply chain management.

Hanss, M. (2005). Applied fuzzy arithmetic. Springer-Verlag, Berlin Heidelberg. Hao, Y., Yang, X. (2015). Forecasting and analysis of renewable energy demand in the rural areas of China. International Conference on Modern Education and Social Science (MESS), 332–338.

Hasanuzzaman, M., Islam, M.A., Rahim, N.A., Yanping, Y. (2020). Energy demand, Chapter 3, Energy for Sustainable Development.

He, Y., Wu, J., Ge, Y.J., Li, D., Yan, H. (2017). Research on prediction of energy demand in China based on grey theory and system dynamics. In 2017 IEEE Conference on Energy Internet and Energy System Integration (EI2) (pp. 1–6).

He, Y., Wei C., Long, H., Ashfaq, R.A.R., Huang, J.Z. (2018). Random weight network-based fuzzy nonlinear regression for trapezoidal fuzzy number data. Applied Soft Computing, 70:959–979.

Heidari, A.A., Faris, H., Mirjalili, S., Aljarah, I., Mafarja, M. (2020). Ant Lion Optimizer: Theory, Literature Review, and Application in Multi-layer Perceptron Neural Networks. In: Mirjalili S, Song Dong J, Lewis A (eds) Nature-Inspired Optimizers Studies in Computational Intelligence. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-12127-3_3.

Hentza, J. B., Nguyen, V. K., Maederb, W., Panaresec, D., Gunninkd, J. W., Gontarze, A., et al. (2013). An enabling digital foundation towards smart machining. Procedia CIRP, 12, 240–245.

Hermann, M., Pentek, T., Otto, B. (2016). Design principles for industrie 4.0 scenarios. In: 2016 49th Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences (HICSS) (pp. 3928–3937), IEEE.

Hida, Y., Yokoyama, R., Iba, K., Tanaka, K., Yabe, K. (2009). Load forecasting on demand side by multi-regression model for operation of battery energy storage system. In 44th International Universities Power Engineering Conference (UPEC) (pp. 1–5).

Hines, T. (2004). Supply chain strategies: Customer-driven and customer-focused.

Hofmann, E., Rüsch, M. (2017). Industry 4.0 and the current status as well as future prospects on logistics. Computers in Industry, 89, 23–34.

Hogan, S. C., Merrill, E., (2019). Algorithmic forecasting in a digital world (Improving the forecasting process with predictive analytics), Deloitte Review, 2019. https://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/pages/finance-transformation/articles/algorithmic-analytics-to-improve-forecasting-process.html#.

Holland, J.H., (1975). Adaptation in Natural and Artificial Systems. University of Michigan Press, Ann Arbor, 1975.

Holmström, J., Partanen, J. (2014). Digital manufacturing-driven transformations of service supply chains for complex products. Supply Chain Management, 19(4), 421–430.

Holmström, J., Liotta, G., Chaudhuri, A. (2018). Sustainability outcomes through direct digital manufacturing-based operational practices: A design theory approach. Journal of Cleaner Production, 167, 951–961.

Homod, R. Z., Togun, H., Abd, H. J., Sahari, K. S. (2020). A novel hybrid modelling structure fabricated by using Takagi-Sugeno fuzzy to forecast HVAC systems energy demand in real-time for Basra city. Sustainable Cities and Society, 56, Article 102091.

Hong, T. P., Lin, K. Y., Wang, S. L. (2003). Fuzzy data mining for interesting generalized association rules. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 138(2), 255–269.

Hong, T., Wang, P., (2012). On the impact of demand response: Load shedding, energy conservation, and further implications to load forecasting. In General Meeting of the IEEE-Power-and-Energy-Society (PES), San Diego, CA, 2012 (pp. 1–3).

Hu, Y. (2017a). Grey prediction with residual modification using functional-link net and its application to energy demand forecasting. Kybernetes, 46, 349–363.

Hu, Y. (2017b). Nonadditive grey prediction using functional-link net for energy demand forecasting. Sustainability, 9, 1166.

Hu, Y. (2017c). A genetic-algorithm-based remnant grey prediction model for energy demand forecasting. PLoS ONE, 12.

Hu, Y. (2020). Energy demand forecasting using a novel remnant GM(1,1) model. Soft Computing, 24, 13903–13912.

Hu, Y., Jiang, P. (2017). Forecasting energy demand using neural-network-based grey residual modification models. Journal of the Operational Research Society, 68(5), 556–565.

Huang, Y., Yuan, Y. Y., Chen, H., Wang, J., Guo, Y., Ahmad, T. (2019). A novel energy demand prediction strategy for residential buildings based on ensemble learning. Energy Procedia, 158, 3411–3416.

Huber, J. (2008). Technological environmental innovations (TEIs) in a chain-analytical and lifecycle-analytical perspective. Journal of Cleaner Production, 16(18), 1980–1986.

Ibem, E. O., Laryea, S. (2014). Survey of digital technologies in procurement of construction projects. Automation in Construction, 46, 11–21.

IEA. (2017). Key world energy statistics 2017. International Energy Agency (IEA). https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/KeyWorld2017.pdf.

IEA, (2020). clean coal centre. https://www.iea-coal.org/irans-10-month-coal-concentrate-output-over-555000-tons/.

Iranmanesh, H., Abdollahzade, M., Miranian, A. (2012). Mid-term energy demand forecasting by hybrid neuro-fuzzy models. Energies, 5(1), 1–21.

Iron and Steel Technology Roadmap. https://www.iea.org/reports/iron-and-steel-technology-roadmap.

Islam, M.A., Che, H.S., Hasanuzzaman, M., Rahim, N.A., (2020). Energy demand forecasting. Chapter 5, Energy for Sustainable Development.

Islam, Q.N.U., Ahmed, A., Abdullah, S.M. (2021). Optimized controller design for islanded microgrid using nondominated sorting whale optimization algorithm (NSWOA). Ain Shams Engineering Journal, 12(4):3677–3689.

Islam, Q.N.U., Ahmed, A. (2020). Optimized controller design for islanded microgrid employing nondominated sorting firefly algorithm. In: Nature-Inspired Computation and Swarm Intelligence, Elsevier, 247–272.

Iyatomi, H., Hagiwara, M. (2004). Adaptive fuzzy inference neural network. Pattern Recognition, 37(10), 2049–2057.

Jabbour, C.J.C., Fiorini, P.D.C., Ndubisi, N.O., de Queiroz, M.M., Piato, 'E.L., (2020). Digitallyenabled Sustainable Supply Chains in the 21st Century: A Review and a Research Agenda. Science of The Total Environment, 138177.

Jaber, M.Y., Nuwayhid, R.Y., Rosen, M.A., (2004). Price-driven economic order systems from a thermodynamic point of view. International Journal of Production Research, 42 (24), 5167–5184.

Jaber, M.Y., Nuwayhid, R.Y., Rosen, M.A., (2006). A thermodynamic approach to modelling the economic order quantity. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 30 (9), 867–883.

Jaber, M.Y., (2007). Lot sizing with permissible delay in payments and entropy cost. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 52 (1), 78–88.

Jaber, M.Y., Rosen, M.A., (2008). The economic order quantity repair and waste disposal model with entropy cost. European Journal of Operational Research, 188, 109–120.

Jaber, M.Y., Bonney, M., Rosen, M.A., Moualek, I., (2009). Entropic order quantity (EnOQ) model for deteriorating items. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 33, 564–578.

Jaber, M.Y., El Saadany, A.M.A., Rosen, M.A., (2011). Simple price-driven reverse logistics system with entropy and exergy costs. International Journal of Exergy, 9 (4), 486–502.

Jaber, M.Y., Jawad, H., (2015). An entropic comparison between the economic production quantity (EPQ) and Just-In-Time (JIT) models. In: Proceedings - CIE, vol. 45:2015. International Conference on Computers and Industrial Engineering.

Jaber, M.Y., Bonney, M., Jawad, H., (2017). Comparison between economic order/manufacture quantity and just-in-time models from a thermodynamics point of view. Computers and Industrial Engineering, 112, 503–510.

Jahromi, F.S., Beheshti, M., Rajabi, R.F. (2018). Comparison between differential evolution algorithms and response surface methodology in ethylene plant optimization based on an extended combined energy - exergy analysis. Energy, 164:1114–1134.

Jalaee, S. A., Ghaseminejad, A., Lashkary, M., Jafari, M. R. (2019). Forecasting Iran's energy demand using cuckoo optimization algorithm. Mathematical Problems in Engineering, 1–8.

Jansen, J. H. (2014). Supply chain finance management (pp. 1–36). Nijmegen, The Netherlands: HAN Business Publications.

Jawad, H., Jaber, M.Y., Bonney, M., (2015). The economic order quantity model revisited: an extended exergy accounting approach. Journal of Cleaner Production, 105, 64–73.

Jawad, H., Jaber, M.Y. (2015). Exergy analysis: a new paradigm for modelling inventory systems. In: Proceedings - CIE 45: 2015 international conference on computers and industrial engineering. Jawad, H., Jaber, M.Y., Bonney, M., Rosen, M.A., (2016). Deriving an exergetic economic production quantity model for better sustainability. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 40, 6026– 6039.

Jawad, H., Jaber, M.Y., Nuwayhid, R.Y., (2018). Improving supply chain sustainability using exergy analysis. European Journal of Operational Research, 269 (1), 258–271.

Jebaraj, S., Iniyan, S., Goic, R. (2011). Forecasting of coal consumption using an artificial neural network and comparison with various forecasting techniques. Energy Sources, Part A: Recovery, Utilization, and Environmental Effects, 33(14), 1305–1316.

Jensen, J. P., Remmen, A. (2017). Enabling circular economy through product stewardship. Procedia Manufacturing, 8, 377–384.

Ji, S., Niu, X. (2012). Application of DAS in cold chain logistics warehousing system based on WMS. Lecture Notes in Electrical Engineering, LNEE, 113, 1603–1610.

Jiang, Y., Li, B., Qu, X., Cheng, Y. (2016). A green vendor-managed inventory analysis in supply chains under carbon emissions trading mechanism. Clean Technol Environ Policy, 18(5):1369–1380.

Jiang, P., Liu, F., Song, Y. (2017). A hybrid forecasting model based on date-framework strategy and improved feature selection technology for short-term load forecasting. Energy, 119, 694–709.

Jiang, F., Yang, X. X., Li, S. (2018). Comparison of forecasting India's energy demand using an MGM, ARIMA model, MGM-ARIMA Model, and BP neural network model. Sustainability, 10, 2225.

Jirsak, P. (2017). The roles of lean and green supply chain management strategies in the global business environments. In Operations and service management: Concepts, methodologies, tools, and applications (pp. 250–271).

Jirsak, P. (2018). Analyzing an impact of Industry 4.0 on logistics and supply chain. In Analyzing the impacts of Industry 4.0 in modern business environments (pp. 121–146).

Kagermann, H., Lukas, W., Wahlster, W. (2011). Industrie 4.0: Mit dem internet der Dinge auf dem Weg zur 4. industriellen Revolution, VDI nachrichten, No. 13.

Kagermann, H. (2015). Change through digitization—Value creation in the age of Industry 4.0. Management of Permanent Change, 23–45.

Kalogianni, E. P., Salvaras, P., Bechtsis, D., Stergiopoulos, F. (2017). A monitoring and control software tool to assess process and production data in olive oil production units. CEURWorkshop Proceedings, 2030, 284–292.

Kamarulzaman, N. H., Eglese, R.W. (2015). Managing purchasing with different e-procurement solutions. In Optimization of supply chain management in contemporary organizations (pp. 246–279).

Kampelis, N., Tsekeri, E., Kolokotsa, D. S., Kalaitzakis, K., Isidori, D., Cristalli, C. (2018). Development of demand response energy management optimization at building and district levels
using genetic algorithm and artificial neural network modelling power predictions. Energies, 11, 3012.

Kang, S., Diao, X. (2010). Study on the sustainable competitive advantages of the managing skills which incorporate the IT resources and SCM—Analysis and annotation on the case of information integrate system of supply chain of DCC. In Proceedings—3rd International Conference on Information Management, Innovation Management and Industrial Engineering, ICIII 2010 (Vol. 3, 5694680, 57–61).

Kankal, M., Uzlu, E. (2017). Neural network approach with teaching–learning-based optimization for modeling and forecasting long-term electric energy demand in Turkey. Neural Computing and Applications, 28, 737–747.

Kang, K., Zhang, J., Ji, L., Shang, C., (2014). Multi-echelon inventory control model and algorithm in coal supply chain. Proceedings of 2013 4th International Asia Conference on Industrial Engineering and Management Innovation. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-642-40060-5_52. IEMI2013.

Kao, Y.T., Zahara, E. (2008). A hybrid genetic algorithm and particle swarm optimization for multimodal functions. Applied Soft Computing, 8(2):849–857.

Kasemsap, K. (2016). The roles of lean and green supply chain management strategies in the global business environments. In S. Joshi, R. Joshi (Eds.), Designing and implementing global supply chain management (pp. 152–173).

Kaur, G., Arora, S. (2018). Chaotic whale optimization algorithm. Journal of Computational Design and Engineering, 05(03):275–284.

Kayikci, Y. (2018). Sustainability impact of digitization in logistics. Procedia Manufacturing, 21, 782–789.

Kazemi, A., Shakouri, H. G., Menhaj, M. B., Mehregan, M. R., Neshat, N., (2011a). A Hierarchical fuzzy linear regression model for forecasting agriculture energy demand: A case study of Iran. In 3rd International Conference on Information and Financial Engineering, IPEDR (Vol. 12, pp. 19–24).

Kazemi, A., Shakouri, H., Neshat, N. (2011b). A multi-level artificial neural network for residential and commercial energy demand forecast: Iran case study. In 3rd International Conference on Information and Financial Engineering (ICIFE 2011) (Vol. 12, pp. 25–29).

Kazemi, A., Shakouri, G. H., Menhaj, M. B., Mehregan, M. J., Neshat, N. (2010). A hierarchical artificial neural network for transport energy demand forecast: Iran case study. Neural Network World, 20(6), 761–772.

Kermanshahi, B. (1998). Recurrent neural network for forecasting next 10 years loads of nine Japanese utilities. Neurocomputing, 23(1–3), 125–133.

Khan, M. A. (2015). Modelling and forecasting the demand for natural gas in Pakistan. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 49, 1145–1159.

Khan, M., Wu, X., Xu, X., Dou, W. (2017). Big data challenges and opportunities in the hype of Industry 4.0. In 2017 IEEE International Conference on Communications (ICC) (pp. 1–6), IEEE.

Khosravani, H., Castilla, M., Berenguel, M., Ruano, A., Ferreira, P. (2016). A comparison of energy consumption prediction models based on neural networks of a bioclimatic building. Energies, 9, 57.

Kiel, D., Müller, J., Arnold, C., Voigt, K. I. (2017). Sustainable industrial value creation: Benefits and challenges of Industry 4.0. In ISPIM Innovation Symposium, The International Society for Professional Innovation Management (ISPIM).

Kim, S., Song, Y., Sung, Y., Seo, D. (2019). Development of a consecutive occupancy estimation framework for improving the energy demand prediction performance of building energy modeling tools. Energies, 12(3), 433.

Kipper, G., Rampolla, J. (2012). Augmented reality: An emerging technologies guide to AR. Waltham, MA: Elsevier Science.

Kiran, M. S., Ozceylan, E., Gunduz, M., Paksoy, T. (2012). A novel hybrid approach based on Particle Swarm Optimization and Ant Colony Algorithm to forecast energy demand of Turkey. Energy conversion and management, 53(1), 75–83.

Kiritsis, D. (2016). Taking the LEAP: The methods and tools of the linked engineering and manufacturing platform (LEAP) (1st edn), Academic Press. eBook ISBN: 9780444637543.

Klievink, B. (2015). Understanding public-private collaboration configurations for international information infrastructures. In E. Tambouris et al. (eds.), Electronic government. EGOV 2015. Lecture Notes in Computer Science (Vol. 9248). Cham: Springer.

Kogg, B., Mont, O. (2012). Environmental and social responsibility in supply chains: The practice of choice and inter-organizational management. Ecological Economics, 83, 154–163.

Kolokotroni, M., Davies, M., Croxford, B., Bhuiyan, S. I., Mavrogianni, A. (2010). A validated methodology for the prediction of heating and cooling energy demand for buildings within the Urban Heat Island: Case-study of London. Solar Energy, 84 (12), 2246–2255.

Koroneos, C., Tsarouhis, M., (2012). Exergy analysis and life cycle assessment of solar heating and cooling systems in the building environment. Journal of Cleaner Production. 32, 52–60.

Krause, D. R., Vachon, S., Klassen, R. D. (2009). Special topic forum on sustainable supply chain management: Introduction and reflections on the role of purchasing management. Journal of Supply Chain Management, 45(4), 18–25.

Kückelhaus, M., Magerkurth, C., Baus, J. (2013). A SemProM use case: Tracking & tracing for green logistics and integrity control. Cognitive Technologies, 9783642373763, 311–327.

Kumar, M. S., Subathra, B., Srinivasan, S. (2017). Ensemble wavelet learners for demand forecasting in energy grids. In 2017 IEEE International Conference on Intelligent Techniques in Control, Optimization and Signal Processing (INCOS) (pp. 1–6).

Kunche, A., Mielczarek, B. (2021). Application of system dynamic modelling for evaluation of carbon mitigation strategies in cement industries: a comparative overview of the current state of the art. Energies, 14(5):1464.

Kwak, J.K. (2019). Analysis of inventory turnover as a performance measure in manufacturing industry. Processes, 7:760.

Labidi, M., Eynard, J., Faugeroux, O., Grieu, S. (2017). A new strategy based on power demand forecasting to the management of multi-energy district boilers equipped with hot water tanks. Applied Thermal Engineering, 113, 1366–1380.

Lee, H. L. (2000). Creating value through supply chain integration. Supply Chain Management Review, 4(4), 30–36.

Lee, J., Kao, H. A., Yang, S. (2014). Service innovation and smart analytics for Industry 4.0 and big data environment. Procedia CIRP, 16, 3–8.

Lee, Y., Watanabe, K., Li, W.-S. (2017). Enhancing regional digital preparedness on natural hazards to safeguard business resilience in the Asia-Pacific. IFIP Advances in Information and Communication Technology, 501, 170–182.

Lee, K.C., Lu, P.T., (2020). Application of whale optimization algorithm to inverse scattering of an imperfect conductor with corners. International Journal of Antennas and Propagation, 2020, 1-9.

Leitão, P., Colombo, A.W., Karnouskos, S. (2016). Industrial automation based on cyber-physical systems technologies: Prototype implementations and challenges. Computers in Industry, 81,11–25.

Li, H. Z., Guo, S., Fu, L. W. (2011). Study on Beijing's energy utilization and forecast energy supply and demand based on grey model. Advanced Materials Research, 361–363, 1240–1243.

Li, S., Xu, L.D., Zhao, S. (2015). The internet of things: A survey. Information Systems Frontiers, 17(2), 243–259.

Li, W., Zhang, Y., Lu, C. (2018). The impact on electric power industry under the implementation of national carbon trading market in China: a dynamic CGE analysis. Journal of Cleaner Production, 200:511–523.

Li, J., Wang, L., Tan, X., (2020). Sustainable design and optimization of coal supply chain network under different carbon emission policies. Journal of Cleaner Production 250, 119548.

Li, S.H., Luo, X.H., Wu, L.Z. (2021). An improved whale optimization algorithm for locating critical slip surface of slopes. Advances in Engineering Software, 157–158:103009.

Liu, S. F., Lin, Y. (2006). Grey information theory and practical applications. London: Springer-Verlag.

Liu, Z. Y. (2015). Global energy internet. Beijing: China Electric Power Press.

Liu, L., Huang, J., Yu, S. (2016). Prediction of primary energy demand in China based on AGAEDE optimal model. Chinese Journal of Population Resources and Environment, 14, 16–29.

Liu, Z., Liu, Z., Yang, X., Zhai, H., Yang, X. (2020). Advanced exergy and exergoeconomic analysis of a novel liquid carbon dioxide energy storage system. Energy Conversion and Management, 205:112391.

Liu, M., Luo, K., Zhang, J., Chen, S. (2021a). A stock selection algorithm hybridizing grey wolf optimizer and support vector regression. Expert Systems with Applications, 179:115078.

Liu, Z., Zheng, X.-X., Li, D.-F., Liao, C.-N., Sheu, J.-B., (2021b). A novel cooperative gamebased method to coordinate a sustainable supply chain under psychological uncertainty in fairness concerns. Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review, 147, 102237.

Liming X., Yunbing H., Xianfeng C., et al. (2011). Tendency of Chinese energy demand and supply prediction by application of grey theory. In AASRI Conference on Information Technology and Economic Development (AASRI-ITED 2011) (Vol. 1, pp. 1–4).

Lin, H., Liu, P., Li, W., Zhang, L., Ji, Y. (2012). Construction of digitalmine and key technologies. Advanced Materials Research, 524–527, 413–420.

Lin, K. C., Shyu, J. Z., Ding, K. (2017). A cross-strait comparison of innovation policy under Industry 4.0 and sustainability development transition. Sustainability (Switzerland), 9(5), 786.

Lopes de Sousa Jabbour, A. B., Cortegoso de Oliveira Frascarelli, F., Chiappetta Jabbour, C. J. (2015). Green supply chain management and firms' performance: Understanding potential relationship and the role of green sourcing and some other green practices. Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 104, Part B, 366–374.

Lopes de Sousa Jabbour, A. B., Jabbour, C. J. C., Godinho Filho, M., Roubaud, D. (2018). Industry 4.0 and the circular economy: A proposed research agenda and original roadmap for sustainable operations. Annals of Operations Research, 270(1–2), 273–286.

Lopez, M., Valero, S., Senabre, C., Aparicio, J., Gabaldon, A. (2012). Application of SOM neural networks to short-term load forecasting: The Spanish electricity market case study. Electric Power Systems Research, 91, 18–27.

Lom, M., Pribyl, O., Svitek, M. (2016). Industry 4.0 as a part of smart cities. In 2016 Smart Cities Symposium Prague, SCSP 2016, 7501015.

Long, W., Wu, T.B., Jiao, J.J., Tang, M.Z., Xu, M., (2020). Refraction-learning-based whale optimization algorithm for high-dimensional problems and parameter estimation of pv model. Engineering Applications of Artificial Intelligence, 89, 103457.

Lora, A.T., Santos, J.M., Santos, J.C., Exposito, A.G., Ramos, J.L. (2004). Time-series prediction: Application to the short-term electric energy demand. In 10th Conference of the Spanish-Association-for-Artificial-Intelligence (CAEPIA 2003)/5th Conference on Technology Transfer (TTIA 2003) (Vol. 3040, pp. 577–586).

Lu, I. J., Lewis, C., Lin, S. J. (2009). The forecast of motor vehicle, energy demand and CO2 emission from Taiwan's road transportation sector. Energy Policy, 37(8), 2952–2961.

Lu, X., Wang, J., Cai, Y., Zhao, J. (2015). Distributed HS-ARTMAP and its forecasting model for electricity load. Applied Soft Computing, 32, 13–22.

Luthra, S., Mangla, S. K. (2018). Evaluating challenges to Industry 4.0 initiatives for supply chain sustainability in emerging economies. Process Safety and Environmental Protection, 117, 168–179.

MacDougall, W. (2014). Industrie 4.0: Smart manufacturing for the future. Germany Trade&Invest.

Madlool, N., Saidur, R., Rahim, N., Islam, M., Hossian, M., (2012). An exergy analysis for cement industries: an overview. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 16 (1), 921–932.

Mahata, G.C., Goswami, A. (2013). Fuzzy inventory models for items with imperfect quality and shortage backordering under crisp and fuzzy decision variables. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 64(1):190–199.

Maier, H.R., Razavi, S., Kapelan, Z., Matott, L.S., Kasprzyk, J., Tolson, B.A. (2019). Introductory overview: optimization using evolutionary algorithms and other metaheuristics. Environmental Modelling & Software, 114:195–213.

Maio, A.D., Lagana, D. (2020). The effectiveness of vendor managed inventory in the last-mile delivery: an industrial application. Procedia Manufacturing, 42:462–466.

Makridakis, S., Spiliotis, E., Assimakopoulos, V. (2018). Statistical and Machine Learning forecasting methods: Concerns and ways forward. PLoS ONE, 13(3), e0194889.

Malladi, K.T., Sowlati, T., (2020). Impact of carbon pricing policies on the cost and emission of the biomass supply chain: optimization models and a case study. Applied Energy, 267, 115069.

Mamlook, R., Badran, O., Abdulhadi, E. (2009). A fuzzy inference model for short-term load forecasting. Energy Policy, 37(4), 1239–1248.

Man, J. C. D., Strandhagen, J. O. (2017). An Industry 4.0 research agenda for sustainable business models. Procedia CIRP, 63, 721–726.

Manavalan, E., Jayakrishna, K. (2019). A review of internet of things (IoT) embedded sustainable supply chain for Industry 4.0 requirements. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 127, 925–953.

Mani, V., Gunasekaran, A., Papadopoulos, T., Hazen, B., Dubey, R. (2016). Supply chain social sustainability for developing nations: Evidence from India. Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 111, 42–52.

Manisalidis, I., Stavropoulou, E., Stavropoulos, A., Bezirtzoglou, E., (2020). Environmental and health impacts of air pollution: a review. Front. Public Health 8 (14). https://doi.org/10.3389/fpubh.2020.00014.

Mangla, S.K., Govindan, K., Luthra, S., (2017). Prioritizing the barriers to achieve sustainable consumption and production trends in supply chains using fuzzy analytical hierarchy process. Journal of Cleaner Production. 151, 509–525.

Mann, M., Spath, P., (2001). A life cycle assessment of biomass cofiring in a coal-fired power plant. Clean Prod. Process. 3 (2), 81–91.

Marques, M., Agostinho, C., Zacharewicz, G., Jardim-Gonçalves, R. (2017). Decentralized decision support for intelligent manufacturing in Industry 4.0. Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Smart Environments, 9(3), 299–313.

Marchi, B., Zanoni, S. (2017). Supply chain management for improved energy efficiency: Review and opportunities. Energies, 10, 1618.

Mason, K., Duggan, J., Howley, E. (2018). Forecasting energy demand, wind generation and carbon dioxide emissions in Ireland using evolutionary neural networks. Energy, 155, 705–720.

Mastos, T. D., Nizamis, A., Vafeiadis, T., Alexopoulos, N., Ntinas, C., Gkortzis, D., et al. (2020). Industry 4.0 sustainable supply chains: An application of an IoT enabled scrap metal management solution. Journal of Cleaner Production, 269, 122377. Mateen, A., Chatterjee, A.K., Mitra, S. (2014). VMI for single-vendor multi-retailer supply chains under stochastic demand. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 79:95–102.

McKinsey & Company, Inc. (2017). Smartening up with Artificial Intelligence (AI)-What's in it for Germany and its Industrial Sector? https://www.mckinsey.com/~/media/McKinsey/Industries/Semiconductors/Our%20Insights/Smar tening%20up%20with%20artificial%20intelligence/Smartening-up-with-artificial-intelli gence.ashx%20str%209.

Meera, S.N., Gandhi, R., Padaria, R. (2017). Accelerating impact through rice innovation systems: Integrating knowledge. In Technology, and markets, the future rice strategy for India (pp. 435–460).

Mehmood, S., Reddy, B.V., Rosen, M.A., (2015). Exergy analysis of a biomass co-firing based pulverized coal power generation system. International Journal of Green Energy, 12 (5), 461–478.

Melikoglu, M. (2013). Vision 2023: Forecasting Turkey's natural gas demand between 2013 and 2030. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 22, 393–400.

Meng, M., Niu, D., Sun, W., Shang, W. Y. (2010). Research on monthly electric energy demand forecasting under the influence of two calendars. Applied Mechanics and Materials, 20–23, 963–968.

Mestekemper, T., Kauermann, G., Smith, M. S. (2013). A comparison of periodic autoregressive and dynamic factor models in intraday energy demand forecasting. International journal of forecasting, 29(1), 1–12.

MiarNaeimi, F., Azizyan, G., Rashki, M. (2021). Horse herd optimization algorithm: A natureinspired algorithm for high-dimensional optimization problems. Knowledge-Based Systems, 213:106711.

Mirjalili, S., Mirjalili, S.M., Lewis, A. (2014). Grey wolf optimizer. Advances in Engineering Software, 69:46–61.

Mirjalili, S. (2015). The ant lion optimizer. Advances in Engineering Software, 83:80–98.

Mirjalili, S., Lewis, A., (2016). The whale optimization algorithm. Advances in Engineering Software, 95, 51–67.

Minhas, D. M., Khalid, R. R., Frey, G. (2017). Load control for supply-demand balancing under Renewable Energy forecasting. IEEE Second International Conference on DC Microgrids (ICDCM), 2017, 365–370.

Mohammed, H.M., Umar, S.U., Rashid, T.A. (2019). A systematic and meta-analysis survey of whale optimization algorithm. Computational Intelligence and Neuroscience, 8718571. Mohanty, A., Chakladar, S., Mallick, S., Chakravarty, S., (2019). Structural characterization of coking component of an Indian coking coal. Fuel, 249, 411–417.

Moldovan, D. (2020). Horse optimization algorithm: a novel bio-inspired algorithm for solving global optimization problems. In: Silhavy R (ed) Artificial intelligence and bioinspired computational methods.

Monnet, J.-M., Le Net, E. (2011). Assessment of logistics concept to sustainability: Development of a common approach to transport issues. Deliverable D3.3.3, EFORWOOD Project, European Forest Institute. http://www.efi.int/files/attachments/publications/eforwood/efi_tr_75.pdf.

Montreuil, B., Meller, R. D., Ballot, E. (2013). Physical Internet Foundations. In: Borangiu, T., Thomas, A., Trentesaux, D. (eds) Service Orientation in Holonic and Multi Agent Manufacturing and Robotics. Studies in Computational Intelligence, vol 472. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.

Mousavi F., Nazari-Heris M., Mohammadi-Ivatloo B., Asadi S., (2021) Chapter 1 - Energy market fundamentals and overview, Energy Storage in Energy Markets, 1-21.

Müller, J., Dotzauer, V., Voigt, K. I. (2017). Industry 4.0 and its impact on reshoring decisions of German manufacturing enterprises. In Supply Management Research (pp. 165–179). Wiesbaden: Springer Gabler.

Muralitharan, K., Sakthivel, R., Vishnuvarthan, R. (2018). Neural network based optimization approach for energy demand prediction in smart grid. Neurocomputing, 273, 199–208.

Nabben, D. H. (2016). 12 Trends that are shaping the future of logistics. Supply Chain Digital. Retrieved April 28, 2019, from https://www.supplychaindigital.com/logistics/12-trends-are-shaping-future-logistics.

Naderi, R., Nikabadi, M.S., Alem-Tabriz, A., Pishvaee, M.S., (2021a). Sustainable coal supply chain management using exergy analysis and genetic algorithm. Management Systems in Production Engineering, 29 (1), 44–53.

Naderi, R., Nikabadi, M.S., Alem-Tabriz, A., Pishvaee, M.S., (2021b). Supply chain sustainability improvement using exergy analysis. Computers & Industrial Engineering 154, 107142.

Nagbe, K., Cugliari, J., Jacques, J. (2018). Short-term electricity demand forecasting using a functional state space model. Energies, 11, 1120.

Najmi, A., Shakouri, H., Nazari, G. S. (2016). An integrated supply chain: A large scale complementarity model for the biofuel markets. Biomass and Bioenergy, 86, 88–104. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biombioe.2016.01.010.

Naoi, S., Hirano, H., Kaishima, T., Tsurugai, M., Motoki, H., Konda, H., et al. (2017). Demand and supply simulations considering detailed forecast, scheduling and control functions for Japanese Power System with a massive integration of renewable energy sources. IEEE Manchester PowerTech, 2017, 1–6.

Nascimento, D. L. M., Alencastro, V., Quelhas, O. L. G., Caiado, R. G. G., Garza-Reyes, J. A., Lona, L.R., et al. (2019). Exploring Industry 4.0 technologies to enable circular economy practices in a manufacturing context: A business model proposal. Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management, 30(3), 607–627.

Nazari, H., Kazemi, A. (2016). Application of PSO algorithm to choose the best scenario for energy demand forecast of residential and commercial sectors in Iran. International Journal of Energy Sector Management, 10, 576–593.

Nazari, H., Kazemi, A., Hashemi, M., Sadat, M. M., Nazari, M. (2015). Evaluating the performance of genetic and particle swarm optimization algorithms to select an appropriate scenario for forecasting energy demand using economic indicators: Residential and commercial sectors of Iran. International Journal of Energy and Environmental Engineering, 6, 345–355.

Nazari, H., Kazemi, A., Hashemi, M. (2016). Selecting the appropriate scenario for forecasting energy demands of residential and commercial sectors in Iran using two metaheuristic algorithms. Iranian Journal of Management Studies, 9, 101–123.

Ndou, V., Sadguy, N. (2010). Digital marketplaces as a viable model for SME networking. In Ebusiness issues, challenges and opportunities for SMEs: Driving competitiveness (pp. 118–130).

Nicoletti, B. (2018). The future: Procurement 4.0. In Agile procurement (pp. 189–230). Cham:Palgrave Macmillan.

Noci, G., Verganti, R. (1999). Managing 'green' product innovation in small firms. R&D Management, 29(1), 3–15.

Notes from Poland (2022). Poland to delay coal phaseout and open more mines amid energy crisis, https://notesfrompoland.com/2022/11/07/poland-to-delay-coal-phaseout-and-open-more-mines-

amid-energy-crisis/. Norris, K. (2011). A new program in North America is attracting a lot of attention among newspaper publishers and printers a new vision for newspapers. PPI Pulp and Paper International, 53(11), 22–24.

Nowak, G., Maluck, J., Sturmer, C., Pasemann, J. (2016). The Era of digitized trucking: Transforming the logistics value chain, PWC, White Paper.

Obara, S., Morizane, Y., Morel, J. (2013). Study on method of electricity and heat storage planning based on energy demand and tidal flow velocity forecasts for a tidal microgrid. Applied Energy, 111, 358–373.

Ogbuabor J. E., Ukwueze E. R., Mba I. C., Ojonta O. I., Orji A. (2023). The asymmetric impact of economic policy uncertainty on global retail energy markets: Are the markets responding to the fear of the unknown? Applied Energy, 334 (2023) 120671.

Oliveira, H., Moutinho, V. (2021). Renewable energy, economic growth and economic development Nexus: a bibliometric analysis. Energies, 14 (15), 4578.

Olofsson, T., Andersson, S. (2001). Long-term energy demand predictions based on short-term measured data. Energy and Buildings, 33(2), 85–91.

Osman, I. H., Laporte, G. (1996). Metaheuristics: A bibliography. Annals of Operations Research, 63(5), 511–623.

Oyekan, J., Prabhu, V., Tiwari, A., Baskaran, V., Burgess, M., Mcnally, R. (2017). Remote realtime collaboration through synchronous exchange of digitised human-work piece interactions. Future Generation Computer Systems, 67, 83–93.

Padhy, S., Panda, S. (2021). Application of a simplified Grey Wolf optimization technique for adaptive fuzzy PID controller design for frequency regulation of a distributed power generation system. Protection and Control of Modern Power Systems, 6, 2.

Pal, R., Sandberg, E. (2017). Sustainable value creation through new industrial supply chains in apparel and fashion. IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering, 254(20), 202007.

Palm, M. (2017). Analog backlog: Pressing records during the vinyl revival. Journal of Popular Music Studies, 29(4), e12247.

Pan, C., Hu, J., Tso, C. (2012). Energy demand forecasting for Taiwan's electronics industry. Actual Problems of Economics, 138, 440–447.

Panja, S., Mondal, S.K., (2019). Analyzing a four-layer green supply chain imperfect production inventory model for green products under type-2 fuzzy credit period. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 129, 435–453.

Pantano, E., Pizzi, G. (2020). Forecasting artificial intelligence on online customer assistance: Evidence from chatbot patents analysis. Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, 55, Article 102096.

Papahristou, E., Bilalis, N. (2016). A new sustainable product development model in apparel based on 3D technologies for virtual proper fit. Smart Innovation, Systems and Technologies, 52, 85–95.

Papahristou, E., Bilalis, N. (2017). Should the fashion industry confront the sustainability challenge with 3D prototyping technology. International Journal of Sustainable Engineering, 10(4–5), 207–214.

Parol, M., Piotrowski, P. (2010). Long-term forecasting method of annual electrical energy demand in electric distribution companies. Przeglad elektrotechniczny, 86(8), 182–186.

Pasandideh, S.H.R., Niaki, S.T.A., Roozbeh Nia, A., (2010). An investigation of vendormanaged inventory application in supply chain: the EOQ model with shortage. The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, 49, 329–339.

Pasandideh, S.H.R., Niaki, S.T.A., Roozbeh Nia, A., (2011). A genetic algorithm for vendor managed inventory control system of multi-product multi-constraint economic order quantity model. Expert Systems with Applications, 38 2708–2716.

Pasinski, J. (2018). The 4 types of data you need for simulation forecasting. https://concentricmarket.com/blog/the-4-types-of-data-you-need-for-simulation-forecasting.

Paterakis, N.G., Mocanu, E., Gibescu, M., Stappers, B., Alst, W.V. (2017). Deep learning versus traditional machine learning methods for aggregated energy demand prediction. In 2017 IEEE PES Innovative Smart Grid Technologies Conference Europe (ISGT-Europe) (pp. 1–6).

Paul, J., Zhou, Y. (2017). How to build sustainable innovation capability in supply chain management. International Journal of Business and Globalisation, 19(4), 456–476.

Pedersen, L., Stang, J. H., Ulseth, R. (2008). Load prediction method for heat and electricity demand in buildings for the purpose of planning for mixed energy distribution systems. Energy and Buildings, 40(7), 1124–1134.

Pelka, P., Dudek, G. (2018). Neuro-fuzzy system for medium-term electric energy demand forecasting. In 38th International Conference on Information Systems Architecture and Technology (ISAT) (Vol. 655, pp. 38–47).

Pelka, P., Dudek, G. (2019). Medium-term electric energy demand forecasting using generalized regression neural network. In 39th International Conference on Information Systems Architecture and Technology (ISAT) (Vol. 853, pp. 218–227).

Peng, T., Jian, M., Dong-Mo, Z., (1998). Non-linear integer programming by Darwin and Boltzmann mixed strategy. European Journal of Operational Research, 105, 224–235.

Penthin, S., Dillman, R. (2015). Digital SCM. Germany. www.bearingpoint.com.

Pereira, T., Barreto, L., Amaral, A. (2017). Network and information security challenges within Industry 4.0 paradigm. Procedia Manufacturing, 13, 1253–1260.

Peres, R. S., Rocha, A. D., Coelho, A., Oliveira, J. B. (2017). A highly flexible, distributed data analysis framework for Industry 4.0 manufacturing systems. In Service orientation in holonic and multi-agent manufacturing (pp. 373–381). Cham: Springer.

Pfohl, H. C., Yahsi, B., Kurnaz, T. (2017). Concept and diffusion-factors of Industry 4.0 in the supply chain. In Dynamics in Logistics (pp. 381–390), Springer International Publishing.

Phengsaart T., Srichonphaisan P., Kertbundit C., Soonthornwiphat N., Sinthugoot S., Phumkokrux N., Juntarasakul O., Maneeintr K., Numprasanthai A., Park I., Tabelin C.B., Hiroyoshi N., Ito M. (2023). Conventional and recent advances in gravity separation technologies for coal cleaning: a systematic and critical review. HELIYON, 9(2), e13083.

Phillips, J., (2008). Modeling the US Coal Supply Chain. Colorado School of Mines. Retrieved from. http://dahl.mines.edu/coalphillips.pdf (last accessed in June 2012).

Pi, D., Liu, J., Qin, X. (2010). A grey prediction approach to forecasting energy demand in China. Energy Sources, Part A: Recovery, Utilization, and Environmental Effects, 32, 1517–1528.

Pilinkien'e, V., Gružauskas, V., Navickas, V. (2017). Lean thinking and Industry 4.0 competitiveness strategy: Sustainable food supply chain in the European Union. In Trends and Issues in Interdisciplinary Behavior and Social Science—Proceedings of the 5th International Congress on Interdisciplinary Behavior and Social Science, ICIBSOS 2016, (No. 210489, pp. 15–20).

Piltan, M., Shiri, H., Ghaderi, S. F. (2012). Energy demand forecasting in Iranian metal industry using linear and nonlinear models based on evolutionary algorithms. Energy Conversion and Management, 58, 1–9.

Pisching, M. A., Junqueira, F., Santos Filho, D. J., Miyagi, P. E. (2015a). Service composition in the cloud-based manufacturing focused on the Industry 4.0. DoCEIS (pp. 65–72).

Pisching, M. A., Junqueira, F., Santos Filho, D. J., Miyagi, P. E. (2015b). An architecture for organizing and locating services to the Industry 4.0. In Proceedings of 23rd ABCM International Congress of Mechanical Engineering (Vol. 8), r462TX4E.

Pöltner, P., Grechenig, T. (2010). A joint infrastructure of "digital corporate organisms" as facilitator for a virtual digital retail ecosystem. In 4th IEEE International Conference on Digital Ecosystems and Technologies—Conference Proceedings of IEEE-DEST 2010, DEST 2010 (No. 05610626, pp. 327–332).

Poongothai, V., Kannan, M., Godhandaraman, P., (2021). Performance analysis of a single scheduling machine with cluster supply system, retardation, makespan and deterrent protection using genetic algorithm. Materials Today: Proceedings.

Popovic, D., Vidovic, M., Bjelic, N., (2014). Application of genetic algorithms for sequencing of AS/RS with a triple-shuttle module in class-based storage. Flexible Services and Manufacturing Journal, 26, 432–453.

Pradhan, R., Majhi, S.K., Pradhan, J.K., Pati, B.B. (2020). Optimal fractional order PID controller design using ant lion optimizer. Ain Shams Engineering Journal, 11:281–291.

Pramono, S. H., Rohmatillah, M., Maulana, E., Hasanah, R. N., Hario, F. (2019). Deep learningbased short-term load forecasting for supporting demand response program in hybrid energy system. Energies, 12(17), 3359.

Prause, G. (2015). Sustainable business models and structures for Industry 4.0. Journal of Security and Sustainability Issues, 5(2), 159–169.

Prause, G., Atari, S. (2017). On sustainable production networks for Industry 4.0, Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues, 4(4), 421–431.

Prauzek, M., Musílek, P., Kromer, P., Rodway, J., Stankus, M., Hlavica, J. (2015). Energy availability forecasting for harvesting-aware wireless sensor networks: Analysis of energy demand of a predictor based on evolutionary fuzzy rules. International Conference on Intelligent Networking and Collaborative Systems, 2015, 200–203.

Price, M.A., Murphy, A., Butterfield, J., McCool, R., Fleck, R. (2010). Integrating digital manufacturing, processing and design of composite structures. In 10th AIAA Aviation Technology, Integration and Operations Conference 2010, ATIO 2010 (p. 1).

Priyan, S., Udayakumar, R., Mala, P., Prabha, M., Ghosh, A. (2022). A sustainable dual-channel inventory model with trapezoidal fuzzy demand and energy consumption. Cleaner Engineering and Technology, 6:100400.

Purdy, M., Daugherty, P. (2017). How AI boosts industry profits and innovation, Accenture. https://www.accenture.com/us-en/insight-ai-industry-growth.

Qu, S., Zhou, Y., Zhang, Y., Wahab, M.I.M., Zhang, G., Ye, Y., (2019). Optimal strategy for a green supply chain considering shipping policy and default risk. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 131, 172–186.

Raab M., Griffin-Cryan B. (2011). Digital transformation of supply chains: Creating value—When digital meets physical.

Rahman, M. Z., Sajib, M. N., Safayet Hasan Rifat, M. M., Hossam-E-Haider, M., Khan, M. A. A. (2016). Forecasting the long term energy demand of Bangladesh using SPSS from 2011–2040. In 2016 3rd International Conference on Electrical Engineering and Information Communication Technology (ICEEICT), Dhaka (1–5).

Raj S., Sharma A. (2014). Supply chain management in the cloud. https://www.accenture.com/tr-en/insight-supply-chain-management-cloud.

Rajeev, A., Pati, R. K., Padhi, S. S., Govindan, K. (2017). Evolution of sustainability in supply chain management: A literature review. Journal of Cleaner Production, 162, 299–314.

Rakowski, E. (2015). TechTrends 2016, Part II: The supply chain goes digital.

Ranganathan, C., Teo, T. S. H., Dhaliwal, J. (2011). Web-enabled supply chain management: Key antecedents and performance impacts. International Journal of Information Management,

31(6), 533–545.

Rant, Z. (1956). Exergy, a new word for technical available work. Forsch Ing Wis, 22(1):36–37.

Ranzo, P., Scarpitti, C., Veneziano, R. (2016). Evolutive scenarios for a new concept of sustainable mobility. Smart Innovation, Systems and Technologies, 52, 39–47.

Ras, E., Wild, F., Stahl, C., Baudet, A. (2017). Bridging the skills gap of workers in Industry 4.0 by human performance augmentation tools: Challenges and roadmap. In Proceedings of the 10th International Conference on Pervasive Technologies Related to Assistive Environments (428–432), ACM.

Rauch, E., Dallasega, P., Matt, D. T. (2017). Distributed manufacturing network models of smart and agile mini-factories. International Journal of Agile Systems and Management, 10(3–4), 185–205.

Razmi, J., Rad, R.H., Sangari, M.S., (2010) Developing a two-echelon mathematical model for a vendor-managed inventory (VMI) system. The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, 48, 773–783.

Rehman, S. A., Cai, Y., Fazal, R., Walasai, G. D., Mirjat, N. H. (2017). An integrated modeling approach for forecasting long-term energy demand in Pakistan. Energies, 10(11), 1868.

Richey, R. G., Morgan, T. R., Lindsey-Hall, K., Adams, F. G. (2016). A global exploration of big data in the supply chain. International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management, 46(8), 710–739.

Roome, N., Hinnels, M. (1993). Environmental factors in the management of new product development: Theoretical framework and some empirical evidence from the white goods industry. Business. Strategy and Environment, 2(2), 12–27.

Roozbeh, Nia A., Hemmati, Far M., Niaki, S. T. A. (2014). A fuzzy vendor managed inventory of multi-item economic order quantity model under shortage: An ant colony optimization algorithm. International Journal of Production Economics, 155, 259–271.

Roozbeh Nia, A., Hemmati Far, M., Niaki, S.T.A., (2015). A hybrid genetic and imperialist competitive algorithm for green vendor managed inventory of multi-item multiconstraint EOQ model under shortage. Applied Soft Computing, 30, 353–364.

Roozbeh Nia, A., Haleh, H., Saghaei, A., (2017a). Dual command cycle dynamic sequencing method to consider GHG efficiency in unit-load multiple-rack automated storage and retrieval systems. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 111, 89–108.

Roozbeh Nia, A., Haleh, H., Saghaei, A., (2017b). Energy-conscious dynamic sequencing method for dual command cycle unit-load multiple-rack automated storage and retrieval systems. Scientia Iranica, 24 (6), 3371–3393.

Roozbeh Nia, A., Awasthi, A., Bhuiyan, N. (2020). Management of sustainable supply chain and industry 4.0: A literature review. In U. Ramanathan, & R. Ramanathan (Eds.), Sustainable Supply Chains: Strategies, Issues, and Models. Cham: Springer.

Roozbeh Nia, A., Awasthi, A., Bhuiyan, N., (2021). Industry 4.0 and demand forecasting of the energy supply chain: a literature review. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 154, 107128.

Rong, Y., Zhang, Z., Zhang, G.J., Yue, C., Gu, Y.F., Huang, Y., Wang, C.M., Shao, X.Y., (2015). Parameters optimization of laser brazing in crimping butt using Taguchi and BPNN-GA. Optics and Lasers in Engineering, 67, 94–104.

Rostami, A., Paydar, M.M., Asadi-Gangraj, E., (2020). A hybrid genetic algorithm for integrating virtual cellular manufacturing with supply chain management considering new product development. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 145, 106565.

Rostamzadeh, R., Sabaghi, M., Sofian, S., Ismail, Z., (2015). Hybrid GA for material routing optimization in supply chain. Applied Soft Computing, 26, 107–122.

Ruas, G., Bragatto, T., Lamar, M. V., Aoki, A. R., Rocco, S. M. (2008). Electrical energy demand prediction using Artificial Neural Networks and Support Vector Regression. In 2008 3rd International Symposium on Communications, Control and Signal Processing (1431–1435).

Ryu, S., Noh, J., Kim, H. (2016). Deep neural network based demand side short term load forecasting. In 2016 IEEE International Conference on Smart Grid Communications (SmartGridComm), Sydney, NSW. https://doi.org/10.1109/SmartGridComm.2016.7778779.

Saberi, S., Kouhizadeh, M., Sarkis, J., Shen, L. (2019). Blockchain technology and its relationships to sustainable supply chain management. International Journal of Production Research, 57(7), 2117–2135.

Safarian, S. (2023). To what extent could biochar replace coal and coke in steel industries? Fuel, 339:127401.

Saghaeeian, A., Ramezanian, R., (2018). An efficient hybrid genetic algorithm for multiproduct competitive supply chain network design with price-dependent demand. Applied Soft Computing 71, 872–893.

Sahay, B. S., Ranjan, J. (2008). Real time business intelligence in supply chain analytics. Information Management & Computer Security, 16(1), 28–48.

Sahin, F., Robinson, E. P. (2002). Flow coordination and information sharing in supply chains: Review, implications, and directions for future research. Decision Science, 33(4), 505–536.

Sahin, F.,Robinson, E. P. J. (2005). Information sharing and coordination in make-to-order supply chains. Journal of Operations Management, 23(6), 579–598.

Saif-Eddine, A.S., El-Beheiry, M.M., El-Kharbotly, A.K., (2019). An improved genetic algorithm for optimizing total supply chain cost in inventory location routing problem. Ain Shams Eng. J. 10 (1), 63–76.

Salam, M. A., Yazdani, M. G., Wen, F., Rahman, Q. M., Malik, O. A., Hasan, S. (2020). Modeling and forecasting of energy demands for household applications. Global Challenges, 4(1).

Saldivar, A. A. F., Li, Y., Chen, W. N., Zhan, Z. H., Zhang, J., Chen, L. Y. (2015). Industry 4.0 with cyber-physical integration: A design and manufacture perspective. In 2015 21st international conference on Automation and computing (icac) (pp. 1–6), IEEE.

Sanchez-Duran, R., Luque, J., Barbancho, J. (2019). Long-term demand forecasting in a scenario of energy transition. Energies, 12(16), 3095.

Sanders, A., Subramanian, K. R., Redlich, T., Wulfsberg, J. P. (2017). Industry 4.0 and lean management-synergy or contradiction? In IFIP International Conference on Advances in Production Management Systems (pp. 341–349). Cham: Springer.

Sanjari, M. J., Karami, H., Gooi, H. B. (2016). Micro-generation dispatch in a smart residential multi-carrier energy system considering demand forecast error. Energy Conversion and Management, 120, 90–99.

Santhi, G., Karthikeyan, K., (2015). An entropic economic order quantity model for deterioration of perishable items with cubic demand rate and its fuzzy environment. Global Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 11 (5), 3565–3581.

Santos, M. Y., e Sá, J. O., Costa, C., Galvão, J., Andrade, C., Martinho, B., Costa, E., et al. (2017). A big data analytics architecture for Industry 4.0. In World Conference on Information Systems and Technologies (pp. 175–184). Cham: Springer.

Saucedo-Martínez, J. A., Pérez-Lara, M., Marmolejo-Saucedo, J. A., Salais-Fierro, T. E., Vasant, P. (2017). Industry 4.0 framework for management and operations: a review. Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Humanized Computing, 9(3), 789–801.

Sauer, P. C., Seuring, S. (2017). Sustainable supply chain management for minerals. Journal of Cleaner Production, 151, 235–249.

Savtschenko M., Schulte F., Voß S. (2017). IT governance for cyber-physical systems: The case of Industry 4.0. In A. Marcus, W.Wang (Eds.), Design, User Experience, and Usability: Theory, Methodology, and Management. DUXU 2017. Lecture Notes in Computer Science (p. 10288). Cham: Springer.

Sciubba, E. (1998). A novel exergetic costing method for determining the optimal allocation of scarce resources. In: Rudnicki et al. (eds.) Proceedings Contemporary problems in thermal engineering, gliwice

Sciubba, E., (2001). Beyond thermoeconomics? the concept of extended exergy accounting and its application to the analysis and design of thermal systems. Exergy, An International Journal, 1(2), 68–84.

Sciubba, E. (2003a). Cost analysis of energy conversion system via a novel resource-based quantifier. Energy 28:457–477.

Sciubba, E. (2003b.) Extended-exergy accounting applied to energy recovery from waste: the concept of total recycling. Energy 28:1316–1334.

Sciubba, E. (2011). A revised calculation of the econometric factors α -and β for the extended exergy accounting method. Ecological Modelling, 222(4):1060–1066.

Schiederig, T., Tietze, F., Herstatt, C. (2012). Green innovation in technology and innovation management—An exploratory literature review. R&D Management, 42, 180–192.

Schmidt, R., Möhring, M., Härting, R.C., Reichstein, C., Neumaier, P., Jozinovi'c, P. (2015a). Industry 4.0-potentials for creating smart products: Empirical research results. In Proceedings of the International Conference on Business Information Systems (pp. 16–27). Cham: Springer.

Schmidt, B., Wallenburg, C. M., Rutkowsky, S., Einmahl, L., Petersen, I., Klötzke F. (2015b). Digital supply chains: Increasingly critical for competitive edge.

Scholz, J., De Meyer, A., Marques, A.S., Pinho, T.M., Boaventura-Cunha, J., et al. (2018). Digital technologies for forest supply chain optimization: Existing solutions and future trends. Environmental Management, 62(6), 1108–1133.

Schrauf, S., Berttram, P. (2016). Industry 4.0: How digitization makes the supply chain more efficient. Agile, and Customer-focused, PWC, White Paper.

Schröder, C. (2018). The challenges of Industry 4.0 for small and medium-sized enterprises. https://insme.wordpress.com/2018/04/26/the-challenges-of-industry-4–0-for-small-andmedium-sized-enterprises.

Schuh, G., Anderl, R., Gausemeier, J., TenHompel, M., Wahlster, W. (2017). Industrie4.0maturity index. Munich: Managing the Digital Transformation of Companies. HerbertUtz.

Selvi, M., Ramakrishnan, B. (2020). Lion optimization algorithm (LOA)-based reliable emergency message broadcasting system in VANET. Soft Computing, 24:10415–10432. Sendlhofer, T., Lernborg, C. M. (2018). Labour rights training 2.0:The digitalisation of knowledge for workers in global supply chains. Journal of Cleaner Production, 179, 616–630.

Seuring, S. (2013). A review of modeling approaches for sustainable supply chain management. Decision Support Systems, 54(4), 1513–1520.

Seuring, S.,Müller, M. (2008). From a literature reviewto a conceptual framework for sustainable supply chain management. Journal of Cleaner Production, 16(15), 1699–1710.

Shamim, S., Cang, S., Yu, H., Li, Y. (2017). Examining the feasibilities of Industry 4.0 for the hospitality sector with the lens of management practice. Energies, 10(4), 499.

Shankar, V. (2018). How Artificial Intelligence (AI) is reshaping retailing. Journal of Retailing, 94, 6–11.

Shao, Z., Chao, F., Yang, S., Zhou, K. (2017). A review of the decomposition methodology for extracting and identifying the fluctuation characteristics in electricity demand forecasting. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 75, 123–136.

Sharma, M., Kamble, S., Mani, V., Sehrawat, R., Belhadi, A., Sharma, V., (2021). Industry 4.0 adoption for sustainability in multi-tier manufacturing supply chain in emerging economies. Journal of Cleaner Production, 281, 125013.

Shekarian, E., Kazemi, N., Abdul-Rashid, S.H., Olugu, E.U. (2017). Fuzzy inventory models: a comprehensive review. Applied Soft Computing, 55:588–621.

Shi, G., (2014) Chapter 3-Artificial Neural Networks, Data Mining and Knowledge Discovery for Geoscientists. Elsevier, 2014.

Shinoda, M., Miyata, Y. (2019). PSO-based stability analysis of unreinforced and reinforced soil slopes using non-circular slip surface. Acta Geotechnica, 14:907–919.

Shokouhifar, M., Jalali, A. (2017). Simplified symbolic transfer function factorization using combined artificial bee colony and simulated annealing. Applied Soft Computing, 55:436–451. Shuangfeng, W., Ke, Z., Guoqing, L., (2011). The research on short-term energy demand forecasting model for small regional aspects. In 4th International Symposium on Heat Transfer and Energy Conservation (pp. 291–295).

Silenzi, F., Priarone, A., Fossa, M. (2017). Energy demand modeling and forecast of Monoblocco Building at the city hospital of Genova according to different retrofit scenarios. International Journal of Heat and Technology, 35(1), 533–540.

Singh, A.K., Khatoon, S. (2013). An overview of electricity demand forecasting techniques. Network and Complex Systems, 3(3). In National Conference on Emerging Trends in Electrical, Instrumentation & Communication Engineering.

Singh, D., Singh, B, Kaur, M. (2021). Simultaneous feature weighting and parameter determination of neural networks using ant lion optimization for the classification of breast cancer. Biocybernetics and Biomedical Engineering, 40:337–351.

Sobri, S., Koohi-Kamali, S., Rahim, N. A. (2018). Solar photovoltaic generation forecasting methods: A review. Energy Conversion and Management, 156, 459–497.

Soldo, B., Potocnik, P., Simunovic, G., Saric, T., Govekar, E. (2014). Improving the residential natural gas consumption forecasting models by using solar radiation. Energy and Buildings, 69, 498–506.

Sommer, L. (2015). Industrial revolution-Industry 4.0: Are German manufacturing SMEs the first victims of this revolution? Journal of Industrial Engineering and Management, 8(5), 1512–1532.

Song, D., Lin, L., Wu, Y., (2019). Extended exergy accounting for a typical cement industry in China. Energy 174, 678–686.

Speranza, M. G. (2018). Trends in transportation and logistics. European Journal of Operational Research, 264(3), 830–836.

Srinivasan, D. (2008). Energy demand prediction using GMDH networks. Neurocomputing, 72(1–3), 625–629.

Srivastava, S. K. (2007). Green supply-chain management: A state-of-the-art literature review. International Journal of Management Reviews, 9, 53–80.

Statista, (2020). https://www.statista.com/statistics/265510/countries-with-the-largest-coal-consumption/

Statistical, (2021) Review of world energy. BP. https://www.bp.com/en/global/corporate/energy-economics/statistical-review-of-world-energy.

Stojanovic, I., Brajevic, I., Stanimirovic, P.S., Kazakovtsev, L.A., Zdravev, Z. (2017). Application of heuristic and metaheuristic algorithms in solving constrained weber problem with feasible region bounded by arcs. Mathematical Problems in Engineering, 2017:8306732.

Strandhagen, J. O., Vallandingham, L. R., Fragapane, G., Strandhagen, J. W., Stangeland, A. B. H., Sharma, N. (2017). Logistics 4.0 and emerging sustainable business models. Advances in Manufacturing, 5(4), 359–369.

Strange, R., Zucchella, A. (2017). Industry 4.0, global value chains and international business. Multinational Business Review, 25(3), 174–184, https://doi.org/10.1108/mbr-05-2017-0028.

Stojanovic, I., Brajevic, I., Stanimirovic, P.S., Kazakovtsev, L.A., Zdravev, Z., (2017) Application of heuristic and metaheuristic algorithms in solving constrained weber problem with feasible region bounded by arcs. Math. Probl Eng. 2017 https://doi.org/10.1155/2017/8306732. Article ID 8306732, 13 pages, 2017.

Su, R., Weng, M., Yang, C. (2021). Effects of corporate social responsibility activities in a twostage assembly production system with multiple components and imperfect processes. European Journal of Operational Research, 293:469–480.

Suganthi, L., Samuel, A. A. (2012). Energy models for demand forecasting—A review. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 16, 1223–1240.

Sultan, N. (2013), Knowledge management in the age of cloud computing and Web 2.0: Experiencing the power of disruptive innovations. International Journal of Information Management, 33(1), 160–165.

Sun, Y., Zhang, C., Dong, K., Lang, M. (2018). Multiagent modelling and simulation of a physical internet enabled rail-road intermodal transport system. Urban Rail Transit, 4(3), 141–154.

Sun, H., Yang, J. (2021). Optimal decisions for competitive manufacturers under carbon tax and cap-and-trade policies. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 156:107244.

Syam, N. B., Sharma, A. (2018). Waiting for a sales renaissance in the fourth industrial revolution: Machine learning and artificial intelligence in sales research and practice. Industrial Marketing Management, 69, 135–146.

Syntetos, A., (2014). Principles of inventory management: when you are down to four, order more. Journal of the Operational Research Society, 65(5), 798.

Taghizadeh, M. R., Shakouri, H. G., Menhaj, M. B., Mehregan, M. R., Kazemi, A. (2009). Design of a multi-level fuzzy linear regression model for forecasting transport energy demand: A case study of Iran. International Conference on Computers & Industrial Engineering, 1757–1762.

Tan, J. S. K., Ang, A. K., Lu, L., Gan, S. W. Q., Corral, M. G. (2017). Quality analytics in a big data supply chain: Commodity data analytics for quality engineering. In IEEE Region 10 Annual International Conference, Proceedings/TENCON (Vol. 7848697, pp. 3455–3463).

Taniguchi, Y., Kutsuzawa, R., Yamashita, A., Matsumoto, J., Yamanaka, N. (2017). Demand response minimizing the impact on the consumers' utility considering forecast error on renewable energy resource. IEEE International Symposium on Local and Metropolitan Area Networks (LANMAN), 2017, 1–6.

Teerasoponpong, S., Sopadang, A. (2022). Decision support system for adaptive sourcing and inventory management in small- and medium-sized enterprises. Robotics and Computer-Integrated Manufacturing, 73:102226.

Thaler, M., Grabec, I., Poredos, A. (2005). Prediction of energy consumption and risk of excess demand in a distribution system. 1st Bonzenfreies Colloquium on Market Dynamics and Quantitative Economics, 355(1), 46–53.

Theorin, A., Bengtsson, K., Provost, J., Lieder, M., Johnsson, C., Lundholm, T., et al. (2017). An event-driven manufacturing information system architecture for Industry 4.0. International Journal of Production Research, 55(5), 1297–1311.

Tianheng, F., Lin, Y. Y., Qing, G., Yan-qing, H., Ting, Y., Bin, Y. (2015). A supervisory control strategy for plug-in hybrid electric vehicles based on energy demand prediction and route preview. IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology, 64(5), 1691–1700.

Todorovic, V., Maslaric, M., Bojic, S., Jokic, M., Mircetic, D., Nikolicic, S. (2018). Solutions for more sustainable distribution in the short food supply chains. Sustainability (Switzerland), 10(10), 3481.

Tombido, L. L., Louw, L., van Eeden, J. (2018). A systematic review of 3pls' entry into reverse logistics. South African Journal of Industrial Engineering, 29(3 Special Edition), 235–260.

Tongal, H., Booij, M. J. (2018). Simulation and forecasting of stream flows using machine learning models coupled with base flow separation. Journal of Hydrology, 564, 266–282.

Torres, J. M., Aguilar, R. M., Zu⁻niga-Meneses, K. V. (2018). Deep learning to predict the generation of a wind farm. Journal of Renewable and Sustainable Energy, 10, Article 013305.

Torres-Sanz, V., Sanguesa, J. A., Garrido, P., Martinez, F. J., Calafate, C. M., Marquez-Barja, J. (2017). On the prediction of electric vehicles energy demand by using vehicular networks. Wireless Days, 2017, 198–200.

Tseng, M.–L., Tan, R. R., Chiu, A. S. F., Chien, C.–F., Kuo, T. C. (2018). Circular economy meets industry 4.0: Can big data drive industrial symbiosis? Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 131, 146–147.

Turhan, Z.D., Vayvay, O., Birgun, S. (2011). Supply chain reengineering in a paint company using axiomatic design. The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, 57(5–8), 421–435.

Tutuncu, K., Şahman, M.A., Tuşat, E. (2021). A hybrid binary grey wolf optimizer for selection and reduction of reference points with extreme learning machine approach on local GNSS/leveling geoid determination. Applied Soft Computing, 108:107444.

Tzoulis, I., Andreopoulou, Z., Trigkas, M., Tsekouropoulos, G., Voulgaridis, E. (2015). Wood trade in greece: The impact of economic crisis and the use of new technologies. CEURWorkshop Proceedings, 1498, 26–37.

Uguz, H., Hakli, H., Baykan, O. K. (2015). A new algorithm based on artificial bee colony algorithm for energy demand forecasting in Turkey. In 2015 4th International Conference on Advanced Computer Science Applications and Technologies (ACSAT) (pp.56–61).

Ungureanu, F., Popescu, D., Ungureanu, C. (2007). Simulation and prediction of thermal energy demand. In 2nd IASME/WSEAS International Conference on Energy and Environment (pp. 28–33).

Ünler, A. (2008). Improvement of energy demand forecasts using swarm intelligence: The case of Turkey with projections to 2025. Energy Policy, 36(6), 1937–1944.

Ustundag, A., Kılınç, M. S., Cevikcan, E. (2010). Fuzzy rule-based system for the economic analysis of RFID investments. Expert Systems with Applications, 37(7), 5300–5306.

U.S.EnergyInformation.Administrationinternationalenergyoutlook.https://www.eia.gov/outlooks/ieo/pdf/ieo2019.pdf;2020.2020.http://www.tuik.gov.tr/PreHaberBulteneri.do?id=27667.2020.

U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA) (2019). Coal Transportation Rates to the Electric Power Sector. https://www.eia.gov/coal/data.php# trans rate.

U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA) (2021). Coal explained, https:// www.eia.gov/ energyexplained/coal/use-of-coal.php

U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA) (2022). Direct CO2 emissions in the iron and steel sector by scenario, 2019-2050. Available from: https://www.iea.org/ data-and-statistics/charts/direct-co2-emissions-in-the-iron-and-steel-sector-by-scenario-2019-2050, IEA. Licence: CC BY 4.0.

Van den Bergh, F. (2002). Analysis of Particle Swarm Optimization. Ph.D. thesis, University of Pretoria, South Africa, 2002.

VanHemel, C., Cramer, J. (2012). Barriers and stimuli for ecodesign in SMEs. Journal of Cleaner Production, 10(5), 439–453.

Varshney, S, Kumar, C, Swaroop, A. (2021). Lightning-based lion optimization algorithm for monitoring the

pipelines using linear wireless sensor network. Wireless Personal Communications, 117:2475-2494

Vesa, A. V., Cioara, T., Anghel, I., Antal, M., Pop, C., Iancu, B., et al. (2020). Energy flexibility prediction for data center engagement in demand response programs. Sustainability, 12(4), 1417.

Viswanadham, N. (2002). The past, present, and future of supply-chain automation. IEEE Robotics and Automation Magazine, 9(2), 48–56.

Vogel-Heuser, B., Hess, D. (2016). Guest editorial Industry 4.0—Prerequisites and visions. IEEE Transactions on Automation Science and Engineering, 13(2), 411–413.

Waldeck, N. E. (2014). Advanced manufacturing technologies and workforce development. Oxon, NY: Taylor & Francis.

Wan, S-P., Chen, Z-H., Dong, J-Y. (2021). Bi-objective trapezoidal fuzzy mixed integer linear program-based distribution center location decision for large-scale emergencies. Applied Soft Computing, 110:107757

Wang, J., Liang, X. (2009). The forecast of energy demand on artificial neural network. In 2009 International Conference on Artificial Intelligence and Computational Intelligence (Vol. 3, pp. 31–35).

Wang, J., Jiang, H., Zhou, Q., Wu, J., Qin, S. (2016). China's natural gas production and consumption analysis based on the multicycle Hubbert model and rolling Grey model. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 53, 1149–1167.

Wang, H., Wu, F., Zhang, L., (2021b). Application of variational mode decomposition optimized with improved whale optimization algorithm in bearing failure diagnosis. Alexandria Engineering Journal, 60, 4689–4699.

Wang, L., Lv, S.-X., Zeng, Y.-R. (2018). Effective sparse adaboost method with ESN and FOA for industrial electricity consumption forecasting in China. Energy, 155, 1013–1031.

Wang, L., Xu, J. W., Qin, P. (2012). Research on China's energy demand forecasting based on grey system theory. Advanced Materials Research, 524–527, 2958–2961.

Wang, L., Zhan, L., Li, R. (2019). Prediction of the energy demand trend in middle Africa—A comparison of MGM, MECM, ARIMA and BP models. Sustainability, 11, 2436.

Wang, M., Heidari, AA., Chen, M., Chen, H., Zhao, X., Cai, X. (2020a). Exploratory differential ant lion-based optimization. Expert Systems with Applications, 159:113548

Wang, P., Zhou, Y., Luo, Q., Han, C., Niu, Y., Lei, Me (2020). Complex-valued encoding metaheuristic optimization algorithm: A comprehensive survey. Neurocomputing. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neucom.2019.06.112

Wang, S., Wan, J., Li, D., Zhang, C. (2016). Implementing smart factory of industrie 4.0: An outlook. International Journal of Distributed Sensor Networks, 12(1), 3159805.

Wang, T., Manogaran, G., Wang, M. (2020b). Framework for social tag recommendation using Lion Optimization Algorithm and collaborative filtering techniques. Cluster Computing, 23:2009–2019.

Wang, Y., Nie, R., Ma, X., Liu, Z., Chi, P., Wu, W., Guo, B., Yang, X., Zhang, L. (2021a). A novel Hausdorff fractional NGMC (p, n) grey prediction model with grey wolf optimizer and its applications in forecasting energy production and conversion of China. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 97:381–397.

Wang Q., Guo J., Li R., Jiang X. (2023). Exploring the role of nuclear energy in the energy transition: a comparative perspective of the effects of coal, oil, natural gas, renewable energy, and nuclear power on economic growth and carbon emissions. Environmental research, 221:115290.

Wang, Q., Li, S., Li, R. (2018). Forecasting energy demand in China and India: Using single-linear, hybrid-linear, and non-linear time series forecast techniques. Energy, 161, 821–831.

Wang, X., Palazoglu, A., El-Farra, N. H. (2014). Operation of residential hybrid renewable energy systems: Integrating forecasting, optimization and demand response. American Control Conference, 2014, 5043–5048.

Wang, X., Zeng, D., Dai, H., Zhu, Y. (2020). Making the right business decision: Forecasting the binary NPD strategy in Chinese automotive industry with machine learning methods. Technological Forecasting and Social Change, 155, Article 120032.

Wang, Y. (2016). Research on energy demand forecast in Baoding city. In Proceedings of the 2016 International Conference on Management Science and Management Innovation (Vol. 10, pp. 334–337).

Wei, N., Li, C., Peng, X., Zeng, F., Lu, X. (2019). Conventional models and artificial intelligencebased models for energy consumption forecasting: A review. Journal of Petroleum Science and Engineering, 181, Article 106187.

Wesseh Jr., P.K., Lin, B., (2018). Optimal carbon taxes for China and implications for power generation, welfare, and the environment. Energy Policy, 118, 1–8.

Wittstruck, D., Teuteberg, F. (2011). Development and simulation of a balanced scorecard for sustainable supply chain management—A system dynamics approach. Network, 7, 368.

Woo, Y.B., Kim, B.S., (2019). A genetic algorithm-based metaheuristic for hydrogen supply chain network problem with two transportation modes and replenishment cycles. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 127, 981–997.

World coal association: Coal Facts. https://www.worldcoal.org/coal-facts/.

Wu, J., Chen, Z., Ji, X. (2018). Sustainable trade promotion decisions under demand disruption in manufacturer-retailer supply chains. Annals of Operations Research, 1–29.

Wu, Y. F., Xu, Q., Fu, C., Liu, L. (2012). The analysis and forecasting model of the energy supply and demand in Jiangxi Province. Applied Mechanics and Materials, 178–181, 225–231.

Xiao, X. M., Song, Z. M., Li, F. (2005). The grey technology base and application. Beijing, China: Scientific Press.

Xie, N., Yuan, C., Yang, Y. (2015). Forecasting China's energy demand and self-sufficiency rate by grey forecasting model and Markov model. International journal of electrical power & energy systems, 66, 1–8.

Xie, Y., Li, M. (2009). Research on gray prediction modeling optimized by genetic algorithm for energy consumption demand. International Conference on Industrial Mechatronics and Automation, 2009, 289–291.

Xu, J. (2014). Managing digital enterprise: Ten essential topics (pp. 1–199). Paris: Atlantis Press, ISBN: 978-94-6239-094-2.

Xu, X. (2012). From cloud computing to cloud manufacturing. Robotics and Computer-Integrated Manufacturing, 28(1), 75–86.

Xu, S., (2008). Vector autoregression model application on forecasting China energy demand up to year 2020. In Conference of the International-Institute-of-Applied-Statistics-Studies, Recent advance in statistics application and related areas (pts 1 and 2, pp. 1227–1232).

Xue-xia, Z., Dian-jun, Z., Yang, Z., Kai, H. (2011). Energy risks zoning and demand forecasting in Jiangsu Province. Energy Procedia, 5, 813–817.

Yan, M.-R., Chien, K.-M., Yang, T.-N. (2016). Green component procurement collaboration for improving supply chain management in the high technology industries: A case study from the systems perspective. Sustainability, 8, 105.

Yager, R., (1979). Ranking fuzzy subsets over the unit interval. In: Proceedings of 17th IEEE International Conference on Decision and Control, pp. 1435–1437. San Diego, CA. 1979.

Yager, R., (1981). A procedure for ordering fuzzy subsets of the unit interval. Inf. Sci. 24, 143–161.

Yan, Z., Zhang, J., Zeng, J., Tang, J. (2021). Nature-inspired approach: an enhanced whale optimization algorithm for global optimization. Mathematics and Computers in Simulation (MATCOM), 185:17–46.

Yang, J., Xu, M., Gao, Z. (2009). Sensitivity analysis of simulated annealing for continuous network design problems. Journal of Transportation Systems Engineering and Information Technology, 9(3):64–70.

Yang, L., Yan, H., Lam, J. C. (2014). Thermal comfort and building energy consumption implications – a review. Applied Energy, 115, 164–173.

Yao, Y., Evers, P.T., Dresner, ME. (2007). Supply chain integration in vendor managed inventory. Decision Support Systems, 43:663–674.

Yazdani, M., Jolai, F. (2016). Lion optimization algorithm (LOA): a nature-inspired metaheuristic algorithm. Journal of Computational Design and Engineering, 3(1):24–36.

Yee J. T., Oh S. C. (2013). Background and introduction. In Technology Integration to Business (pp. 1–22). London: Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4471-4390-1 1.

Yin, C., Qiu, S., Zhang, S., Sher, F., Zhang, H., Xu, J., Wen, L., (2020). Strength degradation mechanism of iron coke prepared by mixed coal and Fe2O3. Journal of Analytical and Applied Pyrolysis, 150, 104897.

Yin, Z., Jia, B., Wu, S., Dai, J., Tang, D. (2018). Comprehensive forecast of urban water-energy demand based on a neural network model. Water, 10(4), 385.

Yokoyama, R., Inui, M., Ito, K. (2005). Prediction of energy demands using neural network by a global optimization method. In 18th International Conference on Efficiency, Cost, Optimization, Simulation and Environmental Impact of Energy Systems (ECOS 2005) (pp. 609–616).

Yokoyama, R., Wakui, T., Satake, R. (2009). Prediction of energy demands using neural network with model identification by global optimization. Energy Conversion and Management, 50(2), 319–327.

Yu, F., Xu, X. (2014). A short-term load forecasting model of natural gas based on optimized genetic algorithm and improved BP neural network. Applied Energy, 134, 102–113.

Yu, H., Solvang, W. D. (2017). Enhancing the competitiveness of manufacturers through smallscale intelligent manufacturing system (SIMS): A supply chain perspective. In 2017 6th International Conference on Industrial Technology and Management, ICITM 2017 (Vol. 7917904, pp. 101–107).

Yu, S., Wei, Y., Wang, K. (2012). China's primary energy demands in 2020: Predictions from an MPSO-RBF estimation model. Energy conversion and management, 61, 59–66.

Yu, S., Zhu, K. (2012). A hybrid procedure for energy demand forecasting in China. Energy, 37(1), 396–404.

Yuan, D., Lu, Z., Zhang, J. J., Li, X. (2019). A hybrid prediction-based microgrid energy management strategy considering demand-side response and data interruption. International Journal of Electrical Power & Energy Systems, 113, 139–153.

Yuana, X.-C., Sunc, X., Zhao, W., Mi, Z., Wang, B., Wei, Y.-M. (2017). Forecasting China's regional energy demand by 2030: A Bayesian approach. Resources, Conservation & Recycling, 127, 85–95.

Yue, X., Cai, H., Yan, H., Zou, C., Zhou, K. (2015). Cloud-assisted industrial cyber-physical systems: An insight. Microprocessors and Microsystems, 39(8), 1262–1270.

Zadeh, L.A., (1965). Fuzzy sets, Information and Control, 8 (3), 338–353.

Zadehkabir, A., (1992). Origin of Sulphur Contents of Coal Seams in Parvadeh Deposit (Iran). NISCO, National Steel Corporation.

Zahedi, Z.M., Akbari, R., Shokouhifar, M., Safaei, F., Jalali, A., (2016). Swarm intelligence based fuzzy routing protocol for clustered wireless sensor networks. Expert Systems with Applications 55, 313–328.

Zakari, A., Adedoyi, F.F., Bekun, F.V. (2021). The effect of energy consumption on the environment in the OECD countries: economic policy uncertainty perspectives, Environmental Science and Pollution Research, 28, 52295–52305.

Zeng, H., Chen, X., Xiao, X., Zhou, Z. (2017). Institutional pressures, sustainable supply chain management, and circular economy capability: Empirical evidence from Chinese eco-industrial park firms. Journal of Cleaner Production, 155, 54–65.

Zhang, D., Ma, K., Zhao, Y. (2011). Energy demand forecasting in China based on dynamic RBF neural network. In International Conference on Computer Science and Education (CSE 2011) (Vol. 202, pp. 388–395).

Zhang, J., Wei, Y.-M., Li, D., Tan, Z., Zhou, J. (2018). Short term electricity load forecasting using a hybrid model. Energy, 158, 774–781.

Zhang, J., Hong, L., Liu, Q., (2021b). An improved whale optimization algorithm for the traveling salesman problem. Symmetry 13, 48.

Zhang, L., Li, J. (2014). Forecasting Chinese energy supply and demand situation with BP neural network. Advanced Materials Research, 869–870, 541–544.

Zhang, M., Mu, H., Li, G., Ning, Y. (2009). Forecasting the transport energy demand based on PLSR method in China. Energy, 34(9), 1396–1400.

Zhang, P., Wang, H. (2012). Fuzzy wavelet neural networks for city electric energy consumption forecasting. Energy Procedia, 17, 1332–1338.

Zhang, Q., Deng, W., Wu, J., Ju, F. H., Li, J. (2014). Dynamic power demand prediction for batterysupercapacitor hybrid energy storage system of electric vehicle with terrain information. IEEE International Workshop on Intelligent Energy Systems (IWIES), 2014, 82–87.

Zhang, X., Wen, S. (2021). Hybrid whale optimization algorithm with gathering strategies for highdimensional problems. Expert Systems with Applications, 179:115032.

Zhang, X., Jing, S. (2015). The prediction of cement energy demand based on support vector machine. 4th International Conference on Computer, Mechatronics, Control and Electronic Engineering (ICCMCEE), 37, 1162–1167.

Zhang, Y., Bai, J., Zhong, X., Jin, L., Li, Y., Hu, H., (2021a). Evaluation of coking coal by a modified fluorescence alteration of multiple macerals technique. Fuel 291, 120138.

Zhao, N. (2016). Study on the prediction of energy demand based on master slave neural network. 2016 IEEE Information Technology, Networking, Electronic and Automation Control Conference, 137–140.

Zhao, W., Zhao, J., Yao, X., Jin, Z., Wang, P. (2019). A novel adaptive intelligent ensemble model for forecasting primary energy demand. Energies, 12(7), 1347.

Zhong, R., Xu, X., Wang, L. (2017). Food supply chain management: Systems, implementations, and future research. Industrial Management and Data Systems, 117(9), 2085–2114.

Zhou, K., Liu, T., Zhou, L. (2015). Industry 4.0: Towards future industrial opportunities and challenges. In 12thIEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems and Knowledge Discovery (FSKD) (pp. 2147–2152). http://dx.doi.org/10.1109/FSKD.2015.7382284.

Zhou, W., He, J. (2013). Generalized GM (1, 1) model and its application in forecasting of fuel production. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 37, 6234–6243.

Zhu, Q., Geng, Y., Lai, K. H. (2011). Environmental supply chain cooperation and its effect on the circular economy practice-performance relationship among Chinese manufacturers. Journal of Industrial Ecology, 15(3), 405–419.

Zhu, L., Lian, W.-S., Wang, F. (2013). BIM digital technology in the construction industry in the field of application. Advanced Materials Research, 143–144, 1375–1379.

APPENDIX

Appendix 1. The results of carbon cap policy for the model (in chapter 7) *A.7.5.1.1. Part 1: Find out the "near-optimum" solutions by metaheuristic algorithms.*

In this phase, each individual solution algorithms are performed ten times for each fuzzy exergy numerical example in Iran. Correspondingly, the lowest fuzzy total exergy and the CPU times (seconds) under emission cap policy (Eq. 7.17) are detailed in Tables A.7.1 and A.7.2.

The most exemplary metaheuristic algorithm is observed by revealing the proportion distinction between their outcomes. In this sustainable model under emission cap policy, we optimize three objectives simultaneously: the total inventory cost, the total cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, and the penalty cost of coal waste disposal to the environment. We converted all model economic parameters (Euro) to equivalent exergy values (MJ) using the EEA method. Therefore, considering this model's three fuzzy exergy objective functions, GA is the best individual algorithm with the lowest fuzzy total exergy for numerical examples for 4-, 8-, 32- and 64-item (734,740.68 to 12,173,554.77 MJ). For 16-, 128-, 256- and 512-item test problems, this is WOA that has better performance (from 2,949,449.28 to 98,415,908.27 MJ) in terms of fuzzy total exergy (see Table A.7.1). Moreover, for the large size numerical test 1024-item, ACO has the lowest fuzzy total exergy (190,647,152.57 MJ).

A comparison of algorithms in terms of the fuzzy total exergy under emission cap for large size numerical examples (256-, 521- & 1024-items) is presented in Fig. A.7.1 It should be mentioned that the enhancement percentages between results of the algorithms in all test problems are on average 0.25%. It means the results of the algorithms are remarkably close (see Fig. A.7.2).

Moreover, considering the CPU time (sec.), SA has the lower computational time than WOA in all examples (Table A.7.2 and Fig. A.7.3). Additionally, improvement percentage of computational time of SA against WOA is on average 1956% (see Fig. A.7.4).

		Fuzzy total	exergy (MJ)	_					
No. of items	WOA	GA	ACO	SA	The best algorithm	Difference	Improvement %		
4	735,481.42	734,740.68	739,490.90	802,698.43	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	740.74	0.10		
8	1,472,746.99	1,469,178.46	1,478,807.46	1,560,189.65	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	3,568.53	0.24		
16	2,949,449.28	2,967,396.49	2,961,160.37	3,285,578.02	WOA-ACO-GA-SA	11,711.09	0.40		
32	6,061,754.97	6,047,430.96	6,228,661.83	6,551,751.76	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	14,324.01	0.24		
64	12,251,820.41	12,173,554.77	12,477,013.36	13,062,097.03	GA-WOA-ACO-SA	78,265.64	0.64		
128	24,424,801.87	24,526,297.92	24,544,711.78	26,387,790.72	WOA-GA-ACO-SA	1,496.05	0.01		
256	48,967,341.60	49,287,027.51	49,347,197.38	52,900,955.14	WOA-GA-ACO-SA	119,685.91	0.24		
512	98,415,908.27	99,459,675.15	98,917,404.26	105,911,477.76	WOA-GA-ACO-SA	43,766.88	0.04		
1024	191,349,070.21	196,899,307.13	190,647,152.57	211,717,247.50	ACO-WOA-GA-SA	701,917.64	0.37		
Exact method's result (4 items) = 715,249.78 (MJ); Difference with GA=19,490.90; % Error=2.72									

Table A.7.1: The fuzzy total exergy cost found by the algorithms (Eq. 7.17) in Iran-Carbon cap

Table A.7.2: The CPU times of solving test problems by the algorithms (Eq. 7.17) in Iran-Carbon cap

	CPU time (second)				_			
No. of items	WOA	GA	ACO	SA	The best algorithm	Difference	Improvement %	
4	0.180	0.246	0.397	0.025	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	0.155	620.00	
8	0.232	0.260	0.564	0.026	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	0.206	792.31	
16	0.303	0.363	0.908	0.027	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	0.276	1022.22	
32	0.456	0.559	1.763	0.029	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	0.427	1472.41	
64	0.640	0.777	3.531	0.033	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	0.607	1839.39	
128	1.196	1.337	6.246	0.047	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	1.149	2444.68	
256	2.345	2.633	12.833	0.077	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	2.268	2945.45	
512	4.245	4.914	24.854	0.125	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	4.120	3296.00	
1024	7.991	8.872	48.196	0.244	SA-WOA-GA-ACO	7.747	3175.00	
Exact method's result (4 items) = 4.29 Sec.; Difference with GA=4.04 Sec.; % Error=1643.90								
		-						



Fig.A.7.1. The fuzzy total exergy comparisons of all algorithms - carbon cap (Phase 2)



Fig.A.7.2. The fuzzy total exergy comparisons of two algorithms by percentage (Phase 2)



Fig.A.7.3. The CPU time comparisons of algorithms (Phase 2)



Fig.A.7.4. The improvement (%) of CPU time comparisons of the algorithms (Phase 2)

A.7.5.1.2. Part 2: Find out the "exact" results and compare them with metaheuristic ones.

In order to develop a good knowledge and understanding of the solution obtained through the suggested algorithms, a solution may be contrasted with an "exact method." This "exact result" can be achieved through an exact optimizer software such as "GAMS" or optimization library in "Python." Considering emission cap policy and Eq. (7.17) for a 4-item numerical example, the exact result (by GAMS) for the fuzzy total exergy is 715,249.78 (MJ), while the outcome of the best metaheuristic algorithm (GA) for this example is 734,740.68 (MJ). Consequently, the difference between them is 19,490.90 (MJ), and the percentage penalty or error is 2.72%. Since the percentage penalty is minor, this signals the good superiority of the solutions found through the best-suggested algorithm (Cárdenas-Barrón et al. 2012), as it is very close to the exact method (see Table A.7.1, and Fig. A.7.5). Regarding CPU running time, the difference between exact method time and GA is 4.046 (Sec.), while the percentage penalty is 1641.671%. It means the metaheuristic algorithm (GA) solved the cap policy model more quickly (see Table A.7.2 and Fig. A.7.6). Moreover, the example diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms are presented in Fig. (A.7.7).



Fig.A.7.5. Comparison of the total fuzzy exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm (Phase 3)



Fig.A.7.6. Compare CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm (Phase 3)



Fig.A.7.7. The diagrams of fuzzy total exergy by the suggested algorithms (Phases 2 & 3)

A.7.5.1.3. Part 3: A sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs in five countries.

In the previous subsections, we looked to optimize a sustainable inventory model of coal SC in Iran by considering different objectives simultaneously: the total inventory cost, the total cost associated with the additional required budget of all buyers, penalty cost of coal wastes disposal to the environment, and the whole carbon produced by coal SC. All goals in the model and related limitations under emission cap policy are in MJ instead of monetary values. In this phase, we go further and balance financial and sustainable benefits for coal SC enterprises. As our proposed models are sustainable, we are looking to adjust the exergy percentage for capital, labor, and environmental remediation by a sensitivity analysis to decrease the fuzzy total exergy more than before. Moreover, to get more insight into this issue, we compare the sensitivity analysis of a coal SC in Iran with two neighboring countries (Turkey and Afghanistan) in the Middle East and two developed countries in Europe and North America (Germany and Canada). We assume the same coal SC and items for all five countries. It was assumed that each cost $A_{i,S}$, $A_{ij,b}$, h_{ij} and C_i could be allocated to Cap=30% for money, L=60% for labor, and Env=10% for ecological remediation. Now, in this section, these percentages are changed into five different sets (A-E) in Table A.7.3, and the fuzzy total exergy is obtained for a 4-item test problem under emission cap policy using the best-suggested algorithms. Moreover, the exergetic parameters used for five countries are the same as in Chapter 5.

0/(С	I E)		Min	Country	Mar	Country				
%(Cap-L-Env)		AF*	CA	GE	IR	TR	MIIN.	min.	wiax.	max.
Set A	30-60-10	141,316.53	3,269,610.51	3,216,971.32	734,828.56	2,972,014.13	141,316.53	AF	3,269,610.51	CA
Set B	50-30-20	164,919.79	1,285,976.37	1,192,900.68	854,814.77	3,256,774.91	164,919.79	AF	3,256,774.91	TR
Set C	20-50-30	146,451.08	3,268,083.12	3,048,417.64	761,440.02	3,032,929.71	146,451.08	AF	3,268,083.12	CA
Set D	30-20-50	174,187.82	666,924.42	600,277.13	901,519.42	3,368,441.83	174,187.82	AF	3,368,441.83	TR
Set E	33-33-33	161,779.26	1,555,685.52	1,528,691.42	838,931.07	3,219,102.84	161,779.26	AF	3,219,102.84	TR
Balanced	Min.	141,316.53	666,924.42	600,277.13	734,828.56	2,972,014.13	Min. Min.		Max. Max.	
point	Set min.	Α	D	D	Α	Α	141,316.53	AF	3,368,441.83	TR
	Max.	174,187.82	3,269,610.51	3,216,971.32	901,519.42	3,368,441.83	Set A		Set D	
	Set max.	D	А	А	D	D				
*AF: Afghanistan, CA: Canada, GE: Germany, IR: Iran, TR: Turkey										

Table A.7.3: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy costs (example with four items)-Carbon cap

A.7.5.1.3.1 Analysis of each country-Carbon cap

Considering Table 7.3 and Fig. 7.8, for coal supply chain in each country, we have:

- Afghanistan: As a developing country in the Middle East, the top exergy set are Set A (30-60-10), as Labor takes 60% while Environment holds only 10%. It generated the least fuzzy total exergy of 141,316.53 (MJ). The worst exergy set in Afghanistan is Set D (30-20-50), whilst 50% weight is assigned to Environment, which presented the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 174,187.82 (MJ).
- Canada: As a developed country in North America, the top exergy set in Canada is Set D (30-20-50), whereas more exergy percentage is offered to Environment (50%). It created the minimum amount of fuzzy total exergy with 666,924.42 (MJ) for coal supply chain. In the same way, the weakest exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) once more weight is given to the Labor (50%), which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 3,269,610.51 (MJ).
- Iran: Like Afghanistan, the best exergy components ae Set A (30-60-10), as Labor gets 60% while Environment gets only 10%. It created the smallest fuzzy total exergy of 734,828.56 (MJ). The worst exergy elements in Iran are Set D (30-20-50), whilst 50% weight is assigned to Environment, which stated the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 901,519.42 (MJ).
- Turkey: Similar to Iran and Afghanistan, the top exergy elements in Turkey are Set A (30-60-10), whereas more exergy percentage is offered to Labor (60%). It created the minimum amount of fuzzy total exergy with 2,972,014.13 (MJ) for coal supply chain. Equally, the weakest exergy components are Set D (30-20-50) once more weight is given to the Environment (50%), which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 3,368,441.83 (MJ).
- Germany: Different from the previous countries in the middle east, the most excellent exergy elements in Germany are Set D (30-20-50), after 50% of weight is allocated to Environment. It delivered the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 600,277.13 (MJ) for coal supply chain. Furthermore, the unhealthiest exergy components are Set A (30-60-10) when 60% weight is appointed to Labor, which composed the highest fuzzy total exergy of 3,216,971.32 (MJ).
- Concerning Table 7.3 and Fig. 7.8, the lowest amount of total exergy (MJ) in coal supply chain of each country is as follow Afghanistan (141,316.53), Canada (666,924.42), Iran (734,828.56), Turkey (2,972,014.13), and Germany (600,277.13).
- Among all given countries, the coal supply chain in Afghanistan has the lowest total exergy (141,316.53 MJ), followed by Canada, Germany, Iran, and Turkey, respectively (see Fig. 7.8). It is observed that coal SC in developed countries like Canada and Germany are more sustainable (less total exergy in MJ) than developing countries like Iran and Turkey. Sustainability performance of Coal SC in Afghanistan are an exceptional example among all presented countries.
- Moreover, coal supply chain in Turkey generates the maximum total exergy under exergy Sets of B (50-30-20), D (30-20-50) and E (33-33-33), among other countries. Likewise, Canada, under exergy Sets of A (30-60-10) and C (20-50-30), establishes the highest total exergy in coal supply chain (see Table 7.3).

A.7.5.1.3.2 Analysis of each exergy set-Carbon cap

Respecting Table 7.3 and Fig. 7.9, for each exergy set, we have:

- Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): In this set, more weight is assigned to Labor (60%) and only 10% to Environment. Although this set works well for coal supply chain in Afghanistan, Iran and Turkey, with the minimum total exergy of 141,316.53, 734,828.56 and 2,972,014.13 (MJ), respectively, Canada and Germany have a huge total exergy with 3,269,610.51 and 3,216,971.32 (MJ), respectively.
- Exergy Set B (50%-30%-20%): In this set, more weight is assumed for Capital (50%) along with Labor (30%) and Environment (20%), respectively. Regardless of coal supply chain in Turkey (3,256,774.91 MJ), exergy set B operates well in Afghanistan with 164,919.79 (MJ).
- Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this set, Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. Exergy set C performs well in coal supply chain in Afghanistan (146,451.08 MJ), even though in Canada, the total exergy is a huge amount of 3,268,083.12 (MJ).
- Exergy Set D (30%-20%-50%): In this set, Labor has only 20% while 50% is for Environment. Despite the high result in Afghanistan (174,187.82 MJ), Iran (901,519.42 MJ) and Turkey (3,368,441.83 MJ), exergy set D runs well in Canada and Germany with 666,924.42 and 600,277.13 (MJ), respectively.
- Exergy Set E (33%-33%-33%): In this set, all three exergy components have equal 33% weight. Although exergy set E does not perform well in Turkey (3,219,102.84 MJ), it runs well in Afghanistan with 161,779.26 (MJ).
- Moreover, all exergy Sets (A-E) generated the minimum total exergy for coal supply chain in Afghanistan (see Fig. 7.9).



Fig.7.8. Sensitivity analysis - Min. and Max. of countries (Phase 4) -Carbon cap



Fig.7.9. Sensitivity analysis of different exergy set vs. countries (Phase 4) -Carbon cap

Appendix 2. The results of carbon offset policy for the model (in chapter 8) A.8.5.1.2 Step one - Metaheuristic algorithms (carbon offset)

Based on the solution procedure, in the first step, all suggested metaheuristic algorithms are executed 15 times for the fuzzy exergy model with carbon offset policy (Eq. 8.18). The outputs of algorithms include the lowest fuzzy total exergy (*MJ*), and the CPU times (*seconds*) are presented in Tables A.8.1 and A.8.2, respectively. Based on the results, the superior metaheuristic algorithm for the smallest fuzzy total exergy (*MJ*) and running times (*seconds*) could be found for the model (Eq. 8.18).

Concerning the fuzzy total exergy and in line with the fallouts shown in Table A.8.1, ALO is the best algorithm for 4-item (case study in Iran) and 10-item test problems with 41,699,351.48 and 192,815,840.24 (MJ), respectively. In contrast, for test problems from 20 to 2560 products, WOA is the best algorithm. For our large size test problems (640, 1280 & 2560 products), WOA gets the lowest fuzzy total exergy cost (8,738,009,828.86; 11,473,398,840.59 & 26,834,597,657.96 MJ) followed by LOA, and ALO, respectively (see Fig. A.8.1). Regarding Fig. A.8.2, performance improvement between top two algorithms from 20p to 80p test problems, are less since the results of them are very close together. But in large-size test problems the average performance enhancement between the results of WOA and LOA is about 67%, which means the results of WOA are outstanding. In opposition, ALO has the highest fuzzy total exergy (MJ) results in our medium and large-size test problems.

Considering the CPU time (Sec.), WOA is absolutely the best algorithm with the lowest running time in all test problems (see Fig. A.8.3). For example, in our large-size test problems (640, 1280 & 2560 products), the WOA CPU times were 46.86, 87.58, and 145.32 (Sec.), respectively (see Table A.8.2). Moreover, in large-size test problems, the average of WOA's performance improvement (%) with the second-best algorithm is about 794% which means WOA solves the models fast (see Fig. A.8.4). Conversely, ALO has the highest CPU time among other algorithms in all test problems except for 1285 products, where LOA (with 854.21 Sec.) is the worse algorithm (see Table A.8.2).

Test	ALO	LOA	WOA	Min. (MJ)	The bests	Performance improvement (%)
4p	41,699,351.48	65,557,736.94	57,974,289.79	41,699,351.48	ALO-WOA-LOA	39.03
10p	192,815,840.24	330,407,965.03	814,048,679.77	192,815,840.24	ALO-WOA-LOA	322.19
20p	1,329,753,409.64	943,464,336.09	916,902,967.07	916,902,967.07	WOA-LOA-ALO	2.90
40p	1,315,513,174.28	689,596,253.44	644,157,568.30	644,157,568.30	WOA-LOA-ALO	7.05
80p	2,862,253,819.39	1,015,340,034.70	1,002,634,912.33	1,002,634,912.33	WOA-LOA-ALO	1.27
160p	6,686,750,749.21	2,697,200,811.93	1,279,681,958.47	1,279,681,958.47	WOA-LOA-ALO	110.77
320p	12,886,852,130.10	7,374,089,405.06	4,002,255,616.45	4,002,255,616.45	WOA-LOA-ALO	84.25
640p	28,115,754,736.98	10,802,130,855.90	8,738,009,828.86	8,738,009,828.86	WOA-LOA-ALO	23.62
1280p	58,806,441,385.80	18,589,816,709.61	11,473,398,840.59	11,473,398,840.59	WOA-LOA-ALO	62.03
2560p	112,359,058,231.92	57,909,352,141.47	26,834,597,657.96	26,834,597,657.96	WOA-LOA-ALO	115.80

Table A.8.1: The fuzzy total exergy (MJ) observed by the algorithms under carbon offset policy in Iran (Eq. 8.18)

Table A.8.2: The CPU times (Sec.) of solving numerical examples by the algorithms under carbon offset policy in Iran (Eq. 8.18)

Test	ALO	LOA	WOA	Min. (Sec.)	The bests	Performance improvement (%)
4p	2.92	3.28	1.11	1.11	WOA-ALO-LOA	162.51
10p	8.43	7.21	1.44	1.44	WOA-LOA-ALO	400.22
20p	14.36	12.62	2.62	2.62	WOA-LOA-ALO	381.56
40p	27.76	26.46	4.26	4.26	WOA-LOA-ALO	520.74
80p	52.69	51.54	4.72	4.72	WOA-LOA-ALO	991.21
160p	104.94	85.52	7.84	7.84	WOA-LOA-ALO	990.08
320p	195.52	174.55	20.75	20.75	WOA-LOA-ALO	741.26
640p	397.71	370.71	46.86	46.86	WOA-LOA-ALO	691.05
1280p	841.25	854.21	87.58	87.58	WOA-ALO-LOA	860.60
2560p	1,595.56	1,353.21	145.32	145.32	WOA-LOA-ALO	831.16


Fig.A.8.1. The total fuzzy exergy comparisons of algorithms in large size test problems (step 1)



Fig.A.8.2. Performance improvement of top two algorithms for fuzzy total exergy (step 1)



Fig.A.8.3. The CPU time comparisons of all algorithms (step 1)





A.8.5.1.3 Step two - Exact method (carbon offset)

A solution may be compared with an "exact method" to validate the results by suggested algorithms. Exact optimizer software, for example, "GAMS" or an optimization library in "Python," can find the "exact result." In this research, the proposed mathematical model (Eq. 8.18) under carbon offset strategy is solved in small size (test with four products) by GAMS. A contrast with the best metaheuristic algorithm is made in Table A.8.3. Taking into account Eq. (8.18) for the 4-product test problem, the exact result for the fuzzy total exergy is 40,615,168.34 (MJ), while the outcome of the best metaheuristic algorithm (ALO) for this test is 41,699,351.48 (MJ). Therefore, the percentage penalty between the exact method and ALO is 2.67% (see Table A.8.3). Because the percentage penalty is minor, suggesting the excellent dominance of the solutions got by the

best-suggested algorithm (Cárdenas-Barrón et al., 2012) since it is remarkably close to the exact method (see Fig. A.8.5). Concerning CPU running time, the distinction between exact method and ALO is 0.92 (Sec.), but the percentage penalty is 31.53%. It shows that the metaheuristic algorithm (ALO) solved the carbon offset model more rapidly (see Fig. A.8.6).

Table A.8.3: Comparing the results of the exact method (GAMS) with the best algorithm (ALO)

	ALO	Exact	Difference	Penalty (%)
Fuzzy total exergy:	41,699,351.48	40,615,168.34	1,084,183.14	2.67
CPU time:	2.92	3.84	0.92	31.53



Fig.A.8.5. Comparison of the total fuzzy exergy between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2)



Fig.A.8.6. Comparison of the CPU time between exact method and the best metaheuristic algorithm for test problem with four products (step 2)

A.8.5.1.4 Step three- Sensitivity analysis (carbon offset)

In the earlier subsections, we studied the optimization of a sustainable fuzzy EPO model of coal SC in Iran by taking into account different objectives simultaneously: the costs of the inventory system, an additional required budget of each buyer, coal transportation cost among SC members, and carbon emission cost. All goals in the models and related limitations under the emission offset strategy are in MJ in place of monetary values. This step tries to balance economic and sustainable advantages for coal SC companies. Considering that our proposed model is sustainable, we modify the exergy percentage for capital, labor, and environmental remediation by a sensitivity analysis to find the best values of exergy components that improve the sustainability of coal SC more than before. Additionally, to gain further insight into this adjustment, we evaluate sustainable coal SC in Iran as well as seven selected developing and developed countries with the world's most significant coal consumption. They are India, China, Australia, Japan, Poland, the USA, and Zimbabwe (Statista, 2020). We assumed the same coal SC and products for all these countries to make a comparative analysis. In the previous section, we mentioned that in our numerical examples, it was assumed that each cost of $K_{i,S}$, $K_{i,i,b}$, $h_{i,i}$ and C_i can be allocated to Cap=30% for capital, L=60% for labor, and Env=10% for ecological remediation (consider it as exergy Set A). In this section, to get more insight, we have changed these percentages to make seven different exergy sets (see Table A.8.4), including A (30-60-10), B (60-20-20), C (20-50-30), D (20-40-40), E (20-30-50), F (30-10-60) and G (33-33-33). Considering each exergy set, we computed the fuzzy total exergy for a 4-item test problem under carbon offset policy for all countries by GAMS (see Table A.8.4). For example, we consider coal SC in the USA and exergy Set C (*Cap*=20%, *L*=50%, and Env=30%), then employing extended exergy accounting method to convert all monetary costs of $K_{i,S}, K_{ii,b}, h_{ii}$ and C_i to equivalent (MJ). After that, we run model Eq. (8.18) with four product test problems using the Exact method (GAMS). Likewise, the same process was done for other exergy Sets (A-G) and considering other countries' coal SC. Finally, all results are presented in Table A.8.4. In the following section, we explain the results in detail.

Sets (%)	Fuzzy total exergy (Emission offset) MJ						Min.	Country	M. MD	Country		
*	AU**	СН	IN	IR	JA	РО	US	ZI	(MJ)	min.	Max. (MJ)	max.
A (30-60-	58,194,88	178,509,57	41,297,64	41,699,35	60,286,06	135,055,72	38,278,77	36,156,12	36,156,12	71	178,509,57	СН
10)	8.98	6.98	2.73	1.48	9.45	2.76	2.24	7.01	7.01	ZI	6.98	CII
B (60-20-	37,972,20	166,472,93	58,836,36	76,861,89	40,887,17	156,214,94	23,177,06	25,972,29	23,177,06	US	166,472,93	СН
20)	1.90	8.65	8.81	0.52	5.47	8.54	7.92	5.09	7.92		8.65	
С (20-50-	29,582,06	96,953,009	25,466,15	51,091,65	35,269,22	95,760,363	35,476,60	29,749,29	25,466,15	INI	96,953,009	СН
30)	2.77	.68	8.69	5.92	1.20	.89	0.22	8.68	8.69	IIN	.68	
D (20-40-	50,525,85	156,133,26	47,301,83	50,771,81	40,123,71	124,452,99	39,435,13	25,914,51	25,914,51	71	156,133,26	CU
40)	1.36	7.82	1.54	2.85	5.86	6.38	7.75	3.09	3.09	ZI	7.82	Сп
Е (20-30-	37,058,04	161,309,69	45,946,88	48,215,18	38,498,45	135,883,31	26,724,52	33,867,99	26,724,52	UC	161,309,69	СН
50)	8.28	4.66	5.83	3.84	9.38	1.16	2.66	7.48	2.66	08	4.66	
F (30-10-	25,381,55	153,294,71	49,637,34	66,584,73	27,876,02	147,446,02	21,032,55	24,119,89	21,032,55	LIC	153,294,71	CU
60)	4.37	6.80	9.70	5.15	6.26	0.63	9.94	0.07	9.94	US	6.80	Ch
G (33-	36,154,50	136,870,36	38,479,37	71,932,76	35,790,11	146,622,02	33,876,38	31,260,60	31,260,60	71	146,622,02	DO
33-33)	0.20	5.31	1.31	2.38	1.54	5.05	0.99	9.82	9.82	ZI	5.05	PO
Min.	25,381,55	96,953,009	25,466,15	41,699,35	27,876,02	95,760,363	21,032,55	24,119,89	Min. Min. (MJ)		Max. Max. (MJ)	
	4.37	.68	8.69	1.48	6.26	.89	9.94	0.07				
Set Min.	F	С	С	А	F	С	F	F	21,032,55 9.94	USA	178,509,57 6.98	China
Max.	58,194,88	178,509,57	58,836,36	76,861,89	60,286,06	156,214,94	39,435,13	36,156,12			•	
	8.98	6.98	8.81	0.52	9.45	8.54	7.75	7.01				
Set Max.	А	A	В	В	A	В	D	А				
*Sat (Can% I % Environment%): **AU: Australia CH: China IN: India ID: Iran IA: Japan DO: Daland US: the USA 71: 7imbahwa												

Table A.8.4: Sensitivity analysis of different percentages for exergy elements (example with four products) -Carbon offset

*Set (Cap%-L%-Environment%); **AU: Australia, CH: China, IN: India, IR: Iran, JA: Japan, PO: Poland, US: the USA, ZI: Zimbabwe

A.8.5.1.4.1 Analysis of each country-Carbon offset

Considering Table A.8.4 and Fig. A.8.7, for coal SC in each country, we have:

- Australia: The best sustainability condition for coal SC under the carbon offset policy in this country is with exergy Set F (30-10-60) since more exergy percentage is assumed for Environment (60%) and only 10% for Labor. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 25,381,554.37 (MJ) for coal SC. Besides, the worst sustainability condition is by exergy Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which created the highest fuzzy total exergy with 58,194,888.98 (MJ).
- China: The exergy Set C (20-50-30) creates the top sustainability conditions for China when Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. It created the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 96,953,009.68 (MJ) for coal SC. Like Australia, the weakest sustainability conditions are by exergy Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It generated the highest fuzzy total exergy of 178,509,576.98 (MJ).
- India: Like China, the finest sustainability condition is by exergy Set C (20-50-30), when Labor has 50% weight, while Environment and Capital are 30% and 20%, respectively. It produced the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 25,466,158.69 (MJ) for coal SC. Moreover, the unpleasant exergy components are Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is expected for Capital (60%) and the same weights (20%) for Labor and Environment, which formed the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 58,836,368.81 (MJ).
- Iran: For coal SC in this country, the top sustainability condition is by exergy Set A (30-60-10) as Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%. It made the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 41,699,351.48 (MJ). Like India, the unhealthiest exergy components in Iran are Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is assigned to Capital (60%) and the same weights for Labor and Environment (20%), which generated the worst sustainability with maximum fuzzy total exergy of 76,861,890.52 (MJ).
- Japan: Like Australia, the best sustainability condition for coal SC in Japan is by exergy Set F (30-10-60), while more exergy percentage is given to Environment (60%) and less to Labor (10%). It established the least amount of fuzzy total exergy with 27,876,026.26 (MJ) for coal SC. Furthermore, like Australia and China, the unhealthiest sustainability condition is by exergy Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which generated the highest fuzzy total exergy of 60,286,069.45 (MJ).
- Poland: Like India and China, the excellent sustainability condition in Poland is by exergy Set C (20-50-30), when Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. It created the least possible fuzzy total exergy of 95,760,363.89 (MJ) for coal SC. Besides, like India and Iran, the worst sustainability condition is by exergy Set B (60-20-20) when more weight is assigned to Capital (60%) and the same weights for Labor and Environment (20%), which created the maximum fuzzy total exergy of 156,214,948.54 (MJ).
- The USA: Like Australia and Japan, the superior sustainability condition in the USA is by exergy Set F (30-10-60) as more exergy percentage is assumed to Environment (60%) and less on Labor (10%). It generated the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 21,032,559.94 (MJ) for coal SC. Additionally, the harmful exergy components are Set D (20-40-40) since Labor and Environment have the same weights (40%) while Capital has only 20%, which established the highest fuzzy total exergy of 39,435,137.75 (MJ).

- Zimbabwe: Like Australia, Japan and the USA, the first-rate sustainability condition of coal SC in Zimbabwe is by exergy Set F (30-10-60) because more exergy percentage is assumed to Environment (60%) and less on Labor (10%). It crafted the minimum fuzzy total exergy of 24,119,890.07 (MJ). Additionally, like Australia, China and Japan, the worst weakest sustainability condition is by exergy Set A (30-60-10) since Labor has 60% while Environment has only 10%, which generated the greatest fuzzy total exergy of 36,156,127.01 (MJ).
- Considering Table A.8.4, the best total exergy (MJ) in each country is as follow: Australia (25,381,554.37), China (96,953,009.68), India (25,466,158.69), Iran (41,699,351.48), Japan (27,876,026.26), Poland (95,760,363.89), the USA (21,032,559.94) and Zimbabwe (24,119,890.07).
- Among all presented countries, the coal SC in the USA has the best sustainability condition (the smallest total exergy) with 21,032,559.94 MJ, followed by Zimbabwe, Australia, India, Japan, Iran, Poland, and China, respectively (see Fig. A.8.7).
- Moreover, coal SC in China creates the highest total exergy (the worst sustainability in MJ) for all exergy sets except for exergy Set G (33-33-33) related to Poland (see Fig. A.8.8).



Fig.A.8.7. Sensitivity analysis for each country – Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)



Fig.A.8.8. Sensitivity analysis for each set - Min. & Max. of the total fuzzy exergy (step 3)

A.8.5.1.4.2 Analysis of each exergy set-Carbon offset

Considering Table A.8.4, and Fig. A.8.8, for each exergy set, we have:

- Exergy Set A (30%-60%-10%): This exergy set has 60% weight for Labor, while for Environment, it is only 10%. Although this exergy set works well for coal SC in Zimbabwe with the most sustainable condition (the minimum total exergy) with 36,156,127.01 (MJ), in China, it creates the worst sustainable condition with 178,509,576.98 (MJ).
- Exergy Set B (60%-20%-20%): In this set, more weight is assumed for Capital (60%) and the same for Labor and Environment (20%). Despite the low sustainability condition in coal SC in China (166,472,938.65 MJ), exergy set B operates well in the USA with 23,177,067.92 (MJ).
- Exergy Set C (20%-50%-30%): In this set, Labor has 50% weight, followed by Environment (30%) and Capital (20%), respectively. Exergy set C performs well in terms of sustainability in coal SC in India (25,466,158.69 MJ), even though in China, the total exergy is a huge amount of 96,953,009.68 (MJ).
- Exergy Set D (20%-40%-40%): In this set, Capital has only 20% while 40% is for both Labor and Environment. Despite the high result (low sustainability) in China with 156,133,267.82 (MJ), exergy set D runs well in Zimbabwe with 25,914,513.09 (MJ).
- Exergy Set E (20%-30%-50%): In this set, 50% is assigned to Environment and 20% and 30% to Capital and Labor, respectively. Exergy set E operates well (with high sustainability) in the USA with 26,724,522.66 (MJ), although the result is worst coal SC in China (161,309,694.66 MJ).
- Exergy Set F (30%-10%-60%): In this set, 60% is allocated to Environment and only 10% Labor. Exergy set F creates top sustainability condition in the USA (21,032,559.94 MJ), even though the result is not healthy in China (153,294,716.80 MJ).
- Exergy Set G (33%-33%-33%): In this set, all three exergy components have equal 33% weight. Even though exergy set G does not perform well (with low sustainability condition) in Poland with 146,622,025.05 (MJ), it runs well in Zimbabwe with 31,260,609.82 (MJ).

Moreover, exergy Sets B (30-60-10), E (20-30-50) and F (30-10-60) created the minimum total exergy for coal SC in the USA, while all exergy sets except Set G (33-33-33) created the highest total exergy (the lowest sustainability condition) in China (see Fig. A.8.8).

Country	α_x	$\boldsymbol{\beta}_x$	<i>ee_{Cap}</i> (MJ/€)	ee _L (MJ/WH)
Afghanistan	0.0017	0.07	1.1	0.41
The USA	0.145	1.43	2.85	72.82
Canada	0.021	1.95	3.13	68.61
Germany	0.557	1.31	3.16	68.25
Zimbabwe	0.0026	3.9	3.35	70.18
Japan	0.773	1.9	3.35	70.18
Australia	0.018	1.69	3.56	71.21
India	0.0419	1.32	4.34	1.64
Iran	0.0121	2.94	5.68	3.56
China	0.0015	0.477	14.01	48.66
Poland	0.55	0.57	14.02	76.55
Turkey	0.411	1.35	20.51	91.36
Min.	0.0015	0.07	1.1	0.41
Country	China	Afghanistan	Afghanistan	Afghanistan
Max.	0.773	3.9	20.51	91.36
Country	Japan	Zimbabwe	Turkey	Turkey

Appendix 3. The exergy parameters for all countries (Chapter 9)

Table A.9.1: The exergy parameters used in the inventory analysis of each country (Sciubba, 2011)



Fig. A.9.1. The exergy of Capital (ee_Cap) in developed and developing countries.